
YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
1114 Yuba Street 

Marysville, CA 95901 

Trustee Area 1 

Trustee Area 2 

Trustee Area 3 

Trustee Area 4 

Katharine Rosser  
John Nicoletti 
Marjorie Renicker 
Desiree Hastey
Tracy Bishop Trustee Area 5 

Agenda
December 15, 2025     

Rob Gregor
Yuba County Superintendent of Schools



YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION  
REGULAR MEETING  

Monday, December 15, 2025 – 9:30 a.m. 
Yuba County Office of Education Business Center, Beckwourth Room 

1114 Yuba Street, Marysville, CA 95901  

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Persons wishing to address the Board (Agenda Items and/or Non-Agenda Items) are 
requested to fill out a “Request to Speak” card before the start of the meeting and give it to the Secretary, Board 
President, or Superintendent. Individual speakers will be allowed five minutes to address the Board - fifteen 
minutes total time for public input on each item. 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER, ATTENDANCE, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

This item is being placed on the agenda to allow any member of the public to speak on agenda items and
non-agenda items or to share information with the Board.

The California Government Code, Section 54595.2(a)(2) states, “No action or discussion shall be undertaken on
any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly
respond to statements made or questions posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under Section
54954.3.”

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA ACTION ITEM 

4. ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING

4.1 CONFIRM TIME, DATE AND PLACE OF ACTION ITEM 
REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS - Page 1
Rob Gregor 

Note: Currently, Regular Board meetings are held on the second Wednesday of each month at 4:30p.m. 
at the Yuba County Office of Education Business Center, Beckwourth Room, 1114 Yuba Street, 
Marysville, CA. A recommended schedule has been provided.  

4.2 ELECTION OF PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENT  ACTION ITEM 
Rob Gregor 

The Superintendent presides over the election of the President.  The new President presides over the 
remaining elections and assumes responsibility of the meeting at that time. 

Process for Nomination of Officers: 
 There is not a 2nd to nominate a person to stand for election.
 After each nomination, the board member nominated will accept or decline.
 A motion is not made to close nominations.
 After all nominations have been made and the person nominated accepts or declines the

nomination, then a motion for the first nominated candidate will take place.  The first



nomination that receives the majority vote in the affirmative is elected to the position, and no 
further votes will be taken on the remaining nominations. 

4.3 APPOINT SUPERINTENDENT AS SECRETARY/CLERK ACTION ITEM 
TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Recommend the Board appoint Yuba County Superintendent of Schools Rob Gregor as 
Secretary/Clerk to the Yuba County Board of Education. 

4.4 SCHOOL BOARD AUTHORIZATION FORM ACTION ITEM 

Education Code §42632 and 42633 sets out the requirements for the filing with the County 
Superintendent of Schools the verified signature of each person, including members of the Board 
authorized to sign orders for the Board. 

Recommend the Board authorize Rob Gregor to sign warrants and orders drawn on the funds of the 
County Office of Education and School Districts. Each Trustee will record their verified signatures on 
the School Board Authorization form. 

4.5 APPOINTMENT TO BOARD COMMITTEES ACTION ITEM 
DESCRIPTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES - Page 2 

The president shall appoint subcommittees of the Board deemed necessary by the Board. Membership 
on these committees is limited to less than a majority of the whole Board. 

 Appoint Committee Representative(s) to Superintendent’s Salary Committee
 Appoint Committee Representative(s) to the Budget Committee

5. CONSENT AGENDA              ACTION ITEM

5.1 APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 12, 2025, BOARD MINUTES – Pages 3-7
5.2 TEMPORARY COUNTY TEACHER CERTIFICATES – Page 8

The above items are self-explanatory. All items on the Consent Agenda are considered a routine item or 
one that has been previously discussed. Any Board Member may request that an item be pulled for 
further discussion.

6. SUPERINTENDENT’S OFFICE

6.1 THIS ITEM PROVIDES AN OPPORTUNITY FOR THE INFORMATION ITEM 
SUPERINTENDENT/DIRECTORS/BOARD MEMBERS 
TO SHARE VARIOUS ITEMS OF INTEREST 

6.2 ASSEMBLY BILL 1390 & BOARD BYLAW 9250 – INFORMATION ITEM 
REMUNERATION, REIMBURSEMENT AND OTHER 
BENEFITS – Pages 9-13

Existing law establishes county boards of education and school districts throughout the state to 
administer the public elementary and secondary schools within their respective jurisdictions. Existing 



law requires county boards of education and the governing board of each school district to prescribe and 
enforce rules not inconsistent with state law for their own government. 

7. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

7.1 PUBLIC HEARING – YUBA ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE INFORMATION ITEM
(YES) CHARTER ACADEMY RENEWAL - Pages 14-215
Jessica Geierman 

Pursuant to EC Section 47607, 47607.2, renewals of charters are governed by the standards and criteria 
described in EC Section 47605, and shall include, but not be limited to, a reasonably comprehensive 
description of any new requirement of charter schools enacted into law after the charter was originally 
granted or last renewed. This public hearing is being held as part of the standard renewal process. 

7.2 STUDENT SHARING INFORMATION ITEM 
Jessica Geierman 

This quarterly item allows students to address the board directly on topics related to their school 
experience. 

7.3 EDUCATIONAL SERVICES PROGRAM UPDATE INFORMATION ITEM 
Joe Lodigiani 

 Deputy Superintendent Joe Lodigiani will share an update of the Educational Services Programs that are 
currently being offered to schools, districts, and the community in Yuba County. 

8. FISCAL SERVICES

8.1 APPROVAL OF FIRST INTERIM REPORT FOR 2025-26 ACTION ITEM 
Aaron Thornsberry - Pages 216-299 

This report is submitted each year to revise the budget where necessary and to give the board and public 
an estimate of what our ending balances will be and the current financial status.  

Recommend the Board approve the Interim Report and budget revisions contained therein for 2025-26. 

9. ADVANCED PLANNING

9.1 NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING INFORMATION/
JANUARY 14, 2026 – 4:30P.M. ACTION ITEM 
LOCATION: YUBA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
BUSINESS CENTER, BECKWOURTH ROOM,  
1114 YUBA STREET, MARYSVILLE, CA 95901 

10. ADJOURN ACTION ITEM 



  2026 YCOE Board Meeting Schedule  

 
The Second Wednesday of Each Month 

Beginning at 4:30 p.m. (unless otherwise specified below) at the Yuba County Office of 
Education Business Center,  

Beckwourth Room, 1114 Yuba Street, Marysville, CA  
  

  
January 14, 2026  

  
February 11, 2026 

 
March 11, 2026  

  
April 8, 2026  

  
May 13, 2026  

 
June 10, 2026  

  
June 17, 2026* 

  
July 8, 2026  

 
August 12, 2026  

  
September 9, 2026 

 
October 14, 2026  

  
November 10, 2026** 

  
December 14, 2026*** 

 
 

 
*Two Board meetings in June (LCAP & Budget Approval) 
**November meeting on Tuesday due to Veterans Day holiday closure 
***December meeting on Monday due to 15-day Annual Organizational Meeting requirements/First Interim Deadline  
 
 
Proposed: 12/15/2025 
 

1



 
Yuba County Office of Education Board Bylaw     BB 9130 
 
 
 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 
 
Board Subcommittees 
 
The president shall appoint subcommittees of the Board deemed necessary by the Board.  
Membership on these committees is limited to less than a majority of the whole Board.  
When its duties have been completed, the subcommittee shall be dissolved. 
 
The President may be a member of any subcommittee.  The Superintendent or designee 
may serve as an advisor to any subcommittee. 
 
Subcommittees may actively seek input and participation by parents/guardians, staff, 
community, and students, and may consult with local public boards and agencies. 
 
Subcommittees shall act in an advisory capacity making recommendations to the Board.  
No subcommittee action shall be binding on the full Board.  The Board as a whole shall 
have the final consideration in all matters. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
35010  Control of district; prescription and enforcement of rules 
35024  Executive committee 
35160  Authority of governing boards 
35160.1  Broad authority of school districts 
 
 
 
Bylaw Adopted:  May 9, 1990 
Revised:  September 11, 2002 

2



 
TOPIC  

 
DISCUSSION  ACTION TAKEN  

1. CALL TO ORDER  President Nicoletti called a regular meeting of 
the Yuba County Board of Education to order at 
4:30 p.m. on November 12, 2025, at 1114 Yuba 
Street, Marysville, CA 95901. 

CALLED TO ORDER:  
4:30 p.m. 

ATTENDANCE, PLEDGE OF 
ALLEGIANCE 

John Nicoletti, Katharine Rosser, Marjorie 
Renicker, and Tracy Bishop are present. 
 
Desiree Hastey is not in attendance. 
 
Shelby Rider led the recital of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

QUORUM PRESENT  
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS  There are no public comments.   

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  President Nicoletti directed Board members to 
the November 12, 2025, Agenda for their review 
and approval.  
 
Upon a motion by Vice President Bishop, duly 
seconded by Trustee Rosser, the Board 
unanimously approved the November 12, 2025, 
Agenda as presented. 

MOTION: To approve 
the November 12, 2025 
Agenda as presented 
MOTION: Tracy Bishop 
SECOND: Katharine 
Rosser 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser – Aye  
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye  
John Nicoletti – Aye  
MOTION APPROVED 
(4/0) 

4. CONSENT AGENDA   
  
    

President Nicoletti directed board members to the 
November 12, 2025, Consent Agenda for their 
review and approval.  
 
Upon a motion by Vice President Bishop, duly 
seconded by Trustee Rosser, the board 
unanimously approved the Consent Agenda as 
presented.  
 

MOTION: To approve 
the Consent Agenda as 
presented 
MOTION: Tracy Bishop 
SECOND: Katharine 
Rosser 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser – Aye  
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye   

3



Vice President Bishop noted her appreciation for 
the donation included in the consent agenda. 

John Nicoletti – Aye  
MOTION APPROVED 
(4/0) 

5. SUPERINTENDENTS 
OFFICE 

5.1 Submission of Certificated Employees 
Association Openers for 2026-27 
Negotiations 
 

Superintendent Gregor noted the submission of  
Certificated Employees Association Openers for 
2026-27 Negotiations.  
 
Trustee Desiree Hastey joined the board meeting 
at 4:34 p.m. 
  

5.2 Public Hearing - Certificated  
Employees Association Openers for 
2026-27 Negotiations 
 

President Nicoletti called a public hearing to 
order at 4:34 p.m. 
 
There are no public comments. 
 
Upon a motion by Vice President Bishop, duly 
seconded by Trustee Renicker, the public hearing 
was adjourned at 4:35 p.m.  

 
5.3 This Item Provides an Opportunity for 

the Superintendent/Directors/Board 
Members to Share Various Items of 
Interest 

 
Superintendent Gregor shared the following 
items of interest: 

• Oct 9 - CSY Networking Event, Hard 
Rock Hotel & Casino  

• Oct 10 – Virginia School Annual Track 
Meet 

• Oct 15 – First Ever Yuba County Charter 
Leadership Meeting  

•  Oct 16 – Yuba-Sutter Chamber Business 
Connection Breakfast  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
QUORUM PRESENT  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
CALLED TO ORDER: 
4:34 p.m. 
 
 
MOTION: To adjourn the 
public hearing at 4:35 p.m. 
MOTION: Tracy Bishop 
SECOND: Marjorie 
Renicker 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser – Aye  
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Aye  
Tracy Bishop – Aye  
John Nicoletti – Aye  
MOTION APPROVED 
(5/0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4



• Oct 20 – Guest Speaker with Boy Scouts, 
Arboga Community Center  

• Oct 21 – CORE Charter Night at Bishop’s 
Pumpkin Farm 

• Oct 24 – Yuba College Trunk or Treat  
• Oct 25 – Carden School Fall Festival  
• Oct 27 – PLESD Groundbreaking 

Ceremony  
• Oct 28 – Fall Potluck at 935 Building 

AND YCOE Night at Bishop’s Pumpkin 
Farm  

• Oct 29 – T.E.M. Fall Festival AND Flood 
Risk Town Hall, Five30 Event Center 

• Oct 30 – Habitat for Humanity Closing 
Celebration for Pine Street Project AND 
Marysville High School Track Ribbon 
Cutting  

• Oct 31 – Virginia School Halloween 
Event  

• Nov 1 – Training Zone 20th Anniversary 
Celebration  

• Nov 6 – First 5 Yuba Commission 
Summit AND CORE Charter Fall 
Festival  

• Nov 7 – Probation Graduation 
• Nov 10 – Ribbon Cutting for Mental 

Health Facility at YCSO Jail  
• Nov 11 – Veteran’s Day Parade 

 
Vice President Bishop asked about Wheatland 
Charter Academy. She noted that their director 
may want to be included in the Yuba County 
Charter Leadership meetings. 
 
President Nicoletti shared the following items of 
interest: 

• Habitat for Humanity featured in YCOE 
Newsletter  

• Veterans Day Parade  
• Attended Town Hall Flood Risk Meeting 
• Peach Tree Healthcare and Ampla Health 

Closing Down Medical Vans   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



6. HUMAN RESOURCES  6.1 Set Superintendent Salary/Benefits 
 

Executive Director of Human Resources Mary 
Hang presented the Superintendent Salary and 
Benefits proposed schedule for 2025-26. She 
notes that the schedule has been prepared and  
recommended by the Superintendent Salary 
Committee.  
 
Upon a motion by Trustee Rosser, duly seconded 
by Vice President Bishop, the board unanimously 
approved the Superintendent Salary and Benefit 
Schedule for 2025-26 as presented.  
 
 
 

 
MOTION: To approve 
the Superintendent Salary 
and Benefit Schedule for 
2025-26 as presented 
MOTION: Katharine 
Rosser 
SECOND: Tracy Bishop 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser – Aye  
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye  
John Nicoletti – Aye  
MOTION APPROVED 
(5/0) 

7. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES  7.1 Educational Services Program Update  
 

Deputy Superintendent Joe Lodigiani gave an 
update on the following items: 

• Professional Development Opportunities  
• Fall Festivals  
• TK Teachers & Paraeducators Training  
• Adult Construction Class  
• Food Distribution  

 

 

8. ADVANCED PLANNING 8.1 Set Date, Time, and Location for  
Annual Organizational Meeting  
 

After deliberation, and upon a motion by Trustee 
Hastey, duly seconded by Trustee Renicker, the 
board unanimously set the Annual Organizational 
Meeting for Monday, December 15, 2025 at 9:30 
a.m. at 1114 Yuba Street, Marysville, CA, 
Beckwourth Room. 

 
8.2 Next Regular Board Meeting  

December 12, 2025 – 11:30 a.m. 
Location: Yuba County Office of 
Education Business Center, 
Beckwourth Room, 1114 Yuba Street, 
Marysville, CA 95901 
 

MOTION: To hold the 
YCOE Annual 
Organizational meeting on  
Monday, December 15, 
2025 at 9:30 a.m. at 1114 
Yuba Street, Marysville, 
CA, Beckwourth Room  
MOTION: Desiree Hastey 
SECOND: Marjorie 
Renicker 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser – Aye  
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye  
John Nicoletti – Aye  
MOTION APPROVED 

6



  
Respectfully submitted,                          Recorded by:   
             Halee Pomeroy 

  
Rob Gregor 
Yuba County Superintendent of Schools 

Upon a motion by Trustee Hastey, duly seconded 
by Trustee Renicker, the board unanimously 
rescheduled the next regular board meeting to 
Monday, December 15, 2025 at 9:30 a.m. at 1114 
Yuba Street, Marysville, CA, Beckwourth Room. 

 

(5/0) 
 
MOTION: To reschedule 
the next regular board 
meeting for Monday, 
December 15, 2025 at 9:30 
a.m. at 1114 Yuba Street, 
Marysville, CA, 
Beckwourth Room 
MOTION: Desiree Hastey 
SECOND: Marjorie 
Renicker 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser – Aye  
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye  
John Nicoletti – Aye  
MOTION APPROVED 
(5/0) 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT There being no further business for discussion, 
the meeting was adjourned. 
 
Upon a motion by Trustee Hastey, duly seconded 
by Trustee Rosser, the Board unanimously 
adjourned the November 12, 2025, Yuba County 
Board of Education meeting at  
5:24 p.m. 
 

MOTION: To adjourn at 
5:24 p.m. 
MOTION: Desiree Hastey 
SECOND: Marjorie 
Renicker 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Katharine Rosser – Aye  
Marjorie Renicker – Aye 
Desiree Hastey – Aye 
Tracy Bishop – Aye   
John Nicoletti – Aye  
MOTION APPROVED 
(5/0) 

7



NAME CREDENTIAL APPLIED FOR PREV CRED TCC EXPIRE
Austin, Cindy Preliminary School Nurse Services No 5/31/2026
Golenor, Jason Short Term Staffing Permit - MMSN Yes 5/31/2026
McGuire, Erica Short Term Staffing Permit - General Ed Yes 3/31/2026
Nagle, Jonathan Short Term Staffing Permit - General Ed No 5/31/2025

Temporary County Certificates Issued
November 1, 2025 to December 4, 2025

8



ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 1390

Bill Text: CA AB1390 | 2025-2026 | Regular Session | Amended
California Assembly Bill 1390
NOTE: There are more recent revisions of this legislation. Read Latest Draft

Bill Title: Public school governance: board member compensation.

Spectrum: Partisan Bill (Democrat 5)

Status: (Passed) 2025-10-11 - Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 639, Statutes of 2025. [AB1390 Detail]

Download: California-2025-AB1390-Amended.html

AMENDED  IN  ASSEMBLY  MARCH 17, 2025

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2025–2026 REGULAR SESSION

Introduced by Assembly Member Solache
(Coauthors: Assembly Members Carrillo, Jackson, Blanca Rubio, and Ávila Farías)

February 21, 2025

An act to amend Sections 1090 and 35120 of the Education Code, relating to public school governance.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 1390, as amended, Solache. Public school governance: board member compensation.

Existing law establishes county boards of education and school districts throughout the state to administer the public elementary and
secondary schools within their respective jurisdictions. Existing law requires county boards of education and the governing board of
each school district to prescribe and enforce rules not inconsistent with state law for their own government. Existing law authorizes the
members of city or county boards of education or the governing boards of school districts to receive compensation not to exceed a
specified amount between $60 and $1,500 per month, based on the average daily attendance for the prior school year in the
jurisdiction of the governing board, as provided.

This bill would revise and recast provisions related to the compensation of members of city or county boards of education and the
governing boards of school districts by authorizing compensation not to increasing the authorized compensation to instead not exceed
an unspecified a specified amount between $300 and $7,500 per month, based on the average daily attendance for the prior school
year in the jurisdiction of the governing board for the prior school year, as provided.

Digest Key
Vote: majority   Appropriation: no   Fiscal Committee: no   Local Program: no  

Bill Text 9

https://legiscan.com/
https://legiscan.com/CA
https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB1390/2025
https://legiscan.com/CA/bill/AB1390/2025
https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB1390/id/3178782/California-2025-AB1390-Amended.html


THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Section 1090 of the Education Code is amended to read:

1090. (a) The board of supervisors may allow, as compensation, to each regular member of the county board of education a sum not
to exceed the following amounts:

(1)  In any class one county, each regular member of the county board of education who actually attends all meetings held may
receive as compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed ____ three thousand dollars ($3,000) per month.

(2)  In any class two county, each regular member of the county board of education who actually attends all meetings held may
receive as compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed ____ two thousand dollars ($2,000) per month.

(3) In any class three county, each regular member of the county board of education who actually attends all meetings held may
receive as compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed ____ one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500) per
month.

(4)  In any class four county, each regular member of the county board of education who actually attends all meetings held may
receive as compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed ____ one thousand dollars ($1,000) per month.

(5) In any class five, class six, class seven, or class eight county, each regular member of the county board of education who actually
attends all meetings held may receive as compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed ____ eight hundred
dollars ($800) per month.

(b) Any regular member or pupil member who does not attend all meetings held in any month may receive as compensation for the
regular member’s or pupil member’s services, an amount not greater than the maximum amount allowed by subdivision (a) or
paragraph (2) of subdivision (h), as applicable, divided by the number of meetings held, and multiplied by the number of meetings
actually attended.

(c) The amount of compensation shall be determined by the county board of supervisors, or, in a county having a fiscally independent
county board of education, by the county board of education.

(d) A pupil member or regular member of a county board of education may be paid for any meeting for which the member is absent if
the board by resolution duly adopted and included within its minutes finds that at the time of the meeting the member was performing
services outside the meeting on behalf of the board, the member was ill or on jury duty, or the absence was due to a hardship deemed
acceptable by the board.

(e) There may also be allowed to each regular member who uses a privately owned automobile in the discharge of necessary official
duties as a member of the county board of education, the same amount as allowed by any county official in the performance of the
county official’s duties. The mileage rate allowed in this section shall be based on the total mileage claimed in a calendar month.

(f) For purposes of this section, the classification of counties shall be determined pursuant to Section 1205.

(g) On an annual basis, the county board of education may increase the compensation of individual regular members of the board
beyond the limits delineated in this section, in an amount not to exceed 5 percent based on the present monthly rate of compensation.
Any increase made pursuant to this section shall be effective upon approval by the county board of education. This action may be
rejected by a majority of the voters in that county voting in a referendum established for that purpose, as prescribed by Chapter 2
(commencing with Section 9100) of Division 9 of the Elections Code.

(h) The county board of education may award a pupil member either or both of the following:

(1) Elective course credit based on the number of equivalent daily instructional minutes for the pupil member’s services provided.

(2) Monthly financial compensation as determined by the county board of education.

(i) As used in this section, the following definitions apply:

(1) “Pupil member” means a pupil board member appointed pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 1000.

(2) “Regular member” means a board member elected or selected pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 1000.

SEC. 2. Section 35120 of the Education Code is amended to read:

35120. (a) (1) In a school district in which the average daily attendance for the prior school year exceeded 250,000, each regular
member of the governing board of the school district who attends all meetings held may receive as compensation for the regular
member’s services a salary as set forth by the local city charter law or applicable rules and regulations and as determined by a local
compensation review committee. 10



(2) In a school district that is not located in a city and county, and in which the average daily attendance for the prior school year
exceeded 60,000, the governing board may prescribe, as compensation for the services of each regular member of the board who
attends all meetings held, a sum not to exceed ____ seven thousand five hundred dollars ($7,500) in any month.

(3) In a school district in which the average daily attendance for the prior school year was 60,000 or less, but more than 25,000,
each regular member of the city board of education or the governing board of the school district who attends all meetings held may
receive as compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed ____ three thousand seven hundred fifty dollars
($3,750) in any month.

(4) In a school district in which the average daily attendance for the prior school year was 25,000 or less, but more than 10,000,
each regular member of the city board of education or the governing board of the school district who attends all meetings held may
receive as compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed ____ two thousand dollars ($2,000) in any month.

(5) In a school district in which the average daily attendance for the prior school year was 10,000 or less, but more than 1,000, each
regular member of the city board of education or the governing board of the school district who attends all meetings held may
receive as compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed ____ one thousand two hundred dollars ($1,200) in
any month.

(6) In a school district in which the average daily attendance for the prior school year was 1,000 or less, but more than 150, each
regular member of the city board of education or the governing board of the school district who attends all meetings held may
receive as compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed ____ six hundred dollars ($600) in any month.

(7) In a school district in which the average daily attendance for the prior school year was less than 150, 150 or less each regular
member of the city board of education or the governing board of the school district who attends all meetings held may receive as
compensation for the regular member’s services a sum not to exceed ____ three hundred dollars ($300) per month.

(8) A regular member or pupil member who does not attend all meetings held in any month may receive, as compensation for the
regular member’s or pupil member’s services, an amount not greater than the maximum amount allowed by this subdivision or
paragraph (2) of subdivision (f), as applicable, divided by the number of meetings held and multiplied by the number of meetings
attended.

(9)  For purposes of providing compensation pursuant to paragraphs (1) to (7), inclusive, average daily attendance for the prior
school year may be increased by a school district’s percentage of excused absences reported for the 1996–97 fiscal year.

(b) The compensation of regular members of the governing board of a school district newly organized or reorganized shall be governed
by subdivision (a). For this purpose, the total average daily attendance in all of the schools of the school district in the school year in
which the organization or reorganization became effective shall be considered the average daily attendance in the school district for the
prior school year.

(c) A pupil member or regular member may be paid for any meeting when absent if the board, by resolution duly adopted and included
in its minutes, finds that at the time of the meeting the member is performing services outside the meeting for the school district or
districts, the member was ill or on jury duty, or the absence was due to a hardship considered acceptable by the board.

(d)  Compensation provided pursuant to this section shall be a charge against the funds of the school district. If the city board of
education or the governing board of the school district is the governing board of more than one school district, the compensation shall
be charged against and paid by the respective school districts in the same proportion as the salary of the city superintendent of schools
is charged against them. Compensation shall be reduced by an amount equal to any salary or compensation paid to the members of
the city board of education from any funds of the city.

(e) On an annual basis, the governing board may increase the compensation of regular members beyond the limits delineated in this
section, in an amount not to exceed 5 percent based on the present monthly rate of compensation. An increase made pursuant to this
subdivision shall be effective upon approval by the governing board.

(f) The governing board of a school district may award a pupil member either or both of the following:

(1) Elective course credit based on the number of equivalent daily instructional minutes for the pupil member’s services provided.

(2) Monthly financial compensation as determined by the governing board.

(g) As used in this section, the following definitions apply:

(1) “Pupil member” means a pupil board member appointed pursuant to subdivision (d) of Section 35012.

(2) “Regular member” means a board member elected or selected pursuant to subdivisions (a) to (c), inclusive, of Section 35012.

11



BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits 

Remuneration 

The Governing Board hereby specifies that each member of the Board may receive the 
maximum compensation allowed by Education Code 1090 for services rendered.  If a 
member does not attend all meetings of the Board during any month, he/she shall receive 
an amount not greater than the maximum amount permissible divided by the number of 
meetings held and multiplied by the number of meetings actually attended.  Members 
may be paid for meetings they missed when the Board, by resolution duly adopted and 
included within its minutes, finds that they were performing designated duties of the 
Board or that they were absent because of illness, jury duty, or a hardship deemed 
acceptable by the Board.  This is done with the understanding that it is not incumbent 
upon any member to accept payment.  Board compensation will be paid in accordance 
with existing statutes. 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

All members of the County Board of Education are eligible for insurance benefits and the 
County Office shall pay premiums for those wishing coverage.  These benefits are 
available through the Tri-County Schools Insurance Group.  The county office monthly 
contribution for medical, dental and vision insurance will be the same as those provided 
to the management team. 

Eligible members retiring from the Board will be provided with fringe benefits under the 
following conditions: 

1. The Board member’s first term in office must have begun on or before
January 1, 1995 (Government Code 53201).

2. To be considered a retiree, the Board member must be at least fifty-five (55)
years of age.

3. The Board member must have served at least twelve (12) consecutive years
immediately preceding retirement.

12



4. This provision shall cease on the last day of the month the retired Board 
member reaches age sixty-five (65). 

5. The fringe benefit coverage shall be the same as that provided for 
management employees who have retired.  Retirees may cover their spouse 
and/or dependents at their cost. 

6. Retirees may select medical coverage only or all offered benefits.  Retirees 
may not elect dental or vision coverage without medical coverage. 

7. Participants are required to follow the rules and regulations of the existing 
carrier/administrator. 

 
Board members whose first term in office began on or after January 1, 1995, and who are 
retiring from the Board after serving at least twelve (12) consecutive years, or Board 
Members that wish to retire that have reached age 65, may continue fringe benefit 
coverage at their own expense. 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
Education Code 
1090 
Government Code 
53201 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

13



 

Via: Email 
Rob.gregor@yubacoe.k12.ca.us 

 
October 31, 2025 

 

Rob Gregor, Superintendent of Schools 
Yuba County Office of Education 
935 14th Street  
Marysville, California 95901 
 

Re: Cover Letter and Executive Summary - Request for Charter Renewal 
 

Dear Superintendent Gregor: 
 

Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy (“YES” or the “Charter School”), 
authorized by the Yuba County Board of Education with oversight by the Yuba County Office of 
Education (collectively, the “County”), this request for a renewal of YES’s charter petition for a 
five (5) year term, from July 1, 2026, to June 30, 2031. The YES Board authorizes submission of 
the charter renewal request to the County Board, and deems the submission to be complete, as 
attested below.    

 
YES is located in the Yuba County Foothills and currently serves 212 students in TK-12 

grades. The Charter School is guided by its mission to cultivate resilient learners and regenerative 
leaders and provides students with a rigorous academic experience combined with an innovative 
project-based programming. YES offers a unique educational opportunity through its 
Environmental Science and Stewardship vision and mission.  Since the last charter renewal in 
2018, the Charter School has undergone a period of dynamic growth, strategic transformation, and 
deepened community impact with a continued focus on environmental stewardship.  
 
CHARTER RENEWAL RATIONALE 

 In submitting this request for renewal, YES is pleased to share its designation as a middle-
performing school by the California Department of Education which thereby entitles the Charter 
School to a default renewal standard for a five-year term.  
 
 As a middle-performing school, Education Code Section 47604.2(b) applies, which states:  

(1) For all charter schools for which [top and bottom tier] do not apply, the 

 

14



chartering authority shall consider the schoolwide performance and 
performance of all subgroups of pupils served by the Charter School on 
the state indicators included on the [Dashboard] and the performance of 
the Charter School on the local indicators included in the [Dashboard]. 

(2) The chartering authority shall provide greater weight to performance on 
measurements of academic performance in determining whether to grant 
a charter renewal. 

(3) In addition to the state and local indicators, the chartering authority shall 
consider clear and convincing evidence showing either of the following: 

A. The school achieved measurable increases in academic 
achievement, as defined by at least one year’s progress for each year in 
school. 
B. Strong postsecondary outcomes, as defined by college 
enrollment, persistence, and completion rates equal to similar peers.  

(4) Subparagraphs (A) and (B) of paragraph (3) shall be demonstrated by 
verified data… 

 
As described in the charter renewal petition, YES has made gains in several areas over the 

course of the prior term. These include measurable increases and sufficient progress toward 
meeting standards to provide a benefit to its students as shown by the overall improvement in 
California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress scores since the end of the pandemic. 
YES is proud of its strong culture as evidenced by its low rates of chronic absenteeism and 
suspension.  
 
SUMMARY OF CHANGES 

In accordance with Education Code Section 47607(b), the Petition includes a reasonably 
comprehensive description of any new requirement of charter school enacted into law during the 
prior term. Please find a summary list of updates to the charter reflecting new requirements of 
charter schools enacted into law after the charter was last renewed and relevant to the Charter 
School. In addition to the redlined updates to the charter submitted herewith, a summary of these 
changes include, but are not limited to: 

 
• Throughout: Statutory updates to all governing law and references thereto throughout the 

charter. 
• Affirmation and Declaration: Updates to reflect changes in law. 
• Executive Summary: Updates to include the successes over the past charter term; 

Leadership and Board bios; and renewal criteria and data.  
• Element 1: Updates to reflect student population information; graduation requirements; 

character development framework, including Multi-Tiered System of Supports; learning 
design approach; Special Education to reflect the Charter School as its own local 
educational agency; inclusion of education of homeless children and youth. 

• Element 2: Updates to Local Control and Accountability Plan mid-year updates; inclusion 
of LCAP as appendix. 

• Element 5: Updates to key employee qualifications. 
• Element 6: Updates to reflect additional health and safety policies and procedures. 
• Element 8: Updates to reflect compliance with Education Code Section 47605(e)(4)(A)-

(D) and updated enrollment lottery procedures 

15



• Element 10: Updates to reflect multi-tiered supports; changes in law related to suspension, 
expulsion, and involuntary removal policies and procedures. 

• Element 14: Updates to reflect the dispute resolution process in the MOU between the 
County and YES. 

• Miscellaneous Charter Provisions: Inclusion of additional charter provisions.  
 

 
CERTIFICATIONS 

 In compliance with Section 47605(b), I make the following certifications: 
 

1. That I am the authorized representative, and that I am competent and qualified to certify 
the matter herein; 
 

2. That, as an authorized representative, I have personal knowledge of the facts forming the 
basis of this certification; 
 

3. That I make this certification for the purposes of Education Code Section 47605(b) only; 
and 
 

4. That I deem the revised charter petition to be complete. 
 

TIMELINE 

 Charter renewals are governed by the same standards and criteria that apply to new charter 
petitions as set forth in Education Code Section 47605 (Education Code Section 47607(b)), 
including the timing requirements for charter petitions to be heard.  Under Education Code Section 
47605(b), “[n]o later than 60 days after receiving a petition, … the governing board of the school 
district shall hold a public hearing on the provisions of the charter, at which time the governing 
board of the school district shall consider the level of support for the petition by teachers employed 
by the school district, other employees of the school district, and parents.”  Thereafter, “[f]ollowing 
review of the petition and the public hearing, the governing board of the school district shall either 
grant or deny the charter within 90 days of receipt of the petition, provided, however, that the date 
may be extended by an additional 30 days if both parties agree to the extension.”  These timelines 
are commenced “for purposes of commencing the timelines described … on the day the petitioner 
submits a petition to the district office, along with a signed certification that the petitioner deems 
the petition to be complete.”   
 

CONTENTS OF THE SUBMISSION 

In compliance with the County’s submission process for considering a charter petition 
received for renewal, the following items are enclosed with this letter:  

 
Attachment 1: Charter Renewal Petition (redline and clean), including Appendices 
Attachment 2: Completed Review Matrix 
Attachment 3: YCOE Required Forms and Checklists 
 

 

16



 
* * * 

 
YES is proud of its record in educating students. The Charter School looks forward to 

working with the County during its consideration of the charter renewal. Please feel free to contact 
me via email (lmiller@yescharteracademy.org) or phone (530) 692-2210, if you have any 
questions. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Louise Miller, Principal/Superintendent 
 
 

 

4922-1564-2742, v. 1 

17



 
 
 

Yuba Environmental Science 
Charter Academy  

(YES CHARTER ACADEMY) 

“YES to Excellence in Education” 
 

CHARTER RENEWAL PETITION 
SUBMITTED  

November 3, 2025 
 
 

Prepared in compliance with the terms, conditions, and requirements of the Charter Schools Act, 
Education Code Section 47600, et seq., and related statutes 

18



 

 

Table of Contents 
Introduction.................................................................................................................................... 4 

A.​ Affirmations.............................................................................................................4 

B.​ Executive Summary................................................................................................. 7 

C.​ Council of Directors and Charter School Leadership Qualifications...................... 13 

D.​ Criteria for Renewal.............................................................................................. 15 

I.​ Element 1 -- Educational Program......................................................................................... 36 

A.​ Mission Statement................................................................................................ 36 

B.​ Whom YES CHARTER ACADEMY Seeks To Educate............................................... 36 

C.​ Model of the Educated Person..............................................................................41 

D.​ Educational Philosophy – How Learning Best Occurs........................................... 42 

E.​ Core Values........................................................................................................... 44 

F.​ Curriculum and Instructional Design.....................................................................52 

G.​ The Environmental Focus: Earth Literacy.............................................................. 58 

H.​ Instructional Design.............................................................................................. 58 

I.​ Instructional Methods...........................................................................................61 

J.​ Development of Self-Motivated, Competent and Long-Life Learners...................69 

K.​ When Learning Occurs.......................................................................................... 70 

L.​ Academic Habits................................................................................................... 70 

M.​ Personal Habits and Attitudes...............................................................................71 

N.​ Skill Conferred....................................................................................................... 71 

O.​ Special Student Populations..................................................................................78 

P.​ Section 504 / Americans With Disabilities Act...................................................... 88 

Q.​ Education of Homeless Children and Youth 
………………………………………………………89 

R.​ Professional 
Development………………………………………………………………………………..
91 

II.​ Element 2 -- Measurable Pupil Outcomes and Standards..................................................... 99 

A.​ Proficiency in English and Language Arts............................................................100 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 1  19



 

B.​ Proficiency in Health and Family & Community Life Skills.................................. 101 

C.​ Proficiency in History, Social Sciences, and Geography.......................................101 

D.​ Proficiency in Mathematics.................................................................................102 

E.​ Proficiency in Science..........................................................................................103 

F.​ Local Control and Accountability Plan & Alignment of Outcomes to the Eight State 
Priorities..............................................................................................................103 

III.​ Element 3 -- Methods to Assess Pupil Progress Towards Meeting Outcomes.....................105 

A.​ Content-Specific Outcomes for Students............................................................ 105 

B.​ Use and Reporting of Data.................................................................................. 107 

IV.​ Element 4 -- Governance Structure..................................................................................... 108 

A.​ Governance Structure of YES CHARTER ACADEMY............................................. 108 

B.​ County Office of Education Relationship.............................................................109 

C.​ Bylaws................................................................................................................. 109 

D.​ Council of Directors.............................................................................................109 

E.​ Role of the Superintendent/Principal................................................................. 111 

F.​ Parental Involvement.......................................................................................... 112 

V.​ Element 5 – Employee Qualifications.................................................................................. 114 

A.​ Human Resources/Org Structure........................................................................ 114 

B.​ Charter School Employee Positions & Qualifications.......................................... 114 

VI.​ Element 6 -- Health and Safety............................................................................................120 

A.​ Health and Safety Procedures............................................................................. 120 

VII.​ Element 7 -- Student Population Balance............................................................................ 127 

VIII.​Element 8 – Student Admissions......................................................................................... 128 

IX.​ Element 9 -- Financial Audit................................................................................................ 131 

X.​ Element 10 -- Student Discipline......................................................................................... 132 

A.​ Methods of Discipline......................................................................................... 133 

B.​ Expulsion Decision.............................................................................................. 135 

C.​ Residence Notification........................................................................................ 135 

D.​ Pupil Suspension and Expulsion Policy................................................................135 

XI.​ Element 11 -- Retirement Systems...................................................................................... 157 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 2  20



 

XII.​ Element 12 -- Public School Attendance Alternatives......................................................... 158 

XIII.​Element 13 -- Rights of School County Office of Education Employees...............................159 

XIV.​Element 14 -- Dispute Resolution Process...........................................................................160 

A.​ Intent...................................................................................................................160 

B.​ Internal Disputes................................................................................................. 160 

C.​ Disputes Between YES CHARTER ACADEMY and the County Office of Education .160 

XV.​ Element 15 -- School Closure Protocol................................................................................ 162 

A.​ Closure Protocol.................................................................................................. 162 

Miscellaneous Charter Provisions..........................................................................................165 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 3  21



 

Introduction 
 

A.​ Affirmations and Declaration 
 

Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy (“YES CHARTER ACADEMY,” “YES” or the “Charter 
School”) follows any and all federal, state, and local laws and regulations that apply to the Charter 
School, including but not limited to: 

 
●​ Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy meets all statewide standards and conducts 

the pupil assessments required, pursuant to Education Code Section 60605, and any other 
state standards authorized in statute, or any other pupil assessments applicable to pupils in 
non- charter public schools. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)] 

 
●​ The Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy declares that it shall be deemed the 

exclusive public-school employer of the employees of the Charter School for purposes of the 
Educational Employment Relations Act. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(c)(6)] 

 
●​ Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy is nonsectarian in its programs, admission 

policies, employment practices, and all other operations. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(e)(1)] 

 
●​ Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy does not charge tuition. [Ref. Education Code 

Section 47605(e)(1)] 
 

●​ The Charter School admits all students who wish to attend the Charter School, unless the 
Charter School receives a greater number of applications than there are spaces for students, 
in which case it will hold a public random drawing to determine admission. Except as required 
by Education Code Section 47605(e)(2) and Education Code Section 51747.3, admission to the 
Charter School is not determined according to the place of residence of the student or of that 
student’s parent or legal guardian within the State. Preference in the public random drawing 
is given as required by Education Code Section 47605(e)(2)(B)(i)-(iv). In the event of a 
drawing, the chartering authority makes reasonable efforts to accommodate the growth of 
the Charter School in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(e)(2)(C). [Ref. Education 
Code Section 47605(e)(2)(A)-(C)] 

 
●​ Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy does not discriminate against any pupil on the 

basis of the characteristics listed in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, 
gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual 
orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set 
forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including immigration status, or association with an 
individual who has any of the aforementioned characteristics). [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(e)(1)] 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 4  22



 

 
●​ Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy complies with the Individuals with Disabilities 

Education Act (“IDEA”), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (“Section 504”), and the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”). 

 
●​ The Charter School meets all requirements for employment set forth in applicable provisions 

of law, including, but not limited to credentials, as necessary. [Ref. Title 5 California Code of 
Regulations Section 11967.5(f)(5)(C)] 

 
●​ The Charter School ensures that teachers in the Charter School hold the Commission on 

Teacher Credentialing (“CTC”) certificate, permit, or other document required for the 
teacher’s certificated assignment. The Charter School may use local assignment options 
authorized in statute and regulations for the purpose of legally assigning certificated teachers, 
in the same manner as a governing board of a school district. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(l)(1)]  

 
●​ The Charter School maintains, at all times, all necessary and appropriate insurance coverage. 

 
●​ The Charter School, for each fiscal year, offers at a minimum, the number of minutes of 

instruction per grade level as required by Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(1)(A)-(D). 
 

●​ If a pupil is expelled or leaves the Charter School without graduating or completing the 
school year for any reason, the Charter School notifies the superintendent of the school 
County Office of Education of the pupil’s last known address within 30 days, and, upon 
request, provides the County Office of Education with a copy of the cumulative record of the 
pupil, including a report cards or a transcript of grades, and health information. If the pupil is 
subsequently expelled or leaves the school district without graduating or completing the 
school year for any reason, the school district shall provide this information to the Charter 
School within 30 days if the Charter School demonstrates that the pupil had been enrolled in 
the Charter School. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(e)(3)] 

 

●​ The Charter School may encourage parental involvement but shall notify the parents and 
guardians of applicant pupils and currently enrolled pupils that parental involvement is not a 
requirement for acceptance to, or continued enrollment at, the Charter School. [Ref. 
Education Code Section 47605(n)] 

 

●​ The Charter School shall adhere to each of the conditions in Education Code Section 
47605(e)(4)(A)-(D), including: (A) not discouraging a student from enrolling or seeking to 
enroll in the Charter School for any reason; (B) not requesting a student's records or require a 
parent, guardian, or student to submit the student's records before enrollment; (C) not 
encouraging a student currently attending the Charter School to disenroll or transfer to 
another school for any reason; and (D) providing a copy of the California Department of 
Education (“CDE”) notice regarding the requirements in Education Code Section 
47605(e)(4)(A)-(D) to a parent/guardian or student if the student is 18 years of age or older: 
(i) when a parent/guardian or student inquiries about enrollment, (ii) before conducting an 
enrollment lottery, or (iii) before disenrollment of a student. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(e)(4)(A)-(D)] 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 5  23



 

 

●​ The Charter School maintains accurate and contemporaneous written records that document 
all pupil attendance and makes these records available for audit and inspection. [Ref. 
Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(2)] 

 
●​ The Charter School shall, on a regular basis, consult with its parents and teachers regarding 

the Charter School's education programs. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)] 
 

●​ The Charter School complies with any jurisdictional limitations to locations of its facilities. 
[Ref. Education Code Sections 47605 and 47605.1] 

 
●​ The Charter School complies with all laws establishing the minimum and maximum age for 

public school enrollment. [Ref. Education Code Sections 47612(b) and 47610] 
 

●​ The Charter School complies with all applicable portions of the Elementary and Secondary 
Education Act (“ESEA”), as reauthorized and amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act 
(“ESSA”). 

 
●​ The Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy complies with the California Public Records 

Act, Government Code Section 7920.000, et seq. (“CPRA”). 
 

●​ The Charter School shall comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. 
Section 1232g, 34 CFR Part 99 (“FERPA”). 

 
●​ The Charter School complies with the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code Section 54950, 

et seq. (“Brown Act”). 
●​ The Charter School shall comply with Government Code Section 1090, et seq., as set forth in 

Education Code Section 47604.1 (“Section 1090”). 
 

●​ The Charter School shall comply with the Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 
81000, et seq. (“PRA”). 

 

●​ The Charter School shall meet or exceed the legally required minimum number of school 
days. [Ref. Title 5 California Code of Regulations Section 11960] 

 
 
 
 
 
​  
 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 6  24



 

The Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy continually strives for a healthy, collaborative, 
synergistic relationship with its chartering authority, the Yuba County Board of Education (the “County 
Board”) and oversight entity, the Yuba County Office of Education ( “YCOE”) (collectively, the “County”) 
and nearby school districts. 

 

B.​ Executive Summary 

 
Since our last charter renewal in 2018, YES CHARTER ACADEMY has undergone a period of dynamic 

growth, strategic transformation, and deepened community impact with a continued focus on 
environmental stewardship. Guided by our mission to cultivate resilient learners and regenerative leaders, 
we have expanded both our physical infrastructure and our educational vision to meet the evolving needs 
of our students and families. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADMEY is a strong option for students in the Yuba County Foothills to provide a 

full-service school for a rural community and a strong option for Yuba County residents to attend a smaller 
rural school while providing our County with a rigorous academic experience combined with an innovative 
project-based programming. Based on its academic track record relative to the state and nearby schools, it 
would be in the pupils’ best interest for YES CHARTER ACADEMY to continue serving this community.  

 
YES serves our rural community by serving grades TK-12, providing options for a full-service 

educational opportunity for residents of rural Yuba County. YES offers a unique educational opportunity 
through its Environmental Science and Stewardship vision and mission. YES has created and embedded 
Life-Long Learning not only for our students but their families and surrounding communities through our 
many environmental initiatives.  

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY is currently located on a ten-acre site that features a 10,000 square-foot 

school building. This building has offices, a cafeteria, indoor student bathrooms and two indoor staff 
bathrooms, staff meeting and lounge room, tech room and classrooms. The Charter School has 
playgrounds, sports fields, a garden, a greenhouse, an orchard, a pond, and a native plant trail for 
recreational and instructional purposes. We built a solar parking structure and electric charging stations, 
launched our own transportation department, including an electric bus with two additional electrical 
vehicles on order for 2026. 

 
Since our last charter renewal YES has added 8 modular classrooms to accommodate our growing 

student enrollment, student bathrooms for upper grade students, and a gender-neutral bathroom.  
 

Our high school plans to share this site for the first 2- 3 years as our high school campus is under 
construction, and we will scaffold upon students’ experiences in the lower grades as they grow into our 
secondary learning community. 

 
In response to community demand and student aspiration, YES successfully added high school grades, 

aligning our curriculum with A–G requirements and launched three Career Technical Education (“CTE”) 
pathways that prepare students for both college and meaningful careers. YES High School became WASC 
accredited in June of 2025. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 7  25



 

 
In response to community need and our commitment to early childhood development, YES created 

the ABC Sprout program serving children ages 0–5 and their families through First 5 Resilient Families 
grant funding. This initiative offers playgroups with parent participation, child development education, 
and supportive classes for caregivers (See Appendix 15).   

 
In response to the Special Education population increasing from 14 students in 2018 to 54 students in 

2025, YES’s inclusive practices have also expanded. These inclusive practices have included the hiring of 
an additional teacher in the Learning Center and aides to enhancing our collaborations with Lighthouse 
Therapies to deliver speech and occupational therapies. YES and Lighthouse Therapies collaborate 
continuously, sharing data and progress notes to integrate therapeutic goals into classroom instruction 
and ensure consistent, wraparound support for each student (See Appendix 11). 

 
 Overall, our school population has increased from 107 to 212 students during that same period—a 

testament to our reputation for innovative Project Based Learning, community partnerships and our Farm 
to School initiative. 

 
These indicators of success reflect our unwavering dedication to educational excellence, ecological 

stewardship and community partnership. As we seek renewal, we do so with a clear vision and a proven 
track record of growth, impact, and integrity. 

 
The Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy, an independent TK-12 public charter school, was 

started in 2008 by a group of parents and residents of the Dobbins and Oregon House community. YES 
CHARTER ACADEMY has been in operation for 17 years, graduating its first student who attended from 
kindergarten to 8th grade at the end of the 2016-17 school year. Due to the success, feedback and 
interest, we expanded to add a high school in the 2024-25 school year, with our first graduating 12th grade 
class in the 2027-28 school year. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY offers students a high-quality, standards based educational program which 
focuses on the educational environmental science design that teaches the responsible management and 
protection of the natural environment and its resources through sustainable practices and an ethical 
sense of obligation to safeguard Earth for present and future generations. This involves conservation, 
pollution reduction, ecosystem restoration, regenerative agriculture, civic responsibility and community 
engagement.  

 
Our high school model has embedded a wall-to-wall inclusive Career Technical Education (“CTE”) 

school. We will continue to align our focus on career and college readiness and embedded a-g courses, 
articulated and dual enrolled with Yuba Community College, including 2–three -year pathways in 
Entrepreneurship, Forestry and Natural Resources and 1-two-year pathway in Design, Visual & Media 
Arts. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY broadens the educational choices available to families in Yuba and adjacent 

counties, who wish to attend. It enables all students to learn from the distinctive facilities — both natural 
and manmade — within the Yuba Highlands of the Sierra Foothills. From our science content through 
physical education, engaging with the local natural resources is at the core of our mission.  These include 
mixed conifer forests of the Las Plumas- Tahoe National Forest, local lakes and rivers, and a school garden 
that offer students a unique range of experiences.  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 8  26



 

 
 

See floor plan of existing building. 
 

 
 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 9  27



 

Conceptual Site Plan June 18, 2021:  
 
 

 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY has moved forward with the option for the high school expansion, already 
approved by the County Board, to be located at 9256 Marysville Rd., Oregon House, CA, 95962, which is 
on the five acres we purchased that is contiguous to our current leased campus. Taking advantage of our 
physical setting, our curriculum features a special focus on agricultural and environmental sciences to 
encourage high levels of student engagement and achievement. YES CHARTER ACADEMY makes use of a 
garden and local nature reserves to observe and examine natural phenomena in developmentally 
appropriate lessons and units. We have expanded our high school to add a student enterprise/business 
for our Entrepreneurship classes, an indoor and outdoor sustainable natural resources learning lab, 
embedded outdoor education that capitalizes on our surrounding natural resources, and digital media 
courses that allow students to capture their work-based learning and academic artifacts on professional 
ePortfolio. 

 

In the YES CHARTER ACADEMY’S highly integrated curriculum, mathematics, science, and language 
arts are heavily infused with nature experiences — such as the measurement of plant life, observation 
and recording of weather, gardening, etc. Community service is a fundamental component of the life of  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 10  28



 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY, related to stewardship of the environment and responsibility to fellow students 
and the larger community. This will continue in our budding high school, and include 1-2 years of 
student internships, a senior financial literacy mathematics courses, and all lab sciences taught from the 
Career Technical Education (“CTE”) lens of the Forestry and Natural Resources pathway. 40 hours of 
community service will be a recommended part of our graduation profile. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY represents a community effort by local citizens to offer educational choice 
within the public education system. The Charter School is incorporated as a nonprofit public benefit 
corporation and has been granted tax exempt 501(c)(3) status. The Council of Directors (“Council”) 
includes community members, parents, and staff. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY offers the choice of a public school with a focus on environmental science, a 
setting for innovative instruction, efficient management, and projects-based curriculum. The option of 
attending YES CHARTER ACADEMY is a benefit to students in this community. The plan for high school, to 
articulate with our community college so students can earn credit towards post-secondary and to 
continue to embed Digital Media, Environmental Science, and the addition of Small Business 
Ownership/ Entrepreneurship to our high school model, reflects the current Labor Market Index and 
community need for our graduates to thrive post- secondary. 

 

Community Partnerships Supports  
 

 
​  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

We attribute the growth in enrollment over time to families with children desiring an education 
that YES has to offer. During COVID we pivoted to online learning as well as paper packets of units of study 
for students without internet access or unreliable or inadequate internet service.  

 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 11  29



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY has returned to its project-based school design plan, which was 

significantly disrupted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Unlike more established schools with longstanding 
teams and robust systems, YES was forced to adapt to virtual instruction that was plagued with 
technological challenges and unstable internet connections alongside adding an additional influx of 45 
Yuba Foothill new students and families, teachers who needed extra support and new programming that 
could no longer be project based. 
 

YES is designed to meet the unique and changing academic needs of their students.  
 

o​ Demographics: A high proportion of YES’s students qualify as low-income, Hispanic, White, or 
Students with Disabilities. In the 2024-25 school year YES student demographics were 29% 
Hispanic, 65% socio-economically disadvantaged, 57% White, and 15%, Students with 
Disabilities represented the smallest group, with 8.6% in 2019, but grew exponentially and 
doubled in 2022 and has stayed steady in growth as seen in 2023 with a slight drop in 2024 to 
growth again in 2025 at 19.2%. 
 

o​  One of the most prevalent factors in our population growth is Students with Disabilities. The 
majority of new students with Individualized Education Programs (“IEP”) already them in place 
when they enroll. YES also continues to identify students for Special Education testing adding to 
our Students with Disabilities enrollment.  YES has made strides to serve this unique student 
group by hiring additional teachers, solidifying community partnerships for additional services 
and adopting the whole team approach.  Parents of children with IEPs have made the choice to 
send their students to YES because of the positive reputation for individualized learning 
supports and transportation to a smaller rural school that is connected to the environment with 
inclusive practices for all students learning together as a group.  

 
o​ Socio-economically Disadvantaged (“SED”) students consistently made up the largest student 

group, accounting for 75% in 2025 with the largest population growth in 2023 at 93.9% and 
then dropping at 64.5% in 2024. 

 

YES attributes our growing enrollment to several factors including a growing appreciation for: 
 

o​ Education focused on environmental stewardship 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 12  30



 

o​ Project-based learning (“PBL”) and a campus with a garden and other outdoor spaces. 
o​ Farm to school lunches including locally grown produce 
o​ Engaged Special Education program with a vibrant Learning Center 

 

C.​ Council of Directors and Charter School Leadership Qualifications 

 
The Council of Directors possess professional knowledge of — and experience in — leading, 

supporting, and managing public service entities, private businesses, and, educational organizations. 
Their combined capacities enable YES to create a school culture and curriculum that offers quality, 
site-based general education. The current Council of Directors are: 

 
Pamela Cook, Council Member, Council of Directors: 
Pamela (Pam) Cook began working with children and families in 1973 as volunteer at a school for children 
with special needs through Future Teachers of America. She received her Bachelor of Science in Education 
degree from Northern Illinois University in 1974 and has been working with children and families since that 
time as a teacher, vocational counselor, Program Manager, and Director. In 1999, she joined the Yuba 
County Health and Human Services Department and continued to assist children and families overcome 
difficulties as a social worker and program manager with the Children and Adult Protective Services 
Division. Pam retired in 2018 after working with the County of Yuba for 19 years. Pam moved from Oregon 
back to California to live on her grandparent’s property in Dobbins just two months before the Pendola fire 
destroyed much of the Oregon House – Dobbins community. Her property was devastated and since that 
time she has been working to return/ improve her property/community to a natural and fire safe balance.  
 
Local activities include: - Board President for the Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy - Board 
Secretary for the Yuba Watershed Protection and Fire Safe Council - Trustee for the Keystone Cemetery - 
CalFire Volunteer in Prevention at Oregon Peak Lookout Tower every Sunday since 2000 Environmental 
issues are very important to her, she loves the out of doors and has turned her small property into a haven 
for local flora and fauna. Joining YES CHARTER ACADEMY as a board member has been and will continue to 
be a wonderful opportunity to assist and support our local children and families while participating 
in/improving relevant environmental issues at the school level.  
 
Paul Mc Govern, CEO 
Paul Mc Govern graduated from University College Dublin with a major in International Marketing and 
Finance. He is currently CEO of Database Republic, a technology consultancy based in Oregon House that 
develops business process management and environmental compliance applications. Mr. McGovern is a 
founding member of the YES CHARTER ACADEMY Council of Directors who saw his son move through YES 
CHARTER ACADEMY classes when it first opened. He has recently become the proud parent of an MCAA 
graduate and looks forward to continuing to support quality public school options in the Yuba Foothill area. 
Mr. McGovern serves as the CFO of YES CHARTER ACADEMY. 
 
Deborah Hoerner, Director, Council of Directors: 
Deborah earned her degree in Communications from the University of Portland in 1972. She is married to 
architect Dick Hoerner and has 2 daughters.  She has lived in Oregon House since 1978, with only a short 
break to live abroad. She also serves as Secretary on the Board of Directors of the Elysian Society and 
volunteers her time helping people to complete end of life documents such as the Advanced Health Care 
Directive and a simple will.  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 13  31



 

 
For a few years after graduating from university, she traveled and worked in Europe. She returned to the US 
to live in California and, in 1980, a friend opened Urgent Care in Oroville and asked her to be the Office 
Manager. A year later, he opened another Urgent Care in Yuba City and she became the Office Manager 
there as well. Having wanderlust after working for 4 years, she moved to Madrid, Spain, where she worked 
as secretary to the head of CBS Records. Returning to California, she became the Supervisor in Medical 
Records at Fremont Hospital and after working there for 9 years, she accepted the opportunity to work at 
the newly opened clinic in Oregon House, which made her extremely happy not to have to commute any 
longer. 
 
In 2010, Paul McGovern asked her to be the Office Manager at YES CHARTER ACADEMY and she accepted. 
She told friends this was the best job she’d ever had because working closely with students, parents, 
teachers and ancillary staff was very satisfying. She retired from YES in 2019, returning to read to the 
kindergarten class and to attend many events. She looks at participating on the Council of Directors at YES 
as coming home and looks forward to many years of service. 
 
Lance Haliday, Council of Directors Teacher Representative Member 
Lance Haliday earned his B.A. in Geography - Ecosystems from UCLA in 1983.  He began teaching Jr. High 
full-time at a private school in the Los Angeles area shortly after while also getting his teaching credential 
in Social Sciences from Cal State University, Northridge.  After five years of full-time teaching, Lance moved 
into an administrative position at the same private school and obtained his M.A. in Educational 
Administration from Cal State University, Northridge in 1993.  He has served on the school board at his 
schools for over 35 years now and has served on various board committees. 
 
Lance moved to Big Oak Valley in Nevada County in 2019 and worked in private school administration in 
Yuba City before returning to teaching.  He is currently in his second year of teaching secondary school 
grades at Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy.  He is married and has three adult children. 
 
Elizabeth Yvette Rodriguez, Parent Representative Director:  
Elizabeth spent most of her young life in San Jose where she graduated high school. She learned general 
bookkeeping/accounting skills working with her parent’s business as a teen. Elizabeth started a family at 21 
and returned to work when her son was 12. She became a legal guardian to her grandnieces in 2018. 
Elizabeth retired from Costco Sand City in March 2019 and moved her family to the Yuba County foothills to 
give her girls a better life and be near her grandchildren.  
 
Wendy Underhill, Director: 
Wendy Underhill retired after thirty years of state service with the Department of Water Resources 
(“DWR”) in 2023. She was the manager of maintenance for the California State Water Project and all of its 
facilities, dams and lakes.  She graduated the DWR Civil Maintenance Apprenticeship program in 1997 and 
went on to fill numerous technical positions within the department with an emphasis on computer 
analytics. She won the IT Leadership award from the California Public Sector Academy in 2023 for her work 
in computerizing maintenance practices and managing the asset program transformation for DWR.  She 
has completed extensive managerial and supervision training and has project management, document 
management and staff management training and experience. 
 
Wendy was born and educated in England and moved to the United States in 1975. She moved to Yuba 
foothills in 1995 and worked for DWR in Sacramento and Oroville locations. As the Chief Planner/Scheduler 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 14  32



 

for DWR in Oroville, she was made the logistics team lead for the Oroville Dam spillway emergency in 2017 
and is experienced in emergency management and formally trained in Standardized Emergency 
Management System practices. 
 
Wendy​ is still an active consultant for DWR and has also provided some technical assistance to the North 
Yuba Water Agency. Her skills include communication, planning and scheduling, budgeting, computerized 
maintenance management systems, asset management, condition assessment and preventative 
maintenance and resource planning. 
 
Her hobbies include gardening, woodworking, leatherwork and boating/fishing. She is the proud Mom of 
two dogs and three cats and too many hummingbirds to count!  Her two goddaughters are graduates of 
YES. Joining YES as a board member will allow her to continue to serve the public by using her 
management and maintenance experience to help the school to continue to improve. 
 

D.​ Criteria for Renewal 

 
​ ​ Pursuant to the amendments made to Education Code Section 47607, and the creation of 
Education Code Section 47607.2, by Assembly Bill 1505 (2019), at the time of charter renewal, a chartering 
authority shall consider the performance of the Charter School on the state and local indicators reported on 
the California School Dashboard (“Dashboard”), and, in some circumstances, the performance of the 
Charter School on assessments deemed to be verified data. 

 

​ ​ In addition to the shift toward assessing Dashboard data, Assembly Bill 1505 also created a 
three-tiered system of evaluating charter schools’ performance based on Dashboard data and metrics as 
compared to state average for all students and for subgroups. The California Department of Education 
evaluates all charter schools and places them in renewal tracks annually and makes that report available to 
the public. In accordance with law and the CDE’s performance category designations, YES merited the 
middle-performing category. We present evidence and data below to demonstrate that YES has met the 
renewal criteria for a five-year renewal.  

 

​ ​ Education Code Section 47607.2(b) states: 

(1)​ For all charter schools for which [top and bottom tier] do not apply, the chartering authority 
shall consider the schoolwide performance and performance of all subgroups of pupils served by the 
Charter School on the state indicators included on the [Dashboard] and the performance of the 
Charter School on the local indicators included in the [Dashboard]. 

 

(2)​ The chartering authority shall provide greater weight to performance on measurements of 
academic performance in determining whether to grant a charter renewal. 

(3)​ In addition to the state and local indicators, the chartering authority shall consider clear and 
convincing evidence showing either of the following: 

A.​ The school achieved measurable increases in academic achievement, as defined by at 
least one year’s progress for each year in school. 

B.​ Strong postsecondary outcomes, as defined by college enrollment, persistence, and 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 15  33



 

completion rates equal to similar peers.  

(4)​ Subparagraphs (A) and (B) of paragraph (3) shall be demonstrated by verified data… 

 

​ ​ Education Code Section 47607(c)(3) defines measurements of academic performance as statewide 
assessments on the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (“CAASPP”) system, or any 
successor system, the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (“ELPAC”), or any successor 
system, and the college and career readiness indicator. Education Code Section 47607.2(c)(1) specifies that 
verified data is data derived from nationally recognized, valid, peer-reviewed, and reliable sources that are 
externally produced.  YES utilizes CAASPP, i-Ready through the end of the 2024-25 school year, and IXL 
beginning the 2025-26 school year, which will be discussed in more detail below (See Appendix 17).  

 

Dashboard State and Local Indicators (2024) 

 

Highlights:  

●​ Academic Achievement: YES CHARTER ACADEMY has continued to make measurable increases and 
sufficient progress toward meeting standards to provide a benefit to its students, as evidenced by the 
overall improvement in CAASPP since the start end of the pandemic. When viewing data comparatively 
YES, at both the all-student level and subgroup level, surpasses the District in Math as evidenced by 
CAASPP data.  

●​ Community: YES CHARTER ACADEMY serves the best interests of students as it serves a growing 
student population, as evidenced by increasing enrollment, as families continue to choose YES. The 
Charter School has a strong culture, with chronic absenteeism and suspension rates lower than both 
the District and the State. YES is now offering a full range of student grades from ages 0-5 through ABC 
Sprouts programming to TK-12 grades.  

●​ Environmental PBL: YES CHARTER ACADEMY has remained faithful to their mission and vison to provide 
an environmental science focus in connection to community and to embed environmental stewardship 
components throughout the YES school experience for not only students, but their families and the 
surrounding communities to create lifelong environmental stewards. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 16  34



 

 

Academic Achievement  
 
The following chart reflects the Charter School’s Distance from Standard (“DFS”) in ELA and Math 

from 2018 to 2024.  Dashboard performance  shows measurable increase and sufficient progress towards 
meeting standards since 2022. Our 2022 CAASPP results reflect the COVID disruption; however, our 2023 
CAASPP results show academic recovery and growth. Our 2024 results show a continued increase in math 
achievement and a leveling off of ELA achievement. Our unofficial 2025 data show continued growth in 
student academic achievement in both ELA and Math. 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY ELA & Math Distance from Standard 2018 to 2025 

 

 

 

o​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY performance over the course of the charter term clearly demonstrates 
the impact of the pandemic on student performance.  

o​ When viewing CAASPP ELA outcomes, YES students experienced a DFS change of -34 from 2019 
to 2022.  

o​ Despite a decline in performance in 2022, YES improved +14 DFS points the following year. 
CAASPP data continues to show a positive shift in academic performance, as evidence by 
preliminary CAASPP outcomes. 

o​  According to our projections, YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s DFS for ELA in 2025 will be -43 which 
reflects a DFS improvement of 30.8 since 2022. YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s DFS for math in 2025 is 
projected to be -64 which reflects as DFS improvement of 59.3 since 2022. 

o​ In 2022, c the first year of State testing after the pandemic, YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s CAASPP 
results were lower than both the District and State in ELA and Math.  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 17  35



 

o​  In 2023, YES CAASPP data was comparable in English Language Arts and Math to Marysville Joint 
Unified School District (“MJUSD” or the “District”). By 2024, YES outperformed MJUSD in Math. 
Although YES’s 2024 ELA DFS is lower than MJUSD, our progress over two years in overcoming 
the COVID gap is more profound.  We believe these results best reflect the outcome of our 
planned school design, which emphasizes in-person specialized educational programming, 
in-person supports, and meaningful community building.  

 
​ ​ YES English Language Arts and Math Dashboard Performance Levels 
 

 2022 2023 2024 2025 
ELA “Very Low” Increased 15 points Maintained -2.3 

points 
Increased 12 
points* 

Math “Very Low”  Increased 35.5 points Increased 8.5 points Increased 19 
points* 

    *Projected 
 

o​ CAASPP data shows improvement in both ELA and math in 2023 increasing a significant number 
of points in both categories. This was our first year using Illustrative Math curriculum and 
Instruction Partners (See Appendix 10) for math implantation support. In ELA we did not 
purchase a new curriculum but rather focused on reading fluency and writing skills to increase 
student achievement.  

o​ In 2024, YES maintained ELA, with a small dip in scores and continued to grow in math, 
increasing 8.5 points.  

o​ In the 2024-25 school year, YES purchased a new ELA curriculum and contracted for 
implementation support for grades TK-2 with Instruction Partners. The first students to take the 
CAASPP in third grade were taught by teachers who were coached by Instruction Partners using 
SAVVAS will take the CAASPP in the 2025-26 school year (See Appendix 1F Scope & Sequence). 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY English Language Arts  
 
YES ELA Dashboard Data from 2022 to 2024 by Subgroup 
 

Demographic 2022 2023 2024 
YES -73.8 

“Very Low” 
-59.6 -61.9 

Hispanic -93.6* -66.7* -57.8 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged (“SED”) 

-75.7 
“Very Low” 

-59.3 -66.5 

White -55.8* -60.1* -54.2 
State -12.2 

“Low” 
-13.6 -13.2 

MJUSD -49.4 -53.3 -50.8 
*No performance color 
 

o​ YES students experienced a DFS change of -34 from 2019 to 2022. Despite a decline in 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 18  36



 

performance, YES improved 14 DFS points the following year, from 2022 to 2023, then a slight 
dip of 2.3 points (-61.9) in 2024.  

o​ Hispanic students achieved the greatest improvement since the COVID disruption gaining 35.8 
points compared to White students gaining 1.6 points and Low SES students gaining 9.2 points. 

o​ YES performed below the State and District at the all-student level but shows the greatest 
improvement in DFS over time. 

o​ Both the White and Hispanic subgroups raised their scores in ELA in 2024. The subgroup who did 
not raise their achievement in ELA in 2024 was SED. YES is focused on meeting the needs of SED 
students in a variety of ways 

 

YES ELA Indicator Results with Neighboring Schools, District, and State (2024) 
 

  

YES 
Dobbins 
Elementary 

Foothill 
Intermediate 

Loma Rica 
Elementary 

Yuba 
Feather 
Elementary 

MJUSD State  

Hispanic/Latino   -57.8  7.0  -5.1 -56.4 -39.3 

White   -54.2 -27.4 -20.7 -7.3 -51.7 -40.7 19.2 

Socio- 
Economically 
Disadvantaged   

-66.5 -34.6 -36.8 -6.9 -44.1 -60.5 -40.9 

Students with 
Disabilities   

-102.6  -86.2  -63.5 -110.1 -95.6 

All Students   -61.9 -29.7 -15.9 0.7 -43.1 -50.8 -13.2 

 

o​ Comparatively: Although YES performs below the State and District at the all-student level on 

CAASPP ELA, viewing data by their major subgroups provides additional context on how the Charter 

School serves their students as described below.  

o​ In 2024, Students with Disabilities at YES Charter had a lower ELA DFS (-102.6) than Marysville Joint 
Unified School District (-110.1), but higher than the State average (-95.6). 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 19  37



 

YES Charter ELA Indicator Status Over Time with Neighboring Schools, District, and State (2018-2024) 

 

 

o​ Overtime: YES’s performance over the course of the charter term clearly demonstrates the impact 

of the pandemic on student performance. When reviewing ELA CAASPP outcomes, YES students 

experienced a DFS change of -34 from 2019 to 2022. Despite a decline in performance, YES 

improved +14 DFS points the following year, from 2022 to 2023. CAASPP data continues to show a 

positive shift in academic performance, as evidence by preliminary CAASPP outcomes.  

o​ According to our projections, YES’s DFS for ELA in 2025 will be -43 which reflects a DFS change of 

+18.9 points.  

o​ YES Charter ELA DFS saw a decline from -39.7 in 2019 to -73.8 in 2022, followed by an 

improvement to -59.6 in 2023, then a slight dip to -61.9 in 2024.  

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 20  38



 

​ ​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY ELA Indicator Status by Student Group Over Time (2018-2024) 

 

 

 

o​ Comparatively: Although YES performs below the State and District at the all-student level on 
CAASPP ELA, viewing data by their major subgroups provides additional context on how the 
Charter School serves their students.  YES saw an increase of Students with Disabilities 
enrollment, from 8% in 2019 to 19% in 2024, and is making strides to serve this unique student 
group.  

o​ Students with Disabilities declined from an ELA DFS of -102.4 in 2022 to -115.3 in 2023, then 
improved in 2024 to a similar level as 2022 at -102.6 

o​ YES ELA DFS saw a decline from -39.7 in 2019 to -73.8 in 2022, followed by an improvement to 
-59.6 in 2023, then a slight dip to -61.9 in 2024.  

 

Reasons for Initial Improvement in ELA and then Stalled Improvement: 
 

o​ Focused on reading fluency and writing skills to increase student achievement in the 2022-23 

school year reflecting the achievement gains in 2023  

o​ Purchased a new reading curriculum in the 2024-25 school year 

o​ Added support for ELA in the 2024-25 school year in grades TK-2nd in Foundational Skills. Our 

goal is to bring all 2nd grade students to reading proficiency before sending them to 3rd grade.  

o​ The first students benefiting from the new curriculum took the CAASPP in 2025. 

o​ The first 3rd grade students benefiting from both the new curriculum and teachers who were 

coached by Instruction Partners will take the CAASPP in 2026.   

o​ The Charter School has implemented the following to increase ELA performance:  
o​ Purchasing SAVVAS ELA program 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 21  39



 

o​ Contracting with Instruction Partners for implementation support in grades TK-2 
o​ Inviting community volunteers into classroom libraries to engage students in reading 
o​ Fostering a culture of reading through Book Tournaments, Read Across America, and 

Community Readers, Self Selected Reading and reading logs 
 

​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY Math Performance 
 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY Math Dashboard Data from 2022 to 2024 by Subgroup 

 
Demographic 2022 2023 2024 
YES -123.3 

“Very Low” 
-87.8 -79.3 

Hispanic -152.2* -112.1* -87 
Socio-economically 
Disadvantaged  

-130 
“Very Low” 

-87.7 -86.7 

White -96* -74.5* -67.8 
State -51.7 

“Low” 
-49.1 -47.6 

 
o​ YES chose to adopted a new math curriculum and contracted with Instruction Partners for 

support in math implementation in the 2022-23 school year. The results were an overall 
improvement in the math DFS from -123.3 to -87.8 in 2023 and an improvement in 
Hispanic DFS from -152.2 to 112.1 in 2023.  

o​ Hispanic students’ DFS in math was greater than the DFS of other subgroups. However, 
Hispanic students continued to show gains in the 2024 school year with an improved DFS 
of -87. This subgroup has made the largest improvement in Distance from Standard of the 
YES subgroups, an improvement of 65.2. 

o​ Performance on the 2024 math CAASPP is comparable to the YES subgroup, SED, in 2024 at 
86.7. Both the Hispanic and Low SED subgroups performed below the White subgroup at 
-67.8. 

o​ Adoption of Illustrative Math and contracting for math implementation support from 
Instruction Partners, YES addressed these deficits by offering math tutoring in the ELOP 
program and by creating Individualized Learning Plans for each student in math based 
upon data from i-Ready assessments.  

o​ Based upon performance on the i-Ready math assessment, students received 
differentiated instruction and were assigned individualized math support. Teachers 
monitored their progress and updated their Individualized Learning Plan goals throughout 
the school year. 

o​  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 22  40



 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY Math Indicator Results with Neighboring Schools, District, and State (2024) 

 

  

YES 
Dobbins 
Elementary 

Foothill 
Intermediate 

Loma Rica 
Elementary 

Yuba Feather 
Elementary 

MJUSD State 

Hispanic/Latino  -87.0  -28.1  -51.7 -96.3 -79.2 

White  -67.8 -56.8 -71.8 -31.0 -71.9 -77.6 -10.3 

Socio-economically 
Disadvantaged  

-86.7 -93.8 -82.9 -43.9 -74.8 -99.6 -78.2 

Students with 
Disabilities  

-111.2  -128.5  -102.2 -138.4 -124.3 

All Students   -79.3 -70.4 -64.9 -29.1 -71.2 -90.4 -47.6 

 

●​ All student groups at YES performed better than the same student groups in MJUSD.  

●​ In 2024, Students with Disabilities at YES achieved better Math DFS (-111.2) than: 

o​ MJUSD: -138.4 

o​ State: -124.3 

o​ Foothill Intermediate: -128.5 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY Math Indicator Status Over Time with Neighbors, District and State (2018-24) 

 

 
 

o​ YES’s Math DFS improved from -123.3 in 2022 to -79.3 in 2024, a gain of 44 points.  

o​ According to our projections, YES’s DFS for Math in 2025 will be -64 which reflects a DFS change of 

+15.3 points.  

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 23  41



 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY Math Indicator Status by Student Group Over Time (2018-2024) 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY is making strides to improve Math performance following the pandemic. When 
viewing Math CAASPP outcomes, YES students experienced a DFS change of -54 from 2019 to 2022. 
Despite a decline in performance, YES improved 44 DFS points from 2022 to 2024. This trajectory 
continues, as evidenced by preliminary CAASPP outcomes. According to our  calculations, YES’s DFS for 
Math in 2025 will be - 64 which reflects a DFS positive change of 59.3. 

 
o​ Students with Disabilities had the lowest Math DFS in 2024 at -111.2, though they have 

improved from -146.4 in 2022. 
o​ Furthermore, when viewing data comparatively YES, at both the all-student level and subgroup 

level, surpasses the District in Math as evidenced by CAASPP data. 
o​ Moreover, when drilling down by student group, all student groups have seen growth since the 

end of the pandemic (2022). 
o​ Hispanic students made the most growth. 

 
Reasons for Improvement in Math 
 

o​ Bought a new math curriculum, Illustrative Math  
o​ Contracted with Instruction Partners to support the implementation of the new math 

curriculum. 
o​ Instruction Partners guided YES teachers and administration through cycles of improvement in 

math instruction. 
o​ Implemented protected weekly PLC time for teachers to model and practice the 

implementation of the math curriculum.  
o​ Used i-Ready data to inform instructional decisions. 
o​ Used i-Ready assessment data to create individualized learning math goals for each student 

and updated them three times per year.  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 24  42



 

 
Did the Charter School make one year’s progress on verified data?   

 

o​ i-Ready identifies the median Progress Toward Typical Growth as an aggregate growth measure 
that can be used to show growth for a group of students.  

o​ According to the test publisher, the median elementary school student must make 75% 
progress toward typical growth in Reading and 80% progress in Math to be considered making 
a year’s progress in each subject area. For middle schoolers, median growth in Reading should 
be 45% or greater and 60% or greater in Math.  

o​ The Typical Growth Progress column in the i-Ready Reading and Math reports for 2024-25 
school year show that elementary (K-5) and Middle School (6-8) students made a year’s 
progress in both Reading and Math in the 2024 and 2025 school year according to these 
benchmarks.  

o​ Therefore, YES CHARTER ACADEMY is successfully helping a majority of its students make 
measurable increases in achievement throughout the school year. 

 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 25  43



 

i-Ready ELA School Median Progress by Grade 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

i-Ready Math School Median Progress by Grade 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 26  44



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

​ ​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s 2024 Dashboard Local Indicators 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 27  45



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY meets all the 2024 Dashboard Local Indicator standards.  
 

Chronic Absenteeism 

​      ​ YES has a lower rate of chronic absenteeism than surrounding schools, the District, and the State. 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY Chronic Absenteeism: Subgroup Compared to Local Schools, District & State (2024) 

 

  

YES 
Dobbins 
Elementary 

Foothill 
Intermediate 

Loma Rica 
Elementary 

Yuba 
Feather 
Elementary 

MJUSD State  

Hispanic/ Latino 1.7% 33.3% 18.9% 22.2% 35.7% 21.0% 21.7% 

White  0.9% 25.0% 24.8% 22.9% 36.0% 27.0% 13.5% 

Socio-economical
ly Disadvantaged 

0.7% 27.6% 31.9% 33.9% 40.4% 
26.2% 

23.4% 

Students with 
Disabilities  

0.0% 25.0% 28.6% 18.2% 37.1% 
28.3% 

26.3% 

All Students  1.0% 26.3% 22.9% 22.0% 36.4% 22.5% 18.6% 

 
o​ Chronic Absenteeism at YES CHARTER ACADEMY was the lowest across all student groups 

compared to neighboring schools, the District, and the State with differences ranging from 13% 
to 40% 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY Chronic Absenteeism Rate Over Time with Neighbors, District, and State 

(2018-2024) 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 28  

Indicator  

Basics: Teachers, Instructional Materials, 
Facilities 

“Standard Met” 

Implementation of Academic Standards “Standard Met” 

Parent and Family Engagement “Standard Met” 

Local Climate Survey “Standard Met” 

Access to a Broad Course of Study “Standard Met” 

46



 

 

 
 

o​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY improved its absenteeism rate from 11.6% in 2019 to 0.7% in 
2022, and rates have remained low since. 

o​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s absenteeism rates at 1% are much lower than: 
o​ Neighboring schools: 26.5% 
o​ MJUSD: 22.5% 
o​ State: 18.6% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 29  47



 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY Absenteeism Rates by Student Group Over Time (2018-2024) 
 

 
 
 

o​ All student groups followed a similar trend, with Students with Disabilities consistently 
showing the lowest chronic absenteeism rates at 0%. 

 
 

YES attributes its lower rate of chronic absenteeism to its Multi-Tiered Level System of Supports 
(“MTSS”) approach.  

 
Tier 1:  Tier 1 supports include utilizing pro-active whole school strategies that promote whole 
school attendance by providing a safe, welcoming and engaging environment. YES CHARTER 
ACADEMY utilizes the recommended framework of Positive Behavioral Intervention Support (“PBIS”) 
through our SPAARK programming, that reinforces positive behavior and intrinsic and extrinsic 
reward through our SPAARK assemblies for Environmental Stewards, Positive Team Members, 
Academic Masters, Responsible Citizens, Resourcefulness and Kindness.  

 
YES staff are trained on MTSS framework and how to identify students in need of a higher level of 
care.  Staff are training yearly in state approved best practices of Nurtured Heart, Growth Mindset, 
Trauma Informed Approaches and Restorative Justice practices (See Appendix 6A-D PBIS). YES sends 
out invitations for campus visits, volunteering, and opportunities for input and change through our 
Parent Club, committees and Council of Director and Road Map meetings. We provide an engaging 
environment through our Farm to School program that is a living breathing classroom where 
students explore science, sustainability and the powerful connection between food, health and 
community.  
 
Tier 2: YES CHARTER ACADEMY has implemented Tier 2 target supports and strategies to ensure 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 30  48



 

when students miss school, contact is made to families via automated messages telling the parent or 
guardian of their student’s absence. We have staff dedicated to family engagement through phone  
 
calls, emails and opportunities for conversations on updates and the well-being of their students and 
family. In cases of consecutive and/or chronic absences our short-term independent study program 
is offered to complete missed school work along with inquiry on any social, emotional or health 
reason the student is missing school. YES CHARTER ACADEMY utilizes the Attendance Works 
strategies such as attendance contracts and offers families attendance messaging and handouts 
through Parent Square that helps build a habit and culture of attendance to help families understand 
why going to school every day matters and what they can do to ensure their students are in school. 

 
Tier 3: YES CHARTER ACADEMY provides Tier 3 intensive supports and strategies that provide specific 
supports based on students and family needs through our Student Attendance Review Team and the 
process of Student Success Plans as outlined in Section two (2) of Special Student Populations. These 
meetings address chronic absenteeism that has not been remedied by Tier 1 and Tier 2 supports and 
strategies. YES CHARTER ACADEMY employes a Family Liaison that tracks chronically absent students 
to conduct outreach to families to offer additional student and family supports.  

 

​ ​ Suspension Rates 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY Suspension with Neighbors, District, and State (2024) 

 

 YES 
Dobbins 
Elementary 

Foothill 
Intermediate 

Loma Rica 
Elementary 

Yuba Feather 
Elementary 

MJUSD State 

Hispanic/ 
Latino 

1.6% 0.0% 8.1% 3.6% 6.1% 5.4% 3.4% 

White 0.9% 3.4% 14.7% 2.7% 19.8% 7.8% 2.6% 

Socio-economic
ally 
Disadvantaged 

0.7% 1.7% 17.2% 1.7% 16.9% 7.2% 4.0% 

Students with 
Disabilities 

0.0% 7.7% 11.4% 0.0% 36.1% 8.9% 5.4% 

All Students 1.9% 2.4% 12.8% 2.6% 16.4% 6.2% 3.2% 

 
o​ Suspension rates for all student groups at YES CHARTER ACADEMY were lower than those at 

MJUSD, the State, and neighboring schools – except for Hispanic/Latino students at Dobbins 
Elementary (0%) and Students with Disabilities at Loma Rica Elementary (0%).  

o​ The largest gap was seen among Students with Disabilities, with a 0% suspension rate at YES 
CHARTER ACADEMY compared to 36.1% at Yuba Feather Elementary. 

 
 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 31  49



 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY Suspension Rates by Student Group Over Time (2018-2024) 

 

 

 
o​ Students with Disabilities and Hispanic/Latino students showed similar trends in suspension 

rates, as did Socioeconomically Disadvantaged and White students.  
o​ YES noted the higher rate of suspension of Students with Disabilities and Hispanic students in 

2019 and implemented equitable practices to lower these rates. We were successful as 
evidenced by rates of suspension of all subgroups being similarly low in 2024. 

o​ Since 2022, Students with Disabilities have had the lowest suspension rates among all groups, 
reaching 0% in 2024. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 32  50



 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY Suspension Rates Over Time with Neighboring Schools, District, and 
State (2018-2024) 

 

 
 

o​ Suspension rates decreased from 6.8% in 2022 to 1.9% in 2024. 
o​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s suspension rate in 2024 is lower at 1.9% compared to: 

o​ Neighboring Schools: 10.2% 
o​ MJUSD: 6.2% 
o​ State: 3.2% 

o​ YES has seen a significant decrease of its Suspension Rate from 2022 to 2024.  
o​ While YES is in the same performance category as the State in 2024, YES’s rate was 1.3% lower.  

​  

YES attributes its low suspension rates to a number of factors: 
 

o​ Just as with chronic absenteeism, YES CHARTER ACADEMY has Implemented best practices 
recommended by the California Department of Education by utilizing a Multi-tiered System of 
Supports for discipline. YES has adopted the supports and a culture of care. 

o​ Training and use of evidence-based programs and initiatives such as Nurtured Heart Approach 
Positive Behavior Intervention and Supports, and Growth Mindset. 

o​ Addition of the position of Family Liaison to form authentic connections between school and 
home.  

o​ Training in Restorative Practices for the person in the Family Liaison position.  
 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 33  51



 

 

Conclusion 
 
Areas of Strength: 
 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY responded to the poor academic achievement of students coming out of the 
COVID disruption proactively in the following ways: 
 

o​ Addressed our biggest deficit, math achievement, with the purchase of a high-quality math 
curriculum, Illustrative Math 

o​ Secured effective math coaching through Instruction Partners 
o​ Achieved better math results on the dashboard than the District overall and in all subgroups in 

2024 
o​ Achieved better math results on the dashboard than the State in the subgroup of Students 

with Disabilities 
o​ Addressed our ELA deficit first with a focus on reading fluency and writing skills  
o​ Addressed our ELA deficit with the purchase of the Savvas ELA curriculum in the 2024-25 

school year.  
o​ Secured the support of Instruction Partners for implementation support in foundational 

reading skills in TK-2 
o​ Closed the YES achievement gap between Hispanic students and other sub-groups in ELA and 

math 
o​ Brought down high chronic absenteeism rates in 2019 to low rates in 2022, 2023 and 2024 
o​ Have a lower chronic absenteeism rate than Neighboring Schools, the District, and the State.  
o​ Went from suspension rates greater than Neighboring Schools, the District, and the State in 

2022 to lower suspension rates than these in 2024 
o​ Repaired the YES high suspension rates of Hispanic students and Students with Disabilities 

from 2022 to 2024 

 
Areas of Needed Improvement 
 

o​ Raise English Language Arts and math academic achievement. We will do this by continuing to 
support teachers and students in the following ways: 

o​ Coaching for teachers  
o​ Protected Professional Learning Community time for teachers 
o​ Individualized Learning Plans for students 
o​ ELOP homework help for students 
o​ Small group intervention based upon IXL data 
o​ Individualized intervention based upon IXL data 
o​ Project based learning that integrates authentic applications for reading, writing, and 

math skills 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY continues to look for innovative ways to raise students’ academic 
achievement. YES leaders and teachers are engaged in continuous cycles of improvement with our 
coaches, in our professional development, and in our Professional Learning Communities.  We seek input 
from students, parents and community members on how to better serve students and raise their academic  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 34  52



 

 
achievement. We are committed to identifying evidence based and research-based programs and 
initiatives that will propel teachers to higher levels of efficacy and students to higher levels of academic 
achievement. 

 
​ A charter petition renewed pursuant to Education Code Section 47607.2(b) (middle performing) 
shall be granted a renewal term of five years. As clearly demonstrated by the evidence above, the Charter 
School meets this renewal criterion and should be granted a renewal term of 5 years. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 35  53



 

I.​ Element 1 -- Educational Program 
 
Governing law: The educational program of the charter school, designed, among other things, to identify 
those whom the charter school is attempting to educate, what it means to be an "educated person" in the 
21st century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that program shall include the objective 
of enabling pupils to become self-motivated, competent, and lifelong learners. Education Code Section 
47605(c)(5)(A)(i). 

 

The annual goals for the charter school for all pupils and for each subgroup of pupils identified pursuant to 
Section 52052, to be achieved in the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d) of Section 52060, that 
apply for the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by the charter school, and specific 
annual actions to achieve those goals. A charter petition may identify additional school priorities, the goals 
for the school priorities, and the specific annual actions to achieve those goals. Education Code Section 
47605(c)(5)(A)(ii) 

 

If the proposed charter school will serve high school pupils, the manner in which the charter school will 
inform parents about the transferability of courses to other public high schools and the eligibility of courses 
to meet college entrance requirements. Courses offered by the charter school that are accredited by the 
Western Association of Schools and Colleges may be considered transferable and courses approved by the 
University of California or the California State University as creditable under the “A” to “G” admissions 
criteria may be considered to meet college entrance requirements. Education Code Section 
47605(c)(5)(A)(iii). 

 

A.​ Mission Statement 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY educates TK-12 students in a school culture that values the scientific 

method and a curricular focus on environmental studies. The highest academic standards, as well as high 
standards of moral conduct, are emphasized. YES CHARTER ACADEMY graduates are lifelong changemakers 
who realize their unique vision—rooted in their identity, knowledge, and skills—to become successful 
adults, create equity in their own lives and live with a deep knowledge of the environment. 

 

B.​ Whom YES CHARTER ACADEMY Seeks To Educate 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY is a California public charter school serving grades TK-12 in northern Yuba 

County. As such, it offers an open enrollment policy. YES CHARTER ACADEMY is an educational charter 
school committed to providing a center for engaged learning. Our diverse students can realize 
their potential and meet the demanding standards of the community, state, nation and the 
world. 

 
The setting for our school is Oregon House, California which, according to the US Census Data-Base,  

has a school age population (ages 5-19) of approximately 201 students as of 2024. YES CHARTER 
ACADEMY is particularly interested in attracting students, regardless of their prior success in school, with 
the following characteristics: 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 36  54



 

●​  The interest and motivation to apply scientific methods to solve authentic environmental 
issues 

●​ The willingness to work independently and as part of a team to successfully complete project 
and units of study 

●​ The desire to prepare for college and career through our a-g high school courses and wall to 
wall Career Technical Education pathways. 

 
Students for this TK-12 school will, most likely, come from the local area. The area’s student 

population attends various forms of schools including private, public, out-of-county charter schools and 
independent- and home-school options. 2024 Census data show 20,234 students under 19 in Yuba County, 
and in a ten-mile radius. The County Office of Education District Impact Statement shows a potential K-12 
grade population of well over 1000 students. We do serve and anticipate continuing to serve primarily 
socio-economically disadvantaged students. YES, serves the needs and challenges of these students by 
offering free Extended Learning Opportunity programs (“ELOP”) in before and after school with free tutoring. 
We also offer a free ELOP enrichment program in the summer that is open for all the community (See 
Appendix 13 ELOP Guide).  We partner with First 5 to offer a play group for children ages 0-5 and their 
parents, and parent education classes.  

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY will draw from schools in the area, and potentially out of the immediate 
area. In offering high school grade levels, we are growing our school with existing students and families from 
our TK-8 as well as secondary students looking for a small school community, with the specific interests in 
meeting a-g, Design, Visual & Media Arts, Forestry and Natural Resources, and/ or Entrepreneurship, and 
engaging with Environmental Science as a core of the program. 

 

The net effect on the County Office of Education (See Appendix 16 Support Letter) will be positive: 
an additional option for YCOE students and parents to have when selecting a quality education for their 
children, one steeped in highly aligned career pathways needed locally, statewide, and nationally, and with 
clear maps of articulation and dual enrollment for students to earn college credits while in high school. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY has and will continue to serve a diverse population of students. As the 
below table shows, we have maintained a diverse population of students but desire to promote deeper 
partnerships and collaborations among institutes of higher education, and community- based organizations 
to build institutional pathways for all students, especially those of diverse backgrounds. As the below table 
shows our Hispanic/Latino population as the largest compared to White students. YES collaborates with Yuba 
College and the Alliance for Hispanic Advancement to bring high school students to YES during the summer 
of 2026 for forestry internships in order to gain a more diverse enrollment of students. This collaboration will 
provide a space for Yuba College instructors to educate our students. As the below table shows our Native 
American student population continues to be about 8 percent of our student population. Not only do we 
promote Indigenous land values of environmental stewardship, we continue to collaborate with Indigenous 
partners to incorporate practices such as at our Land Appreciation Dinner’s Native Blessing Ceremony that 
focused on the sacredness of soil and water, the source of all nourishment and a symbol of our shared 
humanity.  YES CHARTER ACADEMY has adopted into our school calendar African American, Hispanic, Native 
and Asian American months to acknowledge the historical contributions towards education and 
advancements of all people. YES has a small Asian population of mostly Filipino students. 

 
Representation counts, so YES CHARTER ACADEMY is committed to hiring, when possible, a diverse 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 37  55



 

teaching and support staff. 
​  

We hope to recruit, with our engaging and rigorous program, and college and career alignment, 
more students from the Latino population locally. Students will come from the local Foothills community, 
and from students from a broader area, who are interested in our CTE program. The current breakdown of 
TK-12 students by zip code is as shown below. 

 

YES Enrollment Data by Location and Zip Code​ Updated: 9/2025 

Arranged by proximity to YES 

 

Location​ ​ Zip Code​ ​ # of Students 
Oregon House​ ​ 95962​ ​ ​ 45 
 
Dobbins​ ​ 95935​ ​ ​ 33 
Brownsville​ ​ 95919​ ​ ​ 35 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 38  

 
Sub Group 

August 
2022 

May 
2023 

August 
2023 

May 
2024 

August 
2024 

May 
2025 

August 
 2025 

African 
American 

5 6 7 10 7 7 6 

Asian/Pacific 
Islander 

1 1 3 2 2 2 3 

Hispanic/Latino 50 48 50 49 43 49 53 

White 87 97 93 95 113 114 124 

American 
Indian/Alaskan 
Native 

19 18 19 17 14 15 17 

Filipino 2 3 4 4 4 4 4 

Two or More 
Races 

13 11 12 10 8 9 12 

Unspecified 5 8 3 1 13 16 11 

Socio-economi
cally 
Disadvantaged 

73.4% 93.9% 93.9% 64.5% 64.5% 62% 69% 

Foster 0 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 1 0 

English Learner 3 3 3 1.8 1.8 0 0 

Students with 
Disabilities 

20 20 15 15 26 42 54 

Total TK-12 
Enrollment: 

164 176 171 168 187 194 212 

56



 

Challenge​ ​ 95925​ ​ ​ 7 
Browns Valley​ ​ 95918​ ​ ​ 14 
Forbestown​ ​ 95941​ ​ ​ 15 
Marysville/Loma Rica ​ 95901​ ​ ​ 41 
Olivehurst/Plumas Lake​95961​ ​ ​ 4 
Yuba City​ ​ 95991​ ​ ​ 2 
Bangor​ ​ ​ 95914​ ​ ​ 5 
Rackerby​ ​ 95972​ ​               6 
Total​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ 207 

YES attracts local Oregon House and Dobbins students as well as students from across Yuba County. 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY has increased its ability to transport students this year with the addition of an 
electric bus provided by grant funding.  This gives us three (3) buses. We have a reasonable expectation to 
continue to attract students from the foothills and from across Yuba County. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY High School serves students in grades 9- 12. We served 9th graders starting 

in the 2024-25 school year, and 9th and 10 graders will be served in the 2025-26 school year. Projected 
estimated enrollment by grade level from this year through the five-year renewal term of the charter is 
outlined below. 

 

          

Elementar
y 
Grades 

2026-2
7 

2027
-28 

2028-2
9 

2029-
30 

2030-3
1 High School 

2026
-27 

2027
-28 

2028
-29 

2029
-30 

2030
-31 

TK-K 20 20 20 20 20            

1 16 17 18 19 20 9 17 18 20 21 22 

2 17 17 18 20 21 10 14 15 17 19 20 

3 19 19 19 20 21 11 10 12 13 15 16 

4 22 21 21 21 22 12  10 12 13 15 

5 22 22 23 23 23 Total  41 55 62 68 73 

6 20 23 23 23 24             

7 21 22 23 24 25 TK-8 178 183 187 194 201 

8 21 22 23 24 25 High School 41 55 62 68 73 

Total 178 183 187 194 201 Totals 219 238 249 262 274 
 

In addition, our mission is for our graduates to find success and be prepared for college or career of 
their choice post-secondary. Having examined the data from Employment Development Department (“EDD”) 
around the current and projected labor need in our region, Yuba County, our CTE pathways were specifically 
aligned with community need and high wage opportunities. As a public school with a charter that focuses on 
environmental science, YES staff and students continually look for environmental science issues in our 
community. The issues of forest health and the stewardship of natural resources impact the lives of YES 
students and their families. One organization that YES pays particular attention to is the North Yuba Forest 
Partnership (“NYFP”). 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 39  57



 

The NYFP was founded in 2018. The work done under their umbrella will offer living wage careers 
and opportunities to do environmentally significant work in our community for decades to come. According 
to the NYFP website (https://www.yubaforest.org/): 

 

“The North Yuba Forest Partnership is a diverse group of nine organizations passionate about forest 
health and the resilience of the North Yuba River watershed. Together, the partners are working on an 
unprecedented scale to collaboratively plan, analyze, finance, and implement forest restoration across 
275,000 acres of the watershed. 

 

Through ecologically-based thinning and prescribed fire, the partnership seeks to protect North Yuba 
communities from the threat of catastrophic wildfire and restore the watershed to a healthier, more resilient 
state. Restoration efforts are expected to take many years, if not decades to complete, with the most critical 
project areas targeted first, i.e. at-risk communities, emergency response, evacuation access routes, and 
treatments to areas that have the potential to stop a wildfire from spreading.” 

 

The stated goals of the NYFP are: 
 

1)​Improve and restore forest health and resilience. 
2)​Reduce the risk of high-severity wildfire. 
3)​Protect and secure water supplies. 
4)​Support the development of a local economy that can create sustainable jobs. 

 

As a school that is focused on environmental science, YES whole heartedly supports the first three 
goals. YES is positioned through its 17 years of project based, environmental science curriculum, to help 
reach the fourth goal by preparing local students to step into the sustainable jobs created by the forestry and 
natural resources work in and around our community. These jobs are currently filled by out-of-county 
companies and agencies according to EDD data. Our second CTE pathway, Entrepreneurship/Self 
Employment, prepares students to start or to scale local businesses that do the forest resiliency work 
currently done by non-local companies. The third CTE pathway in our wall-to-wall program, Design, Visual & 
Media Arts, prepares students for success in a variety of careers with excellence in media communications. 

 

According www.EDD.ca.gov , the long-term occupational employment increases are in areas where 
small and medium sized businesses, including tourism/ hospitality, home services, personal care and 
maintenance personal. All show a 30% - 487% projected growth. Embedding entrepreneurship and small 
business ownership in our high school English classes with cross curriculum support from the math 
instructor(s), our students will meet the need and continue to grow small businesses in our community and 
be better prepared to support their family business or contribute across small businesses wherever their path 
leads them. 

 

Agriculture, natural resource and forestry jobs show a 62.8% increase in projected skilled and 
educated labor force, with conservation showing a sharp 30% need, and areas of building, grounds, forestry 
and animal care showing increases from 28.6%-48%. Our science embedded Agriculture: Forestry and 
Natural Resource focused courses, a deep understanding of environmental science through our Tk-12  school, 
and industry partners that see the labor need. 

 

Digital media is at the heart of communications for all small businesses, so our third CTE pathway 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 40  58

https://www.yubaforest.org/
http://www.edd.ca/


 

teaches viable professional Digital Media, videography, photography, animation and print skills that will be 
applicable across many industry sectors, as well as a growing need in our region, with information jobs 
showing an increase of Marketing and Market Research labor needs showing a 20% projected need, sales 
and digital services at a 22.2% increase in labor need, and information staff showing a labor need at 34.7%. 
Our students will be prepared to impact our community and will acquire deep knowledge and skills that will 
set them apart post-graduation, in today’s reginal job market. (https://data.edd.ca.gov/Employment- 
Projections/Long-Term-Occupational-Employment-Projections-Yuba/cufy-8h7e)  
(See Appendix 2- CTE Pathway Course Outlines). 

 

C.​ Model of the Educated Person in the 21st Century 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY understands the rapidly changing world since the pandemic and the 

continued relevance of addressing digital divide. This divide stems from unequal access to internet, devices 
and digital literacy skills which can lead to lower academic performance and a competitive disadvantage for 
underserved students. YES CHARTER ACADEMY stands in this gap by providing free  one to one Chromebooks 
to be used at school. YES CHARTER ACADEMY incorporates digital literacy skills starting in first grade via 
online learning applications and platforms enhance technical and digital proficiencies for modern learning.   

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY holds that an educated person is well rounded and balanced in knowledge 
and character. In our K-12 program we define an educated person in the 21st century as someone who has 
the capacity to learn and adapt and: 

 
●​ Uses the intellect to its fullest 
●​ Becomes an empathetic, collaborative member of a community 
●​ Researches relevant information and finds the answers 
●​ Solves a wide variety of  problems 
●​ Clearly expresses their findings and points of view 
●​ Practices humility, and tolerance  
●​ Is able to nurture and empower the people around them 
●​ Views him/herself as a global citizen who is empowered, and responsible, for making 

positive changes in the world and within the immediate environment. 
●​ Appreciates and protects the right of others to do likewise 

●​ Develops personal habits leading to a healthy lifestyle which includes balancing leisure, 
work, family, and community. 

 
A student educated at YES CHARTER ACADEMY is a: 

 
Scholar: a student with a solid foundation in science, math, social sciences/history, writing, 

speaking, art and digital literacy. 
 

Healthy Physical Being: The student is knowledgeable about, and practices, good nutrition, safety, 
and a healthful lifestyle. The student develops habits of physical activity in ways that provide pleasure, 
stress release, and fitness. 

 

Community Member: The student is able to collaborate with others, cooperate on projects, and 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 41  59

https://data.edd.ca.gov/Employment-Projections/Long-Term-Occupational-Employment-Projections-Yuba/cufy-8h7e
https://data.edd.ca.gov/Employment-Projections/Long-Term-Occupational-Employment-Projections-Yuba/cufy-8h7e


 

manage and resolve conflicts. The student is motivated and ready to provide meaningful service to 
others, and makes significant contributions with developed talents. 

 

Responsible Citizen of the World: The student understands the basis of our constitutional 
democracy, the rights and responsibilities of all, and stays informed regarding important political, social, 
and environmental issues. The student is informed regarding political, social, and cultural systems and 
seeks to understand and co-exist peacefully. The student seeks the highest of human virtues, such as 
love, caring, generosity, responsibility for actions, forgiveness, compassion, and openness to one another. 
This leads to sharing, to cooperation, and to problem solving that seeks peace rather than violence. 

 

Member of an Increasingly Technical and Information-based World: The student is competent 
and comfortable using a wide variety of technologies as an integral part of life and is open to embracing 
new alternatives as they become available. 

 
The expected Student Learning Outcomes of a YES High School student will able to be: 

 

1.​ Utilize the growth mindset and develop deep leadership and communication efficacy. 
2.​ Demonstrate professional and academic utilization of technology. 

3.​ Demonstrate understanding of business and economic systems, financial literacy and sales and 
marketing in a modern economy. 

4.​ Digitally display and create academic artifacts that showcase personal skills and professional 
capabilities through all their courses. 

5.​ Create a 10-year plan and post-secondary budget, resume, ePortfolio & personal branding to support 
career and college success. 

6.​ Demonstrate and engage in active self-advocacy and contribute to a positive professional learning 
community. 

7.​ Understand and exhibit skills around their own health, mental well-being, social competencies as 
well as life skills that translate to become self-sufficient and independent adults. 

8.​ Critically examine all sides of environmental issues and apply understanding from disciplines such as 
history, economics, psychology, law, literature, politics, sociology, philosophy, and religion to create 
informed opinions about how to interact with the environment on both a personal and a social level. 

9.​ Recognize the physical, chemical, and biological components of the earth’s systems, an 
understanding of forestry and natural resources and demonstrate the interdependency of natural 
systems and human-designed systems work together, as well as in conflict with each other.  

10.​Apply lessons from various courses through field experiences. These experiences will allow students 
to develop a better sense of not only individual organisms, but of the systems in which these 
organisms live.  

11.​Complete independent research on human interactions with the environment, the community, and 
the global landscape in person as well as in digital landscape. 

 

D.​ Educational Philosophy – How Learning Best Occurs 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY works to  encourage effective teaching methods in a unique setting. We 

believe that learning occurs best when a student’s natural curiosity is stimulated in real-life situations. We 
believe that students respond favorably to curriculum and strategies which they find interesting, 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 42  60



 

challenging and relevant to them and their possible future studies and employment. 
 

The desired result is an interdisciplinary TK-12 publicly funded charter school whose curricular focus is 
environmental science. The vision of the YES CHARTER ACADEMY is to educate TK – 12 students of the 
Sierra Foothills through a self-motivating, individualized, and comprehensive curriculum that connects 
learners with a school community with engaged and relevant content, passionate and student-centered 
teaching staff, and school culture that value scientific methods of inquiry. We serve the whole child, and 
look for our students to be successful in academics, as humans and with a clear path and marketable skills 
for college and career post-secondary success.  

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY strives to exceed the requirements of the Common Core State Standards 
(“CCSS”), Next Generation Science Standards (“NGSS”), History-Social Science Framework, English 
Language Development (“ELD”) Standards, and the remaining State Content Standards (collectively 
referred to herein as “State Standards”). We use state-adopted textbooks as well as State Standards based 
curriculum created collaboratively with educators on and off campus in all grades to assist in achieving 
high CAASPP scores. The Charter School provides a site-based matriculation environment whose teachers, 
programs, resources, and support enable students to become educated to high-quality State Standards 
academic standards. It further helps them develop to their fullest capacity as competent, happy, 
productive individuals, family members, and contributors to a global society and a peaceful world. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY provides a nurturing and stimulating environment that maximizes 

individualized education and project-based learning. PBL is widely considered an evidence-based best 
practice for instructional design in schools. PBL curriculum is founded on the State Standards for core 
classes with an interdisciplinary approach that includes an overarching emphasis on developing 
responsible citizens and environmental stewards for the 21st century. Standards for content, for 
performance, and for evaluation are aligned so that what is taught determines what is tested. Such an 
approach to standards- based education aims to improve achievement by establishing clear and 
challenging benchmarks; to ensure that teachers know what to teach and students know what they are 
expected to learn; and to make learning expectations fair and accessible, so that all students have the 
same opportunity to achieve them. 

 

Our goals can be achieved when there is strong commitment from the learning community: from 
parents, teachers, community groups, and, most importantly, from the individual child. Such achievement 
is grounded in a philosophy of trust among individuals who are all seeking their own highest levels of 
expression. 

 
Our high school program includes a wall-to-wall integrated Career Technical Education program, 

University of California (“UC”) a-g requirements. YES is working with Yuba College to offer community 
college articulated and dual enrolled courses to ensure college and career readiness in students’ 
post-graduate lives. The high school program will blend academic and career technical education. YES 
continues to place high expectations on students, parents, teachers and administrators. As many students 
come to us below grade level, we will have planned levels of support, scaffolding and continue utilizing 
individualized learning plans (“ILP”) into the high school program to meet each of our students where they 
are, and accelerate them and improve skills and abilities in a targeted and engaging way. 

 
The program and curriculum are based on a belief that students will be provided with a unique 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 43  61



 

opportunity to prepare our students to communicate, problem-solve, and perform authentic real-world 
tasks. Students will become competitive, competent, and highly skilled in order to meet the demanding 
standards of our time. During these years, in addition to career skills, students will obtain the essential 
concepts and course content that can lead them to a two- or four-year college program.  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 44  62



 

 

E.​ Core Values 
 
The Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy believes that today’s well-educated, socially 

aware, and personally responsible children become tomorrow’s contributing, caring citizens who create a 
better society for us all. YES CHARTER ACADEMY students come to appreciate one very special place: the 
natural landscape of their youth. YES CHARTER ACADEMY places a high value on healthy living, 
community participation, environmental enhancement, and respect for diversity. It emphasizes the 
natural and human history and development of Yuba County specifically, and of Northern California in 
general. 

 
For the high school program, our graduation profile for students utilizes the core values we hope to see 

in an advanced community including Kindness, Persistence, Environmental Sustainability, Self-Advocacy, 
Community, Professionalism, and Integrity. 

 

YES graduates are… 
 

Purposeful and Self-Aware: 

●​ Develop and take pride in personal identity 

●​ Cultivate interests, passions, professional skills and career objectives  
●​ Develop leadership voice where passion, community need, and skills overlap 

●​ Make responsible and ethical decisions 

●​ Be able to self-advocate for themselves, and act as an upstander in the community 
 

Academically Proficient: 

●​ Demonstrate deep conceptual understanding and fluency in academic disciplines 

●​ Communicate ideas and produce high quality work in a range of formats 

●​ Use and integrate multiple perspectives and sources of information 

●​ Apply knowledge to understand unfamiliar questions and issues 

●​ Exhibit persistence, and the ability for mastery knowing that FAIL means “First Attempt In Learning” 

●​ Extensive Digital Media ePortfolio 

●​ Opportunity for all students to achieve the Industry Certification ‘Adobe Photoshop Certified 

Professional’ 

Environmentally Aware 

●​ Understands the impact of humans on the environment 

●​ Demonstrates forestry and natural resource and applicable Career Education STEM Skills through 
labs, practicum, fieldwork and research. 

●​ Experiences outdoor physical education from the lens of the local biosphere 

●​ Opportunity for all students to achieve the Industry Certification ‘Sustainability 101 
Green Education Foundation’  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 45  63



 

 

Committed to Community Integrity & Justice: 

●​ Critique privilege and the status quo 

●​ Identify needs in the community and global landscape, and innovate possible solutions 

●​ Advocate for self and others skillfully and courageously 

●​ Engage in and learn from meaningful service 

●​ Embody optimism and make change 

●​ Learn and apply business management and entrepreneurship skills in school and in the community. 

●​ Opportunity for all students to achieve an Industry Certification ‘Entrepreneurship & Small 

Business’ 
 

Relationship Builders: 

●​ Develop and maintain physical and emotional health and well-being 

●​ Navigate systems and persist when faced with challenges 

●​ Cultivate relationships based on kindness, compassion, and empathy 

●​ Collaborate with a diverse range of people 
 

Lifelong Learners: 

●​ Take productive risks, innovate, and have a sense of adventure 

●​ Grapple with complexity with stamina and confidence 

●​ Solve problems with curiosity, initiative, and critical thinking 

●​ Seek feedback to learn from failure and success 

●​ Set and achieve goals that advance personal and academic development 
 

Committed to Community Integrity & Justice: 

●​ Critique privilege and the status quo 

●​ Identify needs in the community and global landscape, and innovate possible solutions 

●​ Advocate for self and others skillfully and courageously 

●​ Engage in and learn from meaningful service 

●​ Embody optimism and make change 

●​ Learn and apply business management and entrepreneurship skills in school and in the community. 
●​ Opportunity for all students to achieve an Industry Certification ‘Entrepreneurship & Small 

Business’ 
 

Relationship Builders: 

●​ Develop and maintain physical and emotional health and well-being 

●​ Navigate systems and persist when faced with challenges 

●​ Cultivate relationships based on kindness, compassion, and empathy 

●​ Collaborate with a diverse range of people 
 

Lifelong Learners: 

●​ Take productive risks, innovate, and have a sense of adventure 

●​ Grapple with complexity with stamina and confidence 

●​ Solve problems with curiosity, initiative, and critical thinking 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 46  64



 

●​ Seek feedback to learn from failure and success 

●​ Set and achieve goals that advance personal and academic development 
 

Graduation Requirements 
 

The graduation requirements include four years of English, three years of math, two years of science 
(life and physical), two years of physical education, three years of social science, one semester of health, one 
semester of geography, and one year of foreign language and/or visual and performing arts and/or career 
technical education course. This is the minimum for graduation, but every student will be encouraged and 
supported to complete the requirements for UC/California State University (“CSU”). YES CHARTER ACADEMY 
follows Education Code Section 51225.31 to exempt an individual with exceptional needs who satisfies the 
eligibility criteria described in subdivision (b) of that statute. YES CHARTER ACADEMY follows all applicable 
legal requirements to support highly mobile students toward graduation. Faculty, staff, and families are 
responsible for making sure students not only meet graduation requirements but exceed them whenever 
possible. YES stakeholders seek input on improving programs at the Charter School through the California 
Department of Education, California State University and the University of California. The YES Council of 
Directors and/or the school leadership reserve the right to modify, amend, and improve YES course offerings, 
and graduation requirements as necessary to achieve the mission and goals of the charter. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY College Preparation Requirements 
 

Years completed at YES CHARTER ACADEMY UC/CSU A-G Requirements 

3 years a: History/Social Science- 2 years required 

4 years b: English- 4 years required 

3 years c: Mathematics- 3 years required; 4 years 
recommended 

3 years d: Laboratory Science- 2 years required; 3 years 
recommended 

2 years e: Language Other than English- 2 years required; 
3 years 
recommended 

1 year f: Visual and Performing Arts - 1 year required 

3 years g: Preparatory Electives- 1 year required 
 

As state funding is made available, the Charter School will require students to complete an ethnic 
studies course as part of the social studies course sequence; the Charter School therefore will comply 
with requirements under AB 101 to offer a one-semester course in ethnic studies and require that 
students complete the same as a graduation requirement commencing with students graduating in the 
2029-30 school year. 
 

The Charter School will comply with requirements under AB 2927 to offer a one-semester course 
in personal finance by the 2027-28 school year and require that students complete the same as a 
graduation requirement commencing with students graduating in the 2030-31 school year.  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 47  65



 

1.​ Strong Sense of Place and Community 

 
The children of YES CHARTER ACADEMY experience firsthand the ecology of the rural land that 

surrounds their school and community. They understand that we are all part of the planet Earth, and it is 
part of us. A strong sense of place within the natural and human community, both local and worldwide, is 
the legacy of YES CHARTER ACADEMY. Students and teachers learn outside each day, immersed in the 
natural world. Their learning about nature and culture comes through rich, first-hand contact with the 
world around them. Their explorations are guided by the cycles and patterns of growth, rainfall, migration, 
and the changing of the seasons, all of which teach lessons no classroom alone can match. 

 
The high school program is built on this sense of place and security and instruct using work-based 

learning, PBL and giving students options to participate in internships with businesses in the community. 
Students will explore and engage with the community across the core subjects of English, Sciences and Art 
in the Career Technical Education program course alignment. 

 

2.​ Healthful living 
 

Children learn about the life cycles of animals and plants, as well as the interdependence of life, 
through our use of plants for food, and through their observations, projects, and real work on the farm, 
woodlands, and landscapes that surround the Charter School. YES CHARTER ACADEMY students have the 
time and opportunity to learn through their senses, experiences, and discoveries, sparked by curiosity and 
a sense of wonder. They experience the joy and excitement that comes when hard work leads to 
understanding and competence. We strive for excellence in all we do, recognizing many different types and 
measures of excellence we can achieve both personally and collectively. 

 
Our focus and ongoing engagement with natural and healthful living experiences will continue in our 

Forestry and Natural Resources courses, as well as our physical education (“PE”) courses 1 & 2 in high 
school. Due to the focus of our program and our extensive exposure to the world of nature and landscape 
in our local area, we have layered in High School course 3A- Adventure/ Outdoor Activities and High School 
Course 4A, Advanced Adventure/ Outdoor Activities. Dance and Weightlifting may be offered as an 
extended day course by year 4, enrollment dependent. 

 
In the high school, shareholders and industry partners and parents helps guide our student courses 

and need. Our students will have not the required 3, but rather 4 ‘d’ lab sciences, offering Sports, Exercise, 
Physiology and Health Science in the 11th grade, to support growth and development as students grow 
and evolve to adulthood. This partnered with a traditional 9th grade health class, and a full year of Biology 
and California Natural Resources, exceed the offerings at all schools in the region. 

 
Our high school students will also have advisors, and advisory courses specifically chosen to support 

a successful transition from middle school to high school, with 9th grade students using the Get Focused 
Stay Focused content, as well as 10th grade Advisory offering Life Skills Adulting 101 to support mental, 
physical wellness, and preparing students on their journey to adulthood with rigorous courses that has 
healthful living embedded. 

 

In our vision, we hope to also work with students at all ages, grow our own food sustainably on 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 48  66



 

campus to help feed our learning community and support the hungry through community-based 
organizations with our produce. 

 

3.​ Curricular Rigor Aimed to Meet the State-Standards 
 

The written, taught, learned and collateral curriculum is examined regularly by various constituents 
of the learning community — including teachers, administrators, and students. Scrutiny in accomplishing 
the aims and goals of the state curriculum is sought and discussed by the faculty and study teams. The 
study teams look for factors to determine, and adjust where necessary, the success of English learners 
and students with special needs. Our unique approach to teaching and learning, described below, and 
the Charter School’s expressed interest in a science-based education suggest that its very existence is 
examined thoroughly for effectiveness across multiple measures. 

 
We will continue our engagement model as we evolve our high school program, with students meeting 

and exceeding the ‘a-g’ requirements with ALL courses being adopted meeting an a-g designation. In 
addition, students will have access to through planned dual enrolled and articulated courses in partnership 
with Yuba Community College. (See Appendix 2A Yuba Community College Work Plan) Annual in-person 
and digital learning exhibitions of learning embedded in courses and in whole-learning community 
showcases, will be a component of our PBL integration, and the use of ePortfolio and a Senior Defense/ 
annual passage defense of learning. (See Appendix 2 ePortfolios) 

 

4.​ A small school that fosters learning 

At YES CHARTER ACADEMY learning takes place when teachers can give individual attention to each 
child, and the school community is small enough for everyone to know and support each other. In this 
setting every child is known well by the teachers, and their gifts, talents, and special needs are recognized 
and addressed. Our intention is to remain a small school even with the expansion to high school. 

 

Our high school program will continue to offer small class sizes, personal attention, 1:20 ratio of staff: 
student support and individual learning plans  to support the individual needs of each of our unique 
learners through the formative years of secondary school. 

 

5.​ An integrated approach to learning that focuses on the 
natural sciences and the environment 

Because the natural world is inherently interesting to most children, it serves as a setting and 
springboard for learning in all subjects studied at YES CHARTER ACADEMY. Teachers help students to 
deepen their understanding of the world by connecting all disciplines and to communicate their 
observations and understanding to others. In choosing to expand to high school grades, we mindfully 
chose our scienced to integrate Forestry and Natural Resources, in the Agriculture Industry Sector, Digital 
Media in Arts Media and Entertainment Industry Sector, and Entrepreneurship and Small Business 
Ownership will support the scaffolded elementary and middle school content, as well as aligns with 
current and future Labor Market needs both locally and across the state. Our integrated approach will 
align the State Standards and CTE standards, as well as the CA Standards for Career Ready Practice as 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 49  67



 

recommended by the California Department of California. 
 

Standards for Career Ready Practice describe the fundamental knowledge and skills that students 
need to prepare for transition to postsecondary education, career training, or the workforce. These 
standards are not exclusive to a career pathway, a career technical education program of study, a 
particular discipline, or level of education. Standards for Career Ready Practice are taught and reinforced 
in all career exploration and preparation programs or integrated into core curriculum, with increasingly 
higher levels of complexity and expectation as a student advance through a program of study. Standards 
for Career Ready Practice are a valuable resource for CTE and academic teachers in the design of curricula 
and lessons that teach and reinforce the career-ready aims of the CTE Model Curriculum Standards and 
the Common Core State Standards. 

 

1.​ Apply appropriate technical skills and academic knowledge. Career-ready individuals readily 
access and use the knowledge and skills acquired through experience and education. They make 
connections between abstract concepts with real-world applications and recognize the value of academic 
preparation for solving problems, communicating with others, calculating measures, and performing other 
work- related practices. 

 

2.​ Communicate clearly, effectively, and with reason. Career-ready individuals communicate 
thoughts, ideas, and action plans with clarity, using written, verbal, electronic, and/or visual methods. 
They are skilled at interacting with others: they are active listeners who speak clearly and with purpose, 
and they are comfortable with terminology that is common to workplace environments. Career-ready 
individuals consider the audience for their communication and prepare accordingly to ensure the desired 
outcome. 

 

3.​ Develop an education and career plan aligned with personal goals. Career-ready individuals 
take personal ownership of their educational and career goals and manage their individual plan to attain 
these goals. They recognize the value of each step in the educational and experiential process, and they 
understand that nearly all career paths require ongoing education and experience to adapt to practices, 
procedures, and expectations of an ever-changing work environment. They seek counselors, mentors, and 
other experts to assist in the planning and execution of education and career plans. 

 

4.​ Apply technology to enhance productivity. Career-ready individuals find and maximize the 
productive value of existing and new technology to accomplish workplace tasks and solve workplace 
problems. They are flexible and adaptive in acquiring and using new technology. They understand the 
inherent risks—personal and organizational—of technology applications, and they take actions to prevent 
or mitigate these risks. 

 

5.​ Utilize critical thinking to make sense of problems and persevere in solving them. 
Career-ready individuals recognize problems in the workplace, understand the nature of the problems, 
and devise effective plans to solve the problems. They thoughtfully investigate the root cause of a 
problem prior to introducing solutions. They carefully consider options to solve a problem and, once 
agreed upon, follow through to ensure the problem is resolved. 

 

6.​ Practice personal health and understand financial literacy. Career-ready individuals 
understand the relationship between personal health and workplace performance. They contribute to 
their personal well- being through a healthy diet, regular exercise, and mental health activities. 
Career-ready individuals also 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 50  68



 

understand that financial literacy leads to a secure future that enables career success. 
 

7.​ Act as a responsible citizen in the workplace and the community. Career-ready individuals 
understand the obligations and responsibilities of being a member of a community and demonstrate this 
understanding every day through their interactions with others. They are aware of the impacts of their 
decisions on others and the environment around them, and they think about the short-term and 
long-term consequences of their actions. They are reliable and consistent in going beyond minimum 
expectations and in participating in activities that serve the greater good. 

 

8.​ Model integrity, ethical leadership, and effective management. Career-ready individuals 
consistently act in ways that align with personal and community-held ideals and principles. They employ 
ethical behaviors and actions that positively influence others. They have a clear understanding of integrity 
and act on this understanding in every decision. They use a variety of means to positively impact the 
direction and actions of a team or organization, and they recognize the short-term and long-term effects 
that management’s actions and attitudes can have on productivity, morale, and organizational culture. 

 

9.​ Work productively in teams while integrating cultural and global competence. Career-ready 
individuals contribute positively to every team, as both team leaders and team members. To avoid barriers 
to productive and positive interaction, they apply an awareness of cultural differences. They interact 
effectively and sensitively with all members of the team and find ways to increase the engagement and 
contribution of other members. 

 

10.​ Demonstrate creativity and innovation. Career-ready individuals recommend ideas that solve 
problems in new and different ways and contribute to the improvement of the organization. They consider 
unconventional ideas and suggestions by others as solutions to issues, tasks, or problems. They discern 
which ideas and suggestions may have the greatest value. They seek new methods, practices, and ideas 
from a variety of sources and apply those ideas to their own workplace practices. 

 

11.​ Employ valid and reliable research strategies. Career-ready individuals employ research 
practices to plan and carry out investigations, create solutions, and keep abreast of current findings 
related to workplace environments and practices. They use a reliable research process to search for new 
information and confirm the validity of sources when considering the use and adoption of external 
information or practices. 

 

12.​ Understand the environmental, social, and economic impacts of decisions. Career-ready 
individuals understand the interrelated nature of their actions and regularly make decisions that positively 
impact other people, organizations, the workplace, and the environment. They are aware of and utilize 
new technologies, understandings, procedures, and materials and adhere to regulations affecting the 
nature of their work. They are cognizant of impacts on the social condition, environment, workplace, and 
profitability of the organization. 

6.​ Character development woven into the fabric of learning 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY intentionally incorporates character development into its daily curriculum 
and activities. Teachers, administrators, students, and families work together to assure the healthy 
development of every child, and to address moral and ethical issues so that each has the knowledge, skills, 
and resiliency to act with integrity.  The YES Positive Behavior Intervention and Supports framework of 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 51  69



 

SPARRK is woven throughout our social emotional learning at YES and is at the core of whom we seek to 
educate both academically and socially. SPARRK, the YES PBIS acronym, stands for: 

 

●​  Steward of the Environment 

●​ Positive Team Player 

●​ Academic Master 

●​ Responsible Citizen 

●​ Resourceful 

●​ Kind 

 

Students are taught these character traits and then recognized in person with SPARRK certificates 
and at assemblies for demonstrating these character traits. (See Appendix 6C for PBIS SPARRK 
Documents) 

 
The growth mindset based upon the work of Carol Dwek is also at the core of our student 

engagement and communication. Each classroom has an age-appropriate Growth Mindset/Power of Yet 
poster in their classroom and teaches students the process of developing a growth mindset. YES students 
track their academic growth in relation to their effort by setting and tracking Individualized Learning Plan 
goals.  

1.​ Accountability and responsibility 

 
We pay close attention to leadership, governance, and management at YES CHARTER ACADEMY. This 

includes maintaining our charter, meeting state requirements, and ensuring financial viability. Ultimately, 
we are most accountable for the children’s learning. Teachers and other staff members collaborate to 
promote a sense of collective purpose. Teachers reflect together on their practices, critically analyze 
learning situations in their classrooms, and suggest and engage in creative strategies to provide 
experiences that enable each child to meet our high expectations. 

 
2.​ Parents 

 
Parents play an integral role in the educational experience of the children through volunteer 

opportunities inside and outside the classroom, leadership positions, and reinforcement at home. Parents 
will be invited to participate in exhibitions of learning, volunteer opportunities, and as our program 
evolves, continuing their own learning through our relationships with the County Office of Education Adult 
programs and Yuba Community College. At all ages, our professional learning community will reflect our 
vision of an informed and supportive group of industry, local, parent and student members that connect 
to our school mission and outcomes and offer their expertise to create the best opportunities for our 
students and staff. 

 
YES has increased the home/school connection in several ways. We use the Parent Square application 

to communicate quickly and effectively with all YES families. Parents and guardians are able to choose to 
receive Parent Square notifications through text or email. Parents are able to respond to messages, to fill 
out and sign forms such as field trip forms, and to schedule parent teacher conferences among many 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 52  70



 

useful communication tools that Parent Square offers. Among the uses of Parent Square that has 
improved family/school communication is the use of surveys. YES utilizes both Parent Square and 
electronic surveys to gather feedback from parents. We have gathered input on perceptions of our 
effectiveness in delivering distance learning, connectivity needs, and LCAP to name a few. We meet with 
YES families using Zoom, and in-person meetings. In addition to monthly Council of Directors meetings, we 
hold Roadmap meetings, and Local Control and Accountability Plan (“LCAP”) meetings to solicit family 
input. 

 

3.​ Commitment to lifelong learning and high achievement 

 
Students come to understand that natural and human communities are one and that environmental 

stewardship and civic responsibility go hand in hand. They gain a love for learning and for caring for the 
earth and its citizens that continues to develop after they have graduated. Students will graduate from our 
TK-12 exceeding UC a-g requirements, with articulated community college units, and having experienced 
three (3) different career pathways and exceeding requirements of lab science. 

 

F.​ Curriculum 
 

The academic program in the upper elementary and middle school is organized around periods daily. 
Some students stay later for our after-school ELOP program. Our curriculum plan has sound educational 
theory and research. YES CHARTER ACADEMY is founded upon core values such as a strong sense of place 
and community; healthful living; curricular review and rigor aimed to meet the State Standards; 
environmental protection and enhancement; and commitment to lifelong learning and high 
achievement. Environmental Education Curriculum is woven throughout the program and across subject 
topics. (Appendix 1A). Core academic subjects are taught through integrated thematic units, and 
industry-aligned practical experience. 

 

In K-8, we have adopted Amplify Science K-8, which is aligned to grade level NGSS, engaging and 
supports fluency in ELA within the Science content (Appendix 1D). Students examine the ecology and 
history of the land and people of the area, learn about animals and plants through personal observation 
and experience, and use the community’s resources as a living laboratory. We introduce stewardship 
though the US “FireWorks Curriculum: Northern California Oak Woodlands” in our lower grades, allowing 
students to experiment with issues directly affecting our local natural resources. “FireWorks provides 
students with interactive, hands-on materials to study wildland fire. It is highly 

 
fluctuations and cycles, habitat and survival, and human interactions with ecosystems. Students using 
FireWorks ask questions, gather information, analyze and interpret it, and communicate their discoveries.” 

 

Embedded in the CCSS curriculum, the underlying theme of being stewards and understanding local 
and world-wide environmental resources, utilizing technology, and preparing for career, college and their 
post-secondary journey. 

 

The YES CHARTER ACADEMY gardens and nature mini-reserves foster extensive field experiences 
even for the youngest children. The Las Plumas National Forest, as well as area public institutions and 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 53  71



 

civic organizations, provide additional settings for exploration. We have expanded our outdoor learning 
spaces to include a Monarch Way Station, outdoor bleachers for PE, and Middle and High School 
Basketball court. We have added a Media Arts classroom with Media Arts technology.  

 
In 9-12th grades, the curriculum and instruction will be aligned to Career Technical Education pathways, 

determined by unmet labor needs in the community, articulated wherever possible with the Yuba 
Community College, and with deep attention to professional skills, completing a-g, and with a continued 
dedication to environmental resources, digital media, and entrepreneurship/ small business ownership. 

 

Students will also work towards paid and unpaid internships in their 11th and 12th grade years, and 
even PE classes are deeply aligned with social emotional and physical health education, and outdoor 
offerings in our local community like hiking, kayaking and leadership courses in the outdoors. College and 
career counseling, ePortfolios, and even an a-g ‘g’ Adulting 101 course will support the whole-child as they 
mature through young adulthood. 

 

YES is dedicated to scaffolding and pacing curriculum through our K-12 for graduate success. To 
prepare for these secondary grade levels, we have carefully chosen courses that will engage, and align with 
our current student body and areas of coursework not offered locally at the secondary level. Additional 
training in embedding CCSS and CTE, as well as strong project based/ cross-curricula pedagogy will be at 
the center of our growing school. All students will graduate as completers from three CTE pathways over 
the course of their high school career, 

 

All students will have the opportunity in small classes to take industry-aligned certifications in their 
classes, and additional a-g courses that support their success and meet State requirements including 4 
years of math, with a senior course around Financial Analysis, Business computer applications, Speech, 
Psychology and a Senior seminar focused on ePortfolio, Scholarships, Job and college applications and 
personal statements. There is also a Leadership class, allowing students to improve the school community 
and run events for the TK-12 population, create a yearbook, and quarterly newsletters. 

 

The 4-year high school schedule plan includes a modified block schedule with A/ B and a 1 day 7 
period schedules to accommodate longer periods for rigorous hands-on learning and to model and 
accommodate for articulated and dual enrolled classes with the community college. High school students 
will begin at the mandated 8:35 a.m. start time (Education Code Section 46148) and will be provided with 
1:1 technology. 

 

Our school year includes 178 instructional days, (see Charter Calendar Appendix 3) meets or exceeds 
the required annual instructional minutes per grade. 

 

High school students begin class at 8:30 a.m. Our high school will begin at the same time as our TK-8 
students, 8:30 a.m., and the 9-12th instructional day will end at 3:30 p.m., with TK -8 ending at 3:00 PM. 

 

As we have an established ELOP after-school program that runs until 5:30, this will align with any 
future developed high school clubs and activities, sports and extra-curricular activities to include 
expansion into our current TK- 12 model until 5:30 post- instructional day. 

 
As we continue to evolve the 9-12th grades, we will have a program of clubs that align with our 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 54  72



 

student interests, support unit recovery or academic intervention, as well as unit recovery and tutorial 
support our Alt. Forms of Leadership requirements for CTE Pathways. In addition, in 11th and 12th grade, 
paid and unpaid internship placements will take place outside the school day at minimum 1x a week for at 
least a semester. (see Appendix 2 CTE Pathways for descriptions). 

 

As a CTE wall-to-wall model, we will have leadership curriculum embedded in our core program and 
YES will offer aligned leadership opportunities outside the classroom. A leadership team made up of 
students representing grade levels and the 3 CTE pathways will be at the core of our student government. 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY will also meet the requirements of high quality CTE programs and offer 
work-based learning clubs in lieu of Career Technical Student Organizations. 

 

As our adopted courses will all be a-g from the formation of our school, parents and students will be 
made aware that they will be transferable to other public high school. Parents will have access to all 
course outlines (Appendix 2), which are directly modeled from courses accepted in the UC Office of the 
President a-g portal and showcase. 

 

YES has completed WASC accreditation with approved “A-G” courses required for admission to the 
University of California and California State University systems as of June 24, 2025.  

 

The Charter School will inform parents on an ongoing basis of the transferability of coursework to 
other public high schools and an individual course’s “A-G” status (eligibility to meet college entrance 
requirements) through the course catalog and the YES website. This will ensure that high school pupils can 
meet California college entrance requirements. Additionally, YES will offer concurrent enrollment and dual 
enrollment opportunities and will inform parents about the transferability of course to post-secondary 
education institutions as applicable. 

 

In addition, beginning in 9th grade with our ‘Get Focused Stay Focused College and Career’ course, 
students will create a 1-, 3- and 10-year goals and plans, learn their own strengths, weaknesses and 
interests, explore career opportunities, begin a budget for college or post-secondary. With 
implementation of the growth mindset, we will help kids plan for pivots and options and opportunities, so 
they exit our program ready for the success they plan for. 

 

The Dream Act, Free Application for Federal Student Aid (“FAFSA”), grants and scholarships will be 
defined and explored in 9th and 10th grade, in 11th & 12th grade internship courses and Senior Seminar, 
college applications, FAFSA, scholarships, Resumes and Mock interviews will be a deep component of the 
education our students will receive. PSAT/ SAT process will also be covered, with an ongoing discussion of 
post-secondary, the cost, and focusing on the student choices and goals, and the steps and path to achieve 
their goals. 

 

Students will engage in some of their curriculum within the community. Junior year, on track 
students will be offered internships with a local company, nonprofit or within the school, informed by 
their career interest plan, and Senior year students will be allowed and recruited for paid internships or 
work study for one period a week, to demonstrate their skills earned in CTE pathways, and gain work 
experience and community networking. These 2 courses will also engage students with understanding 
taxes, interviews, customer service, communication, time management and networking as well as other 
skills communicated by community businesses locally and throughout California, that they need in 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 55  73



 

tomorrow’s workforce. 
 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 56  74



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
​  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 57 
 75



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 58 
 76



 

 

 
 

(Appendix 2 includes Course Outlines for planned courses.)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 59 
 77



 

G.​The Environmental Focus: Earth Literacy 
 

 
In creating and implementing its environmental sciences focus, YES CHARTER ACADEMY educators 

are guided by California's Environmental Principals and Concepts from the Education and the 
Environment Initiative supported by Assembly Bills 1548 and 1721 (see Appendix 1D, “California's 
Environmental Principles and Concepts”), to ensure that instruction is credible, reliable, objective, and 
factually based. Focal areas of study include conservation, plant and animal life and stewardship and civic 
responsibility, interdependence and natural balance, pollution, and health and fitness. Earth Literacy is 
taught through project-based learning that focuses on environmental subject matter aligned with science 
and social studies standards.  

 
To continue this essential focus for all students in our expanding secondary program, our a-g ‘d’ lab 

science requirements will be also courses aligning to the CALPAD reporting in the Agriculture and Natural 
Resources Sector, Pathway 104, Forestry & Natural Resources. Students will take Biology and California 
Natural Resources their freshman year, Sophomores will be offered Forestry & Natural Resources an 
aligned Physical science ‘d’ and senior year, Chemistry & Environmental Engineering. In addition, due to our 
mission of serving the ‘whole child’ we have an additional lab science course Junior year, giving all 
students 4 a-g science courses on their transcript. Entitled Sports, Expertise, Physiology & Health science, 
which will be meet and exceed the state Health Requirements, as well as inform students more deeply 
about healthy choices as they age into adulthood. (see Appendix 2 for high school course outlines and 
instructional resources, Appendix 12 for student policies and expectations) 

 

We also have specifically chosen our Physical Education courses for 9/10 to follow the California PE 
recommendations and will over Course 3A, Adventure Outdoor Activities and year 2, Outdoor Recreation 
and Conservation. Following and mastering standards from the CDE Advanced Adventure / Outdoor 
Activities. With these thoughtful and rigorous courses supporting our location, student interests and our 
vision of embedding environmental science and stewardship across our TK-12 program (see Appendix 2) 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY is equipped with current information technologies, including computers with 
Internet access. Our expansion into the high school grades will also include build outs of industry specific 
indoor and outdoor lab spaces, a dedication to industry-relevant video and media hardware and software 
for our Design, Visual and Media Arts pathway, and a maker and innovation lab space for our embedded 
Entrepreneurship and Small Business ownership pathway. (see Appendix 2) 

 

H.​ Instructional Design 

The continuation and focus of each student as an individual learner, and to combat learning loss 
during COVID, YES teachers, in collaboration with the Learning Center Director, created an Individual 
Learning Plan for and with each student. Each ILP has one reading and one math goal that is based upon 
assessment and teacher observation. ILPs are used to set achievement goals in reading and math. They 
are created at the beginning of each school year and updated at the end of each trimester. ILPs drive 
differentiated instruction in the classroom. 

All students are administered IXL assessments in reading and math and a reading fluency assessment 
at the beginning of the school year, and again at the end of the first and second trimesters. This data is 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 60 
 78



 

used to create ILPs, to group students for differentiated instruction, and to identify students for reading 
fluency remediation. Students who do not read at the 50th percentile, are placed in the reading 
intervention program, Read Naturally. 

Student progress in Read Naturally is tracked and celebrated. Students have the goal of increasing 
reading fluency to the 50th percentile or above. Students are excited from the program upon reaching 
this goal. YES students have demonstrated success in increasing reading fluency and meeting ILP goals 
using the Read Naturally intervention program. YES will continue to use and refine.  

 

While CAASPP scores are similar to comparable district schools, there is a need for growth in student 
achievement. Multiple measures show areas of strength, such as improvement in math, and areas of 
needed growth, such as reading. YES is committed to raising student achievement, and is taking multiple 
steps to do so. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY will continue to support standard measurements through assessment both 
summative and formative. Instructional support in the high school will be single grade-level cohorts, and an 
ongoing deep dive into student graduation requirements, ‘a-g’ and State requirements for graduation 
fulfilment, as well as continuing to evolve student independent learning plan needs as a whole-child focus. 
Students will take PSAT and SAT and have support on increasing their scores and knowledge around these 
high stakes assessments. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s educational program is based on the research and progressive concepts of 
project-based learning through Career Technical Education and State Standards alignment, including a full 
A-G program of study. To help students achieve the academic standards and a fundamental understanding 
of the Schoolwide Learning Outcomes (“SLO”), YES CHARTER ACADEMY teachers will engage students in 
challenging learning activities through a variety of instructional methods. Group activities, multi-media 
presentations, lecture and project-based learning will be the norm. 

 

Through the lens of Entrepreneurship, innovation and business, our English courses will focus on 
Common Core reading and writing standards as well as CSU skills for college level reading and writing. 
Additionally, students will have formative and summative assessments in all courses, with focus on cross- 
curriculum PBL. Project based learning is at the core of the Charter School’s approach to teaching. Students 
will engage with real world problems and hands-on experiences to develop collaboration, critical thinking 
and problem-solving skills. Publishing and sharing their projects with the broader community provides 
opportunities for practicing communication and public speaking. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY will also offer some high school opportunities, utilizing the A La Carte model. 
This model is where a student takes a course entirely online to accompany other experiences that the 
student is having at a brick-and-mortar school. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY also sees the value in exposing students to the online learning platform 
because so many post-secondary institutions are embracing this technology. Imagine Learning provides our 
small site with access to online and blended learning solutions that enable us to reach our academic goals. 
Imagine Learning and other digital providers provide a range of California core curriculum, AP, honors, 
elective, Career and Technical Education, and credit recovery courses which are aligned to the rigor and 
high expectations of State Standards. Besides seeing growth in similar school settings, blended learning is 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 61 
 79



 

engaging as well as supports the data collection we use in our embedded ILP annual student-run parent/ 
teacher meetings to help target student growth and weaknesses. 

 

YES Staff and administrators see online courses serving students in two capacities. The first way is for 
primary course acquisition in social-science, math, and foreign language. The second way blended learning 
will be used at is to supplement other core courses as needed by each student in their individual learning 
plan. 

 

The Imagine Learning: Engenuity curriculum will be integrated into the regular school day in courses 
such as Integrated Math and Social Studies. This allows for supplementary instruction given by the teacher 
as needed. The other capacity for use of online instruction is for credit recovery, which is delivered through 
a blended learning model during a tutorial period. These classes are monitored by staff trained in using the 
software and the students’ progress is monitored regularly (See Appendix 2). 

 

Our embedded CTE pathways, will achieve industry-aligned certifications or credentials in capstone 
courses as summative measurements of learning. This includes in their Chemistry & Environmental 
Engineering Capstone ‘d’ science, they will certify in the ‘NOCTI Green Education Foundation Institute 
Sustainability 101 Certification’, an assessment that consists of questions that measure an individual’s 
factual theoretical knowledge. 

 

In our Design, Visual and Media Arts, students will have the opportunity to test to become ‘Adobe 
Photoshop Certified Professional’ as well as keep an ePortfolio of academic and design work. 

 

Students will have entrepreneurial and business concepts embedded in their English courses, and in 
year 3, will test for the industry recognized ‘Entrepreneurship & Small Business Ownership’ certification, as 
well as have experience authoring a Small Business Administration aligned business plan, competitive 
analysis, and financial requirements. 

 

Our program is aligned, from day 1, to a 4-year college trajectory, no other program in the county 
has this. 

 

Our class sizes, per our mission, will stay under 25, often with secondary learning support, no other 
program in the County has this. YES CHARTER ACADEMY maintains the requisite classroom size and adult 
to pupil ratio mandated by Education Code Section 48000(g) in its TK classrooms. 

 

The high school program is intentionally aligned with high-wage high-need jobs in Yuba County, no 
other program in our county has this. 

 

From inception, we are leveraging community industry and a growing partnership with our 
community college to embed relevant connections and build a strong workforce, all the way back to our 
Kindergarteners, no other program in the community offers this. 

 

Our current learning community population as well as the community and YCOE are strong 
supporters of our mission and vision statements. 

 

Our model of TK-12 for our community is unique, and no other program offers this to parents and 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 62 
 80



 

students. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY teaching staff and administration utilizes and develops assessments tools to 
help determine placement into learning groups, depending on age, below are some overarching examples: 

 

●​ ​IXL s used to create standards-based assessments that reflect growth of students as cohorts 
and individuals. Correlated to the State Standards, IXL will be administered at key intervals in 
the first and second trimesters. Teacher created tests are also available on IXL to allow 
teachers to create intervention groups, target specific learning goals for students, and 
monitor mastery and progress.  

 

●​ Formative classroom tests are used on a regular basis by teachers in all grade levels including 
exit tickets concepts of print assessments, show of hands/symbols/signs to indicate class- 
wide and individual participation during lessons and assignments for checking for 
understanding and assessing progress. 

 
●​ ​Students are assessed using diagnostic assessments, formative assessments embedded in 

programs, and summative assessments such as CAASPP, and California Science Test (“CAST”). 
 

●​ High school students will continue to take IXL assessments in reading and math as well as 
PSAT/ SAT testing beginning in their Freshman year.  

  

I.​ Instructional Methods 

 

1.​ Cooperative learning 

 
Researchers have found that cooperative learning is an effective learning strategy. Students are 

guided to work cooperatively on projects such as Earth Day projects, garden projects, and others. 

 
Cooperative learning will continue in our upper grades, however will be aligned to industry relevant 

team and roles, as well as deeper communication and collaboration, and leadership roles. Students will 
work cooperatively with peers as well as with lower grades, with learners becoming teachers and mentors. 

 

2.​ Differentiating instructional methods 

 
In a differentiated classroom the teacher creates multiple paths of learning so that students of 

different abilities, interest or learning styles experience appropriate ways to learn content. YES follows the 
RTI model to differentiate instruction. Instruction may be differentiated in the process or product. 
Differentiating the processes means varying learning activities or strategies to provide appropriate 
methods for students to explore the concepts. Differentiating product means varying the complexity of 
the product that students create to demonstrate mastery of the concepts. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 63 
 81



 

3.​ Multi-Tiered System of Supports and Response to Interventions (RTI2) 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY understands that responding to the whole child and integrating a Multi- 

Tiered System of Support as a framework for aligning resources and initiatives at the school to support the 
overall success of the student is key; MTSS as a method of organization like both RtI² and PBIS, and 
systematically addresses support for all students (See MTSS Appendix 7). 

 
MTSS is a framework that brings together both RtI² and PBIS and aligns YES CHARTER ACADEMY 

supports to serve the whole child. YES CHARTER ACADEMY gathers data through universal screening, 
data-driven decision making, and problem-solving teams, and focuses on content standards. YES CHARTER 
ACADEMY MTSS strives to aligns the entire system of programming, supports, and resources, and 
implements continuous improvement processes throughout the system. 
 

 YES CHARTER ACADEMY utilizes the RtI² approach that focuses on individual students who are 
struggling academically (See Appendix 7 for RTI). YES pulls together resources from the school, and 
community to promote students’ success before they fall behind.  As a component of MTSS, RtI2 levels of 
intervention benefit every student. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY follows this recommended model for RTl2       

 

o​ High-quality classroom instruction. Students receive high-quality and culturally relevant, 
standards-based instruction in their classroom setting by highly qualified teachers. 

o​ Research-based instruction. The instruction that is provided within the classroom is culturally 
responsive and has been demonstrated to be effective through scientific research. 

o​ Universal screening. School staff assesses all students to determine students’ needs. On the basis of 
collected data, school staff members determine which students require close progress monitoring, 
differentiated instruction, additional targeted assessment, a specific research-based intervention, or 
acceleration. 

o​ Continuous classroom progress monitoring. The classroom performance of all students is monitored 
continually within the classroom. In this way, teachers can identify those learners who need more 
depth and complexity in daily work and those who are not meeting benchmarks or other expected 
standards and adjust instruction accordingly. 

o​ Research-based interventions. When monitoring data indicates a student’s lack of progress, an 
appropriate research-based intervention is implemented. The interventions are designed to 
increase the intensity of the students’ instructional experience. 

o​ Progress monitoring during instruction and interventions. School staff members use progress 
monitoring data to determine the effectiveness of the acceleration or intervention and make any 
modifications, as needed. Carefully defined data are collected on a frequent basis to provide a 
cumulative record of the students’ progress, acceleration, and/or response to instruction and 
intervention. 

o​ Fidelity of program implementation. Student success in the RtI2 model requires fidelity of 
implementation in the delivery of content and instructional strategies specific to the learning 
and/or behavioral needs of the student. 

o​ Staff development and collaboration. All school staff members are trained in assessments, data 
analysis, programs, and research-based instructional practices and strategies. Site grade-level or 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 64 
 82

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/ri/rtiihome.asp


 

interdisciplinary teams use a collaborative approach to analyze student data and work together in 
the development, implementation, and monitoring of the intervention process. 

o​ Parent involvement. The active participation of parents at all stages of the process is essential to 
improving the educational outcomes of their students. Parents are kept informed of the progress of 
their students in their native language or other mode of communication, and their input is valued in 
making appropriate decisions. 

o​ Specific learning disability determination. The RtI2 approach may be one component of the 
process for determining a specific learning disability as addressed in the IDEA of 2004 statute and 
regulations. As part of determining eligibility, the data from the RtI2 process may be used to ensure 
that a student has received research-based instruction and interventions. 
 
Prevention: All students are screened to determine their level of performance in relation to 
grade-level benchmarks, standards, and potential indicators of academic and behavioral difficulties. 
Rather than wait for students to fail, YES CHARTER ACADEMY provides research-based instruction 
within general education. 
  
Intervention: Based on frequent progress monitoring, interventions are provided for general 
education students not progressing at a rate or level of achievement commensurate with their 
peers. These students are then selected to receive more intense interventions. 
 
Component of specific learning disability (“SLD”) determination: The RtI2 approach can be one 
component of SLD determination as addressed in the IDEA 2004 statute and regulations. The data 
from the RtI2 process may be used to demonstrate that a student has received research-based 
instruction and interventions as part of the eligibility determination process.  

 

Tier I. Benchmark: Screening and Targeted Instruction  
In Tier I, the focus is on a core instructional program that uses a scientifically validated curriculum 
with all students in the general education classroom. During the course of instruction, the school 
uses universal screening measures to identify each student’s level of proficiency in key academic 
areas. The screening data are organized to enable the review of both group and individual 
performance on critical measures. Instruction is differentiated in response to this data for small 
groups and individual students. Students who continue to lag behind their peers despite the 
provision of targeted instruction may receive additional Tier I instruction or may be considered for 
more intensive interventions at Tier II. 

Tier II. Strategic: Targeted Short-term Interventions  
In Tier II:  supplemental instruction is provided to those students who exhibit a poor response to 
the targeted instruction provided through Tier I. Tier II intervention is provided in addition to, and 
not in lieu of, core instruction and can be delivered through an individualized problem-solving 
approach and/or a standard treatment protocol. 

Non-responders 
Students who do not respond to those targeted interventions are referred for a comprehensive 
evaluation to determine eligibility for special education and related services under the category of 
Specific Learning Disability (“SLD”). The student’s response to interventions, as reflected in the data 
collected during the RtI2 process, is reviewed as part of the eligibility determination. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 65 
 83



 

4.​ Project Based Learning Initiatives  

 
Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy, a free public school serving TK-12 students, is a 

regional leader in environmental science education by developing the Charter School’s programs and 
campus. The Charter School’s driving question, “What does a sustainable civilization look like?” informs 
teachers’ development of project based and service-learning units that help answer this question. Teachers 
connect with leaders in environmental science for assemblies, field trips, and the latest in research and 
application. 
 

The outdoor classroom and the direct experience of nature and other venues appropriate to the 
study of the curriculum is accomplished by field trips and out-of-doors activities. Each experience of this 
type has State Standards defined and supported for the lesson and trip. 
 

Direct instruction    learning center opportunities at grades TK-12 to embed technology skills, 
collaboration, communication, and group leadership, as well as independent practice for mastery. Our 
program is integrating and echoing the skills recognized in persons successful through graduation and 
throughout all career industry sectors. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 66 
 

       

     

     

   1 

     

     

     

   2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

4 

Ag

en

cy 

Dir

ect

ed 

tas

ks 

Li

mi

ted 

ch

oic

es 

C

r

e

a

t

e 

p

r

I

n

q

u

i

r

y

, 

84



 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 67 
 

o

j

e

c

t 

g

o

a

l

s 

& 

m

e

t

h

o

d

s 

r

e

f

l

e

c

t

, 

& 

a

d

a

p

t 

t

h

r

o

u

g

h 

i

t

e

r

a

t

i

v

e 

c

y

c

l

e

s 

Cul

tur

e 

& 

Na

rra

tiv

Ab

se

nt 

or 

ge

ne

ric 

So

me 

loc

al 

sto

rie

s 

P

r

o

j

e

c

t

S

t

u

d

e

n

t

85



 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 68 
 

e 

Int

egr

ati

on 

co

nte

nt 

or 

cul

tur

al 

ref

ere

nc

es 

s 

i

n

c

l

u

d

e 

d

i

v

e

r

s

e 

p

e

r

s

p

e

c

t

i

v

e

s 

a

n

d 

l

o

c

a

l 

n

a

r

r

a

t

i

v

e

s 

h

o

n

o

r 

a

n

d 

a

m

p

l

i

f

y 

c

o

m

m

u

n

i

t

y 

v

o

i

c

e

s 

t

h

r

o

u

g

h 

s

t

o

r

y 

t

86



 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 69 
 

s e

l

l

i

n

g 

Int

er

dis

cip

lin

ary 

De

sig

n 

Sin

gle 

su

bje

ct 

foc

us 

Tw

o 

su

bje

cts 

int

egr

ate

d 

M

u

l

t

i

p

l

e 

d

i

s

c

i

p

l

i

n

e

s 

w

o

v

e

n 

t

o

g

e

t

h

e

r 

A

Q

A

L

-

I

n

f

o

r

m

e

d 

d

e

s

i

g

n 

w

i

t

h 

h

o

l

i

s

t

i

c 

i

n

t

e

g

r

87



 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 70 
 

a

t

i

o

n 

a

c

r

o

s

s 

q

u

a

d

r

a

n

t

s 

Re

al-

W

orl

d 

Im

pa

ct 

Si

mu

lat

ed 

or 

hy

po

th

eti

cal 

ou

tco

me

s 

Pr

oje

ct 

ha

s 

loc

al 

rel

ev

an

ce 

T

a

n

g

i

b

l

e 

o

u

t

c

o

m

e

s 

b

e

n

e

f

i

t 

P

r

o

j

e

c

t 

c

o

n

t

r

i

b

u

t

e

s 

t

o 

l

o

n

88



 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 71 
 

c

o

m

m

u

n

i

t

y 

g

-

t

e

r

m 

r

e

s

i

l

i

e

n

c

e 

a

n

d 

a

d

a

p

t

i

v

e 

s

y

s

t

e

m

s 

Ref

lec

tio

n 

& 

Rit

ual 

Oc

cas

ion

al 

jou

rn

ali

ng 

Str

uct

ur

ed 

ref

lec

tio

n 

mo

R

e

f

l

e

c

t

i

o

R

i

t

u

a

l

s 

& 

s

89



 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 72 
 

me

nts 

n 

e

m

b

e

d

d

e

d 

t

h

r

o

u

g

h

o

u

t 

p

r

o

j

e

c

t 

e

a

s

o

n

a

l 

r

h

y

t

h

m

s 

g

u

i

d

e 

l

e

a

r

n

i

n

g 

& 

d

e

e

p

e

n 

c

o

n

n

e

c

t

i

o

90



 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 73 
 

n 

     Grade Driving Question Community 
Connection 

Activity & Key Learnin

     TK/K How can we live in 
harmony with plants, 
animals, and insects? 

Master Gardeners Plant and tend a flower g
Plant a vegetable garden
Harvest, prepare and eat
vegetables  

     1 How can we help 
endangered pollinators and 
their habitats? 

Yuba Resource 
Conservation 
District, Fire Safe 
Council, CA 
Climate Action 
Corps, 
Keep CA Beautiful 
Say Love 

Establish and care for a c
Monarch Watch Monarch
Waystation of 500 Milkw
plants adjacent to our ca
Sixty members of the com
participated in the planti
day. Sac CBS News article
      

     2 How can a community feed 
itself sustainably? 

Yuba Foothills 
Agricultural 
Community 
Association 
(“YFACA”) 

Invite YFACA members to
Earth Day celebration to 
gardening lesson such as
saving to the community
members in attendance. 
Study seed saving with Y
members. 

     3 How did people live 
sustainably for 10,000 
years using the resources in 
the local area? 

Michale 
Thompson 
Enterprise 
Rancheria 
Director of Tribal 
Development 

Invite a Maidu elder to te
them about respect and 
reciprocity with the Earth
natural resources 
 Visit a Maidu village in N
County 

     4 What do tiny, often unseen 
organisms, from 
microscopic life to 
macroinvertebrates, reveal 
about the health of our 
Yuba River Watershed? 
How can this knowledge 
help us protect our 
watershed and its 
inhabitants, like the 
Chinook Salmon? 

Yuba Water. 
South Yuba River 
Citizen’s League 
(“SYRCL”). 

Participate in a river rafti
on the Yuba to study salm
habitat, macroinvertebra
water quality. 

     5 What is the human impact 
of interactions and 
interventions with Earth's 
systems? 

Sierra Streams 
Institute 
 

 Measure air quality 
Learn forestry and land 
management 
  

     6 How can we mitigate food 
waste? 

Hunger Action 
Heroes 
Recology 

Measuring food waste at
cafeteria 
Rerouting food waste for
methane gas reduction 

91

https://www.cbsnews.com/sacramento/news/yuba-county-yes-charter-academy-monarch-butterflies/


 

 

5.​ Long Term Independent Study      
 

​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY has offered a long-term1 independent study program since the Charter 
School opened its doors in 2008 for elementary and middle school. The Charter School does not 
intensively advertise the program and does not seek to recruit long-term independent study students, 
especially at the high school level. The Charter School is gratified to be able to offer this program to 
students and families who need it. The long-term independent study program provides flexibility for 
students who may have unique needs, and supports students who thrive in a self-paced, individualized 
learning environment. Our students come from diverse backgrounds, including those with special needs,2 
gifted learners, and those who may have experienced social or academic difficulties in traditional 
educational settings. YES CHARTER ACADEMY also serves families who have chosen not to vaccinate their 
children and are looking for a flexible, supportive learning environment outside of traditional schools. 
(Such unvaccinated students receive only non-classroom-based instruction, and do not come onto 
campus or interact with other students at the Charter School.) 

 
Students participate in the long-term independent study program for a variety of reasons: to 

accommodate medical or mental health needs, to access a more customized curriculum, or to benefit 
from a flexible schedule that allows for extracurricular activities, family responsibilities, or outside 
religious instruction, separate from the YES CHARTER ACADEMY educational program. Some families 
prefer independent study for increased parental involvement, while others select this option due to 
personal philosophies.  

 
Students in the long-term independent study program are successful through standards-based 

curriculum choices, personalized learning plans, regular teacher check-ins, and access to resources that 
support their unique learning styles. Students enrolled in the long-term independent study program are 
offered the same curriculum and learning materials as those in the classroom; many students, though, 
opt for the self-paced materials designed for independent study that YES CHARTER ACADEMY provides. 
Students and families in the independent study program are offered all educational and academic 
evaluations and support as students who attend in the classroom. The flexibility of independent study 
allows students to work at their own pace, giving them the time needed to master subjects while 

2 Students with disabilities may participate in independent study if their IEP allows for such participation. 

1 As used herein, the phrase “long-term” means students participating in independent study for sixteen (16) days or 
more in a school year. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 74 
 

   Hunger Action Heroes  
     7 How can we divert trash 

from our school and 
community from landfills? 

Recology   
Field trip to land fill 
Creating pet beds out of 
trash 

     8 How can we design and 
build structures to mitigate 
the effects of climate 
change? 

Yuba Water Tour the newly construct
Water office complex 
See materials and design
elements that mitigate th
effects of climate change

     9 Forestry & Natural Sierra Streams Study salmon habitat 
rehabilitation in the Spen

     10 Resources CTE Institute  Wildlife Area 

92

https://feedingsandiego.org/hungeractionheroes/


 

developing strong time-management and self-motivation skills. Families are also actively involved in their 
child’s learning, fostering a collaborative approach that supports academic achievement.  

 
The YES CHARTER ACADEMY independent study program supports student success by offering 

individualized instruction, California approved curriculum choices, consistent communication between 
teachers and families, and access to a variety of resources, enrichment activities, and technology tools. 
Regular assessments and feedback help ensure students are on track. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY shall permit students in grades 9-12 to participate in long-term independent 

study, but does not advertise or recommend this program to existing or new students. High school 
students participating in long-term independent study shall be assigned lessons and work consistent with 
the classroom-based high school program at YES CHARTER ACADEMY, and will have a teacher or teachers 
of record who will monitor daily engagement, time value, and participation in weekly synchronous 
instruction. Additionally, subject matter expert teachers will be made available to students, as needed. 

 
Since the Charter School’s inception, YES CHARTER ACADEMY has offered its full educational 

program through the use of a non-classroom-based model for no more than 20% of its total average daily 
attendance. In offering a non-classroom-based model, the Charter School complies with all provisions of 
Education Code Section 51744, et seq. and all implementing regulations. Students participating in 
independent study are expected to maintain bi-monthly communication with their supervising teachers 
through email, phone, and/or Google Classroom. Students in independent study will be supervised by an 
appropriately credentialed teacher per Education Code Section 51747.5(a). The Charter School may claim 
apportionment credit for independent study only to the extent of the time value of pupil work products, 
as personally judged in each instance by a certificated teacher per Education Code Section 51747.5(b)(1).  
 

A student with disabilities, as defined in Education Code Section 56026, may participate in 
independent study if the student’s individualized education program (“IEP”) specifically provides for such 
participation. If a parent/guardian of a student with disabilities requests independent study because the 
student’s health would be put at risk by in-person instruction, the student’s IEP team shall make an 
individualized determination as to whether the student can receive a free appropriate public education 
(“FAPE”) in an independent study placement. A student’s inability to work independently, need for adult 
support, or need for special education or related services shall not preclude the IEP team from 
determining that the student can receive FAPE in an independent study placement. Any YES CHARTER 
ACADEMY student with special needs receives all specialized academic support and related services 
specified on their IEP.  Students in independent study have the ability to join classroom-based students 
for field trips and other enrichment activities.3 
 

Independent study shall offer a means of individualizing the educational plan to serve students 
who desire a more challenging educational experience, whose health or other personal circumstances 
make classroom attendance difficult, who are unable to access course(s) due to scheduling problems, 
and/or who need to make up credits or fill gaps in their learning. As necessary to meet student needs, 
independent study may be offered for short- or long-term placements, on a full-time or part-time basis, 
and/or in conjunction with part- or full-time classroom study. The independent study program is designed 
to serve all students, including students who are high achieving, low achieving, and students with credit 

3 This does not apply to students who do not meet vaccination requirements for admission to school. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 75 
 93



 

recovery needs. Independent study is tailored individually to ensure the success of each enrolled student. 
Students and families in the independent study program are offered all educational and academic 
evaluations and support as students who attend in the classroom. Students and families are offered all 
educational opportunities including academic interventions as students who attend in the classroom as 
stated in YES’s Independent Study Policy (“IS Policy”). 
 

The K-12 public school guidelines for independent study will be evident in the annual audit per 
Education Code Section 47612.5(b). The Charter School will meet the requirement related to the ratio of 
ADA to full-time equivalent (“FTE”) certificated employees as prescribed under Education Code Section 
51745.6(a)(1).  
 

The IS Policy outlines the maximum length of time, by grade level and type of program, that may 
elapse between the time an independent study assignment is made and the date by which the pupil must 
complete the assigned work. The IS policy includes the number of missed assignments that will be 
allowed before an evaluation is conducted to determine whether it is in the best interest of the pupil to 
remain in independent study or whether they should return to the regular school program.  
 

If a student is participating in the long-term independent study program for more than 15 
schooldays, the Charter School ensures that each written agreement shall be signed before the 
commencement of independent study by the pupil, and if the pupil is participating for 15 schooldays or 
fewer, the Charter School ensures the written agreement is signed during the school year in which the 
independent study takes place. The pupil’s parent, legal guardian, or caregiver, if the pupil is less than 18 
years of age, the certificated employee who has been designated as having responsibility for the general 
supervision of independent study, and the certificated employee designated as having responsibility for 
the special education programming of the pupil, as applicable. The IS policy includes a description of how 
the required Written Agreement will be processed and maintained.  The Written Agreement minimally 
includes the manner, time, frequency and place for submitting a pupil’s assignments and reporting 
progress; the objectives and methods of study for the pupil’s work and the methods utilized to evaluate 
the work; the specific resources that are made available to pupils; the maximum length of time allowed 
between the assignment and the completion of a pupil’s assigned work, and the number of missed 
assignments allowed; the duration of the IS agreement; a statement of the number of course credits or 
academic accomplishment to be earned upon completion. The Written Agreement will include a 
statement that independent study is an optional educational alternative in which no pupil may be 
required to participate.  

 

1.​ Extended Learning Opportunities Program 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY implemented its Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (“ELOP”) (See 

Appendix 13) in November of 2024 to offer before and after school, summer and intersession learning 
programs that focus on developing the academic, social, emotional, and physical needs and interests of 
pupils through hands-on, engaging learning experiences. 

 
It is the intent of the Legislature that expanded learning programs are pupil-centered, results 

driven, include community partners, and complement, but do not replicate, learning activities in the 
regular school day and school year. (See [Education Code Section 8482.1(a).]) “Expanded learning 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 76 
 94



 

opportunities” does not mean an extension of instructional time, but rather, opportunities to engage pupils 
in enrichment, play, nutrition, and other developmentally appropriate activities. (See [Education Code 
Section 46120(g)(1)]). 

 
Our ELOP program complements and is an extension of the YES Vision and Mission of scientific 

method and inquiry with a focus on environmental studies. One of the program’s purposes is to raise the 
academic achievement of students but also to create safe and supportive program activities that support 
the whole child and student’s Social Emotional Learning (“SEL”) and development required by Education 
Code Section 46120(b)(2).  YES CHARTER ACADEMY not only offers tutoring for skill building, students are 
active in scheduled instructional time to be creative with Arts and Crafts and group STEAM projects. During 
the summer students are encouraged to lead and create their own STEAM projects and activities and are 
given opportunities to experience environmental related field trips. 

 
As required in the program guide from the California Department of Education the components 

included are the following: Further descriptions are available in the full program guide (See Appendix 13).  
 

●​ Safe and Supportive Environment (Physical and Emotionally Safe & Supportive) 

●​ Active and Engaged Learning 

●​ Skill Building 

●​ Youth Voice and Leadership 

●​ Health Choices and Behaviors 

●​ Diverse, Access, and Equity 

●​ Quality Staff (Staff Engagement, Minimum Staff Qualifications, Staff Development) 

●​ Clear Vision, Mission and Purpose 

●​ Collaborative Partnerships (Students and Families, Community Based Organizations 

and other non-LEA Partners) 

●​ Continuous Quality Improvement 

●​ Program Management (Policies and Procedures, Budget) 

J.​ Development of Self-Motivated, Competent and Long-Life Learners 

 
 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY is committed to the development of self-motivated, competent, lifelong 

learners. Specific methods for encouraging self- motivated learning include: 

 
●​ Project Based learning 
●​ Skill/readiness-based class groupings 
●​ Interdisciplinary, project-based learning 

●​ ​Use of a prepared environment and hands-on materials which are progressive in 
complexity and often self-correcting (in younger grades) 

●​ Units of study built around high interest topics 

●​ Building growth mindset through student effort leading to academic success 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 77 
 95



 

 

K.​ When Learning Occurs 

 
Learning first begins with attendance. 

●​ Students are actively engaged in meaningful tasks 
●​ A connection is made between what students learn and the real world in which they live 
●​ Students have some choice in the structure of their own projects and plans 
●​ Work is accomplished individually and as members of a group 
●​ Activities are integrated and meaningful to the individual learner 
●​ Work is developmentally appropriate, leads to success, and is progressively complex 
●​ Meaning is constructed from experiences 

●​ Students are encouraged and expected to learn 

●​ Students are encouraged to help others learn and to learn from others, the 
learners becoming teachers. 

●​ Students are taught critical thinking to apply knowledge and solutions to problems. 

 

L.​ Academic Habits 

 
Clear expectations of how learning is approached in the classroom, as well as the cultivation of useful 

habits, serve the child in their lifelong quest for knowledge long after graduation from YES CHARTER 
ACADEMY. The following are some of the habits and behavioral outcomes encouraged in the pursuit of 
learning throughout all grade levels. 

 
●​ A genuine and healthy curiosity 

●​ Clear oral and written communication 
●​ Creative thinking 
●​ Logical thinking toward well-informed conclusions 
●​ Proficient use of technologies to gain access to information 
●​ Adapting readily and responsively to new situations and information 
●​ Effective problem solving 
●​ Finding, selecting, evaluating, organizing, and using information from various sources 
●​ Seeking alternative, and contrary, perspectives 

●​ Evaluating the reliability of information from video, audio, and printed sources, 
including advertising, the media, and the Internet 

 
 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 78 
 96



 

M.​Personal Habits and Attitudes 

 
●​ Accepting responsibility for personal decisions and actions 

●​ Empathy for others and recognition of differences among people and cultures 
●​ Self-confidence with a willingness to risk by making mistakes in order to learn 

●​ Working cooperatively with others, including listening, sharing opinions, negotiating, 
compromising, and taking a stand 

●​ Courtesy, good manners, and respect 

●​ Honesty and fairness 

●​ Making and keeping commitments 
●​ Seeking a fair share of the workload 

●​ Seeking and utilizing various personal adaptive techniques for handling frustration, set- 
backs, or other barriers to reaching goals 

●​ Learning and utilizing authentic communications methods and engagement with others 
to contribute to a positive learning community. 

●​ Self-advocacy for learning and understanding needs 
●​ Goal setting and ability to pivot and reframe. 
●​ Utilizing the Growth Mindset: seeing failure as a ‘First Attempt in Learning” 

 

N.​Skill Conferred 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY curriculum is integrated and interdisciplinary by design. Academic subjects 

are presented to students throughout all daily activities embracing many perspectives. Student command 
an appropriate age- or grade-level mastery of: 

 

1.​ Primary Academic Skills 

 
a.​ English and Language Arts 

 
Students are strong, comprehensive readers. They develop strong speaking and debating skills. 

Grammar, writing, and vocabulary enrichment is demonstrated in many forms of expression, including 
descriptive language reports. 

 
In the high school expansion, we’ve chosen to embed a CTE pathway, Entrepreneurship & Small 

Business Ownership, meeting both the requirements of grade-level ELA but from a PBL lens of the 
business world and relevant content associated with the world of business. Courses adopted are also UC 
admission-aligned, and meet the ‘b’ requirements of the ‘a-g’ graduation requirement. (Appendix 2) 

 

b.​ Mathematics 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 79 
 97



 

 
Students develop abilities to reason logically and to understand and apply mathematical processes 

and concepts including those within arithmetic, algebra, and geometry. They practice critical thinking, 
problem solving, and knowledge application skills. 

 
The high school will also continue to offer courses in a blended format, looking at a mix of Imagine 

Learning California Courses and specifically Illustrative Mathematics, “The IM 9-12 Math curriculum is our 
teacher-tested, standards-aligned curriculum, designed with high school learners in mind. The curriculum 
nurtures a comprehensive proficiency with functions, algebra, geometry, modeling, and statistics, and it 
encourages problem-solving skills students need to make use of mathematics in their future education 
and careers,” combined with teacher-led small learning center instruction. (see Appendix 1B) The Charter 
School has implemented a Math Placement Policy consistent with Education Code Section 51224.7 to 
ensure students are appropriately placed in math courses. 

 

The senior year math course for all students, will be the Mathematics of Financial Analysis, supporting 
skills necessary for our students to be successful consumers. “Mathematics of Financial Analysis is a 
mathematical modeling course addresses college preparatory mathematics topics from Advanced Algebra, 
Statistics, Probability, Geometry, Precalculus, and Calculus under seven financial umbrellas: Banking, 
Investing, Credit, Employment and Income Taxes, Automobile Ownership, Independent Living, and 
Retirement Planning and Household Budgeting. It is that is applications-oriented and technology- 
dependent. The course provides students a motivating, young-adult centered financial context for 
understanding and applying the mathematics they are guaranteed to use in the future.”  

 

c.​ Science 

 
Students successfully utilize scientific research and inquiry methods to understand and apply the 

major concepts underlining various branches of science which may include physical and earth science, 
botany, zoology, physics, chemistry, environmental science, and agricultural sustainability. In addition to 
our adopted curriculum of Amplify in K-5, Green Ninja in 6-8th, and CTE in 9-12th, we use utilize the 
California Education Environmental Initiative (EEI) to support our science programming.  (Appendix 1D & 
1G) 

 

d.​ Health and Family & Community Life Education 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY is invested in not only the health of our students, but he health of the 

family and our surrounding community. YES is responding to the needs of their students and families in 
several ways.  

 
o​ YES has developed a Code of Conduct policy that sets a clear, comprehensive document 

that students and families receive, defining behaviors, consequences, and due process 
rights.  

o​ YES staff members are trained in the Nurtured Heart Approach at the beginning of each 
school year, and receive follow up training throughout the school year. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 80 
 98

https://www.imaginelearning.com/en/us/products/imagine-edgenuity
https://www.imaginelearning.com/en/us/products/imagine-edgenuity
https://www.imaginelearning.com/en/us/products/math/illustrative-mathematics


 

o​ YES provides Social Emotional Learning through a Positive Behavior Intervention and 
supports (“PBIS”) program that is ongoing. 

o​ YES provides Restorative practices that focus on understanding the cause of a student's 
behavior and finding solutions that repair harm and build positive relationships, rather 
than solely focusing on punishment. 

o​ YES applies school rules and consequences uniformly for similar offenses across the 
school. 

o​ YES teachers give clear expectations, positive redirection and utilize non-verbal cues 
and implement intentional environments to support positive behavior. 

 
YES has developed a Wellness Policy (See Appendix 12D) that outline goals for nutrition education, 

healthy eating promotion, and compliance with federal guidelines for school meal programs that 
include standards for all foods and beverages available during the school day. YES promotes and serves 
fresh fruits and vegetables daily and encourages healthy snack choices in and out of school. YES 
promotes farm to table nutrition through our Farm to School program and available Community 
Supported Agricultural (CSA) boxes available throughout growing year.  

 
YES promotes physical activity through following the recommended physical education minutes for 

each grade group. Our Elementary students through 6th grade have a combination of indoor and 
outdoor activities provided by their home room teachers. Our 7th and 8th grade students have indoor 
and outdoor activities including organized sport and games. Our high-school students follow our 
Outdoor Adventure PE program that is a combination of indoor and outdoor activities.  

 
YES was the first school in the Yuba/Sutter area to be designated as a Blue Zones Project Approved 

school on April 22, 2023. We achieved this by implementing healthy, evidence-based options. 
According to the Blue Zones recognition, YES “has helped improve its students’ well-being – making 
healthy choices easier.” 

 
YES desires to create a strong and systematic partnership with families and the broader community 

through our family engagement strategies. These strategies start with our Farm to Table philosophy of 
growing your own fruits and vegetables to our Farm to School Program initiatives that teach 
environmental stewardship and sustainability.  

 
YES communicate through our two-way communication systems to promote healthy living and to 

invite our community to our Farm to School Initiatives include Parent and student nights and 
committees. YES has a welcoming school environment for all families through community events that 
provide for promotion of likeminded environmental tabling and booth opportunities. YES promotes 
culturally diverse opportunities through activities and events by celebrating diverse holidays. YES is 
proud of our multicultural curriculum that includes global stories, multi-cultural art and music and 
diverse library materials in each classroom.   
 

Students demonstrate development of the whole person — physically, emotionally, and 
intellectually. By applying physical activities, nutrition awareness, safety, and self-exploration practices 
to their daily routines, students learn to balance and manage work, leisure, family, and community. 
 

​ ​ The school Positive Behavior Intervention and Supports (PBIS) acronym is SPARRK: 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 81 
 99



 

 
·        Stewards of the environment 
·        Positive team player 
·        Academic master 
·        Responsible citizen 
·        Resourceful 
·        Kind 

 
Hallmarks of our PBIS program are SPARRK Matrix posters in classrooms and public places, instruction 

in these character traits, positive reinforcement with SPARRK certificates, weekly drawings of SPARRK 
certificates, and tiered intervention for students who need behavior supports. YES has created the position 
of Family Liaison to provide a safe and supportive environment that YES has named the “Reset Room.” The 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY Family Liaison acts as a bridge between families, the Charter School, and the 
community, facilitating communication, support, and resources for students and families. They work to 
enhance family involvement in the school, build trust between families and the educational community, 
and support higher academic achievement through collaboration with school personnel. 

 

History, Geography, and Social Studies 
 

 
Students demonstrate and apply an understanding of historical, geographical, and cultural 

knowledge in order to serve as global citizens in today’s world. Students have hands on and anchored 
course content that is engaging and developmentally appropriate as outlined by the State Standards. 

 

2.​ Secondary Academic Skills 

 
Appropriate age- or grade-level mastery of the following 

 

a)​ Artistic Expression 
 

Students apply and appreciate the many forms of artistic expression. Utilizing paints, sculpting 
materials, and drama. Digital media, video production and high technology artistic outlets are embedded 
throughout common core courses as well as electives. Our 9-12th grade art offerings will be an even deeper 
dive to the career pathway of Digital Media. 

 

b)​ Conflict Resolution 

 
Conflict Resolution techniques are learned and practiced effectively in the classroom by engaging in 

the process of responsible, compassionate peer relations, guided by respect. 
 

The community member skills mastered in the classroom are expanded into a sense of belonging 
within the YES CHARTER ACADEMY, as a whole, through inter-awareness and understanding of the 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 82 
 100



 

school’s and students’ place in the community. The social and emotional toolkits students are outfitted 
with, and our community language pedagogy utilizing the Growth Mindset assist in students being able 
to resolve conflicts and concerns with each other or engaging an adult to help facilitate or mediate. 

 

3.​ Life-Long Learning Skills 

 
Students develop skills that enable and empower them to pursue their own path of learning 

throughout their adult lives. Our high school and middle school programs embed skill foci that allow us to 
build and prepare students for success in their CTE pathways, internships and work experiences and 
passions. Serving the whole-child, utilization of self-reflection and engaging students in their own mastery 
of learning through throughout the ILP process, all help build our successful graduates. 

 

a)​ Self-confidence and a Positive Attitude towards Learning 

 
In the lower grades tasks are designed so that each step of learning is based upon what the child has 

already mastered, thus removing the negative experience of frequent failure. Repeated work with tasks, 
which are developmentally appropriate, and a carefully planned series of successes, builds inner confidence 
in the child emulating a positive attitude towards future learning. As we have evolved, we’ve continued to 
build the growth mindset in students, and will continue as a staff to grow in our own growth mindset 
pedagogy and modeling for students of all ages. 

 

b)​ Abiding Curiosity 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY is dedicated to providing the student with opportunities to discover 
qualities, dimensions, and relationships among a rich variety of learning situations, curiosity is stimulated and 
an essential element in creative learning is established. A deep, persistent, and abiding curiosity is a 
prerequisite for future learning and education.  Exposure to nature, industry, college, and culture are at the 
root of our off and on campus experiences. With our new electric vehicles, students of all ages will have more 
access to fieldwork that will inspire their curiosity. 

 

c)​ Initiative and Persistence 

 
By surrounding the student with developmentally appropriate materials and activities, he/she 

becomes accustomed to engaging in activities on his/her own. This results in a habit of initiative – an 
essential quality in leadership. Students feel a sense of accomplishment after completing a task. This 
completion expectation results in a habit of persistence.  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 83 
 101



 

d.​ Reflection and Evaluation 
 

 
​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY will measure its success with a variety of reflection and evaluation tools as 
recommended by the California Department of Education.  YES COD, Principal, Administration and 
educators work together and use these best practices and codified verified data for growth and 
improvement. YES through this process is held accountable for our mission and vision to create 
environmental stewards and lifelong learners.  
 
​ YES through our LCAP, our Dashboard data and a variety of accountability measures will continue to 
improve by assessing student achievement though mastery of skills as indicated in our verified data. 
 
Performance metrics: YES specifies the key performance indicators (KPIs) that will be used to measure the 

school's progress with our testing results. These include academic results from our verified data through our 

IXL program, CAASPP test results and the California Dashboard that monitors areas of student attendance, 

behavior, parent satisfaction, and community engagement. 

Data collection and analysis: YES will collect and analyze its standardized test scores, internal assessments, 

surveys, and other data collection tools to evaluate and monitor all student’s progress. YES will utilize 

external evaluations from the Dashboard and the California Charter School Association (“CCSA”) yearly. This 

along with other metrics will create a cycle of accountability and continuous areas of improvement. 

Reporting and transparency:  YES will report its progress and evaluation results to stakeholders, to our 
authorizer, parents, and the public, ensuring transparency and demonstrating accountability. YES reports 
monthly at our standing COD meetings an Academic Dashboard that gives updates on internal academic 
data that is prepared by an external data analyst to evaluate monthly academic progress towards CAASPP 
goals. This Academic Dashboard reports out four quadrants:  
 

o​ Current Status – CAASPP scores compared historically vs. 2026 goals at or above standard 

and distance from standard (DFS). 

o​ Goals – IXL diagnostic through the year  

o​ Progress on IXL- Internal results by grade level  

o​ Initiatives at school to support academic achievement in Math and Reading 

YES middle school and high school utilizes Universal Design for Learning framework developed by 
CAST that aims to make education more inclusive by proactively designing learning environments that 
accommodate the full range of learner variability. The three core principals are the following: 
 

o​ Multiple Means of Engagement: Stimulate interest and motivation for learning by offering choices, 
relevance, and emotional safety. 

o​ Multiple Means of Representation: Present information in different ways to support diverse 
learning styles and sensory needs. 

o​ Multiple Means of Action and Expression: Allow learners to demonstrate what they know in varied 
formats, honoring different strengths and preferences. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 84 
 102



 

o​ UDL shifts the question from “How can we accommodate students with disabilities?” to “How can 
we design learning environments that work for everyone from the start?” 

o​ Assessment Formats in UDL 

UDL encourages “assessment by design”, meaning assessments are crafted to reflect learner 
diversity and align with clear learning goals. Here are some formats that support this: 
 
o​ Performance-Based Assessments: Students create projects, presentations, or portfolios that 

demonstrate understanding in authentic contexts. 
o​ Choice-Based Assessments: Learners select from multiple formats—e.g., video, essay, infographic, 

podcast—to express their knowledge. 
o​ Formative Assessments: Frequent, low-stakes check-ins like exit tickets, journals, or peer feedback 

help guide instruction and support growth. 
o​ Self-Assessment and Reflection: Students evaluate their own progress and set goals, fostering 

metacognition and ownership. 
o​ Collaborative Assessments: Group tasks or peer reviews that emphasize communication, teamwork, 

and shared problem-solving. 
o​ Technology-Enhanced Assessments: Use of digital tools (e.g., interactive quizzes, simulations) that 

offer accessibility features and real-time feedback. 
o​ These formats are designed to be engaging, authentic, and meaningful, helping students show what 

they know in ways that reflect their strengths and lived experiences. 

e.​ Citizenship 

 
This community setting forms a sense of belonging. From this belonging, students can identify 

personal responsibility for the full functioning of the group. Students in our lower school programs will 
engage in service learning in core and environmental science programs while our high school will boast a 
service learning CTE club as well as internships paid and unpaid for our 11th and 12th graders. Our 
leadership program will represent all ages, and expanding to a high school will give extensive engagement 
with younger and older students and building a learning community unique and rigorous as well as 
supportive and deeply rooted in a character-based program. 

 

Attendance at local government meetings, educational showcases both in person and digital, and at 
the high school level, thinking and innovative locally with global applications will be seeded using the 
United Nations Sustainability Goals as centers of the design thinking and PBL model content our program 
will integrate. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 85 
 103



 

f.​ Collaboration 

 
The ability to work effectively with others in intellectual endeavors, and to work cooperatively in 

groups encountering diverse perspectives, is addressed in the YES CHARTER ACADEMY classroom by 
means of team projects. 

 
The strong community member skills mastered in the classroom are expanded into a sense of 

belonging within the YES CHARTER ACADEMY, as a whole, through inter-classroom collaborative projects. 
Other community service projects such as the South Yuba River Citizens League (“SYRCL”) Waterways 
Clean Up teach awareness and understanding of the school’s and student’s place in the community. 
Applying this awareness and these skills develop productive citizens of today’s socially interactive world. 

O.​Serving Special Student Populations 

 
1.​ Plan for Academically Low-Achieving Students 

 
YES teachers, create an Individual Learning Plan for each student. Each ILP has one reading and one 

math goal that is based upon IXL assessments and teacher observation and student input. ILPs are used to 
set achievement goals in reading and math. They are created at the beginning of each school year and 
updated at the end of the first and second trimesters or first semester. ILPs drive differentiated instruction 
in the classroom including use of the RTI model.  

 
Additionally, teachers observe and annotate any behavioral concerns and document interventions 

attempted through the use of the YES CHARTER ACADEMY Positive Intervention Behavior and Supports 
Plan. If a student is observed as not achieving expected academic and/or behavioral standards, the 
teacher designs individual learning goals as part of the ILP with parent and student input. Teachers adjust 
assignments to allow for more practice, pre-teaching, and participation in small intervention groups, peer 
tutoring, mentor tutoring, and computer-based practice to address the student’s needs. Ongoing 
assessments indicate the success of these strategies and the strategies are adjusted as needed to 
increase student performance. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY has high expectations for all students. YES CHARTER ACADEMY is committed 

to working both with students who are not meeting outcomes to help them achieve at expected levels 
and with those who are performing above grade level and needing additional challenge. The individual 
learning plan is utilized as a first step in identifying these students. YES CHARTER ACADEMY identifies 
students who are academically low- or high achieving, or those students otherwise having 
behavior/social issues, and utilize a Student Success Team process. 

 

2.​ Student Success Team 

 
A Student Success Team (“SST”) includes the parent, the student (when appropriate), the teacher, 

and other school personnel or interested persons, and uses a systematic problem-solving approach to 
assist students with concerns that are interfering with success. The SST clarifies problems and concerns; 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 86 
 104



 

develops strategies and organizes resources; provides a system for School accountability; and serves to 
assist and counsel the teacher and student. An SST is a general education function. All students can 
benefit from an SST, including but not limited to those students achieving below grade level, those who 
are achieving above grade level and require greater challenge, and students who have experienced 
emotional trauma, behavioral issues, or language issues. 

 

Anyone who has a concern for a student can refer that student to a SST for consideration. Anyone 
who is connected with that student can be included in the SST to provide information to share about the 
student strengths, concerns, and strategies that have been used in the past. These people may include, 
but are not limited to teachers, parents, counselors, doctors, administrators, social workers, probation 
officers, and other law enforcement officials. 

 
The following is a ten-step process for guiding an SST: 

 
1.​ Team members introduce themselves and their roles. 

2.​ The purpose and process of the meeting are stated. 

3.​ The strengths and challenges facing the student are identified. 

4.​ The concerns are discussed clarified, and listed. 

5.​ The concerns are synthesized; one or two are chosen for focus. 

6.​ Modification and accommodations to the student’s educational plan and to classroom 
activities and instruction are discussed. 

7.​ Modifications and accommodations are finalized. 

8.​ Persons responsible for implementing modifications and accommodations are identified. 

9.​ All of the above is included in the SST Plan. 

10.​ A follow-up date is set. 

 

After implementation of a SST plan and follow-up, if the problem continues, revisions to the plan may 
be discussed, or if necessary, a referral for special education assessment might be deemed necessary by 
the SST. 

 
3.​ Plan for Academically High-Achieving Students 

 
All students are assessed in reading and math using IXL. Previous CAASPP scores are considered. 

These tests and assessments provide the teacher, student, and parent with a detailed and comprehensive 
view of how the student is performing in standards based academic content. Additionally, teachers 
observe and annotate any behavioral concerns and document interventions attempted through the use 
of the YES CHARTER ACADEMY Positive Behavior Intervention and Supports Plan. 

 
If a student is observed as achieving higher than expected academic standards, the teacher designs 

individual learning goals to advance their academic progress as part of the ILP with parent and student 
input. Parents are given strategies and activities to practice at home to support the student’s learning 
and the teacher adjusts assignments to allow for advanced projects, peer coaching, and participation in 
advanced small groups, peer tutoring, mentor tutoring, and computer-based practice to address the 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 87 
 105



 

student’s needs. Ongoing assessments indicate the success of these strategies and the strategies are 
adjusted as needed to increase student performance. 

 
Students who are academically high-achieving are served by increasing the level of course work 

required by the individual learning plan. Students who are academically high achieving may take part in 
advanced projects, such as designing science experiments and researching areas of student interest 
pertaining to the units being studied.  

 
The high school program currently includes differentiated learning, opportunities for college credits 

and honors courses, as well as paid and unpaid internships and leadership opportunities during the school 
day and after will be available for our high achieving students based on their independent learning plan 
and student driven interests. 

 

4.​ Plan for English Learners 

 
The Charter School meets all applicable legal requirements for English Learners, including long-term 

English Learners or English Learners at risk of becoming long-term English Learners, as it pertains to 
annual notification to parents, student identification, placement, program options, EL and core content 
instruction, teacher qualifications and training, re-classification to fluent English proficient status, 
monitoring and evaluating program effectiveness, and standardized testing requirement. The Charter 
School implements policies to ensure proper placement, evaluation, and communication regarding ELs 
and the rights of students and parents. 

 

Home Language Survey 
 

The Charter School administers the home language survey upon a student’s initial enrollment in a 
California public school. 

 

ELPAC Testing 
 

All students who indicate that their home language is other than English are English Language 
Proficiency Assessments for California (“ELPAC”) tested within thirty days of initial enrollment in 
California public schools and at least annually thereafter until re-designated as fluent English proficient. 

 
The Charter School notifies all parents of its responsibility for ELPAC testing and of ELPAC results 

within thirty days of receiving results from the publisher. The ELPAC is used to fulfill the requirements 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act for annual English proficiency testing. 

 

Reclassification Procedures 
 

Reclassification procedures utilize multiple criteria in determining whether to classify a pupil as 
proficient in English including, but not limited to, all of the following: 

 
●​ Assessment of language proficiency using an objective assessment instrument including, 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 88 
 106



 

but not limited to, the ELPAC. 

●​ Participation of the pupil’s classroom teachers and any other certificated staff with direct 
responsibility for teaching or placement decisions of the pupil to evaluate the pupil’s 
curriculum mastery. 

●​ Parental opinion and consultation, achieved through notice to parents or guardians of 
the language reclassification and placement including a description of the reclassification 
process and the parents’ opportunity to participate, and encouragement of the 
participation of parents or guardians in the reclassification procedure including seeking 
their opinion and consultation during the reclassification process. 

●​ Comparison of the pupil’s performance in basic skills against an empirically established 
range of performance in basic skills based upon the performance of English proficient 
pupils of the same age that demonstrate to others that the pupil is sufficiently proficient 
in English to participate effectively in a curriculum designed for pupils of the same age 
whose native language is English. 

 
Strategies for English Learner Instruction and Intervention 

 

The YES CHARTER ACADEMY curriculum offers multiple supports for English Learner students. English 
Learners benefit from the use of integrated and designated ELD instructional methods and second 
language instruction. YES CHARTER ACADEMY makes provisions within classrooms to bring all English 
Learners up to the level necessary for their sustained achievement. Cross-cultural, Language and 
Academic Development (“CLAD”) certified teachers support our EL Program. 

 
There is a diversity of materials and concrete lessons to provide many opportunities for support 

strategies and leveled materials. YES CHARTER ACADEMY honors individual learning needs and creates an 
environment of acceptance of diverse learners. YES CHARTER ACADEMY teachers encourage peer 
tutoring and cooperative learning, which are recommended strategies for EL students. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY administers the ELPAC and offers services and reclassification based upon 

California Department of Education guidance. 
 

ELD Instruction: Integrated and Designated ELD 
 

YES follows a comprehensive approach to ELD as outlined in the English Language Arts/English 
Language Development (ELA/ELD) Framework for California Public Schools which states: “English learners 
at all English proficiency levels and at all ages require both Integrated ELD and specialized attention to 
their particular language learning needs, or Designated ELD. (p. 119)” 

 

Integrated ELD 
 

Integrated ELD will occur throughout the day and across all content areas. Teachers will use the CA 
ELD standards “in tandem with the CA CCSS for ELA/Literacy and other content standards to support their 
ELs to learn rich content and develop advanced levels of English” (Framework Ch 2 P 90). 

 

Effective instructional experiences for ELs throughout the day and across the disciplines: 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 89 
 107



 

 
●​ Are interactive and engaging, meaningful and relevant, and intellectually rich and 

challenging 
●​ Are appropriately scaffolded in order to provide strategic support that moves learners 

toward independence 
●​ Build both content knowledge and academic English 

●​ Value and build on primary language and culture and other forms of prior knowledge 
 

Designated ELD 
 

Designated ELD will occur daily as “a protected time during the school day when teachers use the CA 
ELD Standards as the focal standards in ways that build into and from content instruction in order to develop 
critical English language skills, knowledge, and abilities needed for content learning in English” (Framework 
Ch 2 P 91). 

 
Designated ELD instruction is delivered in the homeroom in grades TK-5 and in English classrooms in 

grades 6 and above at YES. The teacher schedules a daily block of time to work with small groups by 
proficiency level. Non-ELs engage in independent stations and small group work within the class. 

 

The 10 Essential Features of Designated ELD Instruction Followed by YES: 
 

1.​ Intellectual Quality 

2.​ Academic English Focus 

3.​ Extended Language Interaction: during designated ELD, there is a strong emphasis on oral 

language development. Ample opportunities for students to communicate in meaningful ways using 

English is central. As students’ progress along the ELD continuum, these activities also increase in 

sophistication. 

4.​ Focus on Meaning 

5.​ Focus on Forms 

6.​ Planned and Sequenced Lesson Events 

7.​ Scaffolding: Teachers contextualize language instruction, build on background knowledge, 

and provide the appropriate level of scaffolding based on individual differences and needs. 

Scaffolding is both planned in advance and provided just in time. 

8.​ Clear Lesson Objectives: Lessons are designed using the CA ELD Standards, as the primary 

standards are grounded in the appropriate content standards. 

9.​ Corrective Feedback: Teachers provide students with judiciously selected corrective feedback 

on language usage in ways that are transparent and meaningful to students. Overcorrection or 

arbitrary corrective feedback is avoided. 

10.​ Formative Assessment Practices: Teachers frequently monitor student progress through 

informal observations and ongoing formative assessment practices, and they analyze student writing, 

work samples, and oral language production in order to prioritize student instructional needs. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 90 
 108



 

Support for ELD Implementation 
 

YES will use the resources from the CDE to support implementation of ELD, including for professional 
development (“PD”) and as lesson planning tools. 

 

The CDE continues to develop and collect resources critical to implementing the California content 
standards and increasing student achievement, and make them available on their website. This collection of 
select resources connects the content in the ELA/ELD Framework with resources from the CDE, in addition to 
other reputable sources that address support for English learners and the five key organizing themes of the 
standards meant to influence instruction: meaning making, language development, effective expression, 
content knowledge, and foundational skills. The intent of this collection is to provide educators timely 
resources they can use to expand the scope of the guidance in the ELA/ELD Framework and to inform 
professional development and instructional decisions at all schools and districts. All resources included on 
their website have been reviewed by CDE staff to ensure, to the extent possible, that they were created or 
recommended by a reputable source; have been used in classrooms, schools, or districts; demonstrate 
evidence of positive impact or evidence of usefulness for an intended audience (e.g., students, teachers, 
administrators, schools, districts); are timely, given current educational priorities and policy developments; 
reference research; and are aligned to current standards. 

 

YES will use resources available through the CDE to support Designated and Integrated ELD 
instruction. These resources include but are not limited to resources by grade level, implementation and 
support videos, making meaning with complex texts, and comprehension strategies, and include the 
following: 

 

Resources for teaching ELD standards, professional learning content, and other resources, including 
the Integrated and Designated ELD Video Series, are available on the CDE English Language 
Development Standards web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/el/er/eldstandards.asp. 

 

The ELA/ELD Framework is available on the CDE All Curriculum Frameworks web page at 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/cf/allfwks.asp. 
 

Information regarding ELA/ELD instructional materials is located on the CDE 2015 ELA/ELD Adoption 
web page at ELA/ELD Adoption  

 

Monitoring and Evaluation of Program Effectiveness 
 

The evaluation for the program effectiveness for ELs in the Charter School includes: 

 
●​ Adhere to Charter School-adopted academic benchmarks by language proficiency 

level and years in program to determine annual progress. 

●​ Monitoring of teacher qualifications and the use of appropriate instructional 
strategies based on program design. 

●​ Monitoring of student identification and placement. 

●​ Monitoring of parental program choice options. 

●​ Monitoring of availability of adequate resources. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 91 
 109

http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/el/er/eldstandards.asp
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/cf/allfwks.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/rl/im/sbeadoptedelaeldprogs.asp.


 

 

 

5.​ Plan for Students with Disabilities 

 

a)​ Overview 

 
The Charter School complies with all applicable state and federal laws in serving Students with 

Disabilities, including, but not limited to, Section 504, the ADA and the IDEA. 
 

The Charter School complies with all state and federal laws related to the provision of special 
education instruction and related services and all SELPA policies and procedures; and utilizes appropriate 
SELPA forms. 

 
The Charter School is solely responsible for its compliance with Section 504 and the ADA. The 

facilities to be utilized by the Charter School are accessible for all Students with Disabilities. 
 

b)​ Services for Students under the IDEA 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY has a relationship with Yuba County Office of Education in regards to 

Special Education as described below. 

 

i.​ Special Education 

 
Overview 
 

The Charter School shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws in serving Students with 
Disabilities, including, but not limited to, Section 504, the ADA, and the IDEA.   
 

The Charter School shall be its own local educational agency (“LEA”) for purposes of special 
education and is a member of the Yuba County Special Education Local Plan Area (“SELPA”) in conformity 
with Education Code Section 47641(a).   
 

In the event the Charter School seeks membership in a different state-approved SELPA, the Charter 
School shall provide notice to YCOE, the SELPA, and the California Department of Education before June 30th 
of the year before services are to commence.  
 

The Charter School shall comply with all state and federal laws related to the provision of special 
education instruction and related services and all SELPA policies and procedures; and shall utilize 
appropriate SELPA forms.   
 

The Charter School may seek resources and services (e.g. Speech, Occupational Therapy, Adapted 
P.E., Nursing, and Transportation) from the SELPA, subject to SELPA approval and availability.  The Charter 
School may also provide related services by hiring credentialed or licensed providers through private 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 92 
 110



 

agencies or independent contractors. 
 

The Charter School shall be solely responsible for its compliance with Section 504 and the ADA.  The 
facilities to be utilized by the Charter School shall be accessible for all Students with Disabilities. 

 

Services for Students under the “IDEA” 
 

The Charter School shall provide special education instruction and related services in accordance 
with the IDEA, Education Code requirements, and applicable policies and practices of the SELPA.   
 

The Charter School shall provide services for special education students enrolled in the Charter 
School.  The Charter School shall follow SELPA policies and procedures, and shall utilize SELPA forms in 
seeking out and identifying and serving students who may qualify for special education programs and 
services and for responding to record requests and parent complaints, and maintaining the confidentiality 
of pupil records.  
 

The Charter School agrees to promptly respond to all County or SELPA inquiries, to comply with 
reasonable County or SELPA directives, and to allow the County or SELPA access to Charter School students, 
staff, facilities, equipment and records as required or imposed by law.  
 
Staffing 
 

All special education services at the Charter School shall be delivered by individuals or agencies 
qualified to provide special education services as required by the Education Code and the IDEA.  Charter 
School staff shall participate in County or SELPA in-service training relating to special education.   
 

The Charter School shall be responsible for the hiring, training, and employment of site staff 
necessary to provide special education services to its students, including, without limitation, special 
education teachers, paraprofessionals, and resource specialists.  The Charter School shall ensure that all 
special education staff hired or contracted by the Charter School is qualified pursuant to SELPA policies, as 
well as meet all legal requirements.  The Charter School shall be responsible for the hiring, training, and 
employment of itinerant staff necessary to provide special education services to Charter School students, 
including, without limitation, speech therapists, occupational therapists, behavioral therapists, and 
psychologists.    
 
Notification and Coordination 
 

The Charter School shall follow SELPA policies as they apply to all SELPA schools for responding to 
implementation of special education services.  The Charter School shall adopt and implement policies 
relating to all special education issues and referrals. 
 
Identification and Referral 
 

The Charter School shall have the responsibility to identify, refer, and work cooperatively in locating 
Charter School students who have or may have exceptional needs that qualify them to receive special 
education services. The Charter School shall implement SELPA policies and procedures to ensure timely 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 93 
 111



 

identification and referral of students who have, or may have, such exceptional needs. A pupil shall be 
referred for special education only after the resources of the general education program have been 
considered, and where appropriate, utilized. 
 

The Charter School shall follow SELPA child-find procedures to identify all students who may require 
assessment to consider special education eligibility and special education and related services in the case 
that general education interventions do not provide a free appropriate public education to the student in 
question. 
 
Assessments 
 

The term “assessments” shall have the same meaning as the term “evaluation” in the IDEA, as 
provided in Section 1414, Title 20 of the United States Code. The Charter School shall determine what 
assessments, if any, are necessary and arrange for such assessments for referred or eligible students in 
accordance with applicable law.  The Charter School shall obtain parent/guardian consent to assess Charter 
School students.  
 
IEP Meetings 
 

The Charter School shall arrange and notice the necessary Individualized Education Program (“IEP”) 
meetings. IEP team membership shall be in compliance with state and federal law. The Charter School shall 
be responsible for having the following individuals in attendance at the IEP meetings: the 
Superintendent/Principal and/or the Charter School designated representative with appropriate 
administrative authority as required by the IDEA; the student’s special education teacher; the student’s 
general education teacher if the student is or may be in a general education classroom; the student, if 
appropriate; and other Charter School representatives who are knowledgeable about the general education 
program at the Charter School and/or about the student.  The Charter School shall arrange for the 
attendance or participation of all other necessary staff that may include, but are not limited to, an 
appropriate administrator to comply with the requirements of the IDEA, a speech therapist, psychologist, 
resource specialist, and behavior specialist; and shall document the IEP meeting and provide notice of 
parental rights. 
 
IEP Development 
 

The Charter School understands that the decisions regarding eligibility, goals/objectives, program, 
services, placement, and exit from special education shall be the decision of the IEP team, pursuant to the 
IEP process. Programs, services and placements shall be provided to all eligible Charter School students in 
accordance with the policies, procedures and requirements of the SELPA and State and Federal law. 
  
IEP Implementation 
 

The Charter School shall be responsible for all school site implementation of the IEP. As part of this 
responsibility, the Charter School shall provide parents with timely reports on the student’s progress as 
provided in the student’s IEP at least as frequently as report cards are provided for the Charter School’s 
non-special education students. The Charter School shall also provide all home-school coordination and 
information exchange. The Charter School shall also be responsible for providing all curriculum, classroom 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 94 
 112



 

materials, classroom modifications, and assistive technology.   
 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 95 
 113



 

Interim and Initial Placements of New Charter School Students 
 

The Charter School shall comply with Education Code Section 56325 with regard to students 
transferring into the Charter School within the academic school year.  In accordance with Education Code 
Section 56325(a)(1), for students who enroll in the Charter School from another school district within the 
State, but outside of the SELPA with a current IEP within the same academic year, the Charter School shall 
provide the pupil with a free appropriate public education, including services comparable to those 
described in the previously approved IEP, in consultation with the parent, for a period not to exceed thirty 
(30) days, by which time the Charter School shall adopt the previously approved IEP or shall develop, adopt, 
and implement a new IEP that is consistent with federal and state law.   
 

In accordance with Education Code Section 56325(a)(2), in the case of an individual with exceptional 
needs who has an IEP and transfers into the Charter School from a district operated program under the 
same special education local plan area of the Charter School within the same academic year, the Charter 
School shall continue, without delay, to provide services comparable to those described in the existing 
approved IEP, unless the parent and the Charter School agree to develop, adopt, and implement a new IEP 
that is consistent with federal and state law.   
 

For students transferring to the Charter School with an IEP from outside of California during the 
same academic year, the Charter School shall provide the pupil with a free appropriate public education, 
including services comparable to those described in the previously approved IEP in consultation with the 
parents, until the Charter School conducts an assessment pursuant to paragraph (1) of subsection (a) of 
Section 1414 of Title 20 of the United States Code, if determined to be necessary by the Charter School, and 
develops a new IEP, if appropriate that is consistent with federal and state law.  
 
Non-Public Placements/Non-Public Agencies 
 

The Charter School shall be solely responsible for selecting, contracting with, and overseeing all 
non-public schools and non-public agencies used to serve special education students.   
 
Non-discrimination 
 

It is understood and agreed that all children shall have access to the Charter School and no student 
shall be denied admission nor counseled out of the Charter School due to the nature, extent, or severity of 
his/her disability or due to the student’s request for, or actual need for, special education services. 
 
Parent/Guardian Concerns and Complaints 
 

The Charter School shall adopt policies for responding to parental concerns or complaints related to 
special education services. The Charter School shall receive any concerns raised by parents/guardians 
regarding related services and rights.  
 

The Charter School’s designated representative shall investigate as necessary, respond to, and 
address the parent/guardian concern or complaint.   

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 96 
 114



 

Due Process Hearings   
 

The Charter School may initiate a due process hearing or request for mediation with respect to a 
student enrolled in the Charter School if it determines such action is legally necessary or advisable.  In the 
event that the parents/guardians file for a due process hearing, or request mediation, the Charter School 
shall defend the case.   
 
SELPA Representation 
 

The Charter School understands that it shall represent itself at all SELPA meetings.   
 
Funding 
 

The Charter School understands that it shall be subject to the allocation plan of the SELPA. 

 
P.​ Section 504 / Americans With Disabilities Act 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY recognizes its legal responsibility to ensure no qualified person with a 

disability is, on the basis of disability, excluded from participation, denied the benefits of, or otherwise 
subjected to discrimination under any program of YES CHARTER ACADEMY. A student who has a physical 
or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities, has a record of such an 
impairment, or is regarded as having such an impairment, is eligible for protections under Section 504. 

 
A 504 team is assembled by the YES CHARTER ACADEMY Principal/Superintendent or designee and 

includes qualified persons knowledgeable about the student, the meaning of the evaluation data, 
placement options and the legal requirements for least restrictive environment. The 504 team reviews 
the student’s existing records, including academic, social and behavioral records and is responsible for 
making a determination as to whether an evaluation for 504 services is appropriate. If the student has 
already been evaluated under the IDEA, those evaluations may be used to help determine eligibility 
under Section 504. The student evaluation is carried out by the 504 team who evaluates the nature of 
the student’s disability and the impact upon the student’s education. This evaluation includes 
consideration of any behaviors that interfere with regular participation in the educational program 
and/or activities. 
The 504 team considers the following information in its evaluation: 

 
●​ Tests and other evaluation materials are validated for the specific purpose for which they are 

used and administered by trained personnel. 

 
●​ Tests and other evaluation materials include those tailored to assess specific areas of 

educational need and not merely those which are designed to provide a single general 
intelligence quotient. 

 
●​ Tests selected and administered accurately reflect the student’s aptitude or achievement 

level for the factor the test purports to measure, rather than reflecting the student’s 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 97 
 115



 

impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills. 
 

The final determination of whether the student is or is not identified as a person with a disability is 
made by the 504 team in writing and noticed in writing to the parent or guardian of the student in their 
primary language along with the procedural safeguards available to them. If during the evaluation, the 
504 team obtains information indicating possible eligibility of the student for special education per the 
IDEA, the 504 team makes a referral for special education assessment. 

 
If the student is found by the 504 team to have a disability under Section 504, the 504 team is 

responsible for determining what, if any, accommodations are needed to ensure the student receives a 
free and appropriate public education. In developing the 504 Plan, the 504 team considers all relevant 
information available during the evaluation of the student, drawing upon a variety of sources, including, 
but not limited to, assessments conducted by the YES CHARTER ACADEMY staff. The parent or guardian is 
invited to participate in 504 team meetings where program modifications for the student are determined 
and given an opportunity to examine in advance all relevant records. 

 
The 504 Plan describes the Section 504 disability and any program modification necessary. In 

considering the 504 Plan, a student with a disability requiring program modification is placed in the 
regular program of YES CHARTER ACADEMY along with those students who are not disabled to the extent 
appropriate to the individual needs of the student with a disability. 

 
All 504 team participants, parents and guardians, teachers and any other participants in the student’s 

education, including substitutes and tutors, must have a copy of the 504 Plan for each student. The YES 
CHARTER ACADEMY Principal/Superintendent or their designee ensure teachers include 504 Plans with 
lesson plans for short-term substitutes and the teacher reviews the 504 Plan with a long- term substitute. 

 

A copy of the 504 Plan is maintained in the student’s file. Students’ 504 Plans are reviewed at least 
once per year to determine the appropriateness of the Plan, continued eligibility, or readiness to 
discontinue the 504 Plan. 

 

Q.​Education of Homeless Children and Youth 
 

The term “homeless children and youth” means individuals who lack a fixed, regular and adequate 
nighttime residence.  

 
School Liaison:  The Principal or designee designates the following staff person as the School Liaison for 
homeless students (42 U.S.C. § 11432(g)(1)(J)(ii)):   

 
Dawn Kaundart 
Family Liaison/ Homeless Liaison 
 
The YES CHARTER ACADEMY Liaison shall ensure that (42 U.S.C. § 11432(g)(6)): 

 
1.​ Homeless students are identified by YES Charter Academy personnel through the annual housing 

questionnaire administered through enrollment. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 98 
 116



 

 
2.​ Homeless students and families receive educational services for which they are eligible for and 

any other programs administered by YES CHARTER ACADEMY, if any, and referrals to health care 
services, dental services, mental health services and substance abuse services, housing services, 
and other appropriate services. 

 
3.​ Parents/guardians are informed of the educational and related opportunities available to their 

children and are provided with meaningful opportunities to participate in the education of their 
children. 

 
4.​ YES provides public notice of the educational rights of homeless children on their website that 

includes locations of shelters, food pantries and other services in a manner and form 
understandable to the parents and guardians of homeless youth and unaccompanied youth.  

 
5.​ YES enrollment/admissions disputes are mediated in accordance of law; YES CHARTER ACADEMY 

does not deny enrollment and/or admission of homeless youth and unaccompanied youth based 
on their housing status.  

 
6.​ Parents/guardians and any unaccompanied youth are fully informed of all transportation services. 

YES will provide transportation and/or supportive services to bus route pick up and drop off sites 
for homeless youth and unaccompanied youth. 

 
7.​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY personnel providing services receive professional development and other 

support.  
 
8.​ The YES CHARTER ACADEMY Liaison collaborates with community and school personnel 

responsible for the provision of education and related services to homeless children and youths 
such as clothing closet, hygiene provisions, and laundry services.  

 
9.​ Unaccompanied youth are enrolled in school; have opportunities to meet the same challenging 

State academic standards as the State establishes for other children and youth; and are informed 
of their status as independent students under section 480 of the Higher Education Act of 1965 and 
that the youths may obtain assistance from the YES Family Liaison and/or our High School Advisor/ 
Counselor to receive verification of such status for the purposes of the Free Application for Federal 
Student Aid described in section 483 of the Act. 

 
Housing Questionnaire: YES CHARTER ACADEMY annually administers a housing questionnaire for 
purposes of identifying homeless children and youth that is based on the best practices developed by the 
CDE.  The housing questionnaire includes an explanation of the rights and protections a student has as a 
homeless child or youth or as an unaccompanied youth. The housing questionnaire is available in paper 
form. The housing questionnaire is available in English, and if fifteen (15) percent or more of the students 
enrolled at YES CHARTER ACAEMY speak a primary language other than English, it will be written in the 
primary language. The questionnaire will be translated into other languages upon request of a student’s 
parent/guardian or an unaccompanied youth. YES CHARTER ACADEMY collects the completed housing 
questionnaires and annually reports to the CDE the number of homeless children and youths and 
unaccompanied youths enrolled. (Education Code Section 48851.) 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 99 
 117



 

R. Professional Development 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY professional development requirements for teachers, specialists, and 
classified staff will be essential to meeting the goals for the school, students, staff and families. Teachers 
will be expected to be innovative in their daily interaction with their students including curriculum analysis 
and data analysis, program implementation, and instructional strategies. Teachers will regularly analyze 
curriculum and student learning. Through  data, the YES CHARTER ACADEMY team will develop a plan for 
addressing the greatest identified needs. This will be an ongoing continuous improvement process. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY will adopt a reflective model of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs). 
The PLC model wherein teachers will be encouraged to share ideas, discuss successes and areas growth, 
and then refine their instruction based upon reflection and analysis. Informal and formal classroom 
observation with teaching peers and administration will be a key method for growth. 

 
Professional Learning Communities are a part of the Quality Schooling Framework that allows 

educators to explore how their teaching and management strategies help students learn and thrive. 
Professional Learning (“PL”) engages educators in ongoing self-reflection, peer support, experimentation 
and modification of instruction and management practices based on student performance data, student 
work and both learning and social behaviors. As the characteristics and needs of students change, 
understanding the unique cultural and linguistic learning needs of each student is important for success. 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY has embedded PLCs in its Professional Development Plan so there is peer lead 
learning and reflection on a weekly basis. This continuous improvement learning cycle is a goal and 
action-oriented team effort that has been proven to provide positive outcomes for both students and 
teachers.  

 
Professional development opportunities will include: 
 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

2025-26 YES 
Admin/Principa
l 

 TK-2 Reading foundational skills 

  3-6th Math Lesson Internalization 

1 
i
n

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 100 
 118



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

i
t
i
a
l 
o
v
e
r
v
i
e
w
2 
F
r
i
d
a
y 
P
L
C
’
s
- 
m
o
n
t
h 
2 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 101 
 119



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

A
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
v
e 
O
b
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n
s
/
f
e
e
d
b

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 102 
 120



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

a
c
k 
p
e
r 
m
o
n
t
h 

2025-26 PPS 
Credentialed 
High School 
counselor 

High School Specific Procedures & Record Keeping  
Train YES staff dealing with high school records and 
SIS/CALPADS staff 
High school graduation requirements 
High school transcripts  
High school units 
Transferability of high school classes/units Other high 
school topics as needed   

 

F
u
l
l 
t
i
m
e 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n 

Yearly SCOE Ethnic Studies 
Curriculum for grades 9-10 
Earn certification in curriculum 

4 
d
a
y

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 103 
 121



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

s
  
x 
6 
h
o
u
r
s
  
2
4 
h
o
u
r
s 

Yearly Instruction 
Partners 

Illustrative Math Implementation Support 

SAVVAS ELA Implementation Support 
Context and relationship-building meetings to build a 
shared understanding or our work together 
Instructional walkthroughs 
Teacher focus groups 
Professional learning system diagnostic 
Debrief report 
Action planning based upon identified needs 
 

3 
o
n
-
s
i
t
e 
d
a
y
s 

2
v

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 104 
 122



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

i
r
t
u
a
l 
p
l
a
n
n
i
n
g 
s
e
s
s
i
o
n
s 

2
0 
v
i
r
t
u
a
l 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 105 
 123



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

s
u
p
p
o
r
t 
h
o
u
r
s 

T
o
t
a
l 

3 
d
a
y
s 
+ 
2
2 
h
o
u
r
s 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 106 
 124



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

Yearly Collaborative 
Ed Advisors  

Step Up To Writing 
 Foundational Writing Skills, Prewriting 
 SU2W Frameworks and Colors & Rubrics 
 Expository/Research and reports 
Speaking & Listening 
Vocabulary Acquisition and use 
Narrative 
Best Practices 
Calibration of work samples site wide /Grade Level Band 
Writing for assessments 
Writing to improve reading comprehension 
 Informative/ explanatory writing 
 Opinion /argument writing 
Integration as a school-wide norm across content areas 
 

6 
h
o
u
r
s 
T
e
a
c
h
e
r 
S
y
n
c
h
r
o
n
o
u
s
/ 
A
s
y
n
c
h
r

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 107 
 125



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

o
n
o
u
s 
P
D
. 
A
s 
N
e
e
d
e
d 
E
m
a
i
l 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 
A
s 
n
e

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 108 
 126



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

e
d
e
d
1
:
1 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 

2025-26 Collborative Ed 
Advisors 

6-12 Career Technical Support 
High Quality CTE Pathway Requirements & Standards 
Annual self-evaluation 
CA CTEIG, K12SWP, Perkins fidelity and funding 
applications 
CTE Advisory 
 Articulation and Dual enrollment support & training 
 A-G UC Portal Course Management support & training 
WBL/ PBL and industry certification support 
CTE Course pacing, instruction, Work Based Learning and 
ePortfolio Artifacts 
○ (AGR) Forestry & Natural Resources 
■ Y1 Intro 9th:Biology & California Natural 
Resources ‘d’ 
■ Y1 Concentrator 10th: Forestry & Natural 
Resources ‘d’ 

6 
h
o
u
r
s 
T
e
a
c
h
e
r 
S
y
n

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 109 
 127



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

○ (MKT) Entrepreneurship & Small Business 
Ownership 
■ Y1 Intro 9th: Reading, Writing & 
Research in Social Entrepreneurship ‘b’ 
■ Y1 Concentrator 10th: Commerce, 
Entrepreneurship & English ‘b’ 
○ (AME) Design, Visual and Media Arts 
■ Y1 Concentrator 10th: Design Visual 
and Media Arts 1 ‘f’ 

c
h
r
o
n
o
u
s
/ 
A
s
y
n
c
h
r
o
n
o
u
s 
P
D
. 
 
A
s 
N
e
e
d
e

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 110 
 128



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

d 
E
m
a
i
l 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 
A
s 
n
e
e
d
e
d
1
:
1 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 111 
 129



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

2026-27 Collaborative 
Ed Advisors 

6-12 Career Technical Support 
High Quality CTE Pathway Requirements & Standards 
annual self-evaluation 
● CA CTEIG, K12SWP, Perkins fidelity and funding 
applications 
● CTE Advisory 
● Articulation and Dual enrollment support & training 
● A-G UC Portal Course Management support & training 
● WBL/ PBL and industry certification support 
● CTE Course pacing, instruction, Work Based Learning 
and ePortfolio Artifacts(AGR) Forestry & Natural 
Resources 
○ Y2 Intro 9th:Biology & California Natural 
Resources ‘d’ 
○ Y2 Concentrator 10th: Forestry & Natural 
Resources ‘d’ 
● (MKT) Entrepreneurship & Small Business Ownership 
○ Y2Intro 9th: Reading, Writing & Research in 
Social Entrepreneurship ‘b’ 
○ Y2 Concentrator 10th: Commerce, 
Entrepreneurship & English ‘b’ 
○ Y1 Capstone 11th: Entrepreneurship & 
Professional Literacy ‘b’ 
● (AME) Design, Visual and Media Arts 
○ Y2 Concentrator 10th: Design Visual and 
Media Arts 1 ‘f’ 
○ Y1 Capstone 11th: Design Visual and Media 
Arts 2 ‘f’ 
● (Health Medical Occupations) 
○ Y1 Concentrator: 11th Sports, Exercise, 
Physiology & Health Science ‘d’ 
○ Y2 Concentrator 10th: Design Visual and 

6 
h
o
u
r
s 
T
e
a
c
h
e
r 
S
y
n
c
h
r
o
n
o
u
s
/ 
A
s
y
n
c
h
r

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 112 
 130



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

Media Arts 1 ‘f’ 
○ Y1 Capstone 11th: Design Visual and Media 
Arts 2 ‘f’ 
● (Health Medical Occupations) 
○ Y1 Concentrator: 11th Sports, Exercise, 
Physiology & Health Science ‘d’ 
 

o
n
o
u
s 
P
D
. 
 
A
s 
N
e
e
d
e
d 
E
m
a
i
l 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 
A
s 
n

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 113 
 131



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

e
e
d
e
d
1
:
1 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 

2027-28 Collaborative 
Ed Advisors 

Career Technical Support 
 High Quality CTE Pathway Requirements & Standards 
annual self-evaluation 
● CA CTEIG, K12SWP, Perkins fidelity and funding 
applications 
● CTE Advisory 
● Articulation and Dual enrollment support & training 
● A-G UC Portal Course Management support & training 
● WBL/ PBL and industry certification support 
● CTE Course pacing, instruction, Work Based Learning 
and ePortfolio Artifacts(AGR) Forestry & Natural 
Resources 
○ Y3 Intro 9th:Biology & California Natural 
Resources ‘d’ 
○ Y3 Concentrator 10th: Forestry & Natural 
Resources ‘d’ 
○ Y1 Capstone 12th: Chemistry & 

6 
h
o
u
r
s 
T
e
a
c
h
e
r 
S
y
n
c

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 114 
 132



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

Environmental Engineering ‘d’ 
● (MKT) Entrepreneurship & Small Business Ownership 
○ Y3 Intro 9th: Reading, Writing & Research in 
Social Entrepreneurship ‘b’ 
○ Y3 Concentrator 10th: Commerce, 
Entrepreneurship & English ‘b’ 
○ Y2 Capstone 11th: Entrepreneurship & 
Professional Literacy ‘b’ 
● (AME) Design, Visual and Media Arts 
○ Y3 Concentrator 

h
r
o
n
o
u
s
/ 
A
s
y
n
c
h
r
o
n
o
u
s 
P
D
. 
 
A
s 
N
e
e
d
e
d 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 115 
 133



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

E
m
a
i
l 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 
A
s 
n
e
e
d
e
d
1
:
1 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 

2025-26 Collaborative 
Ed Advisors 

6-12 Leadership Internships and ePortfolio 
Implementation  

6 
h

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 116 
 134



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

● Alt Forms of Leadership 
● High Quality CTE Pathway Requirements & Standards 
● New teacher support and coaching 
● ePortfolios & course artifacts and reflections of learning 
& End of Year ePortfolio Competition management 
● Middle School Exploring CTE 6, 7, 8 pilots 
● 9th grade, Advisory Focus on College and Career ( Get 
Focused Stay Focused) pilot 
● 10th grade, Advisory/ Life Skills Class: Adulting 
101(Incl GFSF Module 1) pilot 
● PE Adventure Outdoor/ Year 1 pilot 
● PE Outdoor Recreation and Conservation, Year 2 pilot 

o
u
r
s 
T
e
a
c
h
e
r 
S
y
n
c
h
r
o
n
o
u
s
/ 
A
s
y
n
c
h
r
o
n

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 117 
 135



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

o
u
s 
P
D
. 
 
A
s 
N
e
e
d
e
d 
E
m
a
i
l 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 
A
s 
n
e
e

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 118 
 136



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

d
e
d
1
:
1 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 

2026-27 Collaborative 
Ed Advisors 

6-12 Leadership Internships and ePortfolio 
Implementation  
Alt Forms of Leadership 
● High Quality CTE Pathway Requirements & Standards 
● New teacher support & coaching 
● ePortfolios & course artifacts and reflections of learning 
● ePortfolios & course artifacts and reflections of learning 
& End of Year ePortfolio Competition management 
● Leadership 1, 11th grade pilot 
● Internship CTE works Unpaid, 11th grade pilot 
○ Y2 Middle School CTE 
○ Y2 9th grade, Advisory Focus on College and 
Career ( Get Focused 
○ Y2 10th grade, Advisory/ Life Skills Class: 
Adulting 101(Incl GFSF Module 1) 
Y2 PE Adventure Outdoor/ Year 1 
○ Y2 PE Outdoor Recreation and Conservation, Year 2 

6 
h
o
u
r
s 
T
e
a
c
h
e
r 
S
y
n
c
h
r

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 119 
 137



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

o
n
o
u
s
/ 
A
s
y
n
c
h
r
o
n
o
u
s 
P
D
. 
 
A
s 
N
e
e
d
e
d 
E
m

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 120 
 138



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

a
i
l 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 
A
s 
n
e
e
d
e
d
1
:
1 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 

2027-28 Collaborative 
Ed Advisors 

6-12 Leadership Internships and ePortfolio 
Implementation  
*  Alt Forms of Leadership 
● High Quality CTE Pathway Requirements & Standards 

6 
h
o
u

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 121 
 139



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

● New teacher support & coaching 
● ePortfolios & course artifacts and reflections of learning 
● ePortfolios & course artifacts and reflections of learning 
& End of Year ePortfolio Competition management 
● Y1 Tech Dept bulbapp orientation and playbook for 
absorbing process. 
● Leadership 2, 12th grade pilot 
● CTE Works Internship 2 Paid, 12th grade pilot 
● Senior Seminar, 12th grade pilot 
○ Y2 Leadership 1, 11th grade 
○ Y2 Internship CTE Works Unpaid, 11th grade 
Y3 As Needed: 
-Middle School CTE 
-9th grade, Advisory Focus on College and Career 
-10th grade, Advisory/ Life Skills Class: Adulting 
101(Inc-GFSF Module 1) 
-PE Adventure Outdoor Y1 
-PE Outdoor Recreation and Conservation Y2 

r
s 
T
e
a
c
h
e
r 
S
y
n
c
h
r
o
n
o
u
s
/ 
A
s
y
n
c
h
r
o
n
o
u

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 122 
 140



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

s 
P
D
. 
 
A
s 
N
e
e
d
e
d 
E
m
a
i
l 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 
A
s 
n
e
e
d
e

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 123 
 141



 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

d
1
:
1 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t 

  Year Provider Projected Areas of Social Emotional Focus Estimated Hours 

Yearly YES Trained 
Administration 

Nurtured Heart (NHA Core Methodology & Implementation) 
“The 3 Stands™ of the Nurtured Heart Approach®” Stand 1 
Absolutely No! I refuse to energize negativity. 
Stand 2 Absolutely Yes! I will super-energize experiences of 
success. 
Stand 3 Absolutely Clear! I will set clear limits and provide 
clear, un- energized consequences. 
Nurtured Heart Approach language using frame sentences. 
Use of online resources and materials: 
 

3 Initial Instruction 3 
Follow Up Review 
_________ 
6 total 

Yearly YES Trained 
Administration 

Positive Behavior Intervention & Supports  
Initial Instruction 
Identification of students 
Tiered Intervention 
Use of online resources and materials: 
 CDE MTSS Training 
MTSS Student_Support_Team_Quick_Reference_Guide.pdf 

1 Initial Instruction 
1 Review 
2 Support  
________ 
4 Total 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 124 
 142

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/ri/


 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

Yearly YES Trained 
Administration 

Principles of Growth Mindset 
Use the word "yet" 
Effort is the path to master 
Failure is a learning tool 
Your abilities are not fixed 
Challenges are opportunities 
Use of online materials and resources:  
CDE Recommendations 
Growth Mindset for Educators 
Khan Academy Growth Mindset Training for Teachers 

1 Initial Instruction 
1 Review 
2 Support 
________ 
4 Total 

Yearly YES Trained 
Administration 
 
Community 
Partners 

Principles of Trauma Informed Approach 
Create Safe Spaces 
Build Relationships 
Be Predictable and Consistent 
Teach Emotional Regulation 
Adapt to Individual Nees 
Model Self-Care 
Use Restorative Practices 
Use of online materials and resources: 
Supporting Resilience in Schools 
Understanding Traumatic Stress in Children 
Creating Trauma-Informed Learning Environments 
Suggestions for Educators 
National Education Association: Trauma-Informed Practices 

1 Initial 
1 Review 
2 Support 
________ 
4 Total 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 125 
 143

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/se/tselselfawareness.asp
https://www.mindsetkit.org/belonging
https://www.khanacademy.org/college-careers-more/learnstorm-growth-mindset-activities-us
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/mh/resilientschools.asp
https://www.air.org/sites/default/files/downloads/report/Understanding_Traumatic_Stress_in_Children_0.pdf
https://www.wested.org/resource/trauma-informed-learning-environments/
https://www.nctsn.org/sites/default/files/resources/suggestions_for_educators.pdf
https://www.nea.org/professional-excellence/student-engagement/tools-tips/trauma-informed-practices


 

Year Provide
r 

Projected Area of Educational Focus 

Yearly YES Trained 
Administration 
 
Community 
Partners 

Restorative Justice Practice Core Principles & Key Practices 
Build Culture of Relationship & Mutual Respect 
Focus on Harm Caused & Needs of Student Harmed and 
Student who Caused Harm 
Emphasize Responsibility & Repair 
Promote Reintegration to Foster Growth & Positive Change 
Restorative Circles & Conversation 
Teach “I” Statements 
Support not punitive (punishment) approaches 
Use of online resources and materials: 
Best Practices for Restorative Practices Implementation 
Fix School Discipline 
Fix School Discipline Educator Toolkit 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 126 
 144

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/se/documents/restorativepracticesimpl.pdf
http://www.fixschooldiscipline.org/
http://www.fixschooldiscipline.org/educator-toolkit/


 

 

Goals, Actions and Measurable Outcomes Aligned with the Eight State Priorities 
 

Pursuant to Education Code Sections 47605(c)(5)(A)(ii) and 47605(c)(5)(B), a reasonably 
comprehensive description of the Charter School’s annual goals, actions and measurable outcomes, both 
schoolwide and for each subgroup of pupils, in and aligned with the Eight State Priorities as described in 
Education Code Section 52060(d), can be found in the Charter School’s Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP). Each of these goals addresses the unique needs of all students attending the Charter School, 
including our numerically significant student subgroups. The metrics associated with these goals help the 
Charter School to ensure that these specific subgroups are making satisfactory progress, and are provided 
with necessary additional supports made possible by additional funds from the Local Control Funding 
Formula.  
 

The current LCAP is on file with the County and at the end of the Charter Renewal (See Appendix 
9). The Charter School shall annually update and develop the LCAP in accordance with Education Code 
Section 47606.5 and shall use the LCAP template adopted by the State Board of Education. The Charter 
School reserves the right to establish additional and/or amend school-specific goals and corresponding 
assessments throughout the duration of the charter term through the annual LCAP update. The Charter 
School shall submit the LCAP to the County Superintendent of Schools annually on or before July 1, as 
required by Education Code Section 47604.33. The Charter School shall also present a report on the 
annual update to the LCAP and the local control funding formula budget overview for parents on or before 
February 28 of each year as part of a nonconsent item at a regularly scheduled Board meeting. 
 

The LCAP and any revisions necessary to implement the LCAP shall not be considered a material 
revision to the charter, and shall be maintained by the Charter School at the school site. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 127  
145



 

 

(2)​ Element 2 -- Measurable Pupil Outcomes 
 

Governing law: "The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter school. 
"Pupil outcomes," for purposes of this part, means the extent to which all pupils of the 
charter school demonstrate that they have attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes 
specified as goals in the charter school's educational program. Pupil outcomes shall include 
outcomes that address increases in pupil academic achievement both schoolwide and for all 
pupil subgroups of pupils served by the charter school, as that term is defined in subdivision 
(a) of Section 52052. The pupil outcomes shall align with the state priorities, as described in 
subdivision (d) of Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served by the charter school." 

 

Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(B) 
 

All YES CHARTER ACADEMY students demonstrate academic mastery in all of the core academic 
areas. For non-special education and non-EL students, mastery is defined as a score of standards met or 
above on the CAASPP and grades of C or better on all yearend academic portfolios and exhibitions. 
Portfolios and exhibitions are assessed according to school-wide rubrics, with input from teachers across 
all content areas and outside community members. Mastery for special education and EL students are 
defined appropriately according to their Individualized Education Programs and English proficiency levels. 

 

YES’s student outcomes include: 

 
●​ The number of YES students scoring standard not met and standard met on the CAASPP 

decrease by 10% each year. 
●​ The number of YES students scoring standard met or standard exceeded on the CAASPP 

increase by 10% each year. 
●​ The number of YES students, including those in numerically significant pupil subgroups, 

who read at or above grade level at the end the year increase by 10% each year. 
●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY Students achieve at least 96% student attendance each year. 

(Academic Calendar & LCAP Goals and Action Steps (See Appendix 9) 
●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY achieves 95% participation in state standardized testing 

●​ Students in 9-12 will graduate meeting a-g requirements 

●​ Students in 9-12 will complete at least one or more CTE pathway, with an industry-recognized 
certification 

●​ Students in grades 8-12 will take the PSAT/ SAT or other college entrance exam 
 

All students experience a common core of learning that fulfills YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s mission. 
The measurable student outcomes are ways to accurately determine the extent to which all students of 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY demonstrate that they have attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes 
specified as goals in our educational program — a program that is aligned with the State Standards and 
the California Environmental Protection Agency’s Education and the Environment Initiative curriculum 
and assessment frameworks. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 128  146



 

After completion of the TK-12 program, graduates of YES CHARTER ACADEMY demonstrate 
proficiency in the following areas: 

 
In addition to the above-mentioned content-specific outcomes for students the following are 

schoolwide YES CHARTER ACADEMY outcomes for our TK-12 students: 
 

●​ Students achieve at least 96% student attendance each year. 

●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY meets the CAASPP growth target each year. 

●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY achieves 95% participation in state standardized testing. 

●​ Students enrolled in the Charter School for at least three consecutive years annually 
demonstrate growth in scores from internal pre- to post-testing in each of reading, 
writing, and math. 

●​ High school graduates meet/exceed requirements for graduation as established by 
YES. 

●​ 95% of high school graduates will have achieved at least 1 or more industry 
certification embedded in their coursework, prior to graduation. 

 

The Charter School administers the mandated state assessments and also meets any required 
state or federal performance standards developed. 

 

A.​ Proficiency in English and Language Arts 

 
All students are administered a reading fluency assessment at the beginning of the school year, and 

again at the end of each trimester. Reading fluency data is used to create ILPs, to group students for 
differentiated reading instruction, and to identify students for reading fluency remediation. Students who 
do not read at the 50th percentile are placed in the reading intervention program, Read Naturally. Student 
progress in Read Naturally is tracked and celebrated. Students have the goal of increasing reading fluency 
to the 50th percentile or above. Students are graduated from the program upon reaching this goal. 

 
YES students have demonstrated success in increasing reading fluency and meeting ILP goals using 

the Read Naturally intervention program. YES will continue to use and refine the implementation of Read 
Naturally. 

 

●​ Student reads with understanding and writes convincingly and effectively 
●​ Student reads actively and derives meaning from written media. 
●​ Student reads extensively both fiction and non-fiction for both enjoyment and 

research. 
●​ Student writes using grammatically acceptable English. 

●​ Student adjusts tone and style of writing for purpose and audience. 
●​ Student supports statements using well-rounded facts, theory, and opinion. 

●​ Student separates fact from opinion. 

●​ Student logically reaches conclusions based on sufficient evidence. 

●​ Student clearly and concisely states key points. 
●​ Student demonstrates creativity through style, organization, and development of 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 129  147



 

content. 

 
In the 9th-12th grades, we will continue to scaffold writing with Step. Up to Writing and integrate ELA 

CCSS Standards in a CTE Entrepreneurship & Small Business Ownership Pathway (see full course descriptions 
in Appendix 2). 

 

B.​ Proficiency in Health and Family & Community Life Skills 

 
Student sufficiently understands and functions in the world around them and realizes their own 

unique educational interests, talents, and abilities. Students will continue to be evaluated not only using the 
Presidential Fitness levels in lower grades, but at the high school level we are also embedding outdoor 
education into PE, and offering the mandated Health class in 9th grade as well as an additional 4th lab science 
their junior year. 

 

A graduate of YES CHARTER ACADEMY is comfortable and at ease when speaking before an audience 
and in a team, and is able to contribute their opinions and/or help facilitate the aim of the group. Our 
students are independent thinkers and responsible citizens. 

 
●​ Student is able to appreciate and participate in the arts and music, choral and/or 

instrumental. 

●​ Student is aware of the importance of life-long physical fitness and participates 
actively, with sportsmanship, in a variety of sports. 

●​ Student has the self-discipline to set direction in his/her studies. 

●​ Student has an ability to work collaboratively in effective teams. 

●​ Student understands the role of the media in culture and is aware of media and 
societal influences. 

●​ Student demonstrates involvement in his/her community. 

●​ Student has knowledge of the reciprocal relationship between the individual and 
his/her environment. 

●​ Student is able to use computer-based technologies as an effective tool to learn and to 
research in order to form an opinion. 

●​ Student is aware of schedules and deadlines and appropriate tradeoffs in quality and 
time in project work. 

●​ Student is physically fit and aware that a sedentary lifestyle is not healthful. 

 
C.​ Proficiency in History, Social Sciences, and Geography 

 
Student understands the scope of history and its relevance to contemporary issues. 

 
Student shows their appreciation for history by identifying relationships between past and present 

events or situations involving: 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 130  148



 

 
●​ Cause and effect: people, events, or situations influencing an action or result. 

●​ Comparison: similarities and differences. 

●​ Classification: events and situations explained as political, economic, social, and/or 
intellectual. 

●​ Anticipation of the future using evidence from the past and the present to draw 
conclusions about the future. 

●​ Organization of historical events within a timeline. 

●​ Application of physical geography and cultural awareness to their understanding of 
societies. 

●​ Understanding the structures, operations, and relationships of the government in the 
United States. 

●​ Showing facility with reading maps and charts that display numerical data as well as 

boundaries, roads, and demographics. (Appendix 2 for Content and course outlines) 

 

D.​ Proficiency in Mathematics 

 
All students are administered a grade level math skills assessment at the beginning of the school 

year, and placed in Khan Academy intervention based upon their skill level. This assessment, as well 
as assessments in the adopted math curriculum, are used to set and update ILP goals. 

 

Student applies CCSS mathematical principles and operations to solve real-world logical problems. 
 

Student demonstrates knowledge of basic skills and conceptual understanding in: 
 

●​ Problem solving with numbers and operations 

●​ Geometry and measurement 

●​ Functions and algebra 

●​ Quadratic equations 
 

YES has adopted CCCS math curriculum and math intervention programs. We support student 
achievement in math through the adopted curriculum, scheduled training for teachers, assessment 
of students, creation of ILPs, implementation of differentiated instruction including the use of RTI, 
and tracking student achievement. 

Our goal is to make up the learning loss that students experienced because of COVID, and to 
give all students the differentiated support they need to achieve grade level proficiency in all core 
subjects. (Appendix 2 for Content and course outlines)  

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 131  149



 

 

E.​ Proficiency in Science 
 

Student applies NGSS scientific concepts and skills to explain the world and find solutions to its 
problems.  

(Appendix 1D, IE for science content, NGSS Standards, and course outlines). 
 

●​ Student solves problems that make significant demands in one or more of these 
aspects of the solution process: problem formulation, problem implementation, and 
problem conclusion. 

●​ Student understands application of basic skills to everyday life and/or science 
problems. 

●​ Student observes, compares, orders, and categorizes characteristics and behaviors of 
phenomenon, objects, and living things. 

●​ Student communicates ideas verbally in a clear and concise manner using expository 
and science writing and reporting formats. 

●​ Student relates factors of differing objects and events, and infers about unknown or 
unseen processes. 

●​ Student applies knowledge and thought processes to explain his/her world and to 
extrapolate solutions. 

●​ Student shows a perception of the interrelationships among scientific themes (energy, 
interactions, patterns, and change) and their application to the four spheres 
(lithosphere, hydrosphere, atmosphere, and ecosphere). 

●​ Student recognizes the effects of science, technology, and societies on one another 
and on the environment. 

 

F.​  Goals, Actions and Measurable Outcomes Aligned with the Eight State 
Priorities 

 

Pursuant to Education Code Sections 47605(c)(5)(A)(ii) and 47605(c)(5)(B), a reasonably 
comprehensive description of the Charter School’s annual goals, actions and measurable outcomes, both 
schoolwide  and for each subgroup of students in and aligned with the Eight State Priorities  as described 
in Education Code Section 52060(d), can be found in the Charter School’s Local Control and Accountability 
Plan.  

The current LCAP is on file with the County and included in this Charter Renewal (See Appendix 9). The 
Charter School shall annually update and develop the LCAP in accordance with Education Code Section 
47606.5 and shall use the LCAP template adopted by the State Board of Education. The Charter School 
reserves the right to establish additional and/or amend school-specific goals and corresponding 
assessments throughout the duration of the charter term through the annual LCAP update. The Charter 
School shall submit the LCAP to the County annually on or before July 1, as required by Education Code 
Section 47604.33. The Charter School shall also present a report on the annual update to the LCAP and the 
local control funding formula budget overview for parents on or before February 28 of each year as part of 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 132  150



 

a nonconsent item at a regularly scheduled Council of Directors meeting.  The LCAP and any revisions 
necessary to implement the LCAP shall not be considered a material revision to the charter, and shall be 
maintained by the Charter School at the school site. 

In developing the 2025-26 LCAP, the Charter School has addressed new focus areas based on shifts in 
the student demographics and the lingering impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. YES CHARTER ACADEMY 
has sought to address the needs of its community members to remain resilient and to combat student 
learning loss and uneven achievement. 

The 2025-26 LCAP reflects a focus on student achievement, in the content areas, in a targeted manner. 
The LCAP will be updated as needed and in accordance with applicable law.  

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 133  151



 

 

(3)​ Element 3 - Methods to Assess Pupil Progress Towards 
Meeting Outcomes 

 
Governing law: "The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes is to be measured. 
To the extent practicable, the method for measuring pupil outcomes for state priorities shall be consistent 
with the way information is reported on a school accountability report card." Education Code Section 
47605(c)(5)(C) 

 

A.​ Content-Specific Outcomes for Students 

In general, YES CHARTER ACADEMY student performance and achievement school-wide, across 
numerically significant subgroups, and individually is assessed using multiple and varied summative and 
formative assessments that are aligned to state and federal standards and reflect proficiency measures 
required by the CAASPP as well as the Eight State Priorities detailed in Education Code Section 52060(d). 
For purposes of measuring student performance and achievement, a numerically significant student 
subgroup is defined as in Education Code Section 52052(a). Additionally, student performance and 
achievement is measured using YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s LCAP, the goals, actions, metrics, and 
outcomes of which are reasonably comprehensively described in Element 2, that includes the following: 

 

●​ Use of the annual assessment results from the CAASPP 

●​ CAST is administered to all 5th and 8th grade students 

●​ ELPAC is administered to English learners 

●​ Curriculum-based state-mandated tests and other standardized assessment tools 

●​ Personal interactive journals 

●​ Portfolios and handmade books 

●​ Informal oral and teacher-made exams 

●​ Demonstration of mastery using manipulative materials 

●​ Demonstration of mastery by peer teaching and/or cross-age tutoring 

●​ Formal presentation to the class of projects and reports 

●​ Written evaluations by staff of pupil level regarding academic mastery and behavior 
(personal development) 

●​ Self-assessments - Reflection on both long- and short-term planning for Individual 
Learning Plans 

●​ Program (specific tracking of percentile changes in consecutive years) 

●​ Use of i-Ready assessments to monitor benchmark progress on state standards 

●​ Rubrics developed by the school faculty and administration 

●​ Trimester academic conferences to communicate student performance, 
intervention, and aptitudes/progress. 

●​ Student growth on local i-Ready ELA assessments. 

●​ Student growth on local i-Ready math assessments. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 134  152



 

●​ Suspension Rate and Chronic Absenteeism as reported on the Dashboard. 

●​ Attendance, dropout rates, and expulsion rate tracked and recorded by the Charter 
School. 

●​ Parent and Student surveys. 
 

As we continue to define the process of evaluating student learning, these critical questions guide our 
work: 

 
●​ How do we help students articulate their learning process? 

●​ How do we help students evaluate their own learning? 

●​ How do we measure student gains in learning, other than standardized testing? 

●​ How does our work in electronic portfolios, paper portfolios, protocols, and student generated 
rubrics drive the curriculum and instruction for deeper learning for all students? 

●​ How can working together in grade-level teams be enhanced in this process to calibrate 
assessment between and within grade levels? 

 
The Charter School administers the mandated state assessments and also meets any required state 

or federal performance standards developed. Our annual review and collaboration echo the State 
Priorities. 

 

●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY Teachers use a variety of formative, interim, and summative 
assessments to assess student progress and factor in the individual needs of students during 
instructional decision- making. 

●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY implements early warning systems that use individual student data to 
generate indicators of “on-track” status and enable staff to identify and monitor progress of 
students falling below an identified threshold. At our ILP meetings, in partnership with teachers, 
students and parents, we consider additional actions and services designed to help each student 
improve his or her performance. 

●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY uses formal data analysis strategies to guide operational, policy, and 
fiscal decisions aimed at improving student learning in a broad course of study and to ensure 
alignment to our instructional and student-centered goals with the actions taken related to 
budget, curriculum, instruction, and assessment. 

●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY develops goals for students who have a disability and have qualified for 
special education and related services based on the individual student’s need within the 
student’s IEP to support higher education access and employment opportunities. 

●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY develops and implements standards-based grading practices and report 
cards that provide focused feedback on student achievement of outcomes and learning goals, in 
addition to other factors such as attendance, citizenship, and homework. 

●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY provides training to parents regarding various topics including, but not 
limited to, interpreting assessment results, supporting student instruction at home, and 
determining individual student needs. 

●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY utilizes a process for identifying English learners for special education 
that includes assessing students in their primary language. Per Title III of the ESSA, YES CHARTER 
ACADEMY’s team implements established standardized entrance and exit procedures for English 
learners, including English learners with disabilities. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 135  153



 

 

All students will be supported to achieve graduation and meet grade-level standards. At YES 
CHARTER ACADEMY we recognize that not all students progress at the same rate. Teachers consider each 
student’s individual abilities, interests, and talents while utilizing the measurements below. Assessment 
is used as an opportunity for further revision. Testing is viewed as another opportunity for self-discovery 
and success. Comfort with test taking is important to our students as they advance to high school and 
college, but are not used exclusively for grading or success within our YES CHARTER ACADEMY school 
environment. High levels of accomplishment are expected, and deadlines are used to encourage timely 
conclusion of learning activities. 

 
Student progress is tracked on progress reports comprising comprehensive checklists issued on a 

trimester basis (three times per year). YES CHARTER ACADEMY intends to track student progress using 
the Statewide Student Identifier numbers in order to account for real student growth and learning over 
the course of time at YES CHARTER ACADEMY. 

 

B.​ Use and Reporting of Data 

 
The ongoing refinement of our curricula, which is based upon the State Standards and the California 

Environmental Protection Agency’s Education and the Environment Initiative curriculum and assessment 
frameworks, utilizes the state- authorized testing program and score analysis to provide us with regular 
measures of achievement from our student body. We plan to disaggregate for individuals and groups 
with special needs by employing criterion-based assessments. Ongoing and year- end summative 
assessments are prepared and made available, via Parent Conferences and report cards. 

 
A self-study of our performance is an ongoing practice of our administration and teaching faculty. 

Self- reflective practice is part of the school culture, and, to this end, YES CHARTER ACADEMY collects not 
only student scores, but also surveys for parent and community impressions of our student work, and 
then develops methods to evaluate and recommend ongoing areas for improvement. This meta practice 
approach to operations allows us to accomplish data collection intentionally throughout the year, and 

then make adjustments constantly during the course of a school year. We utilize the WASC Focus on 
learning format for a self-study that evaluates demographic data, outcome data, process and perception 
data from a stakeholder’s perspective, then develop a determination of critical needs from findings that 
leads to a school-wide action plan. 

 
At YES CHARTER ACADEMY we have an open-door policy for parents to visit classrooms. There are 

two formal parent and teacher conferences scheduled each academic year: the first prior to Thanksgiving 
and a Spring Conference in March. Multiple measures are provided at these conferences to assist the 
teacher and parent in determining the academic and social growth of that child. 

 
Other information regarding the educational program and the administrative, legal, and governance 

operations of the YES CHARTER ACADEMY relative to compliance with the terms of the charter generally. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 136  154



 

 

(4)​ Element 4 -- Governance Structure 
 

Governing law: “The governance structure of the charter school, including, but not limited to, 
the process to be followed by the charter school to ensure parental involvement.” 

 

Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(D) 
 

A.​ Governance Structure of YES CHARTER ACADEMY 

 
The organizational design of the governance structure of YES CHARTER ACADEMY reflects the vision 

of an educational community and the core values of strong parental involvement and participation. The 
governance structure includes administrative guidance from the County Office of Education, governance 
by an elected Council of Directors, and participation by corresponding standing and special committees. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY is nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, 

and all other operations. YES CHARTER ACADEMY does not charge tuition, and does not discriminate on 
the basis of race, ethnicity, gender, gender identity, gender expression, religion, sexual orientation, 
national origin, ability, or disability or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate 
crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the California Penal Code, including immigration status. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY is directly funded independent charter school and is operated as a California 
nonprofit public benefit corporation pursuant to California law – The Yuba Environmental Science Charter 
Academy. YES CHARTER ACADEMY is governed pursuant to the bylaws adopted by the incorporators, as 
subsequently amended pursuant to the amendment process specified in the bylaws. YES CHARTER 
ACADEMY maintains general liability and Council of Directors errors and omissions insurance policies. 

 
The Charter School operates autonomously from the County, with the exception of the supervisory 

oversight as required by statute and other contracted services as negotiated between the County and the 
Charter School. Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604(d), and for purposes of describing the 
“[p]otential civil liability effects, if any, upon the charter school and upon the school district” set forth in 
Education Code Section 47605(h), the County is not liable for the debts and obligations of the Charter 
School, operated by a California non- profit benefit corporation, or for claims arising from the 
performance of acts, errors, or omissions by the Charter School, as long as the County has complied with 
all oversight responsibilities required by law. The corporate bylaws of the Charter School shall provide for 
indemnification of the Charter School’s Board, officers, agents, and employees, and the Charter School 
will purchase general liability insurance, Directors and Officers insurance, and fidelity bonding to secure 
against financial risks. 

 

Insurance amounts for the Charter School will be in alignment with schools of similar size, location, 
and student population. The authorizer shall be named an additional insured on the general liability 
insurance of the Charter School. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 137  155



 

 

The Charter School Council of Directors will institute appropriate risk management practices including 
but not limited to screening employees, establishing codes of conduct for students, and dispute 
resolution. 

 

(See Appendix 8, “Charter School Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws”) 
 

We have now received the ACS K-12 WASC approval for our school beginning June 2025. Within this 
process we have received feedback to continue to grow and build our Charter (Appendix 2B) 

 

B.​ County Office of Education Relationship 
 

The County provides legally mandated oversight for the charter, yet as an independent charter 
school, YES CHARTER ACADEMY is deemed to be an independent public school. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY pledges to furnish the County Board with copies of all policies and 

procedures developed with regard to any operational or educational program, upon adoption by the 
Council of Directors, at the County’s request. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY complies with a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) with YCOE (see 

Appendix 14 to review MOU). 
 

C.​ Bylaws 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY is governed by adherence to its bylaws (See Appendix 8, “Charter School 

Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws”). At a minimum, these bylaws contain the following: 
 

●​ The means by which Council Members are to be nominated, selected, and removed 
from office 

●​ The duration of each Council member’s term of office 

●​ The method by which Council meetings are held 

●​ The means by which parents, teachers, students, and other members of the 
community may communicate with the Council 

●​ The procedure by which bylaws may be amended. 
 

D.​ Council of Directors 
 

Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy is governed by the YES CHARTER ACADEMY Council of 
Directors members. The Council is composed of at least five (5) members, known as directors, who 
represent the parents, the community, and the interests of the County. In accordance with Education 
Code Section 47604(c), the County may appoint a representative to the Council of Directors. If the 
County chooses to do so, the Charter School may appoint an additional member to ensure the Council is 
maintained with an odd number of directors. Vacancies on the Council are appointed by the remaining 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 138  156



 

council members by majority vote. 

 

Upon receipt of a petition for student representation that meets the requirements of Education Code 
Section 47604.2(b)(2), the Council of Directors shall order the inclusion within its membership, in addition 
to the number of members otherwise prescribed, of at least one student member. A student member of 
the Council of Directors shall have preferential voting rights as defined in Education Code Section 
47604.2(b)(4). 

 

The composition of the Council of Directors remains as follows: 

 
●​ Two of the directors should be parents/guardians of children enrolled in YES CHARTER ACADEMY 

●​ Three directors may be parents and/or community members 

●​ At the discretion of the County, one representative may be appointed. 

●​ The Charter School Leadership Staff:  

●​ One director is a teacher representative. The teacher representative is authorized to vote in all 
normal business matters, with the exception of matters associated to teacher discipline, teacher 
compensation or any other matter the YES Council of Directors deem inappropriate due to a real or 
perceived conflict of interest. The teacher representative does not participate in closed session 
except as deemed appropriate and by invitation of the regular board members. Pursuant to 
Education Code Section 47604.1(d), the teacher representative shall abstain from voting on, or 
influencing or attempting to influence another member of the Council, all matters uniquely 
affecting the teacher’s employment. 

 
The Council of Directors meets approximately once a month to hear reports, to consider and adopt 

policies, to act on working group recommendations, and to consider requests and concerns. These 
meetings are advertised and conducted in compliance with the Brown Act  and Education Code Section 
47604.1(c). 

 

The Council of Directors meetings are headed by a Board President, who is elected by the Board at 
the concluding meeting of the school year. 

 
As long as a quorum exists as defined by the corporate bylaws, measures voted on by the Council of 
Directors may be passed with a simple majority of present members. A quorum by the Council is a 
majority of members. 

 
The Council of Directors participates regularly in training regarding board governance, Brown Act, 

ethics (AB 2158), and conflict of interest rules. 
 

The Charter School has adopted a Conflict-of-Interest Code that complies with the Political Reform 
Act, Government Code Section 1090, et seq., as set forth in Education Code Section 47604.1, and the 
Corporations Code Conflicts of Interest rules, and which shall be updated with any charter school specific 
conflicts of interest laws or regulations. As noted, the Conflict-of-Interest Code is attached (See Appendix 
8). As required, the Conflict-of-Interest Code has been submitted to the County Board of Supervisors for 
approval. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 139  157



 

 

The Council of Directors has authority to exercise the following duties and responsibilities: 

 
●​ Determine and uphold YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s mission and vision 

●​ Hire, supervise, evaluate, and terminate YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s 
Superintendent/Principal 

●​ Ensure effective organizational planning 

●​ Determine how the budget is spent 

●​ Contract for goods and services, including insurance 
●​ Develop school policies and procedures 
●​ Enhance the organization’s goodwill and public image 

●​ Monitor the Charter School’s performance (educational, fiscal, legal, operational) 

●​ Monitor its own performance (internal and external relations, adhering to legal duties, 
effective board practices, fiscal responsibilities, etc.) 

●​ Clarify Council’s role vs. Principal/Superintendent /staff’s roles 
●​ Review any outside service contracts 

 
The Council may execute any powers delegated by law to it and discharge any duty imposed by law 

upon it and may delegate to an employee of the Charter School any of those duties with the exception of 
budget approval or revision, approval of the fiscal audit and performance report, and the adoption of 
Council policies. The Council however, retains ultimate responsibility over the performance of those 
powers or duties so delegated. Such delegation: 

 
●​ Is in writing; 
●​ Specifies the entity designated; 

●​ Describes in specific terms the authority of the Council of Directors being delegated, any 
conditions on the delegated authority or its exercise and the beginning and ending dates 
of the delegation; and 

●​ Requires an affirmative vote of a majority of Council members. 

E.​ Role of the Superintendent/Principal 

 
The role of the Superintendent/Principal is to act as the liaison between the Council of Directors and 

the daily operations of the Charter School. The Superintendent /Principal communicates for the Council in 
community relations and is an advisor to the Council. Duties include: 

 
●​ Provide instructional leadership to the Charter School 
●​ Attend County Office of Education Administrative meetings as requested by the County 

Office of Education and stay in direct contact with the County to assist the County in its 
oversight duties 

●​ Develop Council of Directors’ meeting agenda in compliance with the Brown Act; bring 
matters forward to the Council to agendize 

●​ Supervise all employees of the YES CHARTER ACADEMY 

●​ Provide timely performance evaluations of all YES CHARTER ACADEMY employees at least 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 140  158



 

once annually 
●​ Propose policies for adoption by the Council 
●​ Provide comments and recommendations regarding policies presented by others to the 

Council 
●​ Communicate with YES CHARTER ACADEMY legal counsel 

●​ Stay abreast of school laws and regulations 

●​ Approve all purchase orders, pay warrants, and requisition, and upon approval, forward 
on for processing 

●​ Participate in the dispute resolution procedure and the complaint procedure when 
necessary 

●​ Oversee grant writing 

●​ Attend meetings with the Chief Financial Officer of the County Office of Education on 
fiscal oversight issues as needed 

●​ Provide all legally required financial reports to the County Office of Education 
●​ Make budget line-item revisions when necessary and report changes regularly to the 

Council 
●​ Develop and administrate the budget in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles 
●​ Present a quarterly financial report to the Charter School Council 
●​ Provide assistance and coordination to the faculty in the development of curriculum 
●​ Oversee student/teacher relations 
●​ Attend IEP meetings when necessary 

●​ Oversee student disciplinary matters 

●​ Coordinate the administration of Standardized Testing 

●​ ​Attend all YES CHARTER ACADEMY meetings and attend as necessary County Office of 
Education Board meetings 

●​ Foster an amicable relationship between County Office of Education and Charter School 
and facilitate a sharing of resources between both entities 

●​ Propose procedures to YES CHARTER ACADEMY designed to carry out Council policies 

●​ Oversee scheduling 

●​ Oversee graduations 

●​ Manage communications between County Office of Education and Council 

 

F.​ Parental Involvement 
 

Parents of YES CHARTER ACADEMY students are encouraged to be involved with YES activities, but 
parents and guardians are notified that parental involvement is not a requirement for acceptance to, or 
continued enrollment at YES CHARTER ACADEMY. In addition, frequent two-way communication between 
teachers, school administration, and home is a hallmark of YES CHARTER ACADEMY. 

 
 Parents have multiple ways of being involved in decision making at YES CHARTER ACADEMY.  Our 

Family Liaison encourages parents to attend meetings of the SSC. Parents are also invited to attend our 
Council of Directors, Committee, ELAC and Parent Club meetings.  

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 141  159



 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY communicates with parents through Parent Square, a two-way 
communication system developed specifically for schools. Parents are able to choose how they prefer to 
receive messages. Choices include text message, email to communicate with teachers, office staff, and 
the principal. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 142  160



 

 

(5)​ Element 5 -- Employee Qualifications 
 
Governing law: "The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the charter school." 
Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(E) 

 

A.​ Human Resources/Organization Structure 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY retains or employs faculty who hold the California Commission on Teacher 

Credentialing certificate, permit, or other document required for the teacher’s certificated assignment. 
(See Appendix 4, “YES Organization Chart”)  

 

Qualifications for any full time, part time, or temporary employee are determined and approved by 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY Principal/Superintendent.  

 

B.​ Charter School Employee Positions & Qualifications  

YES CHARTER ACADEMY will select professionals who share the educational philosophy of the 
Charter School and who are willing to collaborate and work hard to improve the educational outcomes of 
every student enrolled. All leaders, teachers and staff are committed to providing academic and hands-on 
real-life opportunities for the students and families of the school. 

The following positions are intended to ensure that YES CHARTER ACADEMY is able to fulfill its mission, 
vision, and charter. Exact positions and job titles are subject to change in accordance with evolving student 
needs. 

 
 Site Specific Employees of YES CHARTER ACADEMY 

 Position Type 

 Principal/Superintendent School Site Administrator 

    Business Administrator School Site Administrator 

 Human Resource 
Director 

School Site Administrator 

 Programs Manager  School Site Administrator 

TK- 12 Teacher Teacher/Credentialed 

Home School Instructor Teacher/Credentialed 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 143  161



 

Special Education                       

Director 

Teacher/ Credentialed 

CTE Teacher Teacher/Credentialed 

Instructional Aide Classified Instructional 

Instructional 1:1 Aide Classified Instructional 

  Office Manager Classified Operations 

Office Assistance Classified Operations 

  Family Liaison  Classified Operations 

 
^Denotes roles that are subject to budgetary considerations. Should they be eliminated, key responsibilities will be allocated to other roles or 
external service providers .#Denotes roles that may be reassigned to be site-based. 

 

​ Administrators  

The Administrators of YES CHARTER ACADEMY possess a collective vision of shared, cohesive goals 
that encompass a commitment to focus on the whole student, co-creation with stakeholders, a 
commitment to equity and a growth mindset. YES CHARTER ACADEMY Administrators are passionate 
school leaders who nurture and empower students to meet their full potential. YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s 
Administrators share    an environmental educational vision that is consistent with YES CHARTER 
ACADEMY’s commitment to the YES CHARTER ACADEMY educational philosophy. 

 
Day-to-day administration of YES CHARTER ACADEMY is managed by the Principal/Superintendent, 

and to the extent practical, in collaboration with teams of students, parents, teachers and on-site 
administrators. 

 

Principal/Superintendent 
​ Reports to: YES Council of Directors  

Purpose: To serve as the chief administrator of YES in developing and implementing policies, programs, 
curriculum activities, and budgets in a manner that promotes the educational development of each student 
and the professional development of each staff member. 

​ Supervises: All school personnel, directly or indirectly 
​ Credentials Required: Administrative Credential 
​  
 
 
 
 
 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 144  162



 

 

Qualifications Superintendent/Principal                                                                               

 

The ideal candidate will embrace the Charter School’s mission and have extensive management 
experience with a record of success in establishing strategic paths for growth, effectively assembling and 
leading a team of professionals, and creatively tapping a wide range of resources to achieve success. 
Familiarity with the local area and California charter community desired. An understanding of and 
alignment with the Charter School’s mission and vision.  

 

●​ Demonstrated commitment to ensuring high academic achievement for all students. 
●​ Proven capacity for leadership including ability to effectively assemble and motivate a team of 

professionals to achieve ambitious and measurable results. 
●​ Proven ability to develop meaningful relationships with diverse and key stakeholders. 
●​ A track record of developing and securing resources and other funding opportunities. 

Experience in teaching a K-12 focused organization such as a traditional public school system, 
charter  

​ school, private school or other educational organization highly desired. 
 

Candidate demonstrates strong and successful experience with solid support for public education; 
commitment to high academic standards and success for all students; principles of personnel supervision 
and evaluation; a broad understanding of curriculum and instruction linking to student learning; principles 
of school organization and management; leadership responsive to staff, community and district needs; and 
inclusive leadership/decision making process. Candidate understands and supports the need for 
Environmental Science learning and has expertise and/or experience which enhances the YES program. 

 
Business Administrator 
Reports to: Principal 
Purpose: The Business Administrator ensures the financial and operational well-being of YES so that it can 
focus on education. This role involves managing budgets, overseeing facilities, handling vendor contracts, 
oversees Human Resources operation and grants, and handling non-instructional staff and operations. This 
position is a key part of the leadership team, providing financial and operational efficiency to support the 
primary goal of student learning. 
Supervises: Office Staff/ non credential programs 
Credentials Required: none 
 

Qualifications for Business Administrator
​  

●​ Ability to make sound decisions and resolve problems 

●​ 5+ years successful work experience supporting managers in a fast-paced administrative assistance 
capacity is preferred 

●​ 5+ years of administrative or related work experience required 

●​ 4+ years demonstrated administrative experience in a fast-paced environment 

●​ Strong cross-team collaboration & organizational skills 

●​ Ability to be flexible and work quickly and efficiently 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 145  163



 

●​ Grant writing and reporting 

●​ Strong Leadership, Communication and Supervisory experience 

 

Human Resource Director 
Reports to: Principal 
Purpose: The Human Resource Director’s responsibility is to onboard new employees, manage payroll, 
conduct employee investigations and implement discipline paperwork under the supervision of the 
Principal/Superintendent. The Human Resource Director is responsible for staying informed on new 
employment laws and regulations and to assist employees. 
Supervises: non-credentialed staff 
Credentials Required: none 
 
Qualifications for Human Resource Director                  

●​ Strong Knowledge of Employment Laws 
●​ 5-10 years of Human Resource Experience 
●​ Excellent Communication and Leadership Skills 
●​ Skilled in Recruitment, Compensation and Employee Relations 
●​ Performance Management 
●​ Supervision  
●​ Strong Analytical Skills and problem solving 
●​ Proficiency with HR Information Systems and relevant software 

 

Programs Manager 

Reports to: Business Administrator 

Purpose: The Programs Manager’s responsibility is to research, develop, and implement programs to improve 
student outcomes while ensuring their effective and efficient functioning and compliance with laws. These 
responsibilities include coordinating resources and materials, providing staff training and support, and 
communicating with various stakeholders to meet the Charter School’s goals and foster student success. 

Supervises: Non -credentialed staff 

Credentials: none 

 

Qualifications for Programs Manager 
●​ Program Management experience 
●​ Social Work and Case Management experience 
●​ Organizational Leadership Skills 
●​ Policy Development Experience 
●​ Grant writing Experience 
●​ Strong Leadership and Communication Skills 

 
Teachers  
Classroom teachers report to the lead administrator. They are responsible for delivering a high-quality 
program for the classes they instruct in alignment with the Charter School’s values, and our instructional 
model. Teachers are also in charge of setting a classroom environment, which is inclusive, thoughtful and 
collaborative for a diverse group of learners, and students. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 146  164



 

 
 

Qualifications/ Requirements for teachers: 
●​ The Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or another document required for 

the 
teacher’s certificated assignment 

●​ TK teachers will satisfy all applicable requirements and qualifications as set forth in Education 
Code Section 48000(g) to work with TK students. 

●​ Experience teaching in the classroom, and commitment to high quality 
●​ CLAD or BCLAD if ELD teacher 

●​ Bilingual a bonus (Spanish and English fluency) 

●​ Bachelor’s degree, and Master’s in related subject matter helpful 

●​ Excellent communication skills  

CTE Teachers 

CTE teachers report to the lead administrator. They are responsible for planning, implementing, and 
providing academic and skills training to students in a particular field of expertise. The CTE Teacher is 
responsible for carrying out a career technical education program based on the California CTE Model 
Curriculum Standards that prepares students for high-skill, high-wage careers aligned with post-secondary 
education and consistent with regional workforce needs. The CTE teacher facilitates work-based learning 
and increases employment opportunities by serving as an active liaison between employers and the 
classroom.  

 

Qualifications/ Requirements for CTE credentialed teachers  
●​ The Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or another document required for 

the 
teacher’s certificated assignment with an authorization in the appropriate CTE sector 

●​ Experience teaching in the classroom, and commitment to high quality 
●​ Bilingual a bonus (Spanish and English fluency) 

●​ Bachelor’s degree, and Master’s in related subject matter helpful 

●​ Excellent communication skills  

Home School Teacher  
Reports to: Lead Administrator  
Purpose: The Home School Teacher’s responsibility is to act as a guide and partner for parents/guardians by 
helping parents/guardians develop a personalized education plan for their student by setting goals, choosing 
curriculum, and providing academic support. The teacher's role is to collaborate with the parent to create an 
individualized learning experience that fosters academic achievement, critical thinking, and social-emotional 
growth, while adhering to the specific mission and vision of the charter school.  
Credential Required: Teacher Credential 

Qualifications/ Requirements for home school teachers  
●​ The Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or other document required for the 

teacher’s certificated assignment 
●​ Previous teaching experience and commitment to high quality 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 147  165



 

Special Education Director 
Purpose: The Special Education Director reports to the Principal/Superintendent. They are responsible for 
overseeing the special education program and legal compliance of the students in special education. The Special 
Education Director performs IEP meetings and coordinates outside services for students in special education. 

Supervises: Special Education Aides 
 
Qualifications/ Requirements for Special Education Director 

●​ The Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or other document required for the 
teacher’s certificated assignment. 

●​ Possession of appropriate special education credential(s) 
●​ Previous experience in the field showing a demonstrated understanding of special education law 

 
Instructional Aide 
Reports to: Principal/Superintendent 
Purpose: The Instructional Aide reports to the Principal/Superintendent and works with the teacher in the 
classroom to implement and assist students in small groups in math and reading.   
Supervises: None 
Credential Required: High School diploma 
Qualifications: Previous experience working with children preferably in a classroom setting. 
 
Office Manager 
Reports to: Business Administrator 
Purpose: The Office Manager reports to the Business Administrator to keep the office running smoothly and 
complete all tasks assigned. 
Supervises: Recess Duty Employees, Office Specialist 
Credential Required: None 
Qualifications: Previous experience 
 
Office Assistant 
Reports to: Office Manager 
Purpose: The Office Specialist reports to the Office Manager and answers the phone, takes messages and assists 
the Office Manager. 
Supervises: None 
Credential Required: None 
Qualifications: Previous experience 

 
Family Liaison 
Reports to: Principal/Superintendent 
Purpose: The Family Liaison reports to the Principal/Superintendent and works with students using restorative 
practices and is a connection to parents to discuss student issues and assist families in need. 
Supervises: None 
Credential Required: None​  
Qualifications: Previous experience working in a school environment. 

 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 148  166



 

 

(6)​ Element 6 -- Health and Safety Procedures 
 

 

Governing law: "The procedures that the charter school will follow to ensure the health and 
safety of pupils and staff. These procedures shall require all of the following: 

(i)​ That each employee of the charter school furnish the charter school with a 
criminal record summary as described in Section 44237. 

(ii)​ The development of a school safety plan, and the annual review and update of 
the plan, pursuant to Section 47606.3.  

 

Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(F) 
 

A.​ Health and Safety Procedures 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY has adopted and implemented a comprehensive set of health, safety, 
and risk management policies. These policies at a minimum address the following (a full set of the health 
and safety policies and procedures are on file at the Charter School): 

 
●​ Each employee and contractor of YES CHARTER ACADEMY submits to a criminal 

background check and furnishes a criminal record summary as required by California 
Education Code Section 44237 and 45125. Applicants for employment must submit two 
sets of fingerprints to the California Department of Justice for the purpose of obtaining a 
criminal record summary. The Charter School shall not hire any person, in either a 
certificated or classified position, who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony 
except as otherwise provided by law, pursuant to Education Code Sections 44830.1 and 
45122.1. The Principal/Superintendent of the Charter School shall monitor compliance 
with this policy and report to the Council of Directors on a regular basis. The Council 
President shall monitor the fingerprinting and background clearance of the Principal. 
Volunteers who will volunteer outside of the direct supervision of a credentialed 
employee shall be fingerprinted and receive background clearance prior to volunteering 
without the direct supervision of a credentialed employee. 

 
●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY follows the requirement of Education Code Section 49406 in 

requiring tuberculosis assessments and examination (if necessary) of all employees and 
volunteers who have frequent or prolonged contact with students, and for employees at 
least once each four years thereafter. 

 

●​ Students and staff provide documentation of required immunizations as is required at 
public schools pursuant to Health and Safety Code Sections 120325-120375, and Title 
17, California Code of Regulations Sections 6000-6075, and YES CHARTER ACADEMY 
maintains records. All rising 7th grade students must be immunized with a pertussis 
(whooping cough) vaccine booster. Upon a student’s admission or advancement to 6th 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 149  167



 

grade, the Charter School shall submit to the student and their parent or guardian a 
notification that advises students to adhere to current immunization guidelines 
regarding human papillomavirus (“HPV”) before admission or advancement to 8th grade, 
consistent with the requirements of Education Code Section 48980.4 and Health and 
Safety Code Section 120336. 

 
●​ Policies and procedures for school-wide training in response to natural disaster and 

emergencies, including earthquake and fire, have been developed and are reviewed as 
necessary. 

 
●​ Policies relating to preventing contact with blood-borne pathogens. 

 
●​ Instructional and administrative staff receive first responder training or its emergency 

response equivalent, CPR, and first aid. 
 

●​ Policies have been developed relating to the administration of prescription drugs and 
other medicines which adhere to Education Code Section 49423 regarding 
administration of medication in school. 

 
●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY maintains a policy on student suicide prevention in accordance 

with Education Code Section 215. The Charter School shall review, at minimum every 
fifth year, its policy on pupil suicide prevention and, if necessary, updates its policy. 
Pursuant to AB 58 (2021-22), the Charter School will also review and update its suicide 
prevention policy to incorporate best practices identified by the CDE’s model policy, as 
revised. 

 
●​ The Charter School shall identify and implement the most appropriate methods of 

informing parents and guardians of students in grades 6 through 12 of human trafficking 
prevention resources. 

 
●​ The Charter School shall stock the school’s restrooms at all times with an adequate supply 

of menstrual products, available and accessible, free of cost, in all women’s restrooms and 
all-gender restrooms, and in at least one men’s restroom. The Charter School shall post a 
notice regarding the requirements of Education Code Section 35292.6 in a prominent and 
conspicuous location in every restroom required to stock menstrual products, as specified. 
This notice shall include the text of Education Code Section 35292.6 and contact 
information, including an email address and telephone number, for a designated 
individual responsible for maintaining the requisite supply of menstrual products. 
 

●​ On or before July 1, 2026, the Charter School shall provide and maintain at least one 
all-gender restroom for voluntary student use at each of its school-sites that has more 
than one female restroom and more than one male restroom designated exclusively for 
student use. The restroom shall have signage identifying the bathroom as being open to 
all genders, it shall remain unlocked, unobstructed, and easily accessible by any student, 
and be available during school hours and school functions when students are present. The 
Charter School shall designate a staff member to serve as a point of contact and to post a 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 150  168



 

notice regarding these requirements. 
 

●​ The Charter School shall provide breakfast and lunch free of charge during each school day to 
any pupil who requests a meal without consideration of the pupil’s eligibility for a federally 
funded free or reduced-price meal, with a maximum of one free meal for each meal service 
period. The meals provided under this paragraph shall be nutritionally adequate meals that 
qualify for federal reimbursement. The Charter School shall provide each student adequate 
time to eat as determined by the Charter School in consideration of available guidance. 

 

●​ The Charter School shall teach sexual health education and human immunodeficiency virus 
(“HIV”) prevention education to students in grades 7-12, at least once in middle school and at 
least once in high school, pursuant to the California Healthy Youth Act (Education Code Section 
51930, et seq.).  
 

●​ If the Charter School offers one or more courses in health education to students in middle or 
high school, the Charter School shall include in those courses instruction in mental health that 
meets the requirements of Education Code Section 51925, et seq 
 

●​ The Charter School shall create and post a poster at the school-site identifying approaches and 
resources addressing student mental health in compliance with Education Code Section 
49428.5. The poster shall be displayed in English and the primary language(s) spoken by 15 
percent or more of students enrolled at the school-site. The poster shall be prominently and 
conspicuously displayed in appropriate public areas that are accessible to, and commonly 
frequented by, students at the school-site. The poster shall also be digitized and distributed 
online to students through social media, internet websites, portals, and learning platforms at 
the beginning of each school year.  

 
●​ The Charter School shall adhere to Education Code Section 49414 regarding the provision and 

use of emergency epinephrine auto-injectors by trained office staff or volunteers at the 
Charter School, and training for staff members; per AB 1651 (2023), the Charter School shall 
store emergency epinephrine auto-injectors in an accessible location upon need for 
emergency use and include that location in annual notices required by law. To the extent the 
Charter School maintains a stock of albuterol inhalers to respond to respiratory distress in 
students, the Charter School shall comply with the requirements of Education Code Section 
49414.7, including with respect to training, notices, and the stocking of albuterol inhalers. 
 

●​ Except where a field trip or other educational program is taking place, if the Charter School 
provides recess, to the extent required by Education Code Section 49056, the Charter School 
shall provide supervised and unstructured recess, distinct from physical education courses and 
mealtimes, of at least 30 minutes on regular instructional days and at least 15 minutes on 
early release days. The Charter School shall not restrict a student’s recess unless there is an 
immediate threat to the physical safety of the student or one or more of their peers.  

 
●​ The Charter School shall meet state and federal standards for dealing with blood borne 

pathogens and other potentially infectious materials in the work place. The District shall 
establish a written infectious control plan designed to protect employees and students from 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 151  169



 

possible infection due to contact with blood borne viruses, including HIV and hepatitis B virus 
(“HBV”). Whenever exposed to blood or other bodily fluids through injury or accident, staff 
and students shall follow the latest medical protocol for disinfecting procedures. 

 
●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY is housed in facilities that have received approval from the Fire 

Marshall. 
 

●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY is a drug-, alcohol-, and smoke- free workplace. 
 

●​ All staff are designated as mandated child abuse reporters and follows all applicable reporting 
laws. The Charter School shall provide mandated reporter training to all employees annually 
in accordance with Education Code Section 44691. 

 
●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY adheres to Education Code Section 49450, et seq. as applicable 

regarding scoliosis, hearing, and vision checks to the grade levels served by the Charter School. 
 

●​ The Charter School shall make the type 1 diabetes informational materials accessible to the 
parent or guardian of a pupil when the pupil is first enrolled in elementary school. The Charter 
School provides an information sheet regarding type 2 diabetes to the parent or guardian of 
incoming 7th grade students, pursuant to Education Code Section 49452.7. The information 
sheet shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following: 

 

1.​ A description of type 2 diabetes. 

2.​ A description of the risk factors and warning signs associated with type 2 diabetes. 

3.​ A recommendation that students displaying or possibly suffering from risk factors or 
warning signs associated with type 2 diabetes should be screened for type 2 diabetes. 

4.​ A description of treatments and prevention methods of type 2 diabetes. 

5.​ A description of the different types of diabetes screening tests available 
 

The Charter School shall adopt a School Safety Plan, to be reviewed and updated by March 1 of 
every year, which shall include identification of appropriate strategies and programs that will 
provide or maintain a high level of school safety and address the Charter School’s procedures 
for complying with applicable laws related to school safety, including the development of all of 
the following pursuant to Education Code Section 32282(a)(2)(A)-(O): 

 
a.​ child abuse reporting procedures 

b.​ routine and emergency disaster procedures 

c.​ policies for students who committed an act under Education Code Section 48915 and 
other Charter School-designated serious acts leading to suspension, expulsion, or 
mandatory expulsion recommendations 

d.​ procedures to notify teachers of dangerous students pursuant to Education Code Section 
49079 

e.​ a discrimination and harassment policy consistent with Education Code Section 200 
f.​ provisions of any schoolwide dress code that prohibits students from wearing 

“gang-related apparel,” if applicable 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 152  170



 

g.​ procedures for safe ingress and egress of pupils, parents, and employees to and from the 
Charter School 

h.​ a safe and orderly environment conducive to learning 
i.​ the rules and procedures on school discipline adopted pursuant to Education Code 

Sections 35291, 35291.5, and 47605 
j.​ procedures for conducting tactical responses to criminal incidents 
k.​ procedures for active shooter drills if included in the School Safety Plan 
l.​ procedures to assess and respond to reports of any dangerous, violent, or unlawful 

activity that is being conducted or threatened to be conducted at the school, at an 
activity sponsored by the school, or on a school bus serving the school 

m.​ procedures to respond to incidents involving an individual experiencing a sudden cardiac 
arrest or a similar life-threatening medical emergency while on school grounds 

n.​ procedures specifically designed to notify parents and guardians of pupils, teachers, and 
administrators, and school personnel when the school confirms the presence of 
immigration enforcement on the school-site 

o.​ a protocol in the event a pupil is suffering or is reasonably believed to be suffering from 
an opioid overdose 

 

The School Safety Plan shall be drafted specifically to the needs of the facility in conjunction with law 

enforcement and the Fire Marshal. Staff shall receive training in emergency response, including 

appropriate "first responder" training or its equivalent. 

 

Disaster procedures included in the School Safety Plan shall address and include adaptations for 

Students with Disabilities. To the extent an employee, parent/guardian, educational rights holder, or 

student brings concerns regarding the procedures to the principal and, if there is merit to the concern, 

the principal shall direct the School Safety Plan to be modified accordingly.  

 

The Charter School shall develop an instructional continuity plan, consistent with Education Code 

Section 32282(a)(3), to establish communication with students and their families and provide 

instruction to students when in-person instruction is disrupted due to an emergency pursuant to 

Education Code Sections 41422 or 46392(a). 
 

●​ The Charter School shall establish, implement, and maintain, at all times in all work areas, an 
effective workplace violence prevention plan consistent with the requirements of Labor Code 
Section 6401.9. 

 

●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY is committed to providing a school that is free from discrimination and 
sexual harassment, as well as any harassment based upon the actual or perceived characteristics 
of race, religion, creed, color, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, national 
origin, ancestry, ethnic group identification, genetic information, age, medical condition, marital 
status, sexual orientation, sex and pregnancy, physical or mental disability, childbirth or related 
medical conditions, military and veteran status, denial of family and medical care leave, or on the 
basis of a person’s association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or 
perceived characteristics, or any other basis protected by federal, state, local law, ordinance or 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 153  171



 

regulation. 

 

A copy of the policy shall be provided as part of any orientation program conducted for new and 
continuing pupils at the beginning of each quarter, semester, or summer session, as applicable, 
and to each faculty member, all members of the administrative staff, and all members of the 
support staff at the beginning of the first quarter or semester of the school year, or at the time 
that there is a new employee hired. The Charter School shall create a poster that notifies 
students of the applicable policy on sexual harassment in accordance with Education Code 
Section 231.6, and shall prominently and conspicuously display the poster in each bathroom and 
locker room at the school-site and in public areas at the school-site that are accessible to, and 
commonly frequented by, pupils. 

 
●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY shall develop a comprehensive policy to prevent and immediately 

remediate any concerns about discrimination or harassment at the Charter School (including 
employee to employee, employee to student, and student to employee misconduct). Misconduct 
of this nature is very serious and will be addressed in accordance with the Charter School’s 
anti-discrimination and harassment policies. 

 
●​ The Charter School shall adopt procedures for preventing acts of bullying, including 

cyberbullying. The Charter School shall annually make available the online training module 
developed by the CDE pursuant to Education Code Section 32283.5(a) to certificated school-site 
employees and all other school-site employees who have regular interaction with children. 

 
●​ Through the completion of the 2029-30 school year, the Charter School shall use an online 

training delivery platform and curriculum to provide at least one hour of required LGBTQ cultural 
competency training annually to teachers and other certificated employees and maintain records 
of such training as required by Education Code Section 218.  

 
●​ Pursuant to AB 1955 (2024), employees of the Charter School shall not be required to disclose 

any information related to a pupil’s LGBTQ+ identity to any other person without the pupil’s 
consent unless otherwise required by state or federal law. This provision shall not limit a parent’s 
ability to request school records on behalf of their child. 

 
●​ The Charter School shall comply with all requirements under Education Code Sections 

49390-49395 regarding mandatory reporting in response to homicidal threats. All employees and 
Board members who are alerted to or who observe any threat or perceived threat in writing or 
through an action of a student that creates a reasonable suspicion that the student is preparing 
to commit a homicidal act related to school or a school activity shall make a report to law 
enforcement.  

 
●​ At the beginning of the first semester, the Charter School shall distribute a notice to the 

parents/guardians of each student addressing California’s child gun access prevention laws and 
laws related to firearm safety utilizing the most updated model language published by the 
California Department of Education.  

 
●​ The Charter School shall comply with all applicable laws related to health and safety policies and 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 154  172



 

procedures surrounding athletic programs at charter schools, including but not limited to 
providing information to athletes regarding sudden cardiac arrest and annually providing each 
athlete an Opioid Factsheet for Patients. 

 
●​ The Charter School shall comply with the requirements of Education Code Section 39875(c), if 

applicable, relating to background checks and testing for individuals providing transportation 
services for students.  

 
●​ On or before July 1, 2026, the Charter School will develop, adopt, and implement a weather 

policy that includes protocols for extreme weather conditions, and incorporate the standardized 
guidelines developed by the CDE. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 155  173



 

 

(7)​ Element 7 -- Means to Achieve Student Population Balance 

Governing law: "The means by which the charter school will achieve a balance of racial and 
ethnic pupils, special education pupils, and English learner pupils, including redesignated 
fluent English proficient pupils, as defined by the evaluation rubrics in Section 52064.5, that is 
reflective of the general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of the school 
district to which the charter petition is submitted." 

 

Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(G) 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY does not charge tuition and does not discriminate on the basis of the 
characteristics listed in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, gender identity, 
gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic 
that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including 
immigration status, or association with an individual who has any of the aforementioned characteristics). 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY attempts to recruit a diverse student population, including special 
education students, and English learner students, that reflects the general population residing within the 
geographic boundaries of the District. The recruitment strategy includes the following: 

 
●​ An enrollment timeline and process that allows a broad-based recruiting and application process. 
●​ Distribution of promotional and informational materials to community groups and agencies that 

serve various racial, ethnic, special education, English learner, including redesignated fluent 
English proficient students, and interest groups in the community. 

●​ Submission of press releases to a variety of local media. 

●​ YES CHARTER ACADEMY staff participate in various community events to reach prospective 
students, families and school community partners. 

●​ Language translation is available through or Parent Square and required enrollment forms can be 
available in a variety of languages to meet the diverse need if necessary. 

●​ YES will train staff to support students and families on the benefits of explaining the purpose and 
benefits of EL instruction through designated parent committees and  
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY maintains information concerning the race, ethnicity, special education, 
and English learner status of all the school’s students, and if the balance is not reflective of the District, a 
committee of YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s parents, teachers, and a County Office of Education representative 
(at YCOE’s election) meets to discuss the imbalance and explore available legal options to remedy the 
situation. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 156  174



 

(8)​ Element 8 – Admission Policies and Procedures 
 
Governing law: “Admission policies and procedures, consistent with [Education Code Section 
47605] subdivision (e).” 

 

Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(H) 
 

The Charter School is nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, and all other operations, and 
does not charge tuition nor discriminate against any student based upon any of the characteristics listed 
in Education Code Section 220. 

 
The Charter School admits all pupils who wish to attend the Charter School. No test or assessment 

are administered to students prior to acceptance and enrollment into the Charter School. The Charter 
School complies with all laws establishing minimum and maximum age for public school attendance in 
charter schools. Admission, except in the case of a public random drawing, are not be determined by the 
place of residence of the pupil or his or her parent or legal guardian within the state, unless required by 
Education Code Section 51747.3. In accordance with Education Code Sections 49011 and 
47605(e)(2)(B)(iv), admission preferences shall not require mandatory parental volunteer hours as a 
criterion for admission or continued enrollment. 

 
In accordance with Education Code Section 47605(e)(4)(A). the Charter School shall not discourage a 

pupil from enrolling or seeking to enroll in the Charter School for any reason, including, but not limited 
to, academic performance of the pupil or because the pupil exhibits any of the characteristics described 
in Education Code Section 47605(e)(2)(B)(iii), including pupils with disabilities, academically 
low-achieving pupils, English learners, neglected or delinquent pupils, homeless pupils, or pupils who are 
economically disadvantaged, as determined by eligibility for any free or reduced-price meal program, 
foster youth, or pupils based on nationality, race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation. Similarly, in accordance 
with Section 47605(e)(4)(C), the Charter School shall not encourage a pupil currently attending the 
Charter School to disenroll from the Charter School or transfer to another school for any reason, 
including, but not limited to the academic performance of the pupil or because the pupil exhibits any of 
the characteristics described in Education Code Section 47605(e)(2)(B)(iii), as listed above.  

 
Pursuant to Education Code Section 47605(e)(4)(D), the Charter School shall post a notice developed 

by the CDE on the Charter School website, outlining the requirements of Section 47605(e)(4), and make 
this notice available to parents.  

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY trains all staff members on the McKinney-Vento Act and follows all 

requirements of Education Code Section 48851.5.   
 

Public Random Drawing 
 

Applications are accepted during a publicly advertised open application period each year for 
enrollment in the following school year. All rules, deadlines, dates, and times of the public random 
drawing will be communicated in the written application form and on the Charter School’s website. The 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 157  175



 

Charter School will also inform parents or guardians of all applicants of the rules to be followed during 
the public random drawing process prior to the lottery date (via email and/or regular mail). All 
communications will be in English and Spanish. 

 
Following the open enrollment period each year, applications are counted to determine whether any 

grade level has received more applications than availability. In the event that this happens, the Charter 
School holds a public random drawing to determine admission for the impacted grade level, with the 
exception of existing students, who are guaranteed admission in the following school year. Admission 
preferences in the case of a public random drawing are given to the following students in the following 
order: 

 
1.​ Siblings of students admitted to or attending the Charter School 
2.​ Children of the Council of Directors* and of employees of the Charter School (combined, no 

more than 10% of total enrollment) 
3.​ Residents of the County  
4.​ Residents of the District 
5.​ All other applicants 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY and the County mutually agree that the preferences in the public 
random drawing as listed above are consistent with Education Code Section 47605(e)(2)(B)(i)-(iv) and 
applicable federal law. These admission preferences shall not unlawfully impact the student population 
that the Charter School seeks to enroll consistent with Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(G). 

 
The Council of Directors will take all necessary efforts to ensure lottery procedures are fairly executed. 
Lottery spaces are pulled in order of grade level by the designated lottery official (appointed by the 
Superintendent/Principal). Separate lotteries shall be conducted for each grade in which there are fewer 
vacancies than pupils interested in attending. All lotteries shall take place on the same day in a single 
location. Lotteries will be conducted in ascending order beginning with the lowest applicable grade level. 
There is no weighted priority assigned to the preference categories; rather, within each grade level, 
students will be drawn from pools beginning with all applicants who qualify for the first preference 
category, and shall continue with that preference category until all vacancies within that grade level have 
been filled. If there are more students in a preference category than there are spaces available, a random 
drawing will be held from within that preference category until all available spaces are filled. If all students 
from the preference category have been selected and there are remaining spaces available in that grade 
level, students from the second preference category will be drawn in the lottery, and the drawing shall 
continue until all spaces are filled and preference categories are exhausted in the order provided above.  

 

At the conclusion of the public random drawing, all students who were not granted admission due to 
capacity are given the option to put their name on a wait list according to their draw in the lottery. This 
wait list allows students the option of enrollment in the case of an opening during the current school 
year. In no circumstance does a waitlist carry over to the following school year. 

 
Public random drawing rules, deadlines, dates and times are communicated in the enrollment 

applications and on the Charter School’s website. Public notice for the date and time of the public 
random drawing are posted once the application deadline has passed. The Charter School also informs 
parents of all applicants and all interested parties of the rules to be followed during the public random 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 158  176



 

drawing process via mail or email at least two weeks prior to the lottery date. 

 
  The Charter School conducts the lottery in the spring for enrollment in fall of that year. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 159  177



 

 

(9)​ Element 9 -- Annual Financial Audit 
 

Governing law: "The manner in which annual, independent financial audits shall be 
conducted, which shall employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in 
which audit exceptions and deficiencies shall be resolved to the satisfaction of the chartering 
authority." 

 
Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(I) 

 

An annual independent financial audit of the books and records of the Charter School is conducted as 
required by Education Code Sections 47605(c)(5)(I) and 47605(m). The books and records of the Charter 
School are kept in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and as required by 
applicable law, the audit employs generally accepted accounting procedures. The audit is conducted in 
accordance with applicable provisions within the California Code of Regulations governing audits of 
charter schools as published in the State Controller’s K-12 Audit Guide. 

 
The Council of Directors selects an independent auditor through a request for proposal format. The 

auditor has, at a minimum, a CPA and educational institution audit experience and is approved by the 
State Controller on its published list as an educational audit provider. To the extent required under 
applicable federal law, the audit scope is expanded to include items and processes specified in applicable 
Office of Management and Budget Circulars. 

 
The annual audit is completed and forwarded to the County Office of Education, the County 

Superintendent of Schools, the State Controller, and to the CDE by the 15th of December of each year. The 
Principal/Superintendent, along with an audit committee, review any audit exceptions or deficiencies and 
report to the Charter School Council of Directors with recommendations on how to resolve them. The Council 
submits a report to the County Office of Education describing how the exceptions and deficiencies have been 
or are resolved to the satisfaction of the County Office of Education along with an anticipated timeline for the 
same. Audit appeals or requests for summary review are submitted to the Education Audit Appeals Panel 
(“EAAP”) in accordance with applicable law. 

 
The independent financial audit of the Charter School is a public record to be provided to the public 

upon request. 
 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 160  178



 

 

(10)​Element 10 – Pupil Suspension and Expulsion Procedures 

Governing law: "The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled from the charter school for 
disciplinary reasons or otherwise involuntarily removed from the charter school for any reason. These 
procedures, at a minimum, shall include an explanation of how the charter school will comply with federal 
and state constitutional procedural and substantive due process requirements that is consistent with all of 
the following: 
(i)​ For suspensions of fewer than 10 days, provide oral or written notice of the charges against the 
pupil and, if the pupil denies the charges, an explanation of the evidence that supports the charges and an 
opportunity for the pupil to present the pupil’s side of the story. 
(ii)​For suspensions of 10 days or more and all other expulsions for disciplinary reasons, both of the following: 

(I) Provide timely, written notice of the charges against the pupil and an explanation of the pupil’s basic 
rights. 
(II) Provide a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable number of days at which the 
pupil has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and witnesses and confront and cross-examine 
adverse witnesses, and at which the pupil has the right to bring legal counsel or an advocate. 
(iii)​ Contain a clear statement that no pupil shall be involuntarily removed by the charter school for any 
reason unless the parent or guardian of the pupil has been provided written notice of intent to remove the 
pupil no less than five school days before the effective date of the action. The written notice shall be in the 
native language of the pupil or the pupil’s parent or guardian, or, if the pupil is a homeless child or youth, 
or a foster child or youth, in the native language of the homeless or foster child’s educational rights holder. 
In the case of a foster child or youth, the written notice shall also be provided to the foster child’s attorney 
and county social worker. If the pupil is a Indian child, as defined in Section 224.1 of the Welfare and 
Institutions Code, the written notice shall also be provided to the Indian child’s tribal social worker and, if 
applicable, county social worker. The written notice shall inform the pupil, the pupil’s parent or guardian, 
the homeless child’s educational rights holder, the foster child’s educational rights holder, attorney, and 
county social worker, or the Indian child’s tribal social worker and, if applicable, county social worker of the 
right to initiate the procedures specified in clause (ii) before the effective date of the action. If the pupil’s 
parent or guardian, the homeless child’s educational rights holder, the foster child’s educational rights 
holder, attorney, or county social worker, or the Indian child’s tribal social worker or, if applicable, county 
social worker initiates the procedures specified in clause (ii), the pupil shall remain enrolled and shall not 
be removed until the charter school issues a final decision. For purposes of this clause, “involuntarily 
removed” includes disenrolled, dismissed, transferred, or terminated, but does not include suspensions 
specified in clauses (i) and (ii). 
(iv)​ A foster child’s educational rights holder, attorney, and county social worker and an Indian child’s 
tribal social worker and, if applicable, county social worker shall have the same rights a parent or guardian 
of a child has to receive a suspension notice, expulsion notice, manifestation determination notice, 
involuntary transfer notice, and other documents and related information. " 

 

Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(J) 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY has developed and maintains a comprehensive set of student discipline 
policies. These policies are printed and distributed as part of YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s Parent/Student 
handbook and clearly describe YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s expectations regarding attendance, mutual 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 161  179



 

respect, conduct, substance abuse, violence, safety, and work habits. The policies are developed to 
conform to applicable federal law regarding students with exceptional needs. 

 
The YES CHARTER ACADEMY Principal/Superintendent may, pursuant to YES CHARTER ACADEMY- 

adopted policies, suspend students who fail to comply with these policies at any time. Students who 
habitually fail to comply with these policies and/or who present an immediate threat to health and/or 
safety may be suspended and later expelled by the Council of Directors upon the recommendation of the 
Principal/Superintendent. 

 

A.​ Methods of Discipline 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY believes in supports instead of suspension. Discipline includes, but is not 

limited to, advising and counseling students, conferring with parents/guardians, detention during and 
after school hours, the use of alternative educational environments, suspension, and expulsion. At YES 
CHARTER ACADEMY corporal punishment is not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. 
Corporal punishment includes the willful infliction of or willfully causing the infliction of physical pain on 
a student. For purposes of the Policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee's use of force 
that is reasonable and necessary to protect the employee, students, staff, or other persons, or to prevent 
damage to school property.  

 
MTSS includes restorative justice practices, trauma-informed practices, social and emotional 

learning, and schoolwide positive behavior interventions and support, be used to help students gain critical 
social and emotional skills, receive support to help transform trauma-related responses, understand the 
impact of their actions, and develop meaningful methods for repairing harm to the school community. YES 
CHARTER ACADEMY will continue to build capacity to implement these best practices through program 
development and are by securing grant money and utilizing ear marked state funding for professional 
development for staff in all these areas. 
 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY multi-tiered supports include the following: 
 

Tier 1: Prevention- YES CHARTER ACADEMY has a PBIS model SPARRK that provides a clear ladder 
of expectations and direction to promote a positive school climate, a path of youth development and to 
create a culture of care.  YES has a Code of Conduct policy that states clear expectations in our Parent 
Student Handbook and is located on our website. Our weekly in class SPARRK awards assemblies award 
students for the following: Environmental Stewards, Positive Team Members, Academic Masters, 
Responsible Citizens, Resourcefulness and Kindness.  

 
Restorative Practices involves universal community building activities for the entire school 

community to promote a culture of care and common ground. The YES Family Liaison and YES staff are 
invested in community building through our environmental initiatives and community partners, to hosting 
events for families and students and inviting parents and community member to serve on in our Parent 
-Teacher Club and to serve on any one of our school committees including our COD meetings.  

 
YES has started an antibullying committee that is spearheaded by our Parent Representative on our 

Council of Directors. This committee has partnered with classroom teachers to recognize, utilize, and 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 162  180



 

enhances young people’s strengths; and to reward students during in class circles for demonstrating they 
are “kindness and inclusivity champions.” Art projects to demonstrate and show our SPARRK model, 
anti-bullying campaign and a culture of care are assigned for further positive outcomes.  

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY has invested in updating policies and procedures in the areas of Suicide 

Prevention, Mental Health, Anti-Bullying, Cyberbullying, Suspension and Discipline. YES has followed the 
California Department of Education’s recommendations to implement Suicide Prevention Month, Bullying 
Prevention Month and Mental Health Awareness Month. YES has partnered with Pathways and Sutter Yuba 
Behavioral Health to implement students circles throughout the year and programming such as SOS: Signs 
of Suicide, Anti-Bullying and Cyberbullying training for staff and students. YES provide a collection of 
resources for staff development and read-alouds for anti-bullying for teacher classroom usage.  
 

YES promotes Mental Health awareness by sharing resources via Parent Square and our website 
including anonymous reporting of bullying and links for mental health resources including mandated phone 
numbers and texting alternatives to reach out for help. The following information is included on yearly ID 
cards for students in 5th grade through 12th grade. 
 
National Suicide Prevention Lifeline/Suicide Crisis Lifeline: 

•​ Call or Text “988”  
•​ Call 1-800-273-8255  

 
National Domestic Violence Hotline:  Call 1-800-799-7233 

Crisis Text Line: Text “HOME” to 741741 
Teen Line: Text “TEEN” to 839863 
Trevor Project: Text “START” to 678678 
Trans Lifeline: 1-877-565-8860 

 
Tier 2: Early Interventions- YES CHARTER ACADEMY’S teachers are trained in Social Emotional 

Learning and take time weekly to integrate and PBIS model SPARRK framework into the classroom. YES 
believes in allowing natural consequences to occur to behavior when safe to do so. The direct and logical 
outcomes of a student’s actions rather than punishment can help the student understand the link between 
their choices and the results by allowing the consequences to happen organically. Natural consequences 
provide powerful, real-world experiences that demonstrate the connection between a student’s behavior 
and its impact.  

 
YES utilizes Restorative Practices components of intervention and Repair to address specific 

conflicts and harms through targeted, non-punitive responses, how to use affective statements and 
non-violent communication in daily interactions. Our Family Liaison assists in restorative conversations, 
mediation, and harm circles that focus on understanding the root causes of the harm and giving victims, 
offenders and the community a chance to repair the harm done. YES teachers are skilled in classroom 
behavior management to provide non-verbal cues and other non-evasive techniques such as teacher 
mobility to intervene when needed. The 3 Stands of the Nurtured Heart Approach are used 

 
o​ Stand 1 Absolutely No! I refuse to energize negativity.  
o​ Stand 2 Absolutely Yes! I will super-energize experiences of success.  
o​ Stand 3 Absolutely Clear! I will set clear limits and provide clear, un- energized 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 163  181



 

consequences 
 

Tier 3:  Intensive supports and strategies that provide specific support based on student and family need 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s Student Success Team is available for Student Success planning to 
identify student strengths through assessment from all invested parties. Student Success meetings aim to 
increase communication with families to address underlying causes of negative behavior and prevent the 
need for more intensive interventions and to avoid missed academic opportunities and suspension. 
Student Success planning provides opportunities to find alternative forms of support and not punishment 
such as fostering positive relationships, and promoting the students’ strengths.  Student Success meetings 
provide opportunities to inquire more about family needs and where YES can provide resources and 
referral outside school for the entire family. Understanding the family dynamic and the challenges they 
may be facing models our culture of care to restore and repair problematic behaviors that may be 
influencing a student’s challenging behaviors. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY employs a Family Liaison that is educated in Restorative Practices to 

provide individualized support. The Family Liaison provides students in need of conflict resolution skills to 
restore and repair in school relationships.  Our Family Liaison’s Reset room provides a welcoming, safe and 
supportive place for in-school suspension and with an environment to “reset” to keep students in school to 
complete their schoolwork as an alternative to prevent missed instructional time and promote academic 
achievement. Supporting re-entry to the school or the classroom as necessary part of the process to hold 
the student accountable for their past, present and future actions, while providing a clear path of support. 

 

B.​ Expulsion Decision 

 
Prior to expulsion, students are accorded due process unless the student’s conduct presents an immediate threat 
to the health or safety of others. YES CHARTER ACADEMY notifies the County Office of Education of any expulsions 
and includes suspension and expulsion data in its annual performance report. 

C.​ District of Residence Notification 

 
Pursuant to Education Code 47605(e)(3), if a pupil is expelled or leaves the charter school without 

graduating or completing the school year for any reason, YES CHARTER ACADEMY notifies the 
superintendent of the school district of the student's last known address within thirty (30) days, upon 
request, provides the school district with a copy of the cumulative record of the student, including a 
transcript of grades or report card, and health information. This paragraph applies only to pupils subject 
to compulsory full-time education pursuant to Education Code Section 48200. 

 

D.​ Pupil Suspension and Expulsion Policy 

 

1.​ Definitions (as used in this policy) 
●​ Council of Directors means governing body of YES CHARTER ACADEMY. 
●​ Expulsion means disenrollment from YES CHARTER ACADEMY. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 164  182



 

●​ ​School day means a day upon which YES CHARTER ACADEMY is in session or 
weekdays during the summer recess. 

●​ ​Suspension means removal of a student from ongoing instruction for adjustment 
purposes. However, suspension does not mean the following: 

 
●​ Reassignment to another education program or class at the Charter School 

where the student receives continuing instruction for the length of day 
prescribed by the Council of Directors for pupils of the same grade level 

●​ Referral to a certificated employee designated by the 
Principal/Superintendent to advise students. 

●​ Removal from the class but without reassignment to another class for the 
remainder of the class period without sending the student to the 
Principal/Superintendent or designee. 

 
●​ ​Student also includes a student's parent or guardian or legal counsel or other 

representative. 
●​ School means the Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy. 

2.​ Policy 

 
The Suspension and Expulsion Policy and Procedures have been established in order to promote 

learning and protect the safety and well-being of all students at YES CHARTER ACADEMY. In creating 
this policy, the Charter School has reviewed Education Code Section 48900 et seq. which describe 
the offenses for which students at non-charter schools’ may be suspended or expelled and the 
procedures governing those suspensions and expulsions in order to establish its list of offenses and 
procedures for suspensions expulsions involuntary removal. The language that follows is largely 
consistent with the language of Education Code Section 48900 et seq. The Charter School is 
committed to annual review of policies and procedures surrounding suspensions, expulsions, and 
involuntary removal, and, as necessary, modification of the lists of offenses for which students are 
subject to suspension, expulsion, or involuntary removal. 

 

Consistent with this Policy, it may be necessary to suspend or expel a student from regular 
classroom instruction. This shall serve as the Charter School’s policy and procedures for student 
suspension, expulsion, and involuntary removal, and it may be amended from time to time without 
the need to seek a material revision of the charter so long as the amendments comport with legal 
requirements. Charter School staff enforce disciplinary policies and procedures fairly and 
consistently among all students. This Policy and its Procedures are printed and distributed as part of 
the Student Handbook and clearly describes discipline expectations. Corporal punishment is not be 
used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal punishment includes the willful 
infliction of or willfully causing the infliction of physical pain on a student. For purposes of this Policy, 
corporal punishment does not include an employee’s use of force that is reasonable and necessary 
to protect the employee, students, staff or other persons or to prevent damage to school property. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 165  183



 

The Principal/Superintendent ensures that students and their parents/guardians4 are notified in 

writing upon enrollment of all discipline policies and involuntary removal policies and procedures. 
The notice states that this Policy and its Administrative Procedures are available on request at the 
Principal/Superintendent’s office. 

 
Suspended or expelled students are excluded from all school and school-related activities unless 

otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion. 
 

A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom YES CHARTER ACADEMY has a 
basis of knowledge of a suspected disability pursuant to the IDEA, or who is qualified for services 
under Section 504 , is subject to the same grounds for suspension and expulsion and is accorded the 
same due process procedures applicable to regular education students except when federal and 
state law requires additional or different procedures. YES CHARTER ACADEMY will follow all 
applicable federal and state laws when imposing any form of discipline on a student identified as an 
individual with disabilities, or for whom YES CHARTER ACADEMY has a basis of knowledge of a 
suspected disability, or who is otherwise qualified for such services or protections in according due 
process to such students. 

 
No student shall be involuntarily removed by the Charter School for any reason unless the 

parent/guardian of the student has been provided written notice of intent to remove the student no 
less than five (5) school days before the effective date of the action. The written notice shall be in 
the native language of the student or the student’s parent/guardian or, if the student is a foster child 
or youth or a homeless child or youth, the student’s educational rights holder, and shall inform the 
student, the student’s parent/guardian, or educational rights holder of the basis for which the 
student is being involuntarily removed and the student’s parent/guardian, or educational rights 
holder’s right to request a hearing to challenge the involuntary removal. If a student’s parent, 
guardian, or educational rights holder requests a hearing, the Charter School shall utilize the same 
hearing procedures specified below for expulsions, before the effective date of the action to 
involuntarily remove the student. If the student’s parent, guardian, or educational rights holder 
requests a hearing, the student shall remain enrolled and shall not be removed until the Charter 
School issues a final decision. As used herein, “involuntarily removed” includes disenrolled, 
dismissed, transferred, or terminated, but does not include removals for misconduct which may be 
grounds for suspension or expulsion as described below. Students may be involuntarily removed for 
reasons including, but not limited to, failure to comply with the terms of the student’s independent 
study written agreement. 

 

4 The Charter School shall ensure that a homeless child or youth’s educational rights holder; foster child or youth’s educational rights 
holder, attorney, and county social worker; and an Indian child’s tribal social worker and, if applicable, county social worker have the 
same rights as a parent or guardian to receive a suspension notice, expulsion notice, manifestation determination notice, involuntary 
transfer notice, involuntary removal notice, and other documents and related information. For purposes of this Policy and its 
Procedures, the term “parent/guardian” shall include these parties. 

 
 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 166  184



 

 
Procedures 
 

3.​ Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students 

 
A student may be suspended or expelled for prohibited misconduct if the act is related to school 

activity or school attendance occurring at YES CHARTER ACADEMY or at any other school or a School 
sponsored event at any time, including but not limited to 

●​ While on school grounds 
●​ While going to or coming from school 
●​ During the lunch period, whether on or off YES CHARTER ACADEMY campus 

●​ During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity or 

●​ Online or by electronic means relating to school, school staff, and/or fellow students 

 

4.​ Enumerated Offenses 

 
1.​ Discretionary Suspension Offenses. Students may be suspended when it is determined the student: 

 
a)​ Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person. 

 

b)​ Willfully used force or violence upon the person of another, except self-defense. 
 

c)​ Unlawfully possessed, used, or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any 
controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic 
beverage, or intoxicant of any kind. Students who voluntarily disclose their use of a 
controlled substance, alcohol, or an intoxicant of any kind in order to seek help through 
services or supports shall not be suspended solely for that disclosure. 

 

d)​ Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined 
in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any 
kind, and then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid 
substance or material and represented same as controlled substance, alcoholic 
beverage or intoxicant. 

 

e)​ Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion. 
 

f)​ Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property, 
which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases. 

 

g)​ Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property, which includes but is 
not limited to, electronic files and databases. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 167  185



 

 

h)​ Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, 
including but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, 
smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and betel. This section does not prohibit the use 
of the student’s own prescription products by a student. Students who voluntarily 
disclose their use of a tobacco product in order to seek help through services or 
supports shall not be suspended solely for that disclosure. 

 
i)​ Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity. 

 
j)​ Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug 

paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5. 
 

k)​ Knowingly received stolen school property or private property, which includes but is 
not limited to, electronic files and databases. 

 

l)​ Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e.: a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar 
in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude 
that the replica is a firearm. 

 

m)​  Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness 
in a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from 
being a witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness. 

 
n)​  Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug 

Soma. 
 

o)​  Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing. For the purposes of this subdivision, 
hazing means a method of initiation or preinitiation into a pupil organization or body, 
whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational 
institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or 
disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective pupil. 
For purposes of this section, hazing does not include athletic events or 
school-sanctioned events. 

 
p)​ Made terroristic threats against school officials and/or school property, which includes 

but is not limited to, electronic files and databases. For purposes of this section, 
terroristic threat include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person who 
willfully threatens to commit a crime which results in death, great bodily injury to 
another person, or property damage in excess of one thousand dollars ($1,000), with 
the specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent 
of actually carrying it out, which, on its face and under the circumstances in which it is 
made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, immediate, and specific as to convey to the 
person threatened, a gravity of purpose and an immediate prospect of execution of the 
threat, and thereby causes that person reasonably to be in sustained fear for their own 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 168  186



 

safety or for their immediate family’s safety, or for the protection of school property, 
which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases, or the personal 
property of the person threatened or their immediate family. 

 

q)​ Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5. For the 
purposes of this section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by 
a reasonable person of the same gender as the victim to be sufficiently severe or 
pervasive to have a negative impact upon the individual’s academic performance or to 
create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. This section 
applies to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 
r)​  Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause or participated in an act of hate 

violence, as defined in Education Code Section 233(e). This section applies to students in 
any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 

s)​ Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated a student or group of school 
personnel or volunteers and/or a student or group of students to the extent of having 
the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting class work, creating 
substantial disorder and invading the rights of either school personnel or volunteers 
and/or student rights by creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment. 
This section applies to pupils in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 
t)​ Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by means 

of an electronic act (defined as the transmission of a communication, including, but not 
limited to, a message, text, sound, or image, or a post on a social network Internet Web 
site, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, 
wireless telephone or other wireless communication device, computer, or pager) 
directed specifically toward a pupil or school personnel. Bullying means any severe or 
pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing 
or by means of an electronic act, and including acts one or more acts committed by a 
student or group of students which would be deemed hate violence or harassment, 
threats, or intimidation, which are directed toward one or more students that has or can 
be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following: 

 
1.​ Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but is not limited 

to, a student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care, skill, and 
judgment in conduct for a person of their age, or for a person of their age with 
exceptional needs) or students in fear of harm to that student’s or those 
students’ person or property. 

2.​ Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental effect on 
their physical or mental health. 

3.​ Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with their 
academic performance. 

4.​ Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with their 
ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges 
provided by the Charter School. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 169  187



 

 
“Electronic Act” means the creation or transmission originated on or off the school-site, 
by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless 
telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or pager, of a 

communication, including, but not limited to, any of the following: 
i.​ A message, text, sound, video, or image. 
ii.​ A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not limited to: 

(a)​ Posting to or creating a burn page. A “burn page” means an Internet Web 
site created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects as listed in 
subparagraph (1) above. 

(b)​ Creating a credible impersonation of another actual student for the purpose 
of having one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. 
“Credible impersonation” means to knowingly and without consent 
impersonate a student for the purpose of bullying the student and such that 
another student would reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that 
the student was or is the student who was impersonated. 

(c)​ Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects 
listed in subparagraph (1) above. “False profile” means a profile of a fictitious 
student or a profile using the likeness or attributes of an actual student other 
than the student who created the false profile. 

 

iii.​ An act of cyber sexual bullying. 

(a)​ For purposes of this policy, “cyber sexual bullying” means the dissemination 
of, or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate, a photograph or other 
visual recording by a student to another student or to school personnel by 
means of an electronic act that has or can be reasonably predicted to have 
one or more of the effects described in subparagraphs (i) to (iv), inclusive, of 
paragraph (1). A photograph or other visual recording, as described above, 
shall include the depiction of a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit 
photograph or other visual recording of a minor where the minor is 
identifiable from the photograph, visual recording, or other electronic act. 

(b)​ For purposes of this policy, “cyber sexual bullying” does not include a 
depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious literary, artistic, 
educational, political, or scientific value or that involves athletic events or 
school-sanctioned activities. 

 

Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act shall not 
constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on the 
Internet or is currently posted on the Internet. 

 

u)​ A student who aids or abets, as defined in Penal Code Section 31, the infliction or 
attempted infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject to suspension, 
but not expulsion, except that a pupil who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to 
have committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the 
victim suffered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury are subject to discipline 
pursuant to subdivision (1). 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 170  188



 

 
v)​ Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any knife or other dangerous object of no 

reasonable use to the student unless, in the case of possession of any object of this 
type, the student had obtained written permission to possess the item from a 
certificated school employee, with the Principal/Superintendent or designee’s 
concurrence. 

 
2.​ Non-Discretionary Suspension Offenses: Students must be suspended and recommended for 

expulsion when it is determined the student: 
 

a)​ Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other destructive device 
unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the students had obtained 
written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the 
Principal/Superintendent or designee’s concurrence. 

 
b)​ Brandished a knife at another person. 
c)​ Unlawfully sold a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code Section 11053, et 

seq. 
(d) Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code Sections 261, 

266c, 286, 287, 288, or 289 or former Section 288a of the Penal Code, or committed a sexual 
battery as defined in Penal Code Section 243.4. 

 

3.​ Discretionary Expellable Offenses: Students may be expelled for any of the following acts when it is 
determined the student: 

 
a)​ Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person. 

 
b)​ Willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, except self-defense. 

 
c)​ Unlawfully possessed, used, or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any 

controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic 
beverage, or intoxicant of any kind. Students who voluntarily disclose their use of a 
controlled substance, alcohol, or an intoxicant of any kind in order to seek help through 
services or supports shall not be suspended solely for that disclosure. 

 
d)​ Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in 

Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any kind, 
and then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid substance or 
material and represented same as controlled substance, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant. 

 
e)​ Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion. 

 
f)​ Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property, which includes 

but is not limited to, electronic files and databases. 
 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 171  189



 

g)​ Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property, which includes but is 
not limited to, electronic files and databases. 

h)​ Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including 
but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, 
snuff, chew packets and betel. This section does not prohibit the use of their own 
prescription products by a student. Students who voluntarily disclose their use of a tobacco 
product in order to seek help through services or supports shall not be suspended solely for 
that disclosure. 

 
i)​ Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity. 

j)​ Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug 
paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5. 

 

k)​ Knowingly received stolen school property or private property, which includes but is 
not limited to, electronic files and databases. 

 

l)​ Possessed an imitation firearm or weapon, i.e.: a replica of a firearm or weapon that is so 
substantially similar in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable 
person to conclude that the replica is a firearm or weapon. 

 

m)​ Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a 
school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a 
witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness. 

 
n)​Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma. 

 

o)​ Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing. For the purposes of this subdivision, hazing 
means a method of initiation or preinitiation into a student organization or body, whether 
or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is 
likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical 
or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective pupil. For purposes of this section, 
hazing does not include athletic events or school-sanctioned events. 

 
p)​ Made terrorist threats against school officials, students, and/or school property, which 

includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases. For purposes of this section, 
terroristic threats include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person who willfully 
threatens to commit a crime which results in death, great bodily injury to another person, or 
property damage in excess of one thousand dollars ($1,000), with the specific intent that 
the statement is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out, 
which, on its face and under the circumstances in which it is made, is so unequivocal, 
unconditional, immediate, and specific as to convey to the person threatened, a gravity of 
purpose and an 

immediate prospect of execution of the threat, and thereby causes that person reasonably 
to be in sustained fear for their own safety or for their immediate family’s safety, or for the 
protection of school property, which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 172  190



 

databases, or the personal property of the person threatened or their immediate family. 
 

q)​  Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5. For the 
purposes of this section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by a 
reasonable 

person of the same gender as the victim to be sufficiently severe or pervasive to have a 
negative impact upon the individual’s academic performance or to create an intimidating, 
hostile, or offensive educational environment. This section applies to students in any of 
grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 
r)​ Caused, attempted to cause, threaten to cause or participated in an act of hate violence, as 

defined in Education Code Section 233(e) of the Education Code. This section applies to 
students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 
s)​  Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated school personnel or volunteers and/or a 

student or group of students to the extent of having the actual and reasonably expected 
effect of materially disrupting class work, creating substantial disorder and invading the 
rights of either school personnel or volunteers and/or student(s) by creating an intimidating 
or hostile educational environment. This section applies to students in any of grades 4 to 12, 
inclusive. 

 
t)​ Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by means of 

electronic act. 
 

1.​ “Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, 
including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and 
including one or more acts committed by a student or group of students which 
would be deemed hate violence or harassment, threats, or intimidation, which 
are directed toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably 
predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following: 

i.​ Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but is not limited to, a 
student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in 
conduct for a person of their age, or for a person of his or her age with exceptional 
needs) or students in fear of harm to that student’s or those students’ person or 
property. 

ii.​ ii. Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental effect on 
their physical or mental health. 

iii.​ iii. Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with their 
academic performance. 

iv.​ iv. Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with their 
ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided 
by the Charter School. 

 

2.​ “Electronic Act” is (defined as the creation or transmission originated on or off 
the school site, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 173  191



 

telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, 
computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the 
following: 

i.​A message, text, sound, video, or image. 

ii.​A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not limited to: 

(a)​ Posting to or creating a burn page. A “burn page” means an Internet Web 
site created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects as listed in 
subparagraph 
(1) above. 

(b)​ Creating a credible impersonation of another actual pupil for the purpose of 
having one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. “Credible 
impersonation” means to knowingly and without consent impersonate a student for 
the purpose of bullying the student and such that another student would reasonably 
believe, or has reasonably believed, that the student was or is the student who was 
impersonated. 

(c)​ Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects 
listed in subparagraph (1) above. “False profile” means a profile of a fictitious 
student or a profile using the likeness or attributes of an actual student other than 
the student who created the false profile. 

iii.​An act of cyber sexual bullying. 
(a)​ For purposes of this clause, “cyber sexual bullying” means the dissemination 
of, or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate, a photograph or other visual 
recording by a student to another student or to school personnel by means of an 
electronic act that has or can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the 
effects described in subparagraphs (i) to (iv), inclusive, of paragraph (1). A 
photograph or other visual recording, as described above, shall include the depiction 
of a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit photograph or other visual recording of a 
minor where the minor is identifiable from the photograph, visual recording, or 
other electronic act. 
(b)​ For purposes of this clause, “cyber sexual bullying” does not include a 
depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious literary, artistic, educational, 
political, or scientific value or that involves athletic events or school-sanctioned 
activities. 

3) Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act shall not constitute pervasive conduct 
solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet. 

 

(u)​A pupil who aids or abets, as defined in  Penal Code Section 31, the infliction or attempted 
infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject to suspension, but not 
expulsion, except that a student who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to have 
committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the victim 
suffered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury shall be subject to discipline pursuant 
to subdivision (3). 

 

(v)​Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any knife or other dangerous object of no reasonable use 
to the student unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the student had 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 174  192



 

obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the 
Principal/Superintendent or designee’s concurrence. 

 
4.​ Non-Discretionary Expellable Offenses: Students must be expelled for any of the following acts 

when it is determined pursuant to the procedures below that the pupil: 
 

a)​ Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other destructive device 
unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the students had obtained 
written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the 
Principal/Superintendent or designee’s concurrence. 

 
b)​ Brandished a knife at another person. 
c)​ Unlawfully sold a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code Section 11053, et 

seq. 
d)​ Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code Sections 261, 

266c, 286, 287, 288, or 289 or former Section 288a of the Penal Code, or committed a 
sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Section 243.4. 

 

If it is determined by the Council of Directors that a student has brought a firearm or destructive 
device, as defined in Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States Code, on to campus or to have 
possessed a firearm or destructive device on campus, the student will be expelled for one year, 
pursuant to the Federal Gun Free Schools Act of 1994. 

 
The term firearm means (A) any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or 

may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive; (B) the frame or receiver 
of any such weapon; (C) any firearm muffler or firearm silencer; or (D) any destructive device. Such 
term does not include an antique firearm. In such instances, the student shall be provided due 
process rights of notice and a hearing as required in this policy. 

 

The Charter School will use the following definitions: 
 

●​ The term “knife” means (A) any dirk, dagger, or other weapon with a fixed, sharpened blade 
fitted primarily for stabbing; (B) a weapon with a blade fitted primarily for stabbing; (C) a weapon 
with a blade longer than 3½ inches; (D) a folding knife with a blade that locks into place; or (E) a 
razor with an unguarded blade. 

 
●​ The term “firearm” means (A) any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or 

may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive; (B) the frame or 
receiver of any such weapon; (C) any firearm muffler or firearm silencer; or (D) any destructive 
device. Such term does not include an antique firearm. 

 
●​ The term destructive device means  any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas, including but not 

limited to: (A) bomb, (B) grenade, (C) rocket having a propellant charge of more than four 
ounces, (D) missile having an explosive or incendiary charge of more than one-quarter ounce, (E) 
mine, or (F) device similar to any of the devices described in the preceding clauses. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 175  193



 

1.​ Suspension Procedure 

 
Suspensions initiated according to the following procedures: 

 
1.​ Conference 

 
Suspension are preceded, if possible, by a conference conducted by the 

Principal/Superintendent or designee with the student and the student’s parent and, whenever 
practical, the teacher, supervisor or Charter School employee who referred the student to the 
Principal/Superintendent  or designee. 

 
The conference may be omitted if the Principal/Superintendent or designee determines that an 

emergency situation exists. An emergency situation involves a clear and present danger to the lives, 
safety or health of students or Charter School personnel. If a student is suspended without this 
conference, both the parent/guardian and student are notified of the student’s right to return to 
school for the purpose of a conference. 

 
At the conference, the student is informed of the reason for the disciplinary action and the 

evidence against the student and is given the opportunity to present their version and evidence in 
their defense, in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(J)(i). This conference is held 
within two (2) school days, unless the student waives this right or is physically unable to attend for 
any reason including, but not limited to, incarceration or hospitalization. No penalties may be 
imposed on a student for failure of the student’s parent/guardian to attend a conference with 
Charter School officials. Reinstatement of the suspended student is not be contingent upon 
attendance by the student’s parent/ guardian at the conference. 

 
2.​ Notice to Parents/Guardians 

 
At the time of the suspension, an administrator or designee makes a reasonable effort to 

contact the parent/guardian by telephone, by email, or in person. Whenever a student is 
suspended, the parent/guardian shall be notified in writing of the suspension and the date of return 
following suspension. This notice states the specific offense(s) committed by the student as well as 
the date when the student may return to school following the suspension. If Charter School officials 
wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to the suspension, the notice 
may request that the parent/guardian respond to such requests without delay. 

 
3.​ Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Expulsion 

 
Suspensions, when not including a recommendation for expulsion, does not exceed five (5) 

consecutive school days per suspension. Upon a recommendation of expulsion by the 
Principal/Superintendent or designee, the student and the student’s parent/guardian  shall be invited 
to a conference to determine if the suspension for the student should be extended pending an 
expulsion hearing. In such instances when the Charter School has determined a suspension period shall 
be extended, such extension shall be made only after a conference is held with the student or the 
student’s parent/guardian, unless the student and the student’s parent/guardian fail to attend the 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 176  194



 

conference. 
 

This determination is made by the Principal/Superintendent or designee upon either of the 
following: 

 
1)​ The student’s presence is disruptive to the education process; or 2) the student poses a threat 
or danger to others. Upon either determination, the student’s suspension is extended pending the 
results of an expulsion hearing. 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY will comply with federal and state constitutional procedural and 
substantive due process requirements for suspensions of 10 or more days by not suspending any 
student for 10 or more days. Accordingly, no process is necessary for the student to have a fair 
opportunity to present testimony, evidence, witnesses, a rebuttal of the charge(s), and cross-examine 
adverse witnesses, or the right to bring legal counsel or an advocate, in the case of a suspension of 10 
days or more, as, again, no student will be suspended for 10 or more days.  

 
While YES CHARTER ACADEMY will not suspend any student for 10 or more days, if a student 

somehow were to be suspended for 10 or more days, the Expulsion Procedures listed below would apply 
to such a suspension. The procedures provide for – (1) “timely, written notice of the charges against the 
pupil and an explanation of the pupil’s basic rights,” in accordance with Education Code Section 
47605(5)(J)(ii)(I), by serving the student and the student’s parent/guardian with written notice of the 
hearing at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the hearing; and (2) “a hearing adjudicated by a neutral 
officer within a reasonable number of days at which the pupil has a fair opportunity to present 
testimony, evidence, and witnesses and confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at which the 
pupil has the right to bring legal counsel or an advocate,” in accordance with Education Code Section 
47605(5)(J)(ii)(II), by timely holding a hearing after the determination is made that the student should be 
suspended, wherein the student has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and witnesses 
and confront adverse witnesses with the right to counsel or an advocate. 
 
​ 4. Homework Assignments During Suspension 

 

In accordance with Education Code Section 47606.2(a), upon the request of a parent, a legal 

guardian or other person holding the right to make education decisions for the student, or the 
affected student, a teacher shall provide to a student in any of grades 1 to 12, inclusive, who has been 
suspended from school for two (2) or more school days, the homework that the student would 
otherwise have been assigned. 

 

In accordance with Education Code Section 47606.2(b), if a homework assignment that is 
requested pursuant to Section 47606.2(a) and turned into the teacher by the student either upon the 
student’s return to school from suspension or within the timeframe originally prescribed by the 
teacher, whichever is later, is not graded before the end of the academic term, that assignment shall 
not be included in the calculation of the student’s overall grade in the class. 

 

2.​ Authority to Expel 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 177  195



 

 
 As required by Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(J)(ii), students recommended for expulsion are 

entitled to a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer to determine whether the student should be 
expelled. The procedures herein provide for such a hearing and the notice of said hearing, as required 
by law. 

 
A student may be expelled either by the neutral and impartial Charter School Council of Directors 

following a hearing before it or by the Charter School Council of Directors upon the recommendation 
of a neutral and impartial Administrative Panel to be assigned by the Council as needed. The 
Administrative Panel should consist of at least three members who are certificated and neither a 
teacher of the student nor a member of the Charter School’s Council. The Administrative Panel may 
recommend expulsion of any student found to have committed an expellable offense, and the Council 

shall make the final determination. Each entity shall be presided over by a designated neutral hearing 
chairperson. 

 

3.​ Expulsion Procedures 

 
Students recommended for expulsion are entitled to a hearing to determine whether the student 

should be expelled. Unless postponed for good cause, the hearing is held within thirty (30) school days 
after the Principal/Superintendent or designee determines that the student has committed an 
expellable offense and recommends the student for expulsion. 

 

In the event an Administrative Panel hears the case, it makes a recommendation to the Council of 
Directors for a final decision whether to expel. The hearing is held in confidential session (complying 
with all student confidentiality rules under FERPA) unless the student makes a written request for a 
public hearing in open session three (3) days prior to the date of the scheduled hearing. 

 

Written notice of the hearing is forwarded to the student and the student’s parent/guardian at 
least ten (10) calendar days before the date of the hearing. Upon mailing the notice, it is deemed 
served upon the student. The notice includes: 

 
1.​ The date and place of the expulsion hearing; 

2.​ A statement of the specific facts, charges and offenses upon which the proposed expulsion is 
based; 

3.​ A copy of the Charter School’s disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation; 

4.​ Notification of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to provide information about the 
student’s status at the Charter School to any other school County Office of Education or school 
to which the student seeks enrollment; 

5.​ An explanation of he opportunity for the student and/or the student’s parent/guardian to 
appear in person and/or to employ and be represented by counsel or a non-attorney advisor; 

6.​ An explanation of the right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the 
hearing; 

7.​ An explanation of the opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 178  196



 

hearing; 
8.​ An explanation of the opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and 

documentary evidence on the student’s behalf including witnesses. 

 
4.​ Special Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Involving Sexual Assault 

or Battery Offenses 

 
The Charter School may, upon a finding of good cause, determine that the disclosure of either 

the identity of the witness or the testimony of that witness at the hearing, or both, would subject 
the witness to an unreasonable risk of psychological or physical harm. Upon this determination, 
the testimony of the witness may be presented at the hearing in the form of sworn declarations 
that is examined only by the Charter School or the hearing officer. Copies of these sworn 
declarations, edited to delete the name and identity of the witness, is made available to the 
student. 

 
1.​ The complaining witness in any sexual assault or battery case must be provided with a copy of 

the applicable disciplinary rules and advised of their right to (a) receive five days’ notice of 
their scheduled testimony, (b) have up to two (2) adult support persons of their choosing 
present in the hearing at the time the complaining witness testifies, which may include a 
parent/guardian, or legal counsel, and (c) elect to have the hearing closed while testifying. 

 
2.​ The Charter School must also provide the victim a room separate from the hearing room for 

the complaining witness’ use prior to and during breaks in testimony. 
 

3.​ At the discretion of the person or panel conducting the expulsion hearing, the complaining 
witness is allowed periods of relief from examination and cross examination during which the 
complaining witness may leave the hearing room. 

 
4.​ The person or panel conducting the expulsion hearing may also arrange the seating within the 

hearing room to facilitate a less intimidating environment for the complaining witness. 
 

5.​ The person or panel conducting the expulsion hearing may also limit time for taking the 
testimony of the complaining witness to the hours the complaining witness is normally in 
school, if there is no good cause to take the testimony during other hours. 

 

6.​ Prior to a complaining witness testifying, the support persons must be admonished that the 
hearing is confidential. Nothing in the law precludes the entity presiding over the hearing from 
removing a support person whom the presiding person finds is disrupting the hearing. The 
person or panel conducting the hearing may permit any one of the support persons for the 
complaining witness to accompany him or her to the witness stand. 

 
7.​ If one or both of the support persons is also a witness, the Charter School must present 

evidence that the witness’ presence is both desired by the witness and is helpful to the 
Charter School. The person presiding over the hearing permits the witness to stay unless it is 
established that there is a substantial risk that the testimony of the complaining witness 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 179  197



 

would be influenced by the support person, in which case the presiding official admonishes 
the support person or persons not to prompt, sway, or influence the witness in any way. 
Nothing precludes the presiding officer from exercising their discretion to remove a person 
from the hearing whom they believe is prompting, swaying, or influencing the witness. 

 
8.​ The testimony of the support person is presented before the testimony of the complaining 

witness and the complaining witness is excluded from the hearing room during that testimony. 
 

9.​ Especially for charges involving sexual assault or battery, if the hearing is to be conducted in 
public at the request of the student being expelled, the complaining witness have has the right 
to have their testimony heard in a closed session when testifying at a public meeting would 
threaten serious psychological harm to the complaining witness and there are no alternative 
procedures to avoid the threatened harm. The alternative procedures may include videotaped 
depositions or contemporaneous examination in another place communicated to the hearing 
room by means of closed-circuit television. 

 
10.​Evidence of specific instances of a complaining witness’ prior sexual conduct is presumed 

inadmissible and is not be heard absent a determination by the entity conducting the hearing 
that extraordinary circumstances exist requiring the evidence be heard. Before such a 
determination regarding extraordinary circumstance can be made, the witness is provided 
notice and an opportunity to present opposition to the introduction of the evidence. In the 
hearing on the admissibility of the evidence, the complaining witness is entitled to be 
represented by a parent, legal counsel, or other support person. Reputation or opinion 
evidence regarding the sexual behavior of the complaining witness is not admissible for any 
purpose. 

 
5.​ Record of Hearing 

 
A record of the hearing is made and may be maintained by any means, including electronic 

recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written transcription of the proceedings can 
be made. 

 
6.​ Presentation of Evidence 

 

While technical rules of evidence do not apply to expulsion hearings, evidence may be 
admitted and used as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable persons can rely in 
the conduct of serious affairs. A recommendation by the Administrative Panel to expel must be 
supported by substantial evidence that the student committed an expellable offense. Findings of fact 
are based solely on the evidence at the hearing. While hearsay evidence is admissible, no decision to 
expel is based solely on hearsay. Sworn declarations may be admitted as testimony from witnesses of 
whom the Board, Panel or designee determines that disclosure of their identity or testimony at the 
hearing may subject them to an unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm. 

 
If, due to a written request by the expelled student, the hearing is held at a public meeting, and 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 180  198



 

the charge is committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery as 
defined in Education Code Section 48900, a complaining witness has the right to have their testimony 
heard in a session closed to the public. 

 

7.​ Written Notice to Expel 
 

 
The decision of the Administrative Panel is in the form of written findings of fact and a written 

recommendation to the Council who makes a final determination regarding the expulsion. The Council 
make the final determination regarding the expulsion  within ten (10) school days following the 
conclusion of the hearing. The decision of the Council is final. 

 
If the Administrative Panel decides not to recommend expulsion, or the Council of Directors 

ultimately decides not to expel, the student is immediately be returned to their educational program. 
 

8.​ Written Notice to Expel 

 
The Principal/Superintendent or designee, following a decision of the Council to expel, send 

written notice of the decision to expel, including the Council’s adopted findings of fact, to the student 
and student’s parent/guardian. This notice also includes the following: (a) Notice of the specific 
offense committed by the student; and (b) Notice of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to 
inform any new District in which the student seeks to enroll of the student’s status with the Charter 
School. 

 
The Principal/Superintendent or designee sends a copy of the written notice of the decision to 

expel to the chartering authority. This notice includes the following: (a) The student’s name; and (b) 
The specific expellable offense committed by the student. 

 
9.​ Disciplinary Records 

 
The Charter School maintains records of all student suspensions and expulsions at the Charter 

School. Such records are made available to the chartering authority upon request. 

 
10.​ No Right to Appeal 

 
The student have no right of appeal from expulsion from the Charter School as the Charter School 

Council’s decision to expel are final. 

 

11.​ Expelled Students/Alternative Education 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 181  199



 

Parents and/or guardians of students who are expelled are responsible for seeking alternative 
education programs including, but not limited to, programs within the County or their school County 
Office of Education of residence. The Charter School works cooperatively with parents/guardians as 
requested by parents/guardians or by the school County Office of Education of residence to assist with 
locating alternative placements during expulsion. 

 
12.​ Rehabilitation Plans 

 
Students who are expelled from the Charter School is given a rehabilitation plan upon expulsion as 

developed by the Council at the time of the expulsion order, which may include, but is not limited to, 
periodic review as well as assessment at the time of review for readmission. The rehabilitation plan 
should include a date not later than one (1) year from the date of expulsion when the student may 
reapply to the Charter School for readmission. 

 
13.​ Readmission or Admission of Previously Expelled Student 

 
The decision to readmit a student after the end of the student’s expulsion term or to admit a 

previously expelled student from another school County Office of Education or charter school who has 
not been readmitted/admitted to another school or school district after the end of the student’s 
expulsion term, is in the sole discretion of the Council following a meeting with the 
Principal/Superintendent or designee and the student and student’s parent/guardian or representative 
to determine whether the student has successfully completed the rehabilitation plan and to determine 
whether the student poses a threat to others or is disruptive to the school environment. The 
Principal/Superintendent or designee makes a recommendation to the Council following the meeting 
regarding his or her determination. The Council of Directors shall then make a final decision regarding 
readmission or admission of the student during the closed session of a public meeting, reporting out 
any action taken during closed session consistent with the requirements of the Brown Act. The 
student’s readmission is also contingent upon the Charter School’s capacity at the time the student 
seeks readmission or admission to the Charter School. 

 

14.​ Notice to Teachers 
 

The Charter School shall notify teachers of each student who has engaged in or is reasonably suspected 
to have engaged in any of the acts listed in Education Code Section 49079 and the corresponding 
enumerated offenses set forth above. 

 

15.​Special Procedures for the Consideration of Suspension and 

Expulsion or Involuntary Removal of Students with Disabilities 

 
1.​ Notification of County Office of Education 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 182  200



 

The Charter School immediately notifies the County Office of Education and coordinates 
the procedures in this policy with the County Office of Education of the discipline of any 
student with a disability or student who the Charter School or County Office of Education 
is deemed to have knowledge that the student had a disability. 

 
2.​ Services During Suspension 

 
Students suspended for more than ten (10) school days in a school year continue to 
receive services so as to enable the student to continue to participate in the general 
education curriculum, although in another setting (which could constitute a change of 
placement and the student’s IEP would reflect this change), and to progress toward 
meeting the goals set out in the child’s IEP/504 Plan; and receive, as appropriate, a 
functional behavioral assessment, and behavioral intervention services and modifications, 
that are designed to address the behavior violation so that it does not recur. These 
services are provided in an interim alterative educational setting. 

 
3.​ Procedural Safeguards/Manifestation Determination 

 
Within ten (10) school days of a recommendation for expulsion or any decision to change 
the placement of a child with a disability because of a violation of a code of student 
conduct, the Charter School, the parent/guardian, and relevant members of the IEP/504 
Team reviews all relevant information in the student’s file, including the child’s IEP/504 
Plan, any teacher observations, and any relevant information provided by the 
parent/guardian to determine: 

 
a.​ If the conduct in question was caused by, or had a direct and substantial 

relationship to, the child’s disability; or 
b.​ If the conduct in question is the direct result of the local educational agency’s 

failure to implement the IEP/504 Plan. 
 

If the Charter School, the parent/guardian, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team determine 
that either of the above is applicable for the child, the conduct is determined to be a 
manifestation of the child’s disability. 

 

If the Charter School, the parent/guardian, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team make the 
determination that the conduct was a manifestation of the child’s disability, the IEP/504 Team: 

 

a.​ Conducts a functional behavioral assessment and implements a behavioral 
intervention plan for such child, provided that the Charter School had not 
conducted such assessment prior to such determination before the behavior 
that resulted in a change in placement; 

b.​ If a behavioral intervention plan has been developed, reviews the behavioral 
intervention plan if the child already has such a behavioral intervention plan, 
and modifies it, as necessary, to address the behavior; and 

c.​ Returns the child to the placement from which the child was removed, unless 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 183  201



 

the parent/guardian and the Charter School agree to a change of placement 
as part of the modification of the behavioral intervention plan. 

 
If the Charter School, the parent/guardian, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team determine 
that the behavior was not a manifestation of the student’s disability and that the conduct in 
question was not a direct result of the failure to implement the IEP/504 Plan, then the Charter 
School may apply the relevant disciplinary procedures to children with disabilities in the same 
manner and for the same duration as the procedures would be applied to students without 
disabilities. 

 

4.​ Due Process Appeals 
 

The parent/guardian of a child with a disability who disagrees with any decision regarding 
placement, or the manifestation determination, or the Charter School believes that 
maintaining the current placement of the child is substantially likely to result in injury to 
the child or to others, may request an expedited administrative hearing through the 
Special Education Unit of the Office of Administrative Hearings or by utilizing the dispute 
provisions of the 504 Policy and Procedures. 

 
When an appeal relating to the placement of the student or the manifestation 
determination has been requested by either the parent/guardian or the Charter School, 
the student remains in the interim alternative educational setting pending the decision of 
the hearing officer in accordance with state and federal law, including 20 U.S.C. Section 
1415(k), or until the expiration of the forty-five (45) day time period provided for in an 
interim alternative educational setting,  unless the parent/guardian and the Charter 
School agree otherwise. 

 
In accordance with 20 U.S.C. Section 1415(k)(3), if a parent/guardian disagrees with any 
decision regarding placement, or the manifestation determination, or if the Charter School 
believes that maintaining the current placement of the child is substantially likely to result 
in injury to the child or to others, the parent/guardian or Charter School may request a 
hearing. 

 

In such an appeal, a hearing officer may: (1) return a child with a disability to the 
placement from which the child was removed; or (2) order a change in placement of a 
child with a disability to an appropriate interim alternative educational setting for not 
more than 45 school days if the hearing officer determines that maintaining the current 
placement of such child is substantially likely to result in injury to the child or to others. 

 

5.​ Special Circumstances 
 

Charter School personnel may consider any unique circumstances on a case-by-case basis 

when determining whether to order a change in placement for a child with a disability who 
violates a code of student conduct. 

 

The Principal/Superintendent or designee may remove a student to an interim alternative 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 184  202



 

educational setting for not more than forty-five (45) school days without regard to whether 
the behavior is determined to be a manifestation of the student’s disability in cases where a 
student: 

 
a.​ Carries or possesses a weapon, as defined in 18 U.S.C. Section 930, to or at school, on 

school premises, or to or at a school function; 
b.​ Knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs, or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled 

substance, while at school, on school premises, or at a school function; or 
c.​ Has inflicted serious bodily injury, as defined by 20 U.S.C. Section 1415(k)(7)(D), upon 

a person while at school, on school premises, or at a school function. 
 

6.​ Interim Alternative Educational Setting 
 

The student’s interim alternative educational setting is determined by the student’s IEP/504 Team. 
 

7.​ Procedures for Students Not Yet Eligible for Special Education Services 
 

A student who has not been identified as an individual with disabilities pursuant to IDEIA and who 
has violated the Charter School’s disciplinary procedures may assert the procedural safeguards 
granted under this administrative regulation only if the Charter School had knowledge that the 
student is disabled before the behavior occurred. 

 

The Charter School is deemed to have knowledge that the student had a disability if one of the 
following conditions exists: 

 
a.​ The parent/guardian has expressed concern in writing, or orally if the parent/guardian 

does not know how to write or has a disability that prevents a written statement, to 
Charter School supervisory or administrative personnel, or to one of the child’s 
teachers, that the student is in need of special education or related services. 

b.​ The parent/guardian has requested an evaluation of the child. 

c.​ The child’s teacher, or other Charter School personnel, has expressed specific concerns 
about a pattern of behavior demonstrated by the child, directly to the director of 
special education or to other Charter School supervisory personnel. 

 
 

If the Charter School knew or should have known the student had a disability under any of the three 
(3) circumstances described above, the student may assert any of the protections available to IDEIA- eligible 
children with disabilities, including the right to stay-put. 

 

If the Charter School had no basis for knowledge of the student’s disability, it proceeds with the 
proposed discipline. The Charter School conducts an expedited evaluation if requested by the parents; 
however, the student remains in the education placement determined by the Charter School pending the 
results of the evaluation. 

 

The Charter School is not deemed to have knowledge that the student had a disability if the 
parent/guardian has not allowed an evaluation, refused services, or if the student has been evaluated and 
determined to not be eligible. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 185  203



 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 186  204



 

 

(11)​ Element 11 – Employee Retirement Systems 

Governing law: "The manner by which staff members of the charter schools will be 
covered by the State Teachers' Retirement System, the Public Employees' Retirement 
System, or federal social security." 

 
Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(K) 

 

Non-certificated employees at YES CHARTER ACADEMY participate in the federal social security 
system. Certificated employees who are eligible participate in the State Teachers’ Retirement System 
(“STRS”). YES CHARTER ACADEMY will not offer California Public Employees’ Retirement System benefits 
to its employees. YES CHARTER ACADEMY may opt to offer an appropriate retirement plan (such as a 
401(k) or 403(b)) to employees in the future. The County Office of Education (per Education Code) 
cooperates as necessary to forward any required payroll deductions and related data for STRS. The 
Principal/Superintendent is responsible for ensuring that appropriate arrangements for coverage are 
made. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 187  205



 

 

(12)​ Element 12 -- Public School Attendance Alternatives 
 

Governing law: "The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school 
district who choose not to attend charter schools." 

 
Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(L) 

 

No student may be required to attend the Charter School. Students who reside within the County who 
choose not to attend YES CHARTER ACADEMY may attend school within their school of residence according 
to that district’s policy or at another school district or school within the County through the district’s intra 
and inter-district transfer  policies. Parents and guardians of each student enrolled in the Charter School 
are informed on admission forms that the students have no right to admission in a particular school of a 
local education agency as a consequence of enrollment in the Charter School, except to the extent that 
such a right is extended by the local education agency. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 188  206



 

 

(13)​ Element 13 – Employee Return Rights  

Governing law: "The rights of an employee of the school district upon leaving the 
employment of the school district to work in a charter school, and of any rights of return to the 
school district after employment at a charter school." 

 
Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(M) 

 

No individual is required to work at the Charter School. Employees of the County who choose to leave 
the employment of the County  to work at YES CHARTER ACADEMY have has no automatic rights of 
return to the County after employment at YES CHARTER ACADEMY unless specifically granted by the 
County through a leave of absence or other agreement or policy of the County as aligned with the 
collective bargaining agreements of the County. The County does not have the right to place teachers at 
the Charter School. 

 
YES CHARTER ACADEMY employees shall have any right upon leaving the County  to work in the 

Charter School that the County  may specify, any rights of return to employment in a school County after 
employment in the Charter School that the County  may specify, and any other rights upon leaving 
employment to work in the Charter School that the County  determines to be reasonable and not in 
conflict with any law. 

 
 Sick or vacation leave or years of service credit at the County or any school district are not 

transferred to the Charter School. Employment by the Charter School provides no rights of employment 
at any other entity, including any rights in the case of closure of the Charter School. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 189  207



 

 

Element 14 -- Dispute Resolution Procedures​  

Governing law: "The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the chartering 
authority to resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter." 

 

Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(N) 
 

A.​ Intent 

 
The intent of this dispute resolution process is to 1) resolve disputes within the Charter School 

pursuant to the Charter School’s policies, 2) minimize the oversight burden on the County, and 3) ensure 

a fair and timely resolution to disputes. 

 

B.​ Internal Disputes 

 
The Council of Directors adopts an internal dispute resolution procedure that is applicable to 

students, parents/guardians, volunteers, YES CHARTER ACADEMY personnel, and Council of Directors 
members. The Charter School shall have an internal dispute resolution process to be used for all internal 
disputes (general complaints) related to the Charter School’s operations. The Charter School shall also 
maintain a Uniform Complaint Policy and Procedures and Title IX complaint procedures as required by 
state and federal law, respectively.  Parents, students, board members, volunteers, and staff at YES 
CHARTER ACADEMY are provided with a copy of YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s policies and dispute resolution 
process, at minimum, via the Charter School’s website, and via the Parent-Student Handbook, and agree 
to work within it.  

 
The County agrees to promptly refer all complaints regarding YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s operations, 

policies and procedures to YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s Superintendent/Principal for resolution in 
accordance with YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s adopted policies. In the event that YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s 
Superintendent/Principal fails to resolve the dispute, it may be referred to YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s 
Council of Directors. The County agrees not to intervene in the dispute without the consent of the 
Council of Directors unless the matter directly relates to one of the reasons specified in law for which a 
charter may be revoked. 

 
The Council of Directors has authority to make final determinations regarding all internal disputes. 

The Yuba County Office of Education has no authority or involvement in YES CHARTER ACADEMY internal 
disputes. 

 

C.​ Disputes Between YES CHARTER ACADEMY and the County  

 
The staff and Council of Directors of YES CHARTER ACADEMY and YCOE agree to attempt to resolve all 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 190  208



 

disputes regarding this charter pursuant to the terms of this section. Both refrain from public 
commentary regarding any disputes until the matter has progressed through the dispute resolution 
process. 

 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY works with the County in good faith to informally resolve any disputes that 
may arise between them. Should informal resolution of such disputes fail, the following Dispute 
Resolution Process prevails. 

 
According to the MOU between YES CHARTER ACADEMY AND YCOE: (See Appendix 14). The Parties 

acknowledge and agree that in addition to the provisions of the charter, dispute resolution procedures 
shall be consistent with applicable laws and regulations, including Education Code section 47607(g). The 
staff and governing board members of the Charter School agree to resolve any claim, controversy, or 
dispute arising out of or relating to the Charter agreement between the Yuba COE and the Charter School, 
except any controversy or claim that is in any way related to revocation of this Charter School, pursuant to 
the terms of the dispute resolution procedures in the charter. The Superintendent/Principal and 
Superintendent informally meet and confer in a timely fashion to attempt to resolve the dispute, not later 
than five business days from receipt of the dispute statement. In the event that this informal meeting fails 
to resolve the dispute, both parties identify two Board/Council members from their respective boards who 
jointly meet with the Superintendent and the Superintendent/Principal of the Charter School and attempt 
to resolve the dispute within 15 business days from receipt of the dispute statement. 

 
If this joint meeting fails to resolve the dispute, the Superintendent and the Superintendent/Principal 

meet to jointly identify a neutral third-party mediator to engage the Parties in a mediation session 
designed to facilitate resolution of the dispute. The format of the mediation session is developed jointly 
by the Superintendent and the Superintendent/Principal. Mediation is held within sixty business days of 
receipt of the dispute statement. The costs of the mediator are split equally between the County and the 
Charter School. If mediation does not resolve the dispute either party may pursue any other remedy 
available under the law. All timelines and procedures in this section may be revised upon mutual written 
agreement of the County and the Charter School. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 191  209



 

 

Element 15 -- Closure Procedures 
 
Governing law: “The procedures to be used if the charter school closes. The procedures shall 
ensure a final audit of the charter school to determine the disposition of all assets and 
liabilities of the charter school, including plans for disposing of any net assets and for the 
maintenance and transfer of pupil records.” 

 
Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(O) 

 

A. Closure Protocol 

 
The following procedures apply in the event YES CHARTER ACADEMY closes, regardless of the reason 

for closure. Closure of YES CHARTER ACADEMY is documented by official action of the Council of 
Directors. The action identifies the reason for closure. The Council of Directors promptly notifies the 
County of the closure and of the effective date of the closure. The Council of Directors ensures 
notification to the parents and students of YES CHARTER ACADEMY of the closure and provides 
information to assist parents and students in locating suitable alternative programs. This notice is 
provided promptly following YES CHARTER ACADEMY’s Council of Directors decision to close YES 
CHARTER ACADEMY. 

 
Should YES CHARTER ACADEMY close, the following procedures are followed to ensure an orderly 

closing of the Charter School: 

 
●​ The Charter School Superintendent/Principal and Council President are designated as the 

responsible parties to conduct closure-related activities 
●​ The Charter School Superintendent/Principal and Council President ensures that the 

parents/guardians of pupils, the County, the Yuba County SELPA, the STRS retirement system 
and Federal Social Security Administration, and the California Department of Education are 
informed in a timely fashion about: 

●​ The effective date of the closure 
●​ The names and contact information of the principal and Council chairperson to 

whom reasonable inquiries about the closure may be made 
●​ The pupils’ districts of residence 

●​ The manner in which parents or guardians of pupils may obtain of pupil records, 
including specific information on completed courses and credits that meet 
graduation requirements 

 
The Charter School ensures that the notification to the parents and students of the Charter School of 

the closure provides information to assist parents and students in locating suitable alternative programs. 
This notice is provided promptly following the Council's decision to close the Charter School. 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 192  210



 

The Charter School also develops a list of pupils in each grade level and the classes they have 
completed, together with information on the pupils’ districts of residence, which it provide to the entity 
responsible for closure-related activities. 

 
As applicable, the Charter School provides parents, students and the County with copies of all 

appropriate student records and otherwise assists students in transferring to their next school. All 
transfers of student records is made in compliance with the FERPA. The Charter School asks the County to 
store original records of Charter School students. All records of the Charter School are transferred to the 
County upon Charter School closure. If the County does not or cannot store the records, the Charter 
School works with the County  to determine a suitable alternative location for storage. 

 
All state assessment results, special education records, and personnel records are transferred to and 

maintained by the entity responsible for closure-related activities in accordance with applicable law. 
 

Additionally: 

 
●​ The Charter School shall maintain a current list of students by grade level and the classes 

that the students have completed, together with information on the pupils’ residence 
●​ The Charter School shall ensure that its has all pupil records, all state assessment results, and 

any special education records for pupils, and that these records are kept in a secure, 
accessible location 

●​ The Charter School shall transfer and maintain personnel records in accordance with 
applicable law and in accordance with Section 11962 of Title 5 of the California Code of 
Regulations 

●​ An independent educational consultant may be hired to collect, organize, and submit copies 
of all student records to the district and/ or the school that receives the students 

●​ The Charter School shall ensure that an independent final audit is completed within six 
months after the closure of the Charter School. This audit may function as the annual audit, 
and it include: 

●​ An accounting of all financial assets, including cash and accounts receivable, and an 
inventory of property, equipment, and other items of material value 

●​ An accounting of the liabilities, including accounts payable and any reduction in 
apportionments as a result of audit findings or other investigations, loans, and 
unpaid staff compensation 

●​ An assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received by or due to the 
Charter School. 

●​ The Charter School shall ensure the orderly disposal of any net assets remaining 
after all liabilities of the Charter School have been paid or otherwise addressed, 
including but not limited to, the following: 

●​ The return of any grant funds and restricted categorical funds to their source in 
accordance with the terms of the grant or state and federal law, as appropriate, 
which may include submission of final expenditure reports for entitlement grants 
and the filing of any required Final Expenditure Reports and Final Performance 
Reports. 

●​ The return of any donated materials and property in accordance with any conditions 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 193  211



 

established when the donation of such materials or property was accepted. 
●​ The Charter School shall ensure that the annual reports required pursuant to 

Education Code Section 47604.33 are completed and filed. 
●​ The Charter School sets aside a reserve/contingency fund for the expeditious 

completion of these tasks. 
 

On closure of YES CHARTER ACADEMY, all assets of YES CHARTER ACADEMY, including but not limited 
to all leaseholds, personal property, intellectual property, and all ADA apportionments and other 
revenues generated by students attending YES CHARTER ACADEMY, remain the sole property of YES 
CHARTER ACADEMY and are distributed in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation upon the 
dissolution of the nonprofit public benefit corporation. On closure, YES CHARTER ACADEMY remains 
solely responsible for all liabilities arising from the operation of YES CHARTER ACADEMY. 

 
As YES CHARTER ACADEMY is organized as a nonprofit public benefit corporation, the YES CHARTER 

ACADEMY Council of Directors follows the procedures set forth in the California Corporations Code for 
the dissolution of a nonprofit public benefit corporation and files all necessary filings with the 
appropriate state and federal agencies. 

 
Additional policies and procedures are determined as needed by the Council of Directors based on 

the needs of the Charter School and the County. 
 

 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 194  212



 

MISCELLANEOUS CHARTER PROVISIONS 
 
A.​ Budgets and Financial Reporting 
 
Governing law: The petitioner or petitioners also shall be required to provide financial statements that 
include a proposed first year operational budget, including startup costs, and cash flow and financial 
projections for the first three years of operation. Education Code Section 47605(h). 

​  
These documents are based upon the best data available to the petitioners at this time.  

 
●​ Budget narrative 
●​ A projected budget  
●​ Financial projections and cash flow for three years of operation 

 
The Charter School shall provide reports to the County as follows in accordance with Education 

Code Section 47604.33, and shall provide additional fiscal reports as requested by YCOE: 
 

1.​ By July 1, a preliminary budget for the current fiscal year.   
 

2.​ By July 1, a local control and accountability plan and an annual update to the local control and 
accountability plan required pursuant to Education Code Section 47606.5. 

 
3.​ By December 15, an interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting changes 

through October 31.  Additionally, on December 15, a copy of the Charter School’s annual, 
independent financial audit report for the preceding fiscal year shall be delivered to the State 
Controller, California Department of Education and County Superintendent of Schools.   

 
4.​ By March 15, a second interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting changes 

through January 31. 
 

5.​ By September 15, a final unaudited report for the full prior year.  The report submitted to the 
County shall include an annual statement of all the Charter School’s receipts and expenditures 
for the preceding fiscal year. 

 
The Charter School shall provide reporting to the County as required by law and as requested by 

the County including, but not limited to, the following: California Basic Educational Data System (CBEDS), 
actual Average Daily Attendance reports, all financial reports required by Education Code Sections 
47604.33 and 47605(m), the School Accountability Report Card (SARC), and the LCAP.   
 

The Charter School agrees to and submits to the right of the County to make random visits and 
inspections in order to carry out its statutorily required oversight in accordance with Education Code 
Sections 47604.32 and 47607. 
 

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.3, the Charter School shall promptly respond to all 
reasonable inquiries including, but not limited to, inquiries regarding its financial records from the 
County. 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 195  213



 

 
B.​ Insurance    
 

The Charter School shall acquire and finance general liability, workers’ compensation, and other 
necessary insurance of the types and in the amounts required for an enterprise of similar purpose and 
circumstance. Coverage amounts will be based on recommendations provided by the Charter School’s 
insurer. The County Board of Education shall be named as an additional insured on all policies of the 
Charter School.  
 
C.​ Administrative Services 
 
Governing law: The manner in which administrative services of the charter school are to be provided.  
Education Code Section 47605(h). 
 

The Charter School will provide or procure its own administrative services including, but not 
limited to, financial management, accounts payable/receivable, payroll, human resources, and 
instructional program development either through its own staff or through an appropriately qualified 
third-party contractor.  
 
D.​ Facilities 
 
Governing law: The facilities to be used by the charter school.  The description of the facilities to be used 
by the charter school shall specify where the charter school intends to locate.  Education Code Section 
47605(h). 
 

YES CHARTER ACADEMY is located at 9841 Texas Hill Road, Oregon House, CA 95962. Mailing 
address PO BOX 430 Oregon House, CA 95962. 
 

The facilities map referenced in the executive summary is of the current property.  Based on 
enrollment projections we will be building a new facility, the addition of which has already been 
approved by the County Board, to house 7 -12th grade with modular buildings at 9256 Marysville Road, 
Oregon House, CA 95962. 
 

E.​ Potential Civil Liability Effects 
 
Governing law: Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the charter school and upon the school district. 
Education Code Section 47605(h). 
 

The Charter School shall be operated as a California non-profit public benefit corporation. This 
corporation is organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes within the meaning of Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 23701(d).   
 

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604(d), an authority that grants a charter to a charter 
school operated as a non-profit public benefit corporation shall not be liable for the debts or obligations 
of the charter school or for claims arising from the performance of acts, errors or omissions by the 
charter school if the authority has complied with all oversight responsibilities required by law.  The 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 196  214



 

Charter School shall work diligently to assist the County in meeting any and all oversight obligations 
under the law, including monthly meetings, reporting, or other County-requested protocol to ensure the 
County shall not be liable for the operation of the Charter School.   
 

Further, the Charter School intends to enter into a memorandum of understanding with the 
County, wherein the Charter School shall indemnify the County for the actions of the Charter School 
under this charter. 
 

The corporate bylaws of the Charter School shall provide for indemnification of the Charter 
School’s Board, officers, agents, and employees, and the Charter School will purchase general liability 
insurance, Board Members and Officers insurance, and fidelity bonding to secure against financial risks.   
 

As stated above, insurance amounts shall be determined by recommendation of the Charter 
School’s insurance company for schools of similar size, location, and student population.  The County 
shall be named an additional insured on the general liability insurance of the Charter School.   
 

The Charter School Board shall institute appropriate risk management practices as discussed herein, 
including screening of employees, establishing codes of conduct for students, and dispute resolution. 

 
4930-2035-9782, v. 11 

Charter Renewal Petition​ ​ ​ 197  215



YUBA COUNTY 
OFFICE OF EDUCATION
FIRST INTERIM REPORT  
2025-26 FISCAL YEAR

Rob Gregor, 
Superintendent

Aaron Thornsberry, 
Chief Business Official
Board of Trustees Meeting, 
December 15, 2025

216



FIRST INTERIM REPORT

Provides a revised budget, with comparison to original budget and actual results 
from July 1(start of Fiscal Year) to October 31.

Due to California Department of Education on 12/15

The report provides a summary of all revenues and expenses and provides it broken 
out by Unrestricted vs. Restricted.
 Unrestricted – No restrictions placed by government or grantor on use of funds
 Restricted- Restrictions on how funds are used, must be for specific purposes.

Presentation will mostly cover Fund 1 – General Fund.
 Most activity for YCOE Occurs in General Fund

217



UNRESTRICTED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
Original First Interim Change

Revenues $8,104,477 $8,334,823 $230,346

Expenses 7,398,724 7,480,100 (81,376)

Net Transfers from/to Other Funds 1,587 (698) (2,285)

Contributions to Restricted Budget 279,151 268,759 10,392

Change in Fund Balance $428,189 $585,266 $157,077

Beginning Fund Balance 10,926,077 11,532,942 $606,865

Ending Fund Balance $11,354,266 $12,118,208 $763,942

Major drivers of the increase in fund balance:
•  Increased revenue budget from projected higher interest income.

• Average daily attendance unchanged from Original Budget.
•  Higher legal related expenses forecasted, offsetting some savings in personnel.
•  Beginning Fund balance increased from higher revenues in the prior year mostly from interest earnings that 

were reported late to us from the County Auditor, and savings on expenditures from prior year.
218



RESTRICTED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
Original First Interim Change

Revenues $25,768,690 $25,197,297 ($571,393)

Expenses 27,235,678 27,012,262 223,416

Net Transfers from/to Other Funds - - -

Contributions from Unrestricted Budget 279,151 268,759 (10,392)

Change in Fund Balance ($1,187,837) ($1,546,206) ($358,369)

Beginning Fund Balance 4,260,137 5,783,931 $1,523,794

Ending Fund Balance $3,072,300 $4,237,725 $1,165,425

• Revenue Changes: 
• Restricted grants had lower carryover than originally projected.

• Expense Changes: Position and benefit savings offset increased costs in books and supplies and Services and 
Other Category. More analysis to be done to project Special Education’s how this impacts contracted 
services costs. 2nd Interim may see an increase to overall expenditures.

• Beginning Fund Balance: 
• Many prior year grant expense budgets were not spent when books were closed.  This resulted in an 

increase to the beginning fund balance.
219



RESTRICTED REVENUE DECREASE
Federal Revenues: Decrease of $200,653 from lower carryover of grants than 
originally budgeted, mostly from Title I.

Other State Revenue: Decrease of $50,386
 Based on changing award amounts, carryover and timing around use of funds.

Other Local Revenue: Decrease of $320,353
 New Yuba Co. Health and Human Service Contract offset by lower carryover of grant funds from the 

Yuba Co. Behavioral Health Mobile Access Grant

220



OTHER FUNDS
Fund Original Budget Ending 

Fund Balance
First Interim Budget
Ending Fund Balance

Change from 
Original

09 - Charter 2,456,145 2,640,745 184,600

10 - Special Education Pass Through 399,094 443,107 44,013

11 – Adult Education 53,622 113,565 59,943

12 – Child Development 204,810 231,685 26,875

14 – Deferred Maintenance 2,356,747 2,435,928 79,181

16 - Forest Reserve - 59 59

17- Special Reserve for Other Than Capital Outlay 190,510 193,407 2,897

35 – County School Facilities Fund 1,139,091 1,175,772 36,681

40 – Special Reserve for Capital Outlay 145,020 147,542 2,522

63 – Other Enterprise 1,065,176 1,065,196 20

67 – Self Insurance Fund (540,943) (492,253) 48,690

221



UNRESTRICTED MYP
25-26 26-27 27-28

Total Revenues $8,334,823 $8,413,750 $8,474,015

Total Expenses 7,480,100 7,783,272 8,134,610

Net Transfers to Other Funds 698 698 698

Contributions to Restricted 268,759 308,648 337,593

Increase(Decrease) to Fund Balance $585,266 $321,132 $1,114

Ending Fund Balance $12,118,208 $12,439,341 $12,440,455

• State COLA is assumed to be 3.02% for 26-27 and 3.42% for 27-28

• Budget Surplus declining

• Funded ADA slightly declining due to decreased enrollment in last few years.

• The MYP above assumes 2.82% Salary Increases in 26-27, and 2.72% in 27-28 aligned with the projected 
California Consumer Price Index. It also assumes 3% Certificated Step and Column Increase and 2.50% for 
Classified. Negotiations have not been settled for these years so actual salary increase may be different.222



RESTRICTED MYP

25-26 26-27 27-28

Total Revenues $25,197,297 $22,877,344 $23,400,003

Total Expenses 27,012,262 24,852,178 25,324,605

Contributions from Unrestricted 268,759 308,648 332,220

Increase (Decrease) to Fund Balance (1,546,206) (1,666,186) (1,592,383)

Ending Fund Balance $4,237,725 $2,571,539 $847,430

• Decrease in Restricted Fund Balance, due to the spenddown of grants already received.
• Allcove program assumed to expire at the end of 25-26 and most of Healthcare Access Initiative also 

set to end, resulting in a drop of revenue and expenditures.

223



COMBINED MULTI-YEAR PROJECTION
25-26 26-27 27-28

Total Revenues $33,532,120 $31,291,094 $31,874,018

Total Expenses 32,635,450 32,635,450 33,596,315

Other Financing 
Sources/Uses

(698) (698) (698)

(Decrease) to Fund Balance ($960,940) ($1,345,054) ($1,722,995)

Ending Fund Balance $16,355,933 $15,010,880 $13,287,885

224



LOOKING AHEAD
Despite loss of one-time revenues, unrestricted budget has a surplus and still balanced over 
this year and the next two years.
 New programs and grants to replace expiring ones help to keep continuity of staff and operations.

Temporary boost begins to fade next year:

Revenues received by the state have outperformed estimates year to date. However, this may 
be due to an AI investment bubble. 

The short-term outlook is good with an increased 24-25 and 25-26 Proposition 98 minimum 
guarantee and a higher 26-27 amount than the 25-26 enacted budget level. 26-27 however 
will be $500 million below the revised amount. 

A larger state deficit is forecasted in 27-28 of $35 Billion. The LAO forecasts through 28-29 
sufficient funding to pay for COLA increases through and existing programs with little for any 
new investments.

225



Object Original Budget 1st Interim Budget Adjustment

Resource

LCFF Sources 8010-8099 9,182,743.00                       9,149,409.00                       (33,334.00)                           

Higher Differentiated Assistance funding and higher estimates of property taxes

Federal Revenue 8100-8299 3,294,879.16                       3,094,225.90                       (200,653.26)                         
Title I Grants 3010/25, 3182/83 (234,093.82)                                     

SPED - Local Assistance, Mental Health and Inclusive 

Practices
3310/3386 12,992.36                                         

Alternative Dispute Resolution 3395 (6,106.22)                                         

Title II, Part A 4035 (482.29)                                            

Title IV, Part A 4127 1,520.00                                          

Title III, Pt A 4203 24,472.87                                        

Federal Prevention Grants 5630-5634 (3,356.16)                                         

Workforce Investment and Opportunity 5900 4,400.00                                          

Other State Revenue 8300-8599 6,759,212.51                       6,771,889.09                       12,676.58                            
Mandated Block Grant 0000 (31.00)                                               

Apprenticeship Program 0390 63,094.00                                        

Student Support & Professional Development 

Discretionary Block Grant
6019 64,874.00                                         

Ca Community Schools Implementation Grant 6332 23,700.00                                        

Golden State Pathways Program 6383 (332,052.00)                                     

K-12 Strong Workforce Program 6388 (56,185.53)                                       

Special Education AB602 6500 (2,457.39)                                         

Tobacco Use Prevention Education 6690 (36,528.49)                                       

Prop 28- Arts and Music in Schools 6770 (2,446.00)                                         

LCSSP 7085 (5,461.55)                                         

Foster Youth Grants 7366/7368 (1,726.49)                                         

STRS On Behalf 7690 3,067.00                                          

Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant 7435 18,151.00                                        

Positive Parenting Program 7814 11,445.90                                        

Dialectical Behavior Therapy 7815 2,640.00                                          

Health Care Access and Information 7821 (91,169.61)                                       

Cal-MSCS 7820 49,741.29                                        

Cal Serves 7822 354.00                                              

Allcove 7830 303,667.45                                      

Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 14,636,331.73                    14,516,596.28                    (119,735.45)                         
Intererest Income and Fees and Rebates 0000 88,091.84                                        

One Stop Leases 0190 42,525.77                                        

Community Engagement Inititave 0243 70,000.00                                        

Adults in Correctional Facilities 6015 (3,192.27)                                         

Special Education AB602 6500 22,401.98                                        

Donations 9020 7,500.00                                          

Proposition 64 Grant 9036 (28,482.32)                                       

Sac County 21 CSLA MOU 9061 4,000.00                                          

Prevention MOUs 9064 5,004.07                                          

TK Math Lake COE 9223 (20,000.00)                                       

CCFAC 9230 2,000.00                                          

Mobile Access 9240 (474,191.66)                                     

Title VI Foster Care Admin 9366 22,000.00                                        

Homeless Housing Assistance 9367 (47,223.61)                                       

YC HHS Grants 9368-9371 188,430.75                                      

Tech1 Yuba County 9710 1,400.00                                          

Interfund Transfers 8900-8929 1,586.86                              1,586.86                              -                                        
Higher fund balance to transfer of remaining funds from closure of the Debt Service Fund

33,874,753.26$           33,533,707.13$           (341,046.13)$               

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 5,068,824.40                       4,618,745.78                       (450,078.62)                         
Decreased budget due to vacant positions, mostly from the Special Education Program.

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 10,320,478.39                    10,263,023.61                    (57,454.78)                           
Decrease in budget due to vacant positions and unutilized extra duty pay.

Employee Benefits 3000-3999 7,324,290.22                       6,907,959.11                       (416,331.11)                         

Books and Supplies 4000-4999 2,036,106.40                       2,171,222.50                       135,116.10                          

Services/Operating 5000-5999 9,818,046.47                       10,477,040.47                    658,994.00                          

Capital Outlay 6000-6999 245,000.00                          229,109.75                          (15,890.25)                           

Other Outgo ( Excl Indirect) 7100-7499 -                                        13,057.58                            13,057.58                            

Indirect Cost 7300-7399 (178,343.15)                         (187,796.71)                         (9,453.56)                             

Transfers Out 7600-7629 -                                        2,284.72                              2,284.72                              
To Support Plumas Lake Child Development Center

34,634,402.73$           34,494,646.81$           (139,755.92)$               

(759,649.47)$               (960,939.68)$               (201,290.21)$               

Transfer of carryover of Low Incidence Funding for Special Education Equipment to LEAs.

Revenue was recognized in prior year rather than this year

New additonal one-time award

Deferring utilization of the program and revenue to next year

Adjusted due to higher award

Based on year to date and current leases

New Award

Total Expenses

GRAND TOTALS

YUBA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
Rob Gregor  - Superintendent of Schools

2025-26 Adopted Budget vs 2025-26 1st Interim Budget - General Fund

Description

Recalculated as awards/expenditures known

Higher Instructional Hours Projected

Decrease in budget due to vacant positions.

Lower Award Amount than previously estimated

Total Revenues

Lower Award Amount than previously estimated

Decrease in Low Incidence Revenue than previously estimated

Revenue was recognized in prior year rather than this year

Adjusted due to higher carryover

Revised Estimate of Revenue

Higher Estimate based on prior year actuals

Lower Estimate of contract revenues

Reverse revenue for unspent funds

Derivative of lower STRS Costs

Adjusted due to lower carryover

Increase in technology equipment, instructional supplies and equpment, and CTE supplies and equipment for GSPP Planning Grant.

Special Education contracted staff contributing to higher budget revision. Increased Apprenticeship Program Partcipation. Some increased legal 

costs.

 Higher revenue from services provided to LEAs 

Lower carryover than budgeted

Decreased budget due to lower forecasted needs

Donations Received

Not proceeding with grant

Based on amount received to date

Adjusted due to lower award

Adjusted due to higher carryover

Slightly lower award than estimated

New One Time Award

Adjusted due to lower available carryover and revised awards

Adjusted due to higher carryover and revised estimates

Adjusted due to lower carryover

Adjusted due to higher award

Adjusted due to lower carryover and award

Carryover Adjustment

Adjusted due to lower carryover

Adjusted to  Grant Award

Adjusted due to higher carryover

Adjusted due to higher carryover

Foster Youth Grants

New Contracts

Revised Estimate of Revenue based on program costs

Higher projected award than original budget

Higher Award Amount than previously estimated

Lower estimated program costs

12/9/2025226



Amount

Unrestricted Operations (96,120.79)                                        

LCAP/Medi-Cal Admin/Alt Ed Programs 70,781.07                                         

Differentiated Assistance 112,301.50                                       

Facilities 70,116.19                                         

Unrestricted Total Increase: 157,077.97                                   

Adults In Correctional Facilties (2,995.14)                                          

Student Support and Enrichment Block Grant 3,105.80                                           

31,896.20                                         

 COE UPK Planning 1,132.17                                           

Educator Effectiveness Block Grant (20,398.85)                                        

Restricted Lottery (5,000.00)                                          

Ca Community Schools Partnership 38,768.84                                         

Golden State Pathways Program (332,502.00)                                     

Special Education AB 602 15,412.98                                         

Reversing Opioid Overdose 22,665.86                                         

Arts and Music in Schools (7,785.14)                                          

Learning Communities for School Success Program (9,367.13)                                          

CCAP (115.70)                                             

LCFF Equity Multiplier 38,056.32                                         

A-G Access (49.88)                                                

Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant (9,507.80)                                          

Literacy Screening Professional Development (1,588.00)                                          

Cal Serves 11,239.51                                         

Donations 6,823.00                                           

Cal HOPE (6,745.50)                                          

Prevention MOUs (4,426.95)                                          

Yuba Probation GED 1,119.84                                           

Tri Co. Probation MOU (7,944.89)                                          

COE Capacity Building (10,500.00)                                        

Foster Admin (30,669.61)                                        

Student Behavior Health Incentive Program (633.70)                                             

Homeless, Housing Assistance Program (55,541.47)                                        

Health and Human Services (7,150.58)                                          

Children and Youth Behaviorial Health Initative (117.52)                                             

Medi-Cal LEA BOP (15,548.84)                                        

Restricted Total Increase (358,368.18)                                 

TOTAL: (201,290.21)$                               

 Student Support, Professional Development, 

Discretionary Block Grant 

Description

FUND BALANCE ADJUSTMENT SUMMARY

12/9/2025227



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 6,753,779.00 6,753,779.00 1,270,007.65 6,720,445.00 (33,334.00) -0.5%

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 155,510.00 155,510.00 30,803.07 218,573.00 63,063.00 40.6%

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 1,195,187.68 1,195,187.68 336,135.16 1,395,805.29 200,617.61 16.8%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 8,104,476.68 8,104,476.68 1,636,945.88 8,334,823.29

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,213,199.68 1,213,199.68 364,167.06 1,176,888.83 36,310.85 3.0%

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 2,992,228.54 2,992,228.54 977,753.44 2,992,464.85 (236.31) 0.0%

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,870,651.78 1,870,651.78 583,377.77 1,822,768.25 47,883.53 2.6%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 737,323.14 737,323.14 120,528.82 756,764.45 (19,441.31) -2.6%

5) Services and Other Operating

Expenditures
5000-5999

1,759,930.03 1,759,930.03 761,740.73 1,903,522.79 (143,592.76) -8.2%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 235,000.00 235,000.00 27,155.73 229,109.75 5,890.25 2.5%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of

Indirect Costs)

7100-7299

7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect

Costs
7300-7399

(1,409,608.87) (1,409,608.87) (80,637.45) (1,401,419.14) (8,189.73) 0.6%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 7,398,724.30 7,398,724.30 2,754,086.10 7,480,099.78

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 -

B9) 705,752.38 705,752.38 (1,117,140.22) 854,723.51

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 1,586.86 1,586.86 0.00 1,586.86 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,284.72 (2,284.72) New

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 (279,150.79) (279,150.79) 0.00 (268,759.23) 10,391.56 -3.7%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES/USES (277,563.93) (277,563.93) 0.00 (269,457.09)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

BALANCE (C + D4) 428,188.45 428,188.45 (1,117,140.22) 585,266.42

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 10,926,077.41 10,926,077.41 11,532,941.96 606,864.55 5.6%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 10,926,077.41 10,926,077.41 11,532,941.96

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c +

F1d) 10,926,077.41 10,926,077.41 11,532,941.96

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 11,354,265.86 11,354,265.86 12,118,208.38

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

228



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 2,752,967.47 2,752,967.47 3,233,946.58

Facilities 0000 9780 1,271,560.80

LCAP/Medi-Cal Admin Funds,

Alternative Education Programs
0000 9780

1,137,031.94

Technology 0000 9780 156,000.00

Lottery Funds 1100 9780 188,374.73

Facilities 0000 9780 1,271,560.80

LCAP/Medi-Cal Admin Funds,

Alternative Education Programs
0000 9780

1,137,031.94

Technology 0000 9780 156,000.00

Lottery Funds 1100 9780 188,374.73

Facilities 0000 9780 1,467,373.32

LCAP/Medi-Cal Admin Funds,

Alternative Education Programs
0000 9780

1,426,976.48

Technology 0000 9780 156,000.00

Lottery Funds 1100 9780 183,596.78

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 8,598,298.39 8,598,298.39 8,881,261.80

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 4,134,913.00 4,134,913.00 1,266,228.00 4,101,579.00 (33,334.00) -0.8%

Education Protection Account State Aid -

Current Year
8012

10,084.00 10,084.00 3,158.00 10,084.00 0.00 0.0%

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tax Relief Subventions

Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 35,776.00 35,776.00 0.00 35,776.00 0.00 0.0%

Timber Yield Tax 8022 2,102.00 2,102.00 0.00 2,102.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

County & District Taxes

Secured Roll Taxes 8041 4,573,580.00 4,573,580.00 0.00 4,573,580.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 158,094.00 158,094.00 593.78 158,094.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8043 11.00 11.00 8.92 11.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8044 37.00 37.00 18.95 37.00 0.00 0.0%

Education Revenue Augmentation Fund

(ERAF)
8045

328,146.00 328,146.00 0.00 328,146.00 0.00 0.0%

Community Redevelopment Funds (SB

617/699/1992)
8047

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent

Taxes
8048

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

229



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Less: Non-LCFF

(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 9,242,743.00 9,242,743.00 1,270,007.65 9,209,409.00 (33,334.00) -0.4%

LCFF Transfers

Unrestricted LCFF

Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 (60,000.00) (60,000.00) 0.00 (60,000.00) 0.00 0.0%

All Other LCFF Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of

Property Taxes
8096

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Property Taxes Transfers 8097 (2,428,964.00) (2,428,964.00) 0.00 (2,428,964.00) 0.00 0.0%

LCFF Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 6,753,779.00 6,753,779.00 1,270,007.65 6,720,445.00 (33,334.00) -0.5%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Revenues from Federal

Sources
8287

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290

Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

Instruction
4035 8290

Title III, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290

Title III, English Learner Program 4203 8290

Public Charter Schools Grant Program

(PCSGP)
4610 8290

Other Every Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3060,

3061, 3110,

3150, 3155,

3182, 3183,

4037, 4038,

4123, 4124,

4126, 4127,

4128, 4204,

5630

8290

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290

All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

Special Education Master Plan

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

230



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Current Year 6500 8311

Prior Years 6500 8319

All Other State Apportionments - Current

Year
All Other 8311

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior

Years
All Other 8319

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 30,238.00 30,238.00 0.00 30,207.00 (31.00) -0.1%

Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional

Materials
8560

42,014.00 42,014.00 9,406.35 42,014.00 0.00 0.0%

Tax Relief Subventions

Restricted Levies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Pass-Through Revenues from State

Sources
8587

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Expanded Learning Opportunities Program

(ELO-P)
2600 8590

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590

Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590

Career Technical Education Incentive Grant

Program
6387 8590

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds

6650, 6680,

6685, 6690,

6695

8590

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590

Arts and Music in Schools (Prop 28) 6770 8590

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590

American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590

All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 83,258.00 83,258.00 21,396.72 146,352.00 63,094.00 75.8%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 155,510.00 155,510.00 30,803.07 218,573.00 63,063.00 40.6%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Revenue

County and District Taxes

Other Restricted Levies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community Redevelopment Funds Not

Subject to LCFF Deduction
8625

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent

Non-LCFF Taxes
8629

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sales

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

231



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

All Other Sales 8639 1,900.00 1,900.00 0.00 1,900.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 692,134.47 692,134.47 263,258.93 735,446.48 43,312.01 6.3%

Interest 8660 112,807.13 112,807.13 0.00 192,087.00 79,279.87 70.3%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value

of Investments
8662

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency Services 8677 223,112.47 223,112.47 32,675.00 231,924.44 8,811.97 3.9%

Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 21,982.80 21,982.80 9,344.58 21,196.56 (786.24) -3.6%

Other Local Revenue

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%)

Adjustment
8691

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Revenues From Local

Sources
8697

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Other Local Revenue 8699 143,250.81 143,250.81 30,856.65 213,250.81 70,000.00 48.9%

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers Of Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transfers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791

From County Offices 6500 8792

From JPAs 6500 8793

ROC/P Transfers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791

From County Offices 6360 8792

From JPAs 6360 8793

Other Transfers of Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 1,195,187.68 1,195,187.68 336,135.16 1,395,805.29 200,617.61 16.8%

TOTAL, REVENUES 8,104,476.68 8,104,476.68 1,636,945.88 8,334,823.29 230,346.61 2.8%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 504,204.22 504,204.22 142,455.49 481,775.79 22,428.43 4.4%

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators'

Salaries
1300

520,665.28 520,665.28 165,621.47 512,043.16 8,622.12 1.7%

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 188,330.18 188,330.18 56,090.10 183,069.88 5,260.30 2.8%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 1,213,199.68 1,213,199.68 364,167.06 1,176,888.83 36,310.85 3.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 29,672.45 29,672.45 8,356.61 20,351.45 9,321.00 31.4%

Classified Support Salaries 2200 208,372.70 208,372.70 64,791.71 213,530.31 (5,157.61) -2.5%

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators'

Salaries
2300

740,239.31 740,239.31 322,912.64 970,143.20 (229,903.89) -31.1%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

232



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 1,951,145.00 1,951,145.00 560,802.68 1,725,456.85 225,688.15 11.6%

Other Classified Salaries 2900 62,799.08 62,799.08 20,889.80 62,983.04 (183.96) -0.3%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 2,992,228.54 2,992,228.54 977,753.44 2,992,464.85 (236.31) 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 231,513.92 231,513.92 58,032.67 203,175.63 28,338.29 12.2%

PERS 3201-3202 781,157.56 781,157.56 262,692.94 803,674.36 (22,516.80) -2.9%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 60,120.47 60,120.47 19,267.45 59,302.24 818.23 1.4%

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 664,697.37 664,697.37 199,976.30 622,731.23 41,966.14 6.3%

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 1,996.51 1,996.51 934.14 2,825.09 (828.58) -41.5%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 70,095.62 70,095.62 22,678.39 69,978.35 117.27 0.2%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 61,070.33 61,070.33 19,795.88 61,081.35 (11.02) 0.0%

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,870,651.78 1,870,651.78 583,377.77 1,822,768.25 47,883.53 2.6%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula

Materials
4100

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 700.00 700.00 0.00 3,700.00 (3,000.00) -428.6%

Materials and Supplies 4300 547,413.53 547,413.53 104,292.51 590,409.83 (42,996.30) -7.9%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 189,209.61 189,209.61 16,236.31 162,654.62 26,554.99 14.0%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 737,323.14 737,323.14 120,528.82 756,764.45 (19,441.31) -2.6%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING

EXPENDITURES

Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Travel and Conferences 5200 109,789.46 109,789.46 30,243.66 129,256.86 (19,467.40) -17.7%

Dues and Memberships 5300 68,130.96 68,130.96 58,741.93 69,058.12 (927.16) -1.4%

Insurance 5400-5450 179,376.43 179,376.43 165,639.88 180,602.43 (1,226.00) -0.7%

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 340,605.11 340,605.11 108,573.10 344,122.83 (3,517.72) -1.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and

Noncapitalized Improvements
5600

260,452.85 260,452.85 52,288.32 259,664.55 788.30 0.3%

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 (314,444.90) (314,444.90) (67,601.23) (314,444.90) 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (439,613.94) (439,613.94) (54,531.88) (417,746.08) (21,867.86) 5.0%

Professional/Consulting Services and

Operating Expenditures
5800

1,473,810.10 1,473,810.10 440,674.73 1,566,565.02 (92,754.92) -6.3%

Communications 5900 81,823.96 81,823.96 27,712.22 86,443.96 (4,620.00) -5.6%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER

OPERATING EXPENDITURES 1,759,930.03 1,759,930.03 761,740.73 1,903,522.79 (143,592.76) -8.2%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 235,000.00 235,000.00 27,155.73 229,109.75 5,890.25 2.5%

Books and Media for New School Libraries or

Major Expansion of School Libraries
6300

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 6 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

233



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 235,000.00 235,000.00 27,155.73 229,109.75 5,890.25 2.5%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of

Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict

Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit

Payments

Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transfers of

Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221

To County Offices 6500 7222

To JPAs 6500 7223

ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221

To County Offices 6360 7222

To JPAs 6360 7223

Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Service

Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding

Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF

INDIRECT COSTS

Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 (1,231,265.72) (1,231,265.72) (67,648.11) (1,213,622.43) (17,643.29) 1.4%

Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (178,343.15) (178,343.15) (12,989.34) (187,796.71) 9,453.56 -5.3%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF

INDIRECT COSTS (1,409,608.87) (1,409,608.87) (80,637.45) (1,401,419.14) (8,189.73) 0.6%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 7,398,724.30 7,398,724.30 2,754,086.10 7,480,099.78 (81,375.48) -1.1%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 1,586.86 1,586.86 0.00 1,586.86 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 1,586.86 1,586.86 0.00 1,586.86 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 7 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

234



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: State School Building Fund/ County

School Facilities Fund
7613

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,284.72 (2,284.72) New

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,284.72 (2,284.72) New

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

State Apportionments

Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds

Proceeds from Disposal of Capital

Assets
8953

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers from Funds of

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs
8965

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds from Certificates of

Participation
8971

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transfers of Funds from

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs
7651

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 (279,150.79) (279,150.79) 0.00 (281,259.23) (2,108.44) 0.8%

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,500.00 12,500.00 New

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (279,150.79) (279,150.79) 0.00 (268,759.23) 10,391.56 -3.7%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) (277,563.93) (277,563.93) 0.00 (269,457.09) 8,106.84 -2.9%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 8 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

235



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,428,964.00 2,428,964.00 0.00 2,428,964.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 3,294,879.16 3,294,879.16 186,905.66 3,094,225.90 (200,653.26) -6.1%

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 6,603,702.51 6,603,702.51 2,244,499.33 6,553,316.09 (50,386.42) -0.8%

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 13,441,144.05 13,441,144.05 888,004.32 13,120,790.99 (320,353.06) -2.4%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 25,768,689.72 25,768,689.72 3,319,409.31 25,197,296.98

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 3,855,624.72 3,855,624.72 965,735.93 3,441,856.95 413,767.77 10.7%

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 7,328,249.85 7,328,249.85 2,302,493.67 7,270,558.76 57,691.09 0.8%

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 5,453,638.44 5,453,638.44 1,397,248.58 5,085,190.86 368,447.58 6.8%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,298,783.26 1,298,783.26 168,444.15 1,414,458.05 (115,674.79) -8.9%

5) Services and Other Operating

Expenditures
5000-5999

8,058,116.44 8,058,116.44 1,963,693.93 8,573,517.68 (515,401.24) -6.4%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of

Indirect Costs)

7100-7299

7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,057.58 (13,057.58) New

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect

Costs
7300-7399

1,231,265.72 1,231,265.72 67,648.11 1,213,622.43 17,643.29 1.4%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 27,235,678.43 27,235,678.43 6,865,264.37 27,012,262.31

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 -

B9) (1,466,988.71) (1,466,988.71) (3,545,855.06) (1,814,965.33)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 279,150.79 279,150.79 0.00 268,759.23 (10,391.56) -3.7%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES/USES 279,150.79 279,150.79 0.00 268,759.23

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

BALANCE (C + D4) (1,187,837.92) (1,187,837.92) (3,545,855.06) (1,546,206.10)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 4,260,136.85 4,260,136.85 5,783,931.16 1,523,794.31 35.8%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 4,260,136.85 4,260,136.85 5,783,931.16

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c +

F1d) 4,260,136.85 4,260,136.85 5,783,931.16

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 3,072,298.93 3,072,298.93 4,237,725.06

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 9 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

236



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 3,072,298.93 3,072,298.93 4,237,725.06

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Education Protection Account State Aid -

Current Year
8012

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Tax Relief Subventions

Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

County & District Taxes

Secured Roll Taxes 8041 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Supplemental Taxes 8044 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Education Revenue Augmentation Fund

(ERAF)
8045

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Community Redevelopment Funds (SB

617/699/1992)
8047

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent

Taxes
8048

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Less: Non-LCFF

(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF Transfers

Unrestricted LCFF

Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091

All Other LCFF Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of

Property Taxes
8096

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Property Taxes Transfers 8097 2,428,964.00 2,428,964.00 0.00 2,428,964.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,428,964.00 2,428,964.00 0.00 2,428,964.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 10 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

237



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 18,880.79 18,880.79 0.00 19,166.38 285.59 1.5%

Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 120,467.23 120,467.23 (74,764.99) 127,067.78 6,600.55 5.5%

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Revenues from Federal

Sources
8287

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 164,051.60 164,051.60 28,405.59 154,208.59 (9,843.01) -6.0%

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290 368,421.45 368,421.45 66,165.18 280,345.88 (88,075.57) -23.9%

Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

Instruction
4035 8290

19,684.00 19,684.00 3,298.71 19,201.71 (482.29) -2.5%

Title III, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title III, English Learner Program 4203 8290 25,921.00 25,921.00 5,371.94 50,393.87 24,472.87 94.4%

Public Charter Schools Grant Program

(PCSGP)
4610 8290

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Every Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3060,

3061, 3110,

3150, 3155,

3182, 3183,

4037, 4038,

4123, 4124,

4126, 4127,

4128, 4204,

5630

8290

706,740.63 706,740.63 (139,106.07) 568,729.23 (138,011.40) -19.5%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 1,870,712.46 1,870,712.46 297,535.30 1,875,112.46 4,400.00 0.2%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 3,294,879.16 3,294,879.16 186,905.66 3,094,225.90 (200,653.26) -6.1%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

Special Education Master Plan

Current Year 6500 8311 723,757.06 723,757.06 72,021.70 721,299.67 (2,457.39) -0.3%

Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Current

Year
All Other 8311

3,642.00 3,642.00 (11,311.96) 3,642.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior

Years
All Other 8319

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional

Materials
8560

13,664.02 13,664.02 4,807.63 13,664.02 0.00 0.0%

Tax Relief Subventions

Restricted Levies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Revenues from State

Sources
8587

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 11 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

238



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Expanded Learning Opportunities Program

(ELO-P)
2600 8590

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career Technical Education Incentive Grant

Program
6387 8590

0.00 0.00 1,844.06 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds

6650, 6680,

6685, 6690,

6695

8590

161,528.49 161,528.49 (35,093.45) 125,000.00 (36,528.49) -22.6%

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Arts and Music in Schools (Prop 28) 6770 8590 42,712.00 42,712.00 11,274.00 40,266.00 (2,446.00) -5.7%

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 5,658,398.94 5,658,398.94 2,200,957.35 5,649,444.40 (8,954.54) -0.2%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 6,603,702.51 6,603,702.51 2,244,499.33 6,553,316.09 (50,386.42) -0.8%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Revenue

County and District Taxes

Other Restricted Levies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community Redevelopment Funds Not

Subject to LCFF Deduction
8625

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent

Non-LCFF Taxes
8629

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sales

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value

of Investments
8662

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency Services 8677 259,853.46 259,853.46 (33,626.08) 224,355.46 (35,498.00) -13.7%

Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 1,955,495.37 1,955,495.37 185,138.17 1,643,930.60 (311,564.77) -15.9%

Other Local Revenue

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 12 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

239



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%)

Adjustment
8691

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Pass-Through Revenues From Local

Sources
8697

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Local Revenue 8699 1,068,626.23 1,068,626.23 86,378.23 1,072,933.96 4,307.73 0.4%

Tuition 8710 7,904,123.99 7,904,123.99 0.00 7,926,525.97 22,401.98 0.3%

All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers Of Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transfers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 2,253,045.00 2,253,045.00 650,114.00 2,253,045.00 0.00 0.0%

From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transfers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transfers of Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 13,441,144.05 13,441,144.05 888,004.32 13,120,790.99 (320,353.06) -2.4%

TOTAL, REVENUES 25,768,689.72 25,768,689.72 3,319,409.31 25,197,296.98 (571,392.74) -2.2%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,422,639.03 2,422,639.03 544,296.53 2,017,541.21 405,097.82 16.7%

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 615,777.62 615,777.62 166,748.66 631,273.70 (15,496.08) -2.5%

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators'

Salaries
1300

658,416.85 658,416.85 215,458.61 678,402.82 (19,985.97) -3.0%

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 158,791.22 158,791.22 39,232.13 114,639.22 44,152.00 27.8%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 3,855,624.72 3,855,624.72 965,735.93 3,441,856.95 413,767.77 10.7%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 2,496,879.99 2,496,879.99 740,262.21 2,497,573.66 (693.67) 0.0%

Classified Support Salaries 2200 2,492,294.95 2,492,294.95 754,270.05 2,468,990.57 23,304.38 0.9%

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators'

Salaries
2300

612,869.47 612,869.47 205,286.32 615,546.72 (2,677.25) -0.4%

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 1,134,564.49 1,134,564.49 368,232.66 1,112,387.72 22,176.77 2.0%

Other Classified Salaries 2900 591,640.95 591,640.95 234,442.43 576,060.09 15,580.86 2.6%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 7,328,249.85 7,328,249.85 2,302,493.67 7,270,558.76 57,691.09 0.8%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 1,067,909.75 1,067,909.75 146,949.13 991,891.57 76,018.18 7.1%

PERS 3201-3202 1,917,737.26 1,917,737.26 572,292.53 1,872,061.72 45,675.54 2.4%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 182,277.93 182,277.93 60,546.06 166,490.38 15,787.55 8.7%

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 1,929,268.77 1,929,268.77 511,944.31 1,712,133.60 217,135.17 11.3%

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 5,143.33 5,143.33 1,474.66 4,915.34 227.99 4.4%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 187,042.26 187,042.26 55,245.65 178,848.49 8,193.77 4.4%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 164,259.14 164,259.14 48,796.24 158,849.76 5,409.38 3.3%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 13 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

240



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 5,453,638.44 5,453,638.44 1,397,248.58 5,085,190.86 368,447.58 6.8%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula

Materials
4100

41,808.89 41,808.89 23,207.76 46,806.65 (4,997.76) -12.0%

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 57,350.00 57,350.00 7,831.66 25,231.67 32,118.33 56.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 975,183.46 975,183.46 122,173.88 973,391.22 1,792.24 0.2%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 224,440.91 224,440.91 15,230.85 369,028.51 (144,587.60) -64.4%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 1,298,783.26 1,298,783.26 168,444.15 1,414,458.05 (115,674.79) -8.9%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING

EXPENDITURES

Subagreements for Services 5100 4,762,361.26 4,762,361.26 1,182,805.03 4,968,160.33 (205,799.07) -4.3%

Travel and Conferences 5200 358,182.42 358,182.42 31,834.49 365,496.65 (7,314.23) -2.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 11,880.66 11,880.66 2,265.00 11,880.66 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 55,873.00 55,873.00 53,878.63 56,390.58 (517.58) -0.9%

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 189,073.00 189,073.00 51,558.70 189,073.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and

Noncapitalized Improvements
5600

124,895.98 124,895.98 30,265.45 111,087.87 13,808.11 11.1%

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 314,444.90 314,444.90 67,601.23 314,444.90 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 66,259.18 66,259.18 0.00 65,220.48 1,038.70 1.6%

Professional/Consulting Services and

Operating Expenditures
5800

2,102,878.83 2,102,878.83 512,779.79 2,417,418.68 (314,539.85) -15.0%

Communications 5900 72,267.21 72,267.21 30,705.61 74,344.53 (2,077.32) -2.9%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER

OPERATING EXPENDITURES 8,058,116.44 8,058,116.44 1,963,693.93 8,573,517.68 (515,401.24) -6.4%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Media for New School Libraries or

Major Expansion of School Libraries
6300

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of

Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict

Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit

Payments

Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 14 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

241



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transfers of

Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,057.58 (13,057.58) New

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Service

Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding

Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,057.58 (13,057.58) New

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF

INDIRECT COSTS

Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 1,231,265.72 1,231,265.72 67,648.11 1,213,622.43 17,643.29 1.4%

Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF

INDIRECT COSTS 1,231,265.72 1,231,265.72 67,648.11 1,213,622.43 17,643.29 1.4%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 27,235,678.43 27,235,678.43 6,865,264.37 27,012,262.31 223,416.12 0.8%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: State School Building Fund/ County

School Facilities Fund
7613

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

State Apportionments

Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Proceeds

Proceeds from Disposal of Capital

Assets
8953

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 15 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

242



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers from Funds of

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs
8965

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds from Certificates of

Participation
8971

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transfers of Funds from

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs
7651

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 279,150.79 279,150.79 0.00 281,259.23 2,108.44 0.8%

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 (12,500.00) (12,500.00) New

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 279,150.79 279,150.79 0.00 268,759.23 (10,391.56) -3.7%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) 279,150.79 279,150.79 0.00 268,759.23 10,391.56 3.7%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 16 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

243



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 9,182,743.00 9,182,743.00 1,270,007.65 9,149,409.00 (33,334.00) -0.4%

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 3,294,879.16 3,294,879.16 186,905.66 3,094,225.90 (200,653.26) -6.1%

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 6,759,212.51 6,759,212.51 2,275,302.40 6,771,889.09 12,676.58 0.2%

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 14,636,331.73 14,636,331.73 1,224,139.48 14,516,596.28 (119,735.45) -0.8%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 33,873,166.40 33,873,166.40 4,956,355.19 33,532,120.27

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 5,068,824.40 5,068,824.40 1,329,902.99 4,618,745.78 450,078.62 8.9%

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 10,320,478.39 10,320,478.39 3,280,247.11 10,263,023.61 57,454.78 0.6%

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 7,324,290.22 7,324,290.22 1,980,626.35 6,907,959.11 416,331.11 5.7%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 2,036,106.40 2,036,106.40 288,972.97 2,171,222.50 (135,116.10) -6.6%

5) Services and Other Operating

Expenditures
5000-5999

9,818,046.47 9,818,046.47 2,725,434.66 10,477,040.47 (658,994.00) -6.7%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 245,000.00 245,000.00 27,155.73 229,109.75 15,890.25 6.5%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of

Indirect Costs)

7100-7299

7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,057.58 (13,057.58) New

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect

Costs
7300-7399

(178,343.15) (178,343.15) (12,989.34) (187,796.71) 9,453.56 -5.3%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 34,634,402.73 34,634,402.73 9,619,350.47 34,492,362.09

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 -

B9) (761,236.33) (761,236.33) (4,662,995.28) (960,241.82)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 1,586.86 1,586.86 0.00 1,586.86 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,284.72 (2,284.72) New

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES/USES 1,586.86 1,586.86 0.00 (697.86)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

BALANCE (C + D4) (759,649.47) (759,649.47) (4,662,995.28) (960,939.68)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 15,186,214.26 15,186,214.26 17,316,873.12 2,130,658.86 14.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 15,186,214.26 15,186,214.26 17,316,873.12

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c +

F1d) 15,186,214.26 15,186,214.26 17,316,873.12

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 14,426,564.79 14,426,564.79 16,355,933.44

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 17 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

244



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 3,072,298.93 3,072,298.93 4,237,725.06

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 2,752,967.47 2,752,967.47 3,233,946.58

Facilities 0000 9780 1,271,560.80

LCAP/Medi-Cal Admin Funds,

Alternative Education Programs
0000 9780

1,137,031.94

Technology 0000 9780 156,000.00

Lottery Funds 1100 9780 188,374.73

Facilities 0000 9780 1,271,560.80

LCAP/Medi-Cal Admin Funds,

Alternative Education Programs
0000 9780

1,137,031.94

Technology 0000 9780 156,000.00

Lottery Funds 1100 9780 188,374.73

Facilities 0000 9780 1,467,373.32

LCAP/Medi-Cal Admin Funds,

Alternative Education Programs
0000 9780

1,426,976.48

Technology 0000 9780 156,000.00

Lottery Funds 1100 9780 183,596.78

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 8,598,298.39 8,598,298.39 8,881,261.80

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 4,134,913.00 4,134,913.00 1,266,228.00 4,101,579.00 (33,334.00) -0.8%

Education Protection Account State Aid -

Current Year
8012

10,084.00 10,084.00 3,158.00 10,084.00 0.00 0.0%

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tax Relief Subventions

Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 35,776.00 35,776.00 0.00 35,776.00 0.00 0.0%

Timber Yield Tax 8022 2,102.00 2,102.00 0.00 2,102.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

County & District Taxes

Secured Roll Taxes 8041 4,573,580.00 4,573,580.00 0.00 4,573,580.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 158,094.00 158,094.00 593.78 158,094.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8043 11.00 11.00 8.92 11.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8044 37.00 37.00 18.95 37.00 0.00 0.0%

Education Revenue Augmentation Fund

(ERAF)
8045

328,146.00 328,146.00 0.00 328,146.00 0.00 0.0%

Community Redevelopment Funds (SB

617/699/1992)
8047

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent

Taxes
8048

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 18 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

245



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Less: Non-LCFF

(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 9,242,743.00 9,242,743.00 1,270,007.65 9,209,409.00 (33,334.00) -0.4%

LCFF Transfers

Unrestricted LCFF

Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 (60,000.00) (60,000.00) 0.00 (60,000.00) 0.00 0.0%

All Other LCFF Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of

Property Taxes
8096

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 9,182,743.00 9,182,743.00 1,270,007.65 9,149,409.00 (33,334.00) -0.4%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 18,880.79 18,880.79 0.00 19,166.38 285.59 1.5%

Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 120,467.23 120,467.23 (74,764.99) 127,067.78 6,600.55 5.5%

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Revenues from Federal

Sources
8287

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 164,051.60 164,051.60 28,405.59 154,208.59 (9,843.01) -6.0%

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290 368,421.45 368,421.45 66,165.18 280,345.88 (88,075.57) -23.9%

Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective

Instruction
4035 8290

19,684.00 19,684.00 3,298.71 19,201.71 (482.29) -2.5%

Title III, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title III, English Learner Program 4203 8290 25,921.00 25,921.00 5,371.94 50,393.87 24,472.87 94.4%

Public Charter Schools Grant Program

(PCSGP)
4610 8290

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Every Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3060,

3061, 3110,

3150, 3155,

3182, 3183,

4037, 4038,

4123, 4124,

4126, 4127,

4128, 4204,

5630

8290

706,740.63 706,740.63 (139,106.07) 568,729.23 (138,011.40) -19.5%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 1,870,712.46 1,870,712.46 297,535.30 1,875,112.46 4,400.00 0.2%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 3,294,879.16 3,294,879.16 186,905.66 3,094,225.90 (200,653.26) -6.1%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 19 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

246



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Special Education Master Plan

Current Year 6500 8311 723,757.06 723,757.06 72,021.70 721,299.67 (2,457.39) -0.3%

Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Current

Year
All Other 8311

3,642.00 3,642.00 (11,311.96) 3,642.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior

Years
All Other 8319

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 30,238.00 30,238.00 0.00 30,207.00 (31.00) -0.1%

Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional

Materials
8560

55,678.02 55,678.02 14,213.98 55,678.02 0.00 0.0%

Tax Relief Subventions

Restricted Levies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Revenues from State

Sources
8587

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Expanded Learning Opportunities Program

(ELO-P)
2600 8590

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career Technical Education Incentive Grant

Program
6387 8590

0.00 0.00 1,844.06 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds

6650, 6680,

6685, 6690,

6695

8590

161,528.49 161,528.49 (35,093.45) 125,000.00 (36,528.49) -22.6%

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Arts and Music in Schools (Prop 28) 6770 8590 42,712.00 42,712.00 11,274.00 40,266.00 (2,446.00) -5.7%

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 5,741,656.94 5,741,656.94 2,222,354.07 5,795,796.40 54,139.46 0.9%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 6,759,212.51 6,759,212.51 2,275,302.40 6,771,889.09 12,676.58 0.2%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Revenue

County and District Taxes

Other Restricted Levies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community Redevelopment Funds Not

Subject to LCFF Deduction
8625

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent

Non-LCFF Taxes
8629

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sales

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 20 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

247



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 1,900.00 1,900.00 0.00 1,900.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 692,134.47 692,134.47 263,258.93 735,446.48 43,312.01 6.3%

Interest 8660 112,807.13 112,807.13 0.00 192,087.00 79,279.87 70.3%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value

of Investments
8662

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency Services 8677 482,965.93 482,965.93 (951.08) 456,279.90 (26,686.03) -5.5%

Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 1,977,478.17 1,977,478.17 194,482.75 1,665,127.16 (312,351.01) -15.8%

Other Local Revenue

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%)

Adjustment
8691

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Revenues From Local

Sources
8697

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Local Revenue 8699 1,211,877.04 1,211,877.04 117,234.88 1,286,184.77 74,307.73 6.1%

Tuition 8710 7,904,123.99 7,904,123.99 0.00 7,926,525.97 22,401.98 0.3%

All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers Of Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transfers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 2,253,045.00 2,253,045.00 650,114.00 2,253,045.00 0.00 0.0%

From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transfers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transfers of Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 14,636,331.73 14,636,331.73 1,224,139.48 14,516,596.28 (119,735.45) -0.8%

TOTAL, REVENUES 33,873,166.40 33,873,166.40 4,956,355.19 33,532,120.27 (341,046.13) -1.0%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,926,843.25 2,926,843.25 686,752.02 2,499,317.00 427,526.25 14.6%

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 615,777.62 615,777.62 166,748.66 631,273.70 (15,496.08) -2.5%

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators'

Salaries
1300

1,179,082.13 1,179,082.13 381,080.08 1,190,445.98 (11,363.85) -1.0%

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 347,121.40 347,121.40 95,322.23 297,709.10 49,412.30 14.2%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 5,068,824.40 5,068,824.40 1,329,902.99 4,618,745.78 450,078.62 8.9%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 21 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

248



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 2,526,552.44 2,526,552.44 748,618.82 2,517,925.11 8,627.33 0.3%

Classified Support Salaries 2200 2,700,667.65 2,700,667.65 819,061.76 2,682,520.88 18,146.77 0.7%

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators'

Salaries
2300

1,353,108.78 1,353,108.78 528,198.96 1,585,689.92 (232,581.14) -17.2%

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 3,085,709.49 3,085,709.49 929,035.34 2,837,844.57 247,864.92 8.0%

Other Classified Salaries 2900 654,440.03 654,440.03 255,332.23 639,043.13 15,396.90 2.4%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 10,320,478.39 10,320,478.39 3,280,247.11 10,263,023.61 57,454.78 0.6%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 1,299,423.67 1,299,423.67 204,981.80 1,195,067.20 104,356.47 8.0%

PERS 3201-3202 2,698,894.82 2,698,894.82 834,985.47 2,675,736.08 23,158.74 0.9%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 242,398.40 242,398.40 79,813.51 225,792.62 16,605.78 6.9%

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 2,593,966.14 2,593,966.14 711,920.61 2,334,864.83 259,101.31 10.0%

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 7,139.84 7,139.84 2,408.80 7,740.43 (600.59) -8.4%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 257,137.88 257,137.88 77,924.04 248,826.84 8,311.04 3.2%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 225,329.47 225,329.47 68,592.12 219,931.11 5,398.36 2.4%

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 7,324,290.22 7,324,290.22 1,980,626.35 6,907,959.11 416,331.11 5.7%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula

Materials
4100

41,808.89 41,808.89 23,207.76 46,806.65 (4,997.76) -12.0%

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 58,050.00 58,050.00 7,831.66 28,931.67 29,118.33 50.2%

Materials and Supplies 4300 1,522,596.99 1,522,596.99 226,466.39 1,563,801.05 (41,204.06) -2.7%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 413,650.52 413,650.52 31,467.16 531,683.13 (118,032.61) -28.5%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 2,036,106.40 2,036,106.40 288,972.97 2,171,222.50 (135,116.10) -6.6%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING

EXPENDITURES

Subagreements for Services 5100 4,762,361.26 4,762,361.26 1,182,805.03 4,968,160.33 (205,799.07) -4.3%

Travel and Conferences 5200 467,971.88 467,971.88 62,078.15 494,753.51 (26,781.63) -5.7%

Dues and Memberships 5300 80,011.62 80,011.62 61,006.93 80,938.78 (927.16) -1.2%

Insurance 5400-5450 235,249.43 235,249.43 219,518.51 236,993.01 (1,743.58) -0.7%

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 529,678.11 529,678.11 160,131.80 533,195.83 (3,517.72) -0.7%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and

Noncapitalized Improvements
5600

385,348.83 385,348.83 82,553.77 370,752.42 14,596.41 3.8%

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (373,354.76) (373,354.76) (54,531.88) (352,525.60) (20,829.16) 5.6%

Professional/Consulting Services and

Operating Expenditures
5800

3,576,688.93 3,576,688.93 953,454.52 3,983,983.70 (407,294.77) -11.4%

Communications 5900 154,091.17 154,091.17 58,417.83 160,788.49 (6,697.32) -4.3%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER

OPERATING EXPENDITURES 9,818,046.47 9,818,046.47 2,725,434.66 10,477,040.47 (658,994.00) -6.7%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 235,000.00 235,000.00 27,155.73 229,109.75 5,890.25 2.5%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 22 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

249



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

Books and Media for New School Libraries or

Major Expansion of School Libraries
6300

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 245,000.00 245,000.00 27,155.73 229,109.75 15,890.25 6.5%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of

Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict

Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit

Payments

Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transfers of

Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,057.58 (13,057.58) New

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Service

Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding

Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,057.58 (13,057.58) New

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF

INDIRECT COSTS

Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (178,343.15) (178,343.15) (12,989.34) (187,796.71) 9,453.56 -5.3%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF

INDIRECT COSTS (178,343.15) (178,343.15) (12,989.34) (187,796.71) 9,453.56 -5.3%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 34,634,402.73 34,634,402.73 9,619,350.47 34,492,362.09 142,040.64 0.4%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 23 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

250



2025-26 First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff

Column B &

D

(F)

From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 1,586.86 1,586.86 0.00 1,586.86 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 1,586.86 1,586.86 0.00 1,586.86 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: State School Building Fund/ County

School Facilities Fund
7613

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,284.72 (2,284.72) New

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,284.72 (2,284.72) New

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

State Apportionments

Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds

Proceeds from Disposal of Capital

Assets
8953

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers from Funds of

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs
8965

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds from Certificates of

Participation
8971

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transfers of Funds from

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs
7651

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) 1,586.86 1,586.86 0.00 (697.86) 2,284.72 144.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 24 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

251



First Interim 58 10587 0000000

Yuba County Office of Education County School Service Fund Form 01I

Yuba County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Resource Description
2025-26

Projected Totals

6015 Adults in Correctional Facilities 35,086.58

6018 Student Support and Enrichment Block Grant 102,394.49

6019 Student Support and Professional Development Discretionary Block Grant (SSPDDBG) 31,896.20

6300 Lottery: Instructional Materials 85,104.41

6332 CA Community Schools Partnership Act - Implementation Grant 126,349.84

6500 Special Education 332,057.77

6620 Reversing Opioid Overdoses 22,665.86

7339 Dual Enrollment Opportunities 158,992.07

7399 LCFF Equity Multiplier 268,181.05

7435 Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant 72,388.94

7810 Other Restricted State 106,326.35

9010 Other Restricted Local 2,896,281.50

Total, Restricted Balance 4,237,725.06

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ai, Version 7 Page 25 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:31 PM

252



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 09I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 3,381,043.00 3,381,043.00 1,041,304.00 3,175,022.00 (206,021.00) -6.1%

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 79,429.39 79,429.39 (2,750.00) 80,468.89 1,039.50 1.3%

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 454,239.23 454,239.23 110,639.09 546,839.23 92,600.00 20.4%

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 85,641.56 85,641.56 10,877.56 92,729.77 7,088.21 8.3%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 4,000,353.18 4,000,353.18 1,160,070.65 3,895,059.89

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,684,443.35 1,684,443.35 402,169.03 1,511,295.69 173,147.66 10.3%

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 480,440.26 480,440.26 154,251.00 476,660.54 3,779.72 0.8%

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 968,895.27 968,895.27 213,285.56 904,822.67 64,072.60 6.6%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 179,638.32 179,638.32 43,084.18 173,012.44 6,625.88 3.7%

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 583,384.00 583,384.00 133,194.06 650,098.30 (66,714.30) -11.4%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

7100-

7299,7400-

7499 4,519.00 4,519.00 0.00 4,519.00

0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 34,420.11 34,420.11 0.00 34,458.88 (38.77) -0.1%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 3,935,740.31 3,935,740.31 945,983.83 3,754,867.52

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

AND USES (A5 - B9) 64,612.87 64,612.87 214,086.82 140,192.37

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C +

D4) 64,612.87 64,612.87 214,086.82 140,192.37

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 2,391,531.69 2,391,531.69 2,500,552.47 109,020.78 4.6%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 2,391,531.69 2,391,531.69 2,500,552.47

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 2,391,531.69 2,391,531.69 2,500,552.47

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 2,456,144.56 2,456,144.56 2,640,744.84

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 137,512.29 137,512.29 276,122.96

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:33 PM

253



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 09I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Other Assignments 9780 2,318,632.27 2,318,632.27 2,364,621.88

Lottery Funds 1100 9780 74,909.06

Lottery Funds 1100 9780 74,909.06

Lottery Funds 1100 9780 64,024.09

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 2,997,879.00 2,997,879.00 919,504.00 2,843,213.42 (154,665.58) -5.2%

Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 383,164.00 383,164.00 152,196.00 331,808.58 (51,355.42) -13.4%

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 (30,396.00) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF Transfers

Unrestricted LCFF Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other LCFF Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 3,381,043.00 3,381,043.00 1,041,304.00 3,175,022.00 (206,021.00) -6.1%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 76,679.39 76,679.39 0.00 77,839.28 1,159.89 1.5%

Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 2,750.00 2,750.00 (2,750.00) 2,629.61 (120.39) -4.4%

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 4035 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title III, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title III, English Learner Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Public Charter Schools Grant Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Every Student Succeeds Act

3040,

3060,

3061,

3150,

3155,

3182,

4037,

4124,

4126,

4127,

5630

8290

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.0%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 79,429.39 79,429.39 (2,750.00) 80,468.89 1,039.50 1.3%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

Special Education Master Plan

Current Year 6500 8311 182,709.88 182,709.88 17,997.58 182,709.88 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:33 PM

254



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 09I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 10,925.00 10,925.00 0.00 10,925.00 0.00 0.0%

Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 58,335.00 58,335.00 3,452.51 54,530.00 (3,805.00) -6.5%

Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELO-P) 2600 8590 0.00 0.00 23,887.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds
6690,

6695
8590

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career Technical Education Incentive Grant Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Arts and Music in Schools (Prop 28) 6770 8590 42,712.00 42,712.00 7,756.00 49,872.00 7,160.00 16.8%

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 159,557.35 159,557.35 57,546.00 248,802.35 89,245.00 55.9%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 454,239.23 454,239.23 110,639.09 546,839.23 92,600.00 20.4%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 58,157.79 58,157.79 0.00 65,246.00 7,088.21 12.2%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Child Development Parent Fees 8673 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency Services 8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Revenue

All Other Local Revenue 8699 27,483.77 27,483.77 10,877.56 27,483.77 0.00 0.0%

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transfers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transfers of Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 85,641.56 85,641.56 10,877.56 92,729.77 7,088.21 8.3%

TOTAL, REVENUES 4,000,353.18 4,000,353.18 1,160,070.65 3,895,059.89

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,548,085.03 1,548,085.03 359,601.28 1,374,650.39 173,434.64 11.2%

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 42,144.36 42,144.36 11,071.91 42,157.78 (13.42) 0.0%

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 94,213.96 94,213.96 31,495.84 94,487.52 (273.56) -0.3%

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 1,684,443.35 1,684,443.35 402,169.03 1,511,295.69 173,147.66 10.3%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:33 PM

255



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 09I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 82,187.00 82,187.00 30,901.45 92,645.77 (10,458.77) -12.7%

Classified Support Salaries 2200 66,746.00 66,746.00 21,246.17 68,472.45 (1,726.45) -2.6%

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 92,961.00 92,961.00 32,354.75 94,509.39 (1,548.39) -1.7%

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 238,546.26 238,546.26 69,748.63 221,032.93 17,513.33 7.3%

Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 480,440.26 480,440.26 154,251.00 476,660.54 3,779.72 0.8%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 458,559.41 458,559.41 72,075.14 428,145.38 30,414.03 6.6%

PERS 3201-3202 125,746.46 125,746.46 38,384.33 124,306.50 1,439.96 1.1%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 30,986.74 30,986.74 7,721.39 27,549.26 3,437.48 11.1%

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 285,159.16 285,159.16 77,091.34 260,791.73 24,367.43 8.5%

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 1,066.91 1,066.91 263.53 946.75 120.16 11.3%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 36,006.92 36,006.92 9,403.49 33,544.16 2,462.76 6.8%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 31,369.67 31,369.67 8,346.34 29,538.89 1,830.78 5.8%

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 968,895.27 968,895.27 213,285.56 904,822.67 64,072.60 6.6%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 61,549.77 61,549.77 18,933.63 61,523.89 25.88 0.0%

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 89,281.48 89,281.48 18,550.55 84,681.48 4,600.00 5.2%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 28,807.07 28,807.07 5,600.00 26,807.07 2,000.00 6.9%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 179,638.32 179,638.32 43,084.18 173,012.44 6,625.88 3.7%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Subagreements for Services 5100 5,670.00 5,670.00 0.00 25,553.13 (19,883.13) -350.7%

Travel and Conferences 5200 29,456.48 29,456.48 6,324.96 33,454.79 (3,998.31) -13.6%

Dues and Memberships 5300 2,697.05 2,697.05 45.00 2,697.05 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 63,026.39 63,026.39 57,259.35 63,297.92 (271.53) -0.4%

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 60,820.80 60,820.80 15,154.62 60,820.80 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 14,058.41 14,058.41 4,389.34 16,558.41 (2,500.00) -17.8%

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 255,194.36 255,194.36 1,432.52 237,944.55 17,249.81 6.8%

Professional/Consulting Services and

Operating Expenditures 5800 127,272.23 127,272.23 34,544.87 184,583.37 (57,311.14) -45.0%

Communications 5900 25,188.28 25,188.28 14,043.40 25,188.28 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING

EXPENDITURES 583,384.00 583,384.00 133,194.06 650,098.30
(66,714.30)

-11.4%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major Expansion

of School Libraries
6300

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:33 PM

256



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 09I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict Attendance

Agreements
7110

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Payments to County Offices 7142 4,519.00 4,519.00 0.00 4,519.00 0.00 0.0%

Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transfers Out

All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Service

Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect

Costs) 4,519.00 4,519.00 0.00 4,519.00
0.00

0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 34,420.11 34,420.11 0.00 34,458.88 (38.77) -0.1%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT

COSTS 34,420.11 34,420.11 0.00 34,458.88
(38.77)

-0.1%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 3,935,740.31 3,935,740.31 945,983.83 3,754,867.52

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Other Sources

Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transfers of Funds from Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:33 PM

257



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Restricted Detail

58105870000000

Form 09I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Resource Description
2025-26

Projected Totals

6019 Student Support and Professional Development Discretionary Block Grant (SSPDDBG) 65,052.00

6300 Lottery: Instructional Materials 52,401.47

6770 Arts and Music in Schools (AMS)-Funding Guarantee and Accountability Act (Prop 28) 13,812.77

7435 Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant 144,856.72

Total, Restricted Balance 276,122.96

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 6 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:33 PM

258



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Special Education Pass-Through Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 10I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 4,015,663.97 4,015,663.97 (93,151.16) 4,014,185.81 (1,478.16) 0.0%

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 15,434,450.62 15,434,450.62 4,303,954.00 15,176,982.48 (257,468.14) -1.7%

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 25,869.49 25,869.49 0.00 25,869.49 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 19,475,984.08 19,475,984.08 4,210,802.84 19,217,037.78

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

7100-

7299,7400-

7499 19,450,114.59 19,450,114.59 1,800,171.18 19,191,168.29

258,946.30

1.3%

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 19,450,114.59 19,450,114.59 1,800,171.18 19,191,168.29

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

AND USES (A5 - B9) 25,869.49 25,869.49 2,410,631.66 25,869.49

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C +

D4) 25,869.49 25,869.49 2,410,631.66 25,869.49

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 373,224.70 373,224.70 417,237.94 44,013.24 11.8%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 373,224.70 373,224.70 417,237.94

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 373,224.70 373,224.70 417,237.94

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 399,094.19 399,094.19 443,107.43

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 209,999.51 209,999.51 210,000.44

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:35 PM

259



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Special Education Pass-Through Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 10I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Other Assignments 9780 189,094.68 189,094.68 233,106.99

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF SOURCES

LCFF Transfers

Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 8287 4,015,663.97 4,015,663.97 (93,151.16) 4,014,185.81 (1,478.16) 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 4,015,663.97 4,015,663.97 (93,151.16) 4,014,185.81 (1,478.16) 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

Special Education Master Plan

Current Year 6500 8311 15,434,450.62 15,434,450.62 4,303,954.00 15,176,982.48 (257,468.14) -1.7%

Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 15,434,450.62 15,434,450.62 4,303,954.00 15,176,982.48 (257,468.14) -1.7%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Interest 8660 25,869.49 25,869.49 0.00 25,869.49 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Revenue

Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County Offices 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 25,869.49 25,869.49 0.00 25,869.49 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 19,475,984.08 19,475,984.08 4,210,802.84 19,217,037.78

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

Other Transfers Out

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 4,015,663.97 4,015,663.97 0.00 4,014,185.81 1,478.16 0.0%

To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 15,434,450.62 15,434,450.62 1,800,171.18 15,176,982.48 257,468.14 1.7%

To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect

Costs) 19,450,114.59 19,450,114.59 1,800,171.18 19,191,168.29
258,946.30

1.3%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 19,450,114.59 19,450,114.59 1,800,171.18 19,191,168.29

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:35 PM

260



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Special Education Pass-Through Fund

Restricted Detail

58105870000000

Form 10I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Resource Description
2025-26

Projected Totals

6500 Special Education 210,000.44

Total, Restricted Balance 210,000.44

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:35 PM

261



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 11I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 196,560.43 196,560.43 55,745.37 164,114.90 (32,445.53) -16.5%

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 106,562.86 106,562.86 14,848.17 136,450.54 29,887.68 28.0%

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 298,904.89 298,904.89 21,350.00 286,410.75 (12,494.14) -4.2%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 602,028.18 602,028.18 91,943.54 586,976.19

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 226,691.27 226,691.27 71,648.83 180,026.49 46,664.78 20.6%

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 70,439.14 70,439.14 38,236.38 92,039.78 (21,600.64) -30.7%

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 113,414.80 113,414.80 25,451.80 81,916.73 31,498.07 27.8%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 77,874.93 77,874.93 54,414.55 92,758.88 (14,883.95) -19.1%

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 141,808.11 141,808.11 79,655.47 151,387.72 (9,579.61) -6.8%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

7100-

7299,7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 27,007.97 27,007.97 6,944.13 27,241.53 (233.56) -0.9%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 657,236.22 657,236.22 276,351.16 625,371.13

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (55,208.04) (55,208.04) (184,407.62) (38,394.94)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) (55,208.04) (55,208.04) (184,407.62) (38,394.94)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 108,830.49 108,830.49 151,960.00 43,129.51 39.6%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 108,830.49 108,830.49 151,960.00

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 108,830.49 108,830.49 151,960.00

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 53,622.45 53,622.45 113,565.06

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 46,664.66 46,664.66 110,777.63

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 6,957.79 6,957.79 2,787.43

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:35 PM

262



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 11I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF SOURCES

LCFF Transfers

LCFF Transfers - Current Year 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 196,560.43 196,560.43 55,745.37 164,114.90 (32,445.53) -16.5%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 196,560.43 196,560.43 55,745.37 164,114.90 (32,445.53) -16.5%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Adult Education Program 6391 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 106,562.86 106,562.86 14,848.17 136,450.54 29,887.68 28.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 106,562.86 106,562.86 14,848.17 136,450.54 29,887.68 28.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 2,494.14 2,494.14 0.00 0.00 (2,494.14) -100.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 82,052.75 82,052.75 21,350.00 82,052.75 0.00 0.0%

Interagency Services 8677 209,508.00 209,508.00 0.00 199,508.00 (10,000.00) -4.8%

Other Local Revenue

All Other Local Revenue 8699 4,850.00 4,850.00 0.00 4,850.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 298,904.89 298,904.89 21,350.00 286,410.75 (12,494.14) -4.2%

TOTAL, REVENUES 602,028.18 602,028.18 91,943.54 586,976.19

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 140,940.59 140,940.59 41,937.63 95,485.33 45,455.26 32.3%

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 85,750.68 85,750.68 29,711.20 84,541.16 1,209.52 1.4%

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 226,691.27 226,691.27 71,648.83 180,026.49 46,664.78 20.6%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 9,002.85 9,002.85 (9,002.85) New

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 70,439.14 70,439.14 29,233.53 83,036.93 (12,597.79) -17.9%

Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 70,439.14 70,439.14 38,236.38 92,039.78 (21,600.64) -30.7%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:35 PM

263



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 11I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 62,162.11 62,162.11 6,866.22 28,426.13 33,735.98 54.3%

PERS 3201-3202 18,884.73 18,884.73 6,602.30 21,026.96 (2,142.23) -11.3%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 4,215.20 4,215.20 2,281.69 5,438.09 (1,222.89) -29.0%

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 18,632.92 18,632.92 6,142.47 18,391.27 241.65 1.3%

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 145.16 145.16 53.90 131.28 13.88 9.6%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 4,996.85 4,996.85 1,857.02 4,559.68 437.17 8.7%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 4,377.83 4,377.83 1,648.20 3,943.32 434.51 9.9%

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 113,414.80 113,414.80 25,451.80 81,916.73 31,498.07 27.8%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 43,193.14 43,193.14 32,999.14 58,821.60 (15,628.46) -36.2%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 34,681.79 34,681.79 21,415.41 33,937.28 744.51 2.1%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 77,874.93 77,874.93 54,414.55 92,758.88 (14,883.95) -19.1%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Travel and Conferences 5200 8,667.00 8,667.00 8.40 8,667.00 0.00 0.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 2,400.00 2,400.00 674.99 955.00 1,445.00 60.2%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 7,868.22 7,868.22 (7,868.22) New

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 1,000.00 1,000.00 345.41 1,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 91,569.94 91,569.94 52,139.36 86,306.33 5,263.61 5.7%

Professional/Consulting Services and

Operating Expenditures 5800 36,071.17 36,071.17 18,179.40 44,491.17 (8,420.00) -23.3%

Communications 5900 2,100.00 2,100.00 439.69 2,100.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 141,808.11 141,808.11 79,655.47 151,387.72 (9,579.61) -6.8%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments

Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transfers Out

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:35 PM

264



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Adult Education Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 11I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Debt Service

Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 27,007.97 27,007.97 6,944.13 27,241.53 (233.56) -0.9%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 27,007.97 27,007.97 6,944.13 27,241.53 (233.56) -0.9%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 657,236.22 657,236.22 276,351.16 625,371.13

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: State School Building Fund/County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:35 PM

265



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Adult Education Fund

Restricted Detail

58105870000000

Form 11I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Resource Description
2025-26

Projected Totals

9010 Other Restricted Local 110,777.63

Total, Restricted Balance 110,777.63

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:35 PM

266



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Child Development Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 12I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 239,878.00 239,878.00 (10,113.35) 240,066.00 188.00 0.1%

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 1,457,576.29 1,457,576.29 1,502,646.18 1,574,867.23 117,290.94 8.0%

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 348,448.44 348,448.44 8,772.31 357,187.19 8,738.75 2.5%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,045,902.73 2,045,902.73 1,501,305.14 2,172,120.42

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 190,772.42 190,772.42 50,094.84 183,681.08 7,091.34 3.7%

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 403,981.14 403,981.14 124,723.19 405,233.75 (1,252.61) -0.3%

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 307,803.55 307,803.55 85,510.03 315,995.37 (8,191.82) -2.7%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 58,195.11 58,195.11 5,270.40 57,290.45 904.66 1.6%

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 964,570.19 964,570.19 35,494.86 1,075,763.15 (111,192.96) -11.5%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

7100-

7299,7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 116,915.07 116,915.07 6,045.21 126,096.30 (9,181.23) -7.9%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,042,237.48 2,042,237.48 307,138.53 2,164,060.10

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

AND USES (A5 - B9) 3,665.25 3,665.25 1,194,166.61 8,060.32

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C +

D4) 3,665.25 3,665.25 1,194,166.61 8,060.32

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 201,144.87 201,144.87 223,624.91 22,480.04 11.2%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 201,144.87 201,144.87 223,624.91

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 201,144.87 201,144.87 223,624.91

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 204,810.12 204,810.12 231,685.23

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 2,952.26

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:36 PM

267



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Child Development Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 12I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Other Assignments 9780 204,810.12 204,810.12 228,732.97

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEDERAL REVENUE

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 239,878.00 239,878.00 (10,113.35) 240,066.00 188.00 0.1%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 239,878.00 239,878.00 (10,113.35) 240,066.00 188.00 0.1%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Development Apportionments 8530 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELO-P) 2600 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Preschool 6105 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Arts and Music in Schools (Prop 28) 6770 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 1,457,576.29 1,457,576.29 1,502,646.18 1,574,867.23 117,290.94 8.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 1,457,576.29 1,457,576.29 1,502,646.18 1,574,867.23 117,290.94 8.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 3,665.25 3,665.25 0.00 12,404.00 8,738.75 238.4%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Child Development Parent Fees 8673 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency Services 8677 39,500.00 39,500.00 (18,000.00) 39,500.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 305,283.19 305,283.19 20,000.00 305,283.19 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Revenue

All Other Local Revenue 8699 0.00 0.00 6,772.31 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 348,448.44 348,448.44 8,772.31 357,187.19 8,738.75 2.5%

TOTAL, REVENUES 2,045,902.73 2,045,902.73 1,501,305.14 2,172,120.42

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 190,772.42 190,772.42 50,094.84 183,681.08 7,091.34 3.7%

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 190,772.42 190,772.42 50,094.84 183,681.08 7,091.34 3.7%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classified Support Salaries 2200 170,204.56 170,204.56 46,568.38 170,769.50 (564.94) -0.3%

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 126,340.00 126,340.00 42,234.68 126,704.04 (364.04) -0.3%

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 107,436.58 107,436.58 35,920.13 107,760.21 (323.63) -0.3%

Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 403,981.14 403,981.14 124,723.19 405,233.75 (1,252.61) -0.3%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 87,518.47 87,518.47 17,634.95 89,468.57 (1,950.10) -2.2%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:36 PM

268



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Child Development Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 12I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

PERS 3201-3202 74,435.56 74,435.56 22,115.11 74,673.82 (238.26) -0.3%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 8,236.99 8,236.99 2,362.42 7,951.09 285.90 3.5%

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 118,499.76 118,499.76 37,739.35 124,841.38 (6,341.62) -5.4%

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 283.88 283.88 81.44 274.03 9.85 3.5%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 10,051.31 10,051.31 2,954.43 9,952.66 98.65 1.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 8,777.58 8,777.58 2,622.33 8,833.82 (56.24) -0.6%

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 307,803.55 307,803.55 85,510.03 315,995.37 (8,191.82) -2.7%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,482.26 (1,482.26) New

Materials and Supplies 4300 57,695.11 57,695.11 5,552.19 56,089.98 1,605.13 2.8%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 500.00 500.00 (281.79) (281.79) 781.79 156.4%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 58,195.11 58,195.11 5,270.40 57,290.45 904.66 1.6%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Subagreements for Services 5100 34,500.00 34,500.00 0.00 0.00 34,500.00 100.0%

Travel and Conferences 5200 28,963.11 28,963.11 6,396.81 32,461.77 (3,498.66) -12.1%

Dues and Memberships 5300 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,120.00 1,185.00 (185.00) -18.5%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 6,378.02 6,378.02 986.14 7,728.02 (1,350.00) -21.2%

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 20,385.26 20,385.26 0.00 22,069.52 (1,684.26) -8.3%

Professional/Consulting Services and

Operating Expenditures 5800 869,163.80 869,163.80 26,105.00 1,008,882.84 (139,719.04) -16.1%

Communications 5900 4,180.00 4,180.00 886.91 3,436.00 744.00 17.8%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING

EXPENDITURES 964,570.19 964,570.19 35,494.86 1,075,763.15
(111,192.96)

-11.5%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

Other Transfers Out

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Service

Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect

Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 116,915.07 116,915.07 6,045.21 126,096.30 (9,181.23) -7.9%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT

COSTS 116,915.07 116,915.07 6,045.21 126,096.30
(9,181.23)

-7.9%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:36 PM

269



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Child Development Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 12I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,042,237.48 2,042,237.48 307,138.53 2,164,060.10

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: General Fund 8911 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:36 PM

270



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Child Development Fund

Restricted Detail

58105870000000

Form 12I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Resource Description
2025-26

Projected Totals

9010 Other Restricted Local 2,952.26

Total, Restricted Balance 2,952.26

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:36 PM

271



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Deferred Maintenance Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 14I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 57,000.00 57,000.00 0.00 57,035.00 35.00 0.1%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 117,000.00 117,000.00 0.00 117,035.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 75,000.00 75,000.00 10,159.25 75,000.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

7100-

7299,7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 75,000.00 75,000.00 10,159.25 75,000.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND

USES (A5 - B9) 42,000.00 42,000.00 (10,159.25) 42,035.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 42,000.00 42,000.00 (10,159.25) 42,035.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 2,314,746.84 2,314,746.84 2,393,893.11 79,146.27 3.4%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 2,314,746.84 2,314,746.84 2,393,893.11

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 2,314,746.84 2,314,746.84 2,393,893.11

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 2,356,746.84 2,356,746.84 2,435,928.11

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 2,356,746.84 2,356,746.84 2,435,928.11

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:36 PM

272



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Deferred Maintenance Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 14I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF SOURCES

LCFF Transfers

LCFF Transfers - Current Year 8091 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

All Other State Revenue 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Community Redevelopment Funds Not Subject to LCFF

Deduction
8625

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Sales

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 57,000.00 57,000.00 0.00 57,035.00 35.00 0.1%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Revenue

All Other Local Revenue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 57,000.00 57,000.00 0.00 57,035.00 35.00 0.1%

TOTAL, REVENUES 117,000.00 117,000.00 0.00 117,035.00

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Travel and Conferences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 45,000.00 45,000.00 10,159.25 45,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Professional/Consulting Services and

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:36 PM

273



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Deferred Maintenance Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 14I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Operating Expenditures 5800 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING

EXPENDITURES 75,000.00 75,000.00 10,159.25 75,000.00
0.00

0.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

Debt Service

Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 75,000.00 75,000.00 10,159.25 75,000.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:36 PM

274



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Deferred Maintenance Fund

Restricted Detail

58105870000000

Form 14I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Resource Description
2025-26

Projected Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:36 PM

275



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Forest Reserve Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 16I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 10,384.10 10,384.10 0.00 10,384.10 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 27.27 27.27 0.00 27.27 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 10,411.37 10,411.37 0.00 10,411.37

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

7100-

7299,7400-

7499 8,824.51 8,824.51 0.00 8,824.51

0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 8,824.51 8,824.51 0.00 8,824.51

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 1,586.86 1,586.86 0.00 1,586.86

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 1,586.86 1,586.86 0.00 1,586.86 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (1,586.86) (1,586.86) 0.00 (1,586.86)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 0.00 0.00 58.80 58.80 New

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 0.00 0.00 58.80

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 0.00 0.00 58.80

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 0.00 0.00 58.80

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 58.80

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:37 PM

276



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Forest Reserve Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 16I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEDERAL REVENUE

Forest Reserve Funds 8260 10,384.10 10,384.10 0.00 10,384.10 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Revenues From Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 10,384.10 10,384.10 0.00 10,384.10 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Interest 8660 27.27 27.27 0.00 27.27 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 27.27 27.27 0.00 27.27 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 10,411.37 10,411.37 0.00 10,411.37

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

Other Transfers Out

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers 7281-7283 8,824.51 8,824.51 0.00 8,824.51 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 8,824.51 8,824.51 0.00 8,824.51 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 8,824.51 8,824.51 0.00 8,824.51

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 1,586.86 1,586.86 0.00 1,586.86 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 1,586.86 1,586.86 0.00 1,586.86 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:37 PM

277



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Forest Reserve Fund

Restricted Detail

58105870000000

Form 16I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Resource Description
2025-26

Projected Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:37 PM

278



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 17I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 4,601.00 (399.00) -8.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 4,601.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

7100-

7299,7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 4,601.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 4,601.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 185,509.51 185,509.51 188,805.51 3,296.00 1.8%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 185,509.51 185,509.51 188,805.51

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 185,509.51 185,509.51 188,805.51

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 190,509.51 190,509.51 193,406.51

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 190,509.51 190,509.51 193,406.51

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:37 PM

279



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 17I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 4,601.00 (399.00) -8.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 4,601.00 (399.00) -8.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 4,601.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: General Fund/CSSF 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: General Fund/CSSF 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: State School Building Fund/County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:37 PM

280



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

Restricted Detail

58105870000000

Form 17I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Resource Description
2025-26

Projected Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Bi, Version 6 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:37 PM

281



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

County School Facilities Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 35I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 513,997.53 387,342.00 387,342.00 New

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 59,608.99 59,608.99 0.00 55,276.00 (4,332.99) -7.3%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 59,608.99 59,608.99 513,997.53 442,618.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 3,800.56 3,800.56 0.00 48,800.56 (45,000.00) -1,184.0%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 79,327.50 79,327.50 0.00 421,169.25 (341,841.75) -430.9%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

7100-

7299,7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 83,128.06 83,128.06 0.00 469,969.81

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

AND USES (A5 - B9) (23,519.07) (23,519.07) 513,997.53 (27,351.81)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C +

D4) (23,519.07) (23,519.07) 513,997.53 (27,351.81)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 1,162,610.41 1,162,610.41 1,203,124.20 40,513.79 3.5%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 1,162,610.41 1,162,610.41 1,203,124.20

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 1,162,610.41 1,162,610.41 1,203,124.20

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 1,139,091.34 1,139,091.34 1,175,772.39

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Legally Restricted Balance 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Di, Version 3 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:38 PM

282



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

County School Facilities Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 35I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Other Assignments 9780 1,139,091.34 1,139,091.34 1,175,772.39

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEDERAL REVENUE

All Other Federal Revenue 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

School Facilities Apportionments 8545 0.00 0.00 513,997.53 387,342.00 387,342.00 New

Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Revenue 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 513,997.53 387,342.00 387,342.00 New

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 59,608.99 59,608.99 0.00 55,276.00 (4,332.99) -7.3%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Revenue

All Other Local Revenue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 59,608.99 59,608.99 0.00 55,276.00 (4,332.99) -7.3%

TOTAL, REVENUES 59,608.99 59,608.99 513,997.53 442,618.00

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Travel and Conferences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Di, Version 3 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:38 PM

283



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

County School Facilities Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 35I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expenditures 5800 3,800.56 3,800.56 0.00 48,800.56 (45,000.00) -1,184.0%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING

EXPENDITURES 3,800.56 3,800.56 0.00 48,800.56
(45,000.00)

-1,184.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 59,307.50 59,307.50 0.00 59,307.50 0.00 0.0%

Land Improvements 6170 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 103,500.00 (100,000.00) -2,857.1%

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 16,520.00 16,520.00 0.00 258,361.75 (241,841.75) -1,463.9%

Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major Expansion

of School Libraries
6300

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 79,327.50 79,327.50 0.00 421,169.25 (341,841.75) -430.9%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

Other Transfers Out

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Service

Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect

Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 83,128.06 83,128.06 0.00 469,969.81

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

To: State School Building Fund/County School Facilities Fund

From: All Other Funds
8913

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: State School Building Fund/County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Proceeds

Proceeds from Sale/Lease-Purchase of Land/Buildings 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Di, Version 3 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:38 PM

284



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

County School Facilities Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 35I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Di, Version 3 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:38 PM

285



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

County School Facilities Fund

Restricted Detail

58105870000000

Form 35I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Resource Description
2025-26

Projected Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Di, Version 3 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:38 PM

286



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 40I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 3,658.01 3,658.01 0.00 3,510.00 (148.01) -4.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 3,658.01 3,658.01 0.00 3,510.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

7100-

7299,7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 3,658.01 3,658.01 0.00 3,510.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 3,658.01 3,658.01 0.00 3,510.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 141,361.66 141,361.66 144,032.31 2,670.65 1.9%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 141,361.66 141,361.66 144,032.31

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 141,361.66 141,361.66 144,032.31

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 145,019.67 145,019.67 147,542.31

Components of Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Legally Restricted Balance 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 145,019.67 145,019.67 147,542.31

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Di, Version 3 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:38 PM

287



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 40I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEDERAL REVENUE

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Revenue 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Revenue

Community Redevelopment Funds Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sales

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 3,658.01 3,658.01 0.00 3,510.00 (148.01) -4.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Revenue

All Other Local Revenue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 3,658.01 3,658.01 0.00 3,510.00 (148.01) -4.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 3,658.01 3,658.01 0.00 3,510.00

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Di, Version 3 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:38 PM

288



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 40I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Travel and Conferences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major Expansion of School

Libraries
6300

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

Other Transfers Out

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Service

Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: General Fund/CSSF 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: General Fund/CSSF 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: State School Building Fund/County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Proceeds

Proceeds from Sale/Lease-Purchase of Land/Buildings 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Di, Version 3 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:38 PM

289



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 40I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To

Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Proceeds from SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Di, Version 3 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:38 PM

290



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects

Restricted Detail

58105870000000

Form 40I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Resource Description
2025-26

Projected Totals

Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Di, Version 3 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:38 PM

291



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Other Enterprise Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 63I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources
8010-

8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

2) Federal Revenue
8100-

8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

3) Other State Revenue
8300-

8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

4) Other Local Revenue
8600-

8799 76,068.00 76,068.00 25,356.00 76,068.00
0.00

0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 76,068.00 76,068.00 25,356.00 76,068.00

B. EXPENSES

1) Certificated Salaries
1000-

1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

2) Classified Salaries
2000-

2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

3) Employee Benefits
3000-

3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

4) Books and Supplies
4000-

4999 258.55 258.55 0.00 258.55
0.00

0.0%

5) Services and Other Operating Expenses
5000-

5999 75,809.45 75,809.45 26,192.34 78,078.17
(2,268.72)

-3.0%

6) Depreciation and Amortization
6000-

6999 33,287.00 33,287.00 0.00 33,287.00
0.00

0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

7100-

7299,

7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs
7300-

7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENSES 109,355.00 109,355.00 26,192.34 111,623.72

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES(A5 -B9) (33,287.00) (33,287.00) (836.34) (35,555.72)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In
8900-

8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,284.72
2,284.72

New

b) Transfers Out
7600-

7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources
8930-

8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

b) Uses
7630-

7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

3) Contributions
8980-

8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,284.72

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

NET POSITION (C + D4) (33,287.00) (33,287.00) (836.34) (33,271.00)

F. NET POSITION

1) Beginning Net Position

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 1,098,463.00 1,098,463.00 1,098,467.00 4.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 1,098,463.00 1,098,463.00 1,098,467.00

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (F1c + F1d) 1,098,463.00 1,098,463.00 1,098,467.00

2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + F1e) 1,065,176.00 1,065,176.00 1,065,196.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ei, Version 4 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:39 PM

292



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Other Enterprise Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 63I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Components of Ending Net Position

a) Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 1,065,158.00 1,065,158.00 1,065,196.00

b) Restricted Net Position 9797 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 18.00 18.00 0.00

OTHER STATE REVENUE

STRS On-Behalf Pension Contributions 7690 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 76,068.00 76,068.00 25,356.00 76,068.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Revenue

All Other Local Revenue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 76,068.00 76,068.00 25,356.00 76,068.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 76,068.00 76,068.00 25,356.00 76,068.00

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS
3101-

3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

PERS
3201-

3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative
3301-

3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Health and Welfare Benefits
3401-

3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Unemployment Insurance
3501-

3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Workers' Compensation
3601-

3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

OPEB, Allocated
3701-

3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

OPEB, Active Employees
3751-

3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Other Employee Benefits
3901-

3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ei, Version 4 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:39 PM

293



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Other Enterprise Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 63I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 258.55 258.55 0.00 258.55 0.00 0.0%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 258.55 258.55 0.00 258.55 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Travel and Conferences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance
5400-

5450 11,981.21 11,981.21 11,678.88 11,678.88
302.33

2.5%

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 44,209.28 44,209.28 12,079.49 46,796.33 (2,587.05) -5.9%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 2,647.65 2,647.65 0.00 2,631.65 16.00 0.6%

Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 6,205.20 6,205.20 960.00 6,205.20 0.00 0.0%

Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expenditures 5800 9,512.34 9,512.34 1,100.00 9,512.34 0.00 0.0%

Communications 5900 1,253.77 1,253.77 373.97 1,253.77 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 75,809.45 75,809.45 26,192.34 78,078.17 (2,268.72) -3.0%

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation Expense 6900 33,287.00 33,287.00 0.00 33,287.00 0.00 0.0%

Amortization Expense-Lease Assets 6910 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Amortization Expense-Subscription Assets 6920 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 33,287.00 33,287.00 0.00 33,287.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

Other Transfers Out

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENSES 109,355.00 109,355.00 26,192.34 111,623.72

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,284.72 2,284.72 New

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,284.72 2,284.72 New

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a-b+e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,284.72

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ei, Version 4 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:39 PM

294



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Other Enterprise Fund

Restricted Detail

58105870000000

Form 63I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Resource Description
2025-26

Projected Totals

Total, Restricted Net Position 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ei, Version 4 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:39 PM

295



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Self-Insurance Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 67I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources
8010-

8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

2) Federal Revenue
8100-

8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

3) Other State Revenue
8300-

8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

4) Other Local Revenue
8600-

8799 248,665.01 248,665.01 57,682.11 251,253.00
2,587.99

1.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 248,665.01 248,665.01 57,682.11 251,253.00

B. EXPENSES

1) Certificated Salaries
1000-

1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

2) Classified Salaries
2000-

2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

3) Employee Benefits
3000-

3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

4) Books and Supplies
4000-

4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

5) Services and Other Operating Expenses
5000-

5999 80,000.00 80,000.00 30,203.00 80,000.00
0.00

0.0%

6) Depreciation and Amortization
6000-

6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

7100-

7299,

7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs
7300-

7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENSES 80,000.00 80,000.00 30,203.00 80,000.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES BEFORE

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES(A5 -B9) 168,665.01 168,665.01 27,479.11 171,253.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In
8900-

8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

b) Transfers Out
7600-

7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources
8930-

8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

b) Uses
7630-

7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

3) Contributions
8980-

8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

NET POSITION (C + D4) 168,665.01 168,665.01 27,479.11 171,253.00

F. NET POSITION

1) Beginning Net Position

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 (709,608.45) (709,608.45) (663,506.11) 46,102.34 -6.5%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) (709,608.45) (709,608.45) (663,506.11)

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (F1c + F1d) (709,608.45) (709,608.45) (663,506.11)

2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + F1e) (540,943.44) (540,943.44) (492,253.11)

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ei, Version 4 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:40 PM

296



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Self-Insurance Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 67I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Components of Ending Net Position

a) Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted Net Position 9797 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 (540,943.44) (540,943.44) (492,253.11)

OTHER STATE REVENUE

STRS On-Behalf Pension Contributions 7690 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 52,665.01 52,665.01 0.00 55,253.00 2,587.99 4.9%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

In-District Premiums/Contributions 8674 196,000.00 196,000.00 57,682.11 196,000.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Revenue

All Other Local Revenue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 248,665.01 248,665.01 57,682.11 251,253.00 2,587.99 1.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 248,665.01 248,665.01 57,682.11 251,253.00

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS
3101-

3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

PERS
3201-

3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternative
3301-

3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Health and Welfare Benefits
3401-

3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Unemployment Insurance
3501-

3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Workers' Compensation
3601-

3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

OPEB, Allocated
3701-

3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

OPEB, Active Employees
3751-

3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Other Employee Benefits
3901-

3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ei, Version 4 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:40 PM

297



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Self-Insurance Fund

Expenditures by Object

58105870000000

Form 67I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Description
Resource

Codes

Object

Codes

Original

Budget

(A)

Board

Approved

Operating

Budget

(B)

Actuals

To Date

(C)

Projected

Year

Totals

(D)

Difference

(Col B &

D)

(E)

% Diff

Column

B & D

(F)

Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Travel and Conferences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance
5400-

5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expenditures 5800 80,000.00 80,000.00 30,203.00 80,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 80,000.00 80,000.00 30,203.00 80,000.00 0.00 0.0%

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation Expense 6900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Amortization Expense-Lease Assets 6910 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Amortization Expense-Subscription Assets 6920 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENSES 80,000.00 80,000.00 30,203.00 80,000.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a-b+e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ei, Version 4 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:40 PM

298



Yuba County Office of Education

Yuba County

2025-26 First Interim

Self-Insurance Fund

Restricted Detail

58105870000000

Form 67I

G81PSDWJS5(2025-26)

Resource Description
2025-26

Projected Totals

Total, Restricted Net Position 0.00

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V14

File: Fund-Ei, Version 4 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2025 1:40 PM

299


	1 - 12-15-25 Agenda Cover
	2 - 12-15-25 Agenda
	3 - YCOE Board Meeting Dates 2026 - Proposed
	4 - BB 9130 Subcommittees
	BYLAWS OF THE BOARD
	Board Subcommittees
	EDUCATION CODE

	5 - 11-12-25 Minutes
	6 - TCC 11.1.25 to 12.4.25
	7 - Bill Text_ CA AB1390 _ 2025-2026 _ Regular Session _ Amended _ LegiScan
	8 - BB 9250 Remuneration
	BYLAWS OF THE BOARD
	Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits
	Remuneration
	Health and Welfare Benefits
	Education Code
	Government Code

	9 - YES Cover Letter for Renewal
	10 - YES Charter Renewal Petition 2026-2031 (4930-2035-9782.v12) Final.docx
	Yuba Environmental Science Charter Academy  
	(YES CHARTER ACADEMY) 
	Introduction 
	A.​Affirmations and Declaration 
	B.​Executive Summary 
	C.​Council of Directors and Charter School Leadership Qualifications 
	D.​Criteria for Renewal 

	 
	o​i-Ready identifies the median Progress Toward Typical Growth as an aggregate growth measure that can be used to show growth for a group of students.  
	o​According to the test publisher, the median elementary school student must make 75% progress toward typical growth in Reading and 80% progress in Math to be considered making a year’s progress in each subject area. For middle schoolers, median growth in Reading should be 45% or greater and 60% or greater in Math.  
	o​The Typical Growth Progress column in the i-Ready Reading and Math reports for 2024-25 school year show that elementary (K-5) and Middle School (6-8) students made a year’s progress in both Reading and Math in the 2024 and 2025 school year according to these benchmarks.  
	o​Therefore, YES CHARTER ACADEMY is successfully helping a majority of its students make measurable increases in achievement throughout the school year. 
	 
	 
	i-Ready ELA School Median Progress by Grade 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	i-Ready Math School Median Progress by Grade 
	 
	YES CHARTER ACADEMY Suspension with Neighbors, District, and State (2024) 
	 
	 
	YES CHARTER ACADEMY Suspension Rates Over Time with Neighboring Schools, District, and State (2018-2024) 
	 
	 
	I.​Element 1 -- Educational Program 
	A.​Mission Statement 
	B.​Whom YES CHARTER ACADEMY Seeks To Educate 
	YES Enrollment Data by Location and Zip Code​Updated: 9/2025 
	Arranged by proximity to YES 

	C.​Model of the Educated Person in the 21st Century 
	D.​Educational Philosophy – How Learning Best Occurs 
	E.​Core Values 
	YES graduates are… 
	Academically Proficient: 
	Professional’ 
	Committed to Community Integrity & Justice: 
	Business’ 
	Lifelong Learners: 
	Committed to Community Integrity & Justice: 
	Business’ 
	Lifelong Learners: 
	Graduation Requirements 

	1.​Strong Sense of Place and Community 
	2.​Healthful living 
	3.​Curricular Rigor Aimed to Meet the State-Standards 
	4.​A small school that fosters learning 
	5.​An integrated approach to learning that focuses on the natural sciences and the environment 
	6.​Character development woven into the fabric of learning 
	1.​Accountability and responsibility 
	2.​Parents 
	3.​Commitment to lifelong learning and high achievement 
	F.​Curriculum 
	​ 

	G.​The Environmental Focus: Earth Literacy 
	H.​Instructional Design 
	I.​Instructional Methods 
	1.​Cooperative learning 
	2.​Differentiating instructional methods 
	3.​Multi-Tiered System of Supports and Response to Interventions (RTI2) 
	Non-responders 
	4.​Project Based Learning Initiatives  
	5.​Long Term Independent Study      
	1.​Extended Learning Opportunities Program 
	 
	J.​Development of Self-Motivated, Competent and Long-Life Learners 
	K.​When Learning Occurs 
	L.​Academic Habits 
	M.​Personal Habits and Attitudes 
	N.​Skill Conferred 
	a.​English and Language Arts 
	b.​Mathematics 
	c.​Science 
	d.​Health and Family & Community Life Education 
	a)​Artistic Expression 
	b)​Conflict Resolution 
	a)​Self-confidence and a Positive Attitude towards Learning 
	b)​Abiding Curiosity 
	c)​Initiative and Persistence 
	e.​Citizenship 
	f.​Collaboration 

	O.​Serving Special Student Populations 
	2.​Student Success Team 
	3.​Plan for Academically High-Achieving Students 
	4.​Plan for English Learners 
	Home Language Survey 
	ELPAC Testing 
	Reclassification Procedures 
	 
	Strategies for English Learner Instruction and Intervention 
	ELD Instruction: Integrated and Designated ELD 
	Integrated ELD 
	Designated ELD 
	Support for ELD Implementation 

	Monitoring and Evaluation of Program Effectiveness 

	5.​Plan for Students with Disabilities 
	a)​Overview 
	b)​Services for Students under the IDEA 
	i.​Special Education 


	Services for Students under the “IDEA” 
	P.​Section 504 / Americans With Disabilities Act 
	Q.​Education of Homeless Children and Youth 
	R. Professional Development 

	(2)​Element 2 -- Measurable Pupil Outcomes 
	A.​Proficiency in English and Language Arts 
	B.​Proficiency in Health and Family & Community Life Skills 
	C.​Proficiency in History, Social Sciences, and Geography 
	D.​Proficiency in Mathematics 
	E.​Proficiency in Science 
	F.​ Goals, Actions and Measurable Outcomes Aligned with the Eight State Priorities 


	Pursuant to Education Code Sections 47605(c)(5)(A)(ii) and 47605(c)(5)(B), a reasonably comprehensive description of the Charter School’s annual goals, actions and measurable outcomes, both schoolwide  and for each subgroup of students in and aligned with the Eight State Priorities  as described in Education Code Section 52060(d), can be found in the Charter School’s Local Control and Accountability Plan.  
	The current LCAP is on file with the County and included in this Charter Renewal (See Appendix 9). The Charter School shall annually update and develop the LCAP in accordance with Education Code Section 47606.5 and shall use the LCAP template adopted by the State Board of Education. The Charter School reserves the right to establish additional and/or amend school-specific goals and corresponding assessments throughout the duration of the charter term through the annual LCAP update. The Charter School shall submit the LCAP to the County annually on or before July 1, as required by Education Code Section 47604.33. The Charter School shall also present a report on the annual update to the LCAP and the local control funding formula budget overview for parents on or before February 28 of each year as part of a nonconsent item at a regularly scheduled Council of Directors meeting.  The LCAP and any revisions necessary to implement the LCAP shall not be considered a material revision to the charter, and shall be maintained
	In developing the 2025-26 LCAP, the Charter School has addressed new focus areas based on shifts in the student demographics and the lingering impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. YES CHARTER ACADEMY has sought to address the needs of its community members to remain resilient and to combat student learning loss and uneven achievement. 
	The 2025-26 LCAP reflects a focus on student achievement, in the content areas, in a targeted manner. The LCAP will be updated as needed and in accordance with applicable law.  
	 
	 
	(3)​Element 3 - Methods to Assess Pupil Progress Towards Meeting Outcomes 
	A.​Content-Specific Outcomes for Students 
	B.​Use and Reporting of Data 

	(4)​Element 4 -- Governance Structure 
	A.​Governance Structure of YES CHARTER ACADEMY 
	B.​County Office of Education Relationship 
	C.​Bylaws 
	D.​Council of Directors 
	E.​Role of the Superintendent/Principal 
	F.​Parental Involvement 

	(5)​Element 5 -- Employee Qualifications 
	A.​Human Resources/Organization Structure 
	B.​Charter School Employee Positions & Qualifications  
	Qualifications for Human Resource Director                  
	●​Strong Knowledge of Employment Laws 
	●​5-10 years of Human Resource Experience 
	●​Excellent Communication and Leadership Skills 
	●​Skilled in Recruitment, Compensation and Employee Relations 
	●​Performance Management 
	●​Supervision  
	●​Strong Analytical Skills and problem solving 
	●​Proficiency with HR Information Systems and relevant software 
	 
	Programs Manager 
	Reports to: Business Administrator 
	Purpose: The Programs Manager’s responsibility is to research, develop, and implement programs to improve student outcomes while ensuring their effective and efficient functioning and compliance with laws. These responsibilities include coordinating resources and materials, providing staff training and support, and communicating with various stakeholders to meet the Charter School’s goals and foster student success. 
	Supervises: Non -credentialed staff 
	Credentials: none 
	 
	Qualifications for Programs Manager 
	●​Program Management experience 
	●​Social Work and Case Management experience 
	●​Organizational Leadership Skills 
	●​Policy Development Experience 
	●​Grant writing Experience 
	●​Strong Leadership and Communication Skills 
	 
	Teachers  
	CTE Teachers 


	(6)​Element 6 -- Health and Safety Procedures 
	A.​Health and Safety Procedures 

	(7)​Element 7 -- Means to Achieve Student Population Balance 
	Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(G) 

	(8)​Element 8 – Admission Policies and Procedures 
	Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(H) 
	Public Random Drawing 


	(9)​Element 9 -- Annual Financial Audit 
	(10)​Element 10 – Pupil Suspension and Expulsion Procedures 
	Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(J) 
	A.​Methods of Discipline 
	B.​Expulsion Decision 
	C.​District of Residence Notification 
	D.​Pupil Suspension and Expulsion Policy 
	2.​Policy 
	3.​Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students 
	4.​Enumerated Offenses 
	1.​Suspension Procedure 
	2.​Authority to Expel 
	3.​Expulsion Procedures 
	4.​Special Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Involving Sexual Assault or Battery Offenses 
	5.​Record of Hearing 
	6.​Presentation of Evidence 
	7.​Written Notice to Expel 
	8.​Written Notice to Expel 
	9.​Disciplinary Records 
	10.​No Right to Appeal 
	11.​Expelled Students/Alternative Education 
	12.​Rehabilitation Plans 
	13.​Readmission or Admission of Previously Expelled Student 
	15.​Special Procedures for the Consideration of Suspension and Expulsion or Involuntary Removal of Students with Disabilities 
	(11)​Element 11 – Employee Retirement Systems 
	Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(K) 

	(12)​Element 12 -- Public School Attendance Alternatives 
	Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(L) 

	(13)​Element 13 – Employee Return Rights  
	Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(M) 

	Element 14 -- Dispute Resolution Procedures​ 
	A.​Intent 
	B.​Internal Disputes 
	C.​Disputes Between YES CHARTER ACADEMY and the County  

	Element 15 -- Closure Procedures 
	A. Closure Protocol 
	MISCELLANEOUS CHARTER PROVISIONS 

	E.​Potential Civil Liability Effects 



	11 - First Interim Presentation 25-26
	Yuba County �Office of Education�First Interim Report  �2025-26 Fiscal Year�
	First Interim Report
	Unrestricted General Fund Budget
	Restricted General Fund Budget
	Restricted Revenue Decrease
	Other Funds
	Unrestricted MYP
	Restricted MYP
	Combined Multi-Year Projection
	Looking Ahead

	12 - 2025-26 First Interim Report
	2025-26 1st Interim Comparison to Adopted
	Fund 01 FI 24-25
	Fund 09 FI 24-25
	Fund 10 FI 24-25
	Fund 11 FI 24-25
	Fund 12 FI 24-25
	Fund 14 FI 24-25
	Fund 16 FI 24-25
	Fund 17 FI 24-25
	Fund 35 FI 24-25
	Fund 40 FI 24-25
	Fund 63 FI 24-25
	Fund 67 FI 24-25




